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An individual with care
requirements requires a home.

The Local Authority designs a care
package, identifying a care
provider and property for the
individual

The care provider is paid the full
amount for the care package and

pays rent to the Approved Provider.

or the Approved Provider is paid
the rent directly.

The Approved Provider pays
Civitas the rent.

What We Do

Social Housing Pioneers

C3= 12 a leading provider of care-hased commuanity
housing in “he L< T wag established in 2076 by the
fournders of s nvesimen: Advizer. Cratas nvestimen:
Managemen: armucad (OO from the long-standing
convicion tha” private capeal coald play awvital and
ethical role im the dehvery of homes withun the sooal
ROUSING Sector

C3— ke=heves that acceess o adecent home 13 a basic
huarman nighs from which go mach mors can be achieved,
partcelarky for people who are ving wish o hfe-long
dabnlry. With millionz of peopla stuck on housing
waring lams actose ~he L or mapped n long siay
hosprals, €535 became The firsy pablic company (o bnng
large geale equity Inves men: into The secTor

The Company hias “he duaatl obiecaves of achieving both
posiave finanaal resums and large scale measaralle
socal npracs
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Our Portfolio
as at 31 March 2022

- £969m [ 696

Investment property
. mdependemly walued®

2 {March 2028 £916m)

: P_mpertieé

(March 2021 619)

4592

Tenants

© (March2021:4295)
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Financial Highlights

for the year ended 31 March 2022

£54 lm

(2021 £50.8m based u on_'
- B915, ﬁm rea! estate .

7. 23p

(2021 5. BOp)

P Eme andmluted Eamin -
mrshar n

221yr

(2021: 22. 6 yrs}

How We Performed
Financial Highlights for the year ended 31 March 2022

Profit before tax IFRS NAV per share* IFRS NAV
£44.8m +24.1% 110.30p +1.9% £675.5m +0.3%
Tarioon Fene Yry
2022 2022 2022
A "o 7071
36.1 108.30 6735
37.7 107.87 670.6
EPRA EPS* Total shareholder IFRS NAV increase
4.82p -2.2% return® +11.6% since IPO* +12.6%
Foine Frroen Foroeon,
2022 2022 2022
fes
LAV 2 A7
4.93 26.5 106
4.63 20.4 16.1
Investment Dividends declared Annualised rent
property? (Ordinary shares) roll*
£968 8m +5.8% 5.55p +2.8% £54.1m +6.5%
o Finoe ST b
2022 2022 2022
E
52 M) E =
915.6 5.40 50.8 EE
8787 530 484
A Alternanye Performanse Measgies Terus are detined northe talemssare % ué
Tonan Ordinary shaie nefd sinee unch (perestiage nol annualsed) £ ;
Aanvestment propsiy ndepepdently valined See rrote Mo of the Consolidatod FInancia? Siate menes 1o dotaals of 1The valualien t
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Key Achievements
Operational Highlights
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£8335 million 4,592 tenants w.in nased o sLonoried oy a5+ 178 Local
svsested devendan.s ong e 130 care Authority Pariners
azeo 1 odatrion =ases s.gned wan providers
18 Approved
Providers

The Good Economy, the social impact advisory {irm, in its fourth annual
independent Social Impact Report on Civitas, noted that Civitas continues to be an
authentic impact investor according to [FC operating principles and is proactive in
its approach (o asset management, taking well defined steps to improve the quality
of existing homes, especially in terms of improving environmental performance.

T oover e bie ot the Uomipanes a5 ot 3 Matoh 2042

Levered IRR* since IPO (IFRS and Portfolic Basis)

Past pestfar i A0es 15 rrof a rofabhe rodeaton of fuitdee periolidooe
= Alermaiive Portornianee Measire 500 Appendixd ot 1he cawilation

Share price performance {pence)
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Introduction

“am pleaced 10 repor: thas the Company haz achieved
anarher year of strong financial and operational
performance Cur posive socal impacs 18 detatded n
a repor: from the independen: spemalis; consulianoy
The Good ~conomy TGN

|

Thea year presented many challengas. The pressures of
“he COV. -9 pandemic an our tanants and their carers
highhighss the benefiss of providing commumity-baged
care housing for vialnerable aduailts of working ade. huarmg
“heyear she Company came under avack from a small
namber of mvestors shor-selling “he Company's shares,
one of whom published a senes of cnnicisms that the
soard refuted i a very detatled response The share pric
having raded ar a premuim 1o AV garly mithe fmanual
vear. dropped sharply to a discoun® at the year end.
One of the 3oard responses hag been to uittiate a share
Luy-back programme which enhances the Met Asses Valae
of "he Company and confims -he doard's conhidence

11 he robwas namare of the Company’s cashiflows and

aszgeT valies

Our nvesimen: Adviser, Qiviias nvestmen: Managemen:
armred (OO0 has excepnional knowledos of the indusry
and conamies o add o rg team o enhance our porfolic,
O/ has een working on an rnnanve tontroduce a
VANaon to our leases, that will not impad: revenues or
azger values i which aims o strengthen -he indusry
sy addrassing concerns expressed Ly the fegula-or for
bor:ial ~OUsIng.

Financial Performance

Dunng che year under review our portfoho generated
rencal meome of £57.6 million, representing a 5 50
mncreadse over the ('orreq‘p(mrimq penod This refiec
he imdexanon of leaze ren-s wdunng a penod of mos
vary low inflation! Together wirh neys rents from a zmall
ambier of properies pirchased dunng he rear

Cazh gen
AT neTe
10N

S orralhion,

=rated fTom operanons vwas f
ze of 3857 over the prior year

o

mrabkle agis

iSan))

25 ner asset value of he
“08 30 pence per Ordine w‘; &harf— agat ¥
CLAC pence per share as sarch 2027

=1 Comparsys nereaged from

sarch N0

T ThIS 15 1 tanget ard nola toermal dhvsdend toreseast on 2 peofn 1o1ecast

The Company has met the 2oard’s stated dividend targes
of 5485 pence per share for the year 1o 30 Varch 2022

and the 3oard has set a new dividend rarge: of atleas:
570 pence per share for the year :o 31 Varch 20423

Board Governance

The 3oard s currently looking 1o recrin a naws
mdependen: director, having regard 10 succession, auar
bread:h of skills and diversiy,

The dcard and the nvesimean: Advizer Connmnae an open
dialogue vnth our sharehaolders o further demonstrate
our commimens o provide full stansparency as all ames

Continuation Vote

The Companys arncles of assooanon requre the
3oard 10 propose @ coninuaanon vote ag an ordinary
resolauet 3 the annval general meenng following

“he hfth anmversary from the mnal pubhe offenng of
‘he Company and at every fifth AGY Thareatar Ths

15 referrad so later in more detal within the Repor: of
“hie Dwrecrors. Jollowing dhscussions with a numhber of
shareholders and given ~he sirangh and narars of the
Company's parfoho and long-rerm enants. the irectors
are of “he opmon Tha: “he conmmaanon resalaton as
“he forthecomimg AGY will be passed and encourage all
shareholders o vote n favour

Outlook

The seciorin which fie Company inves:g offers mans®

posrive atnbues an an increasngly unceriain world e

benefir from high lvels of intnnsic anderlymeg demand for

our properiaes All of our leases benefis from C2. aphft on

rents. some nf vwwhich are subject to a 4 cap Together vwath
2ar parners we enable “he delivery of hlqh aaliny valu

for money care sernces for oar tenants

further propens:
sponns wnll deliver

Malhok o the fumare

e clasey and
rark:on foc
akeholders

CRAT INTLATIVEs On news el
o ON o pedce our
farher beneafis -0 our
wrth confldencs

Michael Wrobel

Chairman

29 Jane 2042






Our Portfolio
By UK Region as at 31 March 2022
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Our Portfolio continued
By Approved Provider as at 31 March 2022

Annualised Rent Roll (%) Properties
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In the year to March 2022 CIM, working with the CSH Board, has led the
development of a range of key initiatives to strengthen and position CSH and its
portfolio for the future.

Proposed New Regulatory Clause
nterparties betier able to achieve regulatory compliance

s hnhanced ormation and step in rig having regard to wenan: welfare) in addition o
exisiing lease ransfer and assignmen: rights

+ Unchangedlease and property values supponed by sirong underying demand

e Improved Governance

“A Place for Me"”
e Stones of 50 residents who live in Civitas propernes

e ully independen:ily compiled and written

s Exrengive number of mnierviews with residenis. their families, friends and their carers

Phase two work with E.ON
Connnued work across propertes

n in carbon emissions

Asset Management

Finance and operations

Transaction sourcing and execution
- -Housing Benefit

BTw 2022

U1 AND ACTU

v IOCTAL
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Introduction

Civizas nvestmen: Yanagement Limited {CM), the nvestmen: Adwiser 1o C8+~, advises on a range of ethicaliy based
soo|t and healthcare real estate funds wath commited capital of c£2bn OOV adwises these funds on behalf of varous
global inves:ors :ogether with a wide range of local authony pension funds and dedicated impac: investors.

The ncreased scale of 115 operanons hag enabled ClY 1o create a targe team of dedicared professionais \in The speclahs:
healthcare sector and (o make this experase avalable 1o each of the advised funds nclading CS=.

On behalf of the nvestmen: Adwviser and C5-, we would Iike 1o offer our thanks 1o all of our pariners who have continued
o provide hugh-qualicy care, suppor:, and housing, and o our inveszors who enabie the provision of over 4 500 quality
homes for some of *he most vulnerable people in society

Overview of Results

(S5 1w the market leader in the delivery of much-nesded long-term housing with care in the LK and leading the charge
for eThieat invesimen: in the secror Thase full year results show a number of key achievemen s and "hemes'

e Approaching six years of consisien: rental growsh and e An acavely managed por-folio with a sector-leading

progressive dividend payments ‘hat have inCreasad seam of professionals assisiing and enabihng high
from an innal 3p per share 10 585 per share quality and longevity of homes and mcome.
refleenng dividend growh ah=ad of inflaton. e “rofessional supbor to enable Approved Providers o
e 2emngndexed in-line with the Consumer ‘rice ndex enhance the qualisy of their dehivery and demonsirate
as Approved Providers are able to claim inflanon long-rerm financial and operanenal imdependence
adjustment paymen:s from local authortieg, and with e Ovmerstup of properies that faciirares the delivery
no disruplion from COVID-"9 of high levels of care with 40% of residen:s recelving
o A hgh-qualiyinvesrmen: credi raung from J17ch over 50 hours of care per week,
Raungs of A secured and A- unsecired. “ha: has been e Anacive programrme working with =GN o
malnzamed over ame. permanen:ly reduce carbon emissions across the
e esign, negouaton and annioiincemen: of a new porfolio leading o lower energy cos:s for residents
marke: leading regulatory clause, ta be implemented and a more carbon neuiral porzfolio.

QVEr IIMe O a rerospecive hasis, assising
Approved Providers in regulatory discassions with no
diminarzien o lease or asse: vajues

2 SLNNODDY ¢ NV L8000
DINISOOH T8 SYLIALD
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Investment Adviser’s Report continuea

Market Commentary

Az owlined n the Chairman's Statemens:, C'M s pleased
<0 note that The sector has contnued o sea prograss in
serms of The betier delivery of “he Specialis: Supporied
=ousing (357 model with guality commissioning at the
hear: of projece. Thig 1s essennal 1o ensure thar each
propery 1g suitable for the needs of individuals and o
meer the objecnves set by the relevan: local authonty.

=aving dedicated considerable C1V resource 1o working
closely with the Company's Approved 2roviders we
have seen continuged progress in the quairy of their
performance which has wranslated o greatly improved
financial resulis and govarmanoce,

Several Approved Providers who had previously scopped
salang an news propeces 1o fooas on strengthemng “hear
owr teams and systems have now begun ~o constder
new opporninites it a discipiined manner, consisen:
wiih the obigcave of further performance enhancemen:

At the same ame s far to say thar Approved Providers
have moved ar differen: paces and whole zome have
seen rapld siceess, others sall need 0 make farcher
operatonal and financralhmprovemen:s (.2 15
supporave of these ambiions and having sesn material
improvements in the secior, remaing fomised on
offering 17s agsistancee o dnve forward standards for the
Company's parners

Whate ¢lear s “has demand for qualsy
commiiruiy-based housimeg remaimns sirong and mos:
commen:aors behieve thar providing vilnerable people
with an opporunty 1o e in “heir own home or in
smaller facilmes near “o family 15 the kest solution

for them

While working closely with Approved ‘roviders

and spaciahst care providers. €2V has connnued o
focas on the oore fandamen-als of ensuring ‘ha: the
ponfohio operates at s very best, for Ingiancs ensuring
compliance for all key properiy metrics and collec g
renzal mmcome that s das

The ~rear saw modes” addinons "o ~he portffoho of around
£370 mullion in news properass imcladime “he provision

of a number of properies for -hose sesking asylum

The properes are backed by long-erm govsriimsnT
coptracts with contarparies tha have $7Tong covanans

She game ime, The Comp sty continagas to deyalon
and implemen- ligh sranddards of zocial impacs,
which s independent, meazured, ag well as forgimyg
leadindg relattonstops vath key chanties and nther

cor bodies, The commirmen: sa -ackle “he challenge
of decarbomsanion conumzes wirh “he farther
implementation of “he propecy rerofl” programims

Background

The sector in which the Company operates 1g subsiannally
fanded by “he State as par of the long-standing
commitmen: 1o provide suppor: for valnerable aduls

The L< s not alone in thig approach and indeed the
Lmired Nattons developed polices that have been adopred
by the UK the muropean Uruon and 185 States i total thar
provide a framework for The provigsion of this suppor. The
“Convennon on the Rghts of Persons with hisabilities” was
signed by che then LK Governmen: in 2007 and enacted
o lawe i 2008,

The Conventton sets od: broad nghss for thase considearad
theabled i Aracle

“Ta promoe, protec: and ensure fill and equal enjoymen:
af all human nghss and fandamental freedoms by all
persons with disabiliiies and o promore regpeac for ther
Inheren: dignisy.”

Arncle 19 specifically covers housing, incladimg the nghss
-0 hve independentdy and be imclided in the communizy,
Aracle 20 refers w personal mabilty, Aricle 26 10
habiliranion and rehabidization, and Aracles 29 and 30 0
“he nght o parnepae o pohncal and pubhe lfe calnaral
Ufe. recreason and spors.

Specials: Suppored Sousing of the wype provided by

“he Company s designed 7o falfill these objeciires and
predazes the implementanon of the LN Convennon. The
requiremern: o provide suppor: for viuinerable people
was further enshnined inio U law by the Care Act 2074
whtoh confirms the responsibilry of au-hories "o provids
appropnate sappor: and care There iz elling esimaony in
“he prablicaton A Place for Ve (Sponsored by 85~ and “he
Manonal Care Groupt highligh-ed Lazer in this repor, on
“he sransformanonal effecs 53- has upan people’s hves.

nrerms of currens legislation. the —ealth and Care 30! was
granted oval Assentin Apnl 2022, further consolidares
“he trends of jorming up N=3 healthcare services with
social care “hrough the formanion of ntegrased Care
Syzrama TO8s Thig s supporave of the forms of care and
comradry housing dehvered by the Comany.




Investment Adviser’s Report continued

Government Policy

The newly combined Government Deparimen:

for Leveliing Up, mouging and Commumnities, 18 a
demons:raion of how vital the Governmen: believes
decen: housing 1s 1o 11s central levelling up agenda.
ndeed, the |.evelling Lp white paper. published in
lebruary 2022, makes clear tha: the provision of high
qualuy, affordable housing 15 a maior Governmen: priorlty.

Cwitas was founded in The belief “hat private captal
though:fully and responsibly invested. 1s a key element

0 this provigion. especially in the area of the Speciahst
Supported =ousing Secior n which CiM specilalises.

This s because the large Housing Associanons consider
chemselves poorly surted to delivering these bespoke and
adapted properies. which are ofien located on brownfield
land vrthin commumities, whereas the larger mousing
Associations tend fo focas on muli-uane, untform new
developmen:s. Civiias, therefore, fulfils a need for which
shere s a clear marke: gap and a huge and growing
demand.

n addhinon, the las: few years have seen a renewed focus
from *he 285 on ~he reqiiremens: to hsren carefully o
residents volces and take their views and needs into
accourn:. This 1s something in which Civitas already
excels C. W has close and proacuve relanionships with
our Approved Provider and Care pariners, and. through
‘hem, with the residen:s themselves. =vidence for this

can be gseen in the high levels of satsfaction amongst our
regiden:s: the high levels of heal:h and safery comphance
and ren: collection: and the low levels of COV' )19

-hroughous the pandemic.

Demand for Social Housing

n Seprember 2020 the Nanonal Housing “ederanon
egttmated “hat there were 8 million people 1In some
form of housing need, that 1.6 million households were
an official warang hsts and “here were at least 29,000
children ving i temporary accommaodasiorn.

Supply for new affordable housing 1s very low and
significantly lower than demand. ‘n addinon, supply

18 further consrained by the demands placed apon
existing large developing housing providers in meeing
‘he cos's generated by fire safety measures post Grenfell,
remadianon of cladding, the cogt of reducing cathaon
emissions and addinonal consumer regulation proposed
n che Whate Yaper on social housing “A charer for social
housing residents”

When 17 comes ‘o Specialis: Suppored —ousing. the
long-standing and ongoing nise in working age adulss
with complex physteal, menzal and social care needs.
e unng suppored housing with care, means “has the
demand for high quality 35= of the sor: provided by
Cviias 1s expected 1o confinue 1o grow.

Summary & Outlook

Civitas = the leading mdependent operator in a sector in
which there1s enormous and growing demand and. due
‘0 he highly specralised nature of the work bemng carned
out. high barners o entry. Civas 15 acknowledged 1o ke
committed 0 providing safe, high quality homes with
care for g residents. with aciive and granular day o day
rorifolio managemen: being carned our by 118 large Tg2am
of sector specialisis in addiion, we are working with

the relevan: counterparias o inroduce new consractaal
provisions which we beliave will betzer postion our
Approvad ?rovider parmers o achieve compliance under
the R5%'s Governance and -mnancial Viabiliry standard.

We are coniraing o evaluate further porfoho
acrisEIons, ot only i our core compeency but also in
areas such as high qualty housing with care for asylam
seekers and those affecied by homelessness.

We remaim commited 70 generasing grow:h and
enhancing shareholder value “hrough socially impactfal
ethical invesnng We are pasgionately commited 10 this
for the long rerm

TEIVEDOE SYLTA L
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Investment Adviser’s Report continued

Specialist Housing

Adl leadhineg independent commentators agree thas
demand coninues o nse for communi-y-based housing
(Mencap Annual Repar: 2027 This 1s driven by the
general nigen ‘he popuelanon, beter birth outcomes and
improved hife expectancy. in urn stimulated by more
community-Based housing of the 'ype the Company
provides. Trends in mental health also conmtilyute 10
demand. Accorching 1o the 2oval College of 2sychiamsts
referrals *o men:al health services have ngen 10 an
all-ime high of 4.3 miihon people during 207

Lamng asson. a large heahhc-are consaitancy, inovs
Adulr Speciahs: Care Repor: Sih adiiion published in
January 2022 estimates that in the lgarming disability
marke: for care i “he communry, over 90% of provicders
come from the independen: secior. Qor specific menzal
healh services this nses 1o /% and reflecs the facr thas
over the pas: 30 vears almos: all specialist care has come
0 e provided by the poivas oot and patd for by the
3tate, whereas 17 was previously provided by the N -5

Whar s also clear s that ‘he pninaoipal of commaniy-
basad housing 1s being exendead to groaps with oher
care needs, beyond mental healh issues. This trend was
reinforced by the “omeleasness 2educhon Act of 2577
which placed o statrory daty upaon Tocal awchontes to
find homes for those at ngk of senicus harm caused by
homelessne

rior o the pandemic, the lsading homeless charey
and campalgn grouap Crniais esiimated “he cost of sireet
homelessness “o the 31ate was over £20.000 par person
per year, nor ncluding sucial losses and losses o the

STATE 1T TAX TEVen e,

A2 the srart of the pandemic, “he zveryone n campaign
ensured over $7.000 peuple sleeping rough were
houged in rTemporary accommodanon, mosly hoels
The challenge ~hat now remainsg 1g how o ensure

‘hose people are permanencly housed wirh the suppor
required "o overcomes ofren complex needs This s the
warpose of 3armes esg schame suphored by
CE= which vall ensure a secure and s:abla home with
EXTeNsIve supporr

The clear advan-ages are “he same a2 hoasineg for
disabiacd groups berer somal vancomes vithin a
commaney getindg and redaced costs to the taxpayer

Financial Review

As ar 3) March 2022 the [R5 net asset value of the
Company was £675.5 million, being 720.30 pence per
share, @ © 85% mncrease on the "08.5C pence 1er share

a:t & Warch 2027 A net fair value goin on inves:men:
propernes of £22.5 milhon (4027 £5.5 milhion) was recorded
In the year. Operanonal cash flows of £57 5 rmilhion were
an increase on the Prior year.

The porifoho was ndependently valued on an

mdividuaal ‘TRS azser basis by 7.7 ac F988 8 milhon as at

57 March 202212027 £97°5 6 milion! reflecting a net immal
vield of 5.23% This compares 10 an average puarchase

el of § 9"‘/ rior o parchase coets) and reflegts

“he abiliry of the Company -0 use 1z scale and marke:

posinon to buy well, ofzen off-market. and generally avod
“akIng pars m adcions,

Net rental ncome of FLH0/ milhon wag generated tnthe
p@nod a b “ancrease over "he corresponding penod

(37 Warch 2077 F47 8 mmilhont This increasea has been
q@m:rmed as a resuls of on-rrack indexanon of rents, the
effec of ran-al mcome on properes purchased m ~he
nnor penod being mcladed for the full twelve mornths
aned a small number of new Inves men:tsin the penod
Srrong ongomg rental colleciions throughour the year
supporied the Company's healthy operasing cash flows.

Juning che repornng penod, The Company paid four
dinidend dismbanons mclading one drndend of
L4800 and three instalmenss of 7 3870k each dunng he
period, fully in line wirh the disinbuanon targe: of 5.55p

i)

anneunced for the year 7o $0 ¥arch 042

The Company also exiendead “he maturey of 17s

F00m loan facihty with =330 Jank ple s ,‘»lnm:mber 2023
At SONIA phas 2.09% margin Sinee “he year end. the
FEOT facllvy with Cloyds 3ank ple has also bean
exended "o July A0 SOMA plus T B7% margin
Tougesher these flnant.nqs conttle o andearpin the
2rong hagadisy postion of the Comparn,. The Company
has also maimntained leverage 1t 544354, comfarally
wihin the Campany = sslif-imposed caps of 40% of

~oral assess. Tinally of note the Company remamned e
premium 1ich raning from the prior year a7 "4 secured
and -0 anseciired




Investment Adviser’s Report continued

The CSH Investment Portfolio — Overview

The Cwras porsfohois one of the larges: 338 porfohos m the UK andas diverse geographically in propeny size, ype

of care and with muluple countemaries. The overall objecive 12 7o have a high-qualnty porfoho providineg long-term
accommodanon and siable returns All CHV's work with care providers and Approved Jroviders = collaboratve, and part of
C.M s commiiment To Improve the sector and assist i!s parirers in becoming more indspendent,

Portfolio
rarges: private portfolio in the country.

o

High acuity with 40% of 130 care providers 18 approved 178 local authority
residents living in Civitas providers partners
properties receiving over
50 hours of care per week

Team

~s:abhished teamn of specialists across the couniry.

Activities
Ley getvities compnse of future proofing, opimising quahy for care providers, ensurning Approved Providers benefir from
economies of scale, and introduction of the new Regulatory clause.

Outcomes

Jenefss denved from the combination of porfoho, -eam and acrnies.

~ach year a small namber of baddings recpure fiire proofing where the Company and OV dennfy adaprions *has
are Tequired, orin a few instances a change of use, that vall ensure longevity of occupanaon and that opamal residens
sansfaciion s mainainead.

20T SLNIILDDY QNY LA
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Investment Adviser’s Report continued

The Portfolio — Rent Roll

The annuahsed rent roll ag at 57 March 2082 ncreased 0
£54.2 mulhon from £50.8 milhon in March 20227 and this 1s

expecied to increase further ag addinonal indexaton 18

apphed (refer o char: on page 3\

Rensal income is generated from leases with
.8 Approved Providers (refer o page 9 for furher details).

Typcally, properies are located close to local community-
based facihnes 1o support :enants, famihes and graff wath
minimat ravel regdiremenss,

Portfolio Characteristics

The key fearures of the CS= portffolio ¢an be summansged
as follows:

s Jroperias are fully convered and specially adapted
for care use

o “gh acury wiith 404 of residents iving in Cvitas
properues receing over 50 hours of care per week

e edian ren:s rested/compared agains: marke:
eqivalen:

e roperies always well located within “he community
and with commussioner suppor:

e  Over one third of the porifolo on back-o-back 25-vear
lgases with care providers mirroring “he obliganons in
the lease 10 Approved Providers

e Al own front door polcy

e Over one third of properties bough: when new,
withoat developmen: or forward funding nsk

The high qualbsy of C3- porfoho reflecs the Company's
abilizy 10 source off-marke? rransacions through 17s
extensive nerwork of care provider relanonships, with the
airm of achueving value growth over ume,

Regulation

.n October 2077 ~he Regulator of Social Zouasing pubhshed
I's annial seczor ngk profile, which seeks 10 set ot s view
on the sources of nsk w0 providers ongoing comphance
with regalatory standards. The keys areas 12 highhighes for
“he whole secior are

e  ncreased gerunny as set oul in the Jocial —ousing
White Japer

e ncreased costs associared with fire remedianon pos:
Grenfzll Tower and mes-ing ~he demands of the -re
Safe-y Aot 020

e The cos: of meeundg the rero-carbon agenda

e rcreased deb: regqurad to subsidise improvemesn:s ‘o
EXI1ETINY 3 ok

CSH always welcomes “he engagemens: of the R8H with
our Approved Pronider counterparnes and we suppors the
work the 385 has underaken in making recommendatons
for improvemenss in the sector over the pas: frve years.
The 25H connnues o engage with all Approved Providers
mctuding those wrth which Civitas works.

since the las: report, the RSk 18 now engaging with nine of
the Company's Approved Providers. se: ou: below:

Lgprn?_tq_y_[qylde:l _._rggl_igg T_yppof pubhc:_mnlnﬁ . _Route
Alcx.and Home N/A Reg. aory Reacttve
So.ations udgemen:  engagemen:
Bespoxe S.oporiive N/A Regi..aory Reaciive
“enancies Judgemen: cngagemen:
Encire.e Housing MEA Regulawory Reactive

Judgement  engagemen:

Fa con tlowsing N/A Reg. aory Reaciva
Asgociation Judgenrent  engagemen:
Hi. daic [Housing N/A Reg. aory Reacive
Assooianion Judgement  cngagomen:
inc .zion Housting G AVE Regu.aory DA and
Cedgemon: reacive

cngagemaoen:

My Space [fouaing G3/VE Reguiaory Reactive

Sositions cedgerrent engagomen:
Pivoral Housing /A Reg .. a:ory Reactive
Asgsociation J.dgament  cngagemeon:
Trinity Ho.sing G3 /W Regalaory Reacive
Association _wdgemen: engagemen;

Feaciive
cngageman:

Wesimore.and CAJV3

Suonored H{ousing

Reg..asory
cLdgemen:

118 clear tha:t the 5= will. righsly, pubhsh mmformation as
-othemprovemsnis it wishes to see and whenever :his
occars C5= will provide sUuppor: 10 13§ parners
as AppPropnaTe,

Through €1/, C5= has been at the forefron: of
addressing the 28 oncerns about the long-term

risk planning of Approved 2roviders by pioneenng the
implemen-ation of the force majedre clause and caps
and collars on “ha wndexatton of rents of between 7%
and 4% We will continie o work with the Company's
councerparies and the 25~ 10 ensure “ha: the Company
fulfills m= intennions as one of the larges: owners of 38~
it the country o enable the secior ~o evolve and o
marnzain the improvements already made




Investment Adviser’s Report continued

New Regulatory Clause

Juring 2021 and 2022, CiM has engaged with relevan:
counerparies, nchuding several shareholders of C5=,
lending banks. valuers and the I8 and underiaken
detailed negonations with several HousImg Associaton
panners, 10 gxplore how the Compary can assis:

“hose organmisanons 0 be better posiiioned o achieve
reguiatory compliance under the 25='s Governance and
“mancial Viabihy Standard

{(-he “Srandard™.

The congensus result of these discussions and
negotiatons 1s the developmen: of an approach with a
nevr draf: regulatory clause whose principal objectuves
are 1o enable “ousing Assoclations to.

e achieve greater alignment between income recelp:s
and lease habilines

& st acthevable capial solvency requirements agams:
lease obligatons

e demonstrate a further degree of nsk shanng

ach with “he objecuve of seeking to demonsrate
compliance with the Standard (expressed as
gradings Vi - V4 and G) - G4%.

Weanwhile the draft regulazory clause wil] provide the

Company with:

e counterparies beter akle o achieve regulatory
comphance

« enhanced informaton and step in nghts thaving
ragard o enan: welfare} in addrion o exisiang lease
sransfer and assignmen: rnghss

e unchanged iease and propery valies supporied by
sttong underlying demand

The draf: clause once enacied will operate on a propeny-
by-propery basis to provide for a tlemporary pass through
of leaze rent in certain lmuted circumsiances when “he
—ousing Associanorn s notn receipt of full paymen:
whilst at the same ame ensunng thas the Compeany does
no: become responsible for obhgatons thar are nghsly
awed by others such as void cover by care providers.
Turhermore, thiz apphes only after an nmal penod of ume
dunng which all rents remam the responsiailicy of the
Vendor/=ousing Associaston and then only if payving the
rantin fall would cause the Sousing Associanon wo fail to
mee: the Regualators standards.

The drafr clause also contains provision for the
reimbarsemern: of rental incoms 1if Thas hsequently
recovered Ly -he -ousing Association

roplemertanon of The clause will codify mach of the
general agser managemen: work and The Company's
approach to sector collaborauon rthas already takes place
on a day-ro-day basis and 15 reflecred in the Company's
exigung ren: roll uz which has 1o date nor een mciuded
within the terms of -he Company's leases and so have
not receved formal recogninon. s anticipated That

he clause w 1y elevan: 10 a small number o

thecla 1l only be rel not small numl. f
properies a: any ame and will not have any marerial
impact on the Company s rent roil.

The Company has sough: and obramed formai writzen
confirmanon from valuers that -he inclusion of the clause
wizhin the Company's new and exising leases will not of
rself cause a diminafion in the value of those leases or in
the underlying asse:s. ‘ndeed. *he Company considers *has
enharnced regulazory ahgnment would be consigren: with
assel apprecianon over the mediam term.

At *he pregsent ame the clause s i draf: form and g
subject o farther discussion and refinemen: with several
—~ousing Assaclation boards assisted by leading segtar
lawryers together with other relevan: approvals.,

s ntended thas the clause will be incomporated
mntially into a imred number of exising leases on a
retrospectve basts commencing with properies that are
anencamizered.

On the assumption thatins well received by relevam
paries within The sector and has the potental so achieve
‘he objecives set out above 12 will be further rolled our
i a controlled manner over ume o other Approved
roviders and in respect of new and exisung leases on

a rerrospectve basis The Cornpany will provide further
updazes in due course once the final form of the clause
has been setied.

Social Impact and Social Value

The Company's lates: independen: repar: irom The Good

sconorty was pablisbed i June 2022 and provides dealls

of C3i1s portioho and (he conanaed saccess m delivering

measdurable social impact Sindings inclade:

e 77 properues. housing Jp ¢ 297 pecple. bave been added
e 2he C84 porfohe withun e penecd

e 2% of C8-1's 696 properues kave been hrough! inio the
soctal housimg secior ter the hirst ume

o C8 Isregualar engegemen: with us Approved “roviders
{225) 20 moniter the qualiy of 1is siock cenunued through
the COVID "9 panderic

o mprovernen. werks have enhanced (he energy elliciency
of Fomes, with 99.92% of homes having an 22C raung of at
leas: -+

¢ C2I homes coninae (@ serve valnerable indrvid.sals and
play a signitican: role inmproving résiden: wellbeing.
paracalarly wihen indimiduals are cormg oat of Righer
acury lacilines

e Somal valae anatysis MMarck 2077 revealed hal overail,
e porldclio generazes £727 rulhion of scaial vaiue
per year, inclaaing hiscal savings o pabhic budges of
£75 5 mulhon par year

e 87% of respondents g ihe residen: sarvey in March 2027
repor.ed (ba; they were saished with the quahtly of their
fome, 8% reporied ha: they were nerther sanshed nor
dissausiied

e 99% siztaory compliance rae by heasing provider
pariners s beler ban the wider attordable Poasing sec.or
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Investment Adviser’s Report continued

Environmental, Social and
Governance (ESG)

The ESG Policy is located on the Company's website.
It provides an overview of the Company's investment
procedures and sets out tne Board's commitment to a
continuous improvement process in its approach 1o
ESG integration.

ESG Rating Providers

As part of this commitment, CIM engages with ESG rating
providers 1o set out the activities that are undertaken by
CSH and to ensure this is profiled correctly. This includes
increased disciosure by CIM in respect of various policies
that have peen promoted on the CIM website. Notably,
active participation in the 2021 GRESB Public Disclosure
Assessment has resulted in CSH achieving an A score
which is an improvement from a B score in 2020, whilst
the peer group average score remains at €. GRESB is an
investor-driven global ESG framework. Meanwhile, the ESG
Risx Rating Score for CSH by Sustainalytics of 18.6 {Low Risk)
ts marginally tower than was reported in March 2021
Sustainalytics measures how well companies manage ESG
i3sues 1nat are most material 1o their business.

Environmental: Carbon Reduction/
Energy Cost Savings

CiM has been ieading the secior in improving the
environmental performance of the portfolio and is working
with E.CN (a leading UX energy and solutions company)
under a naticnal framework agreement in partnership
witn CSH tenans. The ‘fabric first’ approach 1o reducing
the portfolio’s carbon footprint includes the instaliation

of cavity wall insu'ation, loft insulation, exrernal wa’l
insulation. air source heat pumps and solar PV and battery
storage to identified properties. The installation of these
cnergy efficient measures. utilising available Government
grants and other funding sources. maximise value for the
Company and for our counierparties The collaporarion
with E.ON is delivering significant environmental
cnhancements without any cost te our Approved Providers.

As a result of active asse: management and property
improvements works. renovations and scheduled post
completion works. the overall energy performance of the
portfolio, as identified on Environmental Performance
Certificates (EPC) repors data has improved over the tast
iwelve months. The propornion of properties with EPC
Rarting A-C has remained a: ¢52% (32% in Marcn 2021 and
carbon foorprint {esiimated from property characterisiics)
nas red.ced by 3% per Civitas tenancy {from 273 tonnes
of CO2/tenancy 10 2.65 tonnes of CO2/zenancy). The static
year-on-year proportion of homes rated A-C was due (o
e acguisizion of a significant numuper of properties wnich
weare acquired with D rating. These homes are subject o
improvemernt warks which snouid improve their energy
performance in coming months.

Charities

The Company has supperied and worked with the
following Charities since [PO.

Crisis

Civitas has supported Britain's biggest homelessness
charity over the past five years and the two organisations
regulariy collaborate on the emerging knowledge required
w undertake advanced homelessness schemes. These

are viral to enabie people who have been atrisk of or
experienced homelessness (o rebuild their lives but who
require considerable care and supportt in addition (0 a safe
home in the community.

Choir With No Name

Civitas is proud to suppcon this charity that nuns five

choirs across the couniry {or peopie who are homeless

of marginalised. Rehearsals have been moved back
indoors following the pandemic lockdown, and members.
volunteers and siaff are reported to be over the mooen!
Alongside the choirs. the charity runs a free online
workshop (o members, the wider homeless sector and
anyone who wan's 10 attend. The charlty has also provided
team-building evenis tor the CIM team.

Impact Highlights 2021-22

e Big increase in average weexly attendance since rewurmn
to ndoor meetings post COVID-19

e New Cardiff Choir launched in November 2021

e Steady progress with establishmen: of new community
choirs in Watford and Coventry

House of St Barnahas

A zocial enterprise and charity that works (o support
people affected by homelessness back into long-term
employment. Its vision is of a future where lasting

good work. a secure nome and supportive network are

a reality for those affected by homelessness. Civitas
specificaily supports the relationship-based mentoring
programms ocused on deve oping interpersona: 3xilis and
communication,

This helps 10 underpin its mission of Good Work, Cocd
Home' for al. its graduates. The Employmen: Academy staif
a® Houge of St Barnabas work with victims of homelessness
wno nave successfully compleied the employmen:
preparation programire into work and helps them to
progress in work.
Impact Hightights 2021-22
Empioymeni Preparation Frogramme:
+ 17 participants successfully graduated from EPP 18
and EFP 19
» 100% of gradua‘es were successiully matened with
a mentor
Employmen: and Progression:
e 33% of working gradiates are earning
London Living Wage
® 23% of working graduates are i good work and a
good hiome
» 70% of mentor reiationships witn graduates ias: for at
leas: 6 mon:ns
e HOSB has supported a :o1a! of 93 peopie over the year.
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Women in Social Housing (WISH)

WISH promotes ihe benefits of being partt of a networking
community and equips lis members 10 succeead, advance
and flourish in the UK housing sector. Civitas support
contributes to the champicning of positive cutcomes for
women working in the sector.

Care Workers Charity

CWC recognises that care workers face everyday
chalienges such as loss of income, inconsistent hours. and
lack of adequate resources. It helps care workers in the
UK (c.2 mitlion workforce) through crists using financial
support and support centres, CWC provides support
through one-off crisis grants, COVID-19 Emergency Fund
and a Mental Health Support Programme.

Little Sprouts

Little Sprouts promotes the health and wellbeing of
communities through delivery of targeted cooking and
food education workshops, surplus food collection,

and other activities. The charity places a particular

focus on supporting deprived communities where the
socig-economic position - housing, employment. or
education - has had a massive contributory effect on
well-being and heaith. It has also provided meals for those
with mental healih issues affecied by the pandemic.

‘A Place For Me'’

The Company nas from its incepuon been very keen 10
understand how residents living and moving into homes
owned by Civitas benefit from their environment, the
quality of care they received, what benefits they and their
family derive and how sociely and the taxpayer benefits.

We have rigorousiy chalienged olurselves 1o ensure the
social impact of the Company is maximised and measured
independenty hrough the Good Economy and Social
Profir Calculator.

We worked with a journalis: and photographer who
published a bock ‘A Place For Me' which tells the stories of
5C residents wno live in Civitas properties. The inlerviews
were carried out on site and in person and have aiso
involved families, care werkers and other stakeholders.
Tne paok was pubiished in December 2021, and we believe
itis 1the largest independent pigect ever carried out into
the lives of those with learning disakbilities and menral
hea:th issues. The book is co-sponsored oy a major care
provider

Governance

CIM continues to engage actively with the Company's
Approved Provider partners and care providers, providing
advice and shared learning. This has heiped to facilitate
continued high level operational performance on
accupancy rates, property compliance matlers, and health
and salety.

The Board carries out an annual Board performance
evaluation exercise. All of the Company's policies and
procedures have been reviewed and, where appropriate,
updated.

The Board has five independent hon-execultive Directors
and hasg commenced a recruitment programme to racruit
a sixth director with asset management skills to reflect the
scale of the portfolio, the growth of expertise within the
Investment Adviser and to assist with succession planning
in the future. Both skillg and diversity will be important
considerations with this recruiiment.

Summary

Care ior the vuinerable being delivered in hemes or
smali residential seitings in the community to promaote
independent living and better social outcomes is clearly
the long term focus of Government paolicy in this sector
with considerable cross-party support. In this objecitive,
the private sector, both in terms of service delivery and
invesiment. has a pivoral and essential role to play. Civitas
is at the forefront of this investment and brings the skilis
and experience required to further expand the delivery of
this critical service and to be influential in enhancing the
development of sector counterpartes.

We remain committed 1c generating growth and
enhancing shareholder value through socially impactful
ethical investing. We are passionately committed to
ensuring this is maintained for the long term.

Civitas Investment Management
Limited

Investment Adviser

29 June 2022
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Civitas Investment Management

A Growing Team of Specialists

Throughou: the pandemic, €7 has conunued an acive Tecriiiment programme aimed at ncreasing the levels of
resonrce and expartise within the team Of paracular focus has been the dedicated Asser Management (gam which
is charged with mamnzamung the quality of the C85 portfolio and working closely with Approved Providers and other
SECTOT enttles 1{1(;]'Jdlrlg care pruwders.

During the yvear so March 2022 a number of semor recnuits have jomed the :eam. The Asse: Managemens: team 1s led
by Torm “alconer, a former local authonty 35 commuissioning officer. This has been par: of a broader recriuimens
pragramme. Selected profiles are set ou below:

Asset Management

Matthew Filkin, Investment Advisory Director
Ireviously COO at Almacantar (Property invesimen: and development company)

Mat has over 20 years of real estate expernence covenng invesimen:, developmen:, finance
and corporate marers. AT C'M. he has an active day-to-day involvernent in the operanons
of the existing invesurien: srategles working clogely with the asser managemen: team o
provide a broad real estate overview. ~e 15 also engaged with a number of speaific asset
management projects.

Tom Falconer, Head of Asset Management

Previously Group Croperty Manager at -ifeways {leading UK speciahis: care providern

Tom 1= a former local authony comoussioner with over 12 years experience 11 asse:
managemens, specitahst housing dehwvery, :ogether with health and social care imegraiion
across the L A COV Tom leads "he asser managemen: team, working closely with local
adthonies and holdsing associalons supporing them in thelr raquairemens 1o mee: the demand

for 552 and residential care accommodanon

Sean Corney, Director, Asset Management

Jreviously an execaive within Savills’ Asger Vanagemen: Team

Sean 1s a specialist In the delivery of asse: managemen: with over 20 years expenence within
the propery industry, includmg suppored hving and care environmenss, —e 1 an Asgociate of
“he Rovyal nstnite of Charered Surveyors {(.CSY and a member of the nsttution of Residential
Sroperty Managemen: {22} A7 OV as part of the asser managemen: team he s responsible for
the oversigh: of captial works “har supporns the enhancement of the Company’s porzfolic.

Portfolio Management

Connell Grogan, Senior Portfolio Manager

Sreviously Senior 2orfolio Manager at Resonance | .od deading specialis impac: investor
Connell s a Charered Surveyor and expenenced zemor poridfolio manager wnth over

20 years experience in real estate Ze has worked previously with a leading impac: fund
manacjer with a focus on homelessnzss and specialis supporied housing A0 C7/. Connell
vroths within tThe a5set managemen: eam focusing on delivering enhancemesns o the
property porfolins
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Charles Reid, Partnership Officer
reviously Lead Housmg Benefir Officer ar London 3arough of Sauthwark Council

Charles 1s a housing benefis specialist with a 30-yvear ‘rack record 1n assessing housing benefit

claims and appeals across many of the Jargest London local authornines. AT C V. he works

witun the asse: management ‘eam o assist property due diligence and o suppar the wark

' of Approved Provider parmers i determining housing benefit claims and sering appropnase
ren: lavels,

Daryl Quarry, Senior Portfolio Manager
Jreviously “ead of Change & Transformanon ar -alcon Sousing Associaion C; C

Daryl has worked within the social housing sector for over 16 years n business developrnen: and
change managemen:. Jaryl works collaboranvely with the asser managenien: ieam 0 sappor;
Approved “roviders i mplemenung sofiware and developing intermal processes o contnibuaie o
achieving optirmal performance as par: of increased mdependence.

Finance and Operations

Dipesh Devchand, Group CFO

rreviously Managing Drecior, =ead of Tund Dmance & Operanons for (CG ple
(IS5 00 hsted alternanve asseT manager)

Jpesh has over 20 years expernience mn finance at a senor sirazeqie level within a financiat
services and invesimen: managemen: environment. At C.¥ hpesh leads the finance funcion,
working closely with CiM's founders and sharehoider pariners ;o deliver the strateqic mission
of the group. He brnings a wealth of expenence covenng financing. regqulazory reporing,
saxation and operational maers.

Siu-Wai Ng, Commercial Director
Jreviously Parner. Global —ead of “roduc: Development at 8lue3ay Asse: Yanagemen:

S1a-Wai has over 20 years of expenence in “he invesimen: managemen: indus:ry, bringing
prodacis to marker and bunlding busmness platforms it bath pullic and privaze asse: classes.
ALV, she s the Commeraial irecior with herl remu encompassing all aspeos relaiing 1o
the mmplamennng and adminstering of nevr fund launches, agmgnng in the design of new
commercial srategies

Nazlin Nazri, Associate Director
Jreviodasly =ead of Nnancing eporing a Trizax Group
Nazlin has over fifteen years of experience in real estase finance incliding financial reporang

ander various GAAZs, inancial managemen, group congohdanon and fund accouning. Az
.M. she works within the finance team as an associate direcior on Civiras Soclal “ousing 2.0
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. Eal'e SECIOI'S.

-veorks ate undenaken on @ m}iing bzms with uch' ‘thewoik being. unden&kan around the nme of m:i ; L

Mill Lane, Weeley Heath, Clacton-on-Sea (5 beds)

Successful transformation project to suppor house tenants with challenging behavicurs. The property reqinred
enhancemen:s relaang o energy efficiency, improved secunty, carefully constricied wet rooms, speciahs: furniaure

and redesigned layouts o assist the care provider 1n supporing the new tenante. This asse: was acaquured as par: of a
wider porfoho: plans were already i place with the care provider and local authoerity commussioner 16 anderiake minor
configuration works with some notable enhancemenss qiven tha: 1z was a much needed service i *he local authonty
area. The care provid=r connbuted o the overall cos: of the works 1o demoenstrate the long serm commimens 0 the
service

mnhancements withim the asgse: are hghhghted Lelow, and notally the energy performance mmproved from an - raing fo
a 3 ranng for the purpose i which the asser 1s being used for C2 requiremern:s.

New suitable furniture
throughout

New wet rooms and a
specialist spa bath

EPC rating from
anEtoaB

New boiler and
heating system

New stud walls
and insulation

Communal lounge

Staff and
security office

New kitchens

New flooring and
decoration throughout

Communal dining area and sensory room



Asset Management Case Studies continued

Delrose House, Southampton (9 beds)

The care provider approached CS= seeking permission to undertake a
refurbishmen: program within specific areas of the property. s plan was 1o
move tenants from one type of care service 1o another for lang-zerm

full occupancy.

The works were approved by C84 and paid for in full by -he care provider
These included general redecorazion and replacement flooning 16 enhance
appearance, works 0 the if o permi; disabled access, refarbishmen: of wes
rooms and replacement kitchiens ‘o be guntable for uge by the tenants.

Redecoration
NMawr floorning wn the majorey of the
rooms and commainal space

Communal bathroom
refurbishment

New kitchern, repairs 20 subflooer,
new flooning

Repaining and replacing subfloors
In cerrain athrooms

Heathfield Apartments, Swansea (15 beds)

The properiy g situated close 0 the centre of Swansea, overlocking the city
centre iowards the harbour. Given the close proximey 1o the city centre i:
provides easy access for siaff. lenants and family members.

Following the acquisiuon of this asset m 2019 an overhaul of the extenor was
planned 0 enhance the external appearance and make secme mNor repanrs,
nclading the rendering and decoranion. The mtial stages of works were
covered by the vendor, with the care provider enhancing some of the mrernal
parts of the building as part of a planned nternal refurbishmen:.

CM on behalf of CSH completed a review of the works and underzook some
further enhancements 1o key areas of the higher elevations of the bullding with

‘he aim of furureproofing areas of the roof, rendenng. windows and dacoration.

This should preven: disrupzicn at the property in the Upcoming years.

CS8= provided some additonal investmens: into the asse? ag par: of the wider
scope of works 10 allow the addimonal enhancemen:s *o happen and dehver
an asse: of a higher srandard to the care provider and enants. This 1s a prime
example of posirive collaborative working 10 achieve a desired ouicome.

Exrernal overhadl and
refurbishment

New windows and doors inszalled
Rendening replaced and
redecorated

Roof upgraded whils: scaffoldmg
in place

New ramp fized externally for an
addiional fire escape rodte
Redecoraton to internal areas
affected by propring edquipment

V1018 SYLIAED

=
=
=
o=
Z
3
=
5
=
o
N
=
g




Corporate Social Responsibility Report

Sustainability

The business model of the Company s o provide long-
term suitable homes for indwiduals with care needs;
aching in a susiamaple manner s key 10 achieving

“his aim. Properties thar are owned by the Company
are tallored 1o mee: the furure needs of the tenants
and, where recquired, are acuvely asseT managed

o provide long--erm funcnonalty and valie 1o the
wider communey

Environment

Dunng “he mvesimen: due dillgence phase, the Company
looks closely at the environmenzalimpact of each
poenial acgusinon, and encourages a sus:anable
approach for maintenance and upgrading properues
Through collaboraung with speciahs: developers and
vendors, the high standards ~he Company expec:s from
each mmvestmens: 11 the care-based housing sector 12
adopred by other comparues 1n the sectar

Onge within the porifoho. the propernes of the Company
are acuvely managed. and *he nvesimen: Adviser
assesses whether “hera are opporruniues comprove the
anvironmen:al efficiency of the properues, in addriion —o
other asse: managemean: inanves Surther desalls can
be found on pages 45 1o 4.

The 3card has considerad the recpinrements ©o disclose
“he annual guanity of emissions, farther derail on "hisas
mclhaded i the Report of the direciors on page 67

. «
Diversity

The Company does no® have any employees or office
space and, as such, the Company does not opera‘e a
diversity policy with regards o any adrmimistranve and
managemen: funcions,

Whils: recognising “he imporance of diversiy in “he
boardroom, the Company does no” consider i 7o be

i1l the interes: of the Group and g sharehoiders "0 se:
prescnpuve diversrty criterta or Targers. The Joard has
adopred a diversizy policy In respec: of appomimen:s
w0 lze matde “o the 3oard and will connnile (o monuor
diversiry. tJaking such steps as 1 considers appropnae
10 Malniamn 's posiiion as a mercocranc and diverse
buasiness. The 3oard's objective 1s to mamntain effeciive
decision-making. including the impac: of succession
planning. All 3oard appointmean:s will e made on mern:
and have regard o diversty regarding factors such as
gender, ethnicity. skills. background and experience. Sze
Cormporaze Governance Siaemen: on page g7/

The 3vard compnses three male and twao

female non-executive Jirectors Throughous the year.
“he Company comphed with the mampron-alexander
Review's rtarger of a minimum $5% representaton of
wormen on SI8%5 350 boards.

The 3vard 15 aware of the recommendations of the
rarker Jeview, which will be taken into consideranon as
par: of the 3oard’s succession planning. See {Corporate
Governance Statement on page 57,

The Board of Direciors of the Company’s subsidianes,
which are non-operational, each comprise one female
and up o four male Jirecrors.

Human Rights

Given the Company's rurnover for the year under review,
1 now falls within the scope of the Modern Slavery

Act 2015, The Company pubhshed 1is modern slavery
slatemen: on 22 September 2070

The 3oard g sansfied “hat 1o the best of 158 knowledge,
‘he Company's principal advisers, which are hisied in
“he Company nformanon secion, comply with the
rrovisions of the UX Modern Slavery Act 2075

The Company's business 15 solely in the UK and therefore
15 considerad “o be low nsk with regards to human
riggh's abnises.

Community and Employees

The Company's properaes enable the provision of care
<o some of the mos: valnerable people in the communuy.
ensdrning safe and secure accommodaton, rallorad o
mee: individaal care needs The Company has increased
che provision of care-hasad housing, brnging new
supp!y o the sector and providing homes to over 4,500
people All of -he Company's propemes enable the
rrovision of high levels of care. generating local juls and
helping 1o suppor: local economies.

The Company has no employees and accordimgly no
reqUiremenst to separasely repor: on thig ar=a

The nvesiman: Advireris an equal aopporiimimes
employver who respacts and seeks 1o empower each
nchividual and “he diverse culiures, perspecuves. zkilis
and expenences wihin /s workforce.



Section 172 (1) Statement and
Stakeholder Engagement

Overview

The Direciors overarching <y 18 70 actin good faith and
n a way “ha: 1¢ mosa: hikely o promoie the success of the
Cornparny as set ot 1 secnon 77 of the Compames Aot
2006, i doing so, Directors must sake mo consideraion
‘he mteresis of The vanous stakeholders of the Company,
the impact ~he Company has on The community and the
environmen:, fake a lonc;-term view On consadglences

of the decisions thiey make, as well as aumn o mamam a
reputauon for ligh standards of rasiness conduact and
fair rreatmen: between the membears of the Company.

“ulfilhng this Juuy naturally supporss the Company

i achieving 8 iInvestment ohjective and helps 10
ensure “ha: all decsions are made in a responsible and
sustainable way. ‘n accordance with the recpairements
of ‘he Compames (Yascellansous Aepormng Regulianons
2078, the Company explains how the Direciors have
digcharged thewr duties under section 774 below.

T ensdre that the Direcrors are aware of, and
understand, their dusnies, they are provided with the
pernnent informanoen when thev firs: jon the 3oard

as well ag recewving ragular and ongomng updates and
Tamning on the relevan: masers nduchon and access
soraiming 1s provided for new Jireciors They also

have conunued geeess 1o the advice and services of tThe
Company Secretary, and when deemed necessary, the
Owreciors can seek independen: professional advice. The
Schedile of Vaners Reserved for tThe 3oard, as wrell as
the erms of Reference of 178 comnuees, are reviewed
regqularly and furrher describe hrecrors' respongibilines
and obligations and include any szaturory and reqularory
dutes The Audn and Managemen: zngagemen:
Commiziee has the responsilziley for the ongoing review
of the Company's risk managemen: sysiems and internal
contruls and. to the extent that they are appheal:le nsks
related 1o the maters set outn secuon 172 are included
i the Company s rigk reqister and are sulyjec: 1o penodic
and regular reviews and monroring.

Long-term Success

The srategy of the Company can be found on pages

34 w0 3/ Any devianon from, or amendmens to, tha:
stratedy is subject o Board and, if necessary, shareholder
approval The Company's business model. which can be
found on page 34, provides that the 3oard considers the
long-term consequences of s invesrmen: decisions,

The Company granzs long-term leaseg. generally 20 years
i length, o s tenante The Company seeks to mam:am
lasting relanionships with 117 tenants and sapporis s
semanis m adapting properies .o meet thair needs,
particularty improving and enhancirig properieas. Surther
detalls can be found on pages 45 to 55,

Stakeholders

A company's siakehoiders are normally considerad o
compnse lis shareholders. 1ts employees, 115 customers,
1tg suppliers as well as the wider communt’y i which the
company operates and impacts. The Company s differen:
it that as an investmen: tri1s 12 has no employees and,

1 erme of supphers, the Company receives professional
services from a namber of differen: prownders. principat
amondg them being the nvestmen: Adviser

Through regular engagemen: with 17g stakeholders.

the Joard aims ¢ gain a rounded and balanced
anderstanding of the impact of 128 decisiong, "eedhback
from stakeholdersis gachered by the nvestmen: Adwviser
1n he firstingtance and communicazed o the 3oard in s
regular quarierly meeings and otherwise as required.

The imporance of stakeholdears 13 aken 1nto accoun’

at avery 3oard meenng, with discussions mvolving
careful consideranon of the longer-sarm consedquences
of any decizions and their impheanons for stakeholders
The followng sechion 2xplaims why thesze siakeholders
are considered of imporrance so the Company and the
acaong taken o ensure “har thar ineresis are taken nio
account by the 3oard as par of s decision making
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Section 172 (1) Statement and
Stakeholder Engagement continued

Our stakeholders Key areas of interest How we engage
Shareholders « Current and The Board welcomes shareholders' views and places great imporntance
Continued future finarcial on communication with the shareholders of the Company. The Board is
shareholder performance responsibie for the conien: of communication regarding corporate issues
support and s Strategy and and for communicating irs views 1o shareholders. The Board aims 1o ensure
engagemen: alre business model that shareholders are provided with sufficient information to understand
critical to the the risk/freward balance 1o which they are exposed by the holding of
existence of the Corporate gshares in the Company. Aclive engagement with shareholders is carried out
business and the govermance throughout the year and regular communication is undertaken to ensure tha
delivery of the e ESG performance hoy understand the performance of the business, The Board is committed
long-term strategy and sustainability 1g maintaining open channels of communication and 10 engaging with
of the business. e Climate Change shareholders in a manner which they find most meaningiful. in erder to gain
e Dindend an understanding of the views of snareholders. These channels include:

Annual General Meeting - The Company welcomes and encourages
attendance, voting and participation from sharehoiders at the ACM, at which
shareholders nave the opporiunity 1o meet the Directors and Invesiment
Adviser and 1o address questions o them directly. The Invesmment Adviscr
attends the AGM and provides a presen:aiion on the Group's performance and
its fulure outiooxk. The Company values any feedback and guestions it may
recerve from sharenolders ahead of and during the AGM and takes action,

as appropriate.

Atthe Company's AGM on 22 September 2021, the Company received votes
representing 27.11% against Resojution 13, the additional 0% pre-emption
resolution. In compliance wiin the AIC Code of Corporate Governance. tha
Board released an annauncement on 16 March 2022 ouilining how it. via the
Company's Brokers, had engaged wiin those shareholders who had voted
agains' the resoluiion. it undersiood tha: these sharehoelders foliowed PIRC's
or their own internal recommendation 10 vole against this resolulion as
when combined with the standard 10% pre-empiion disapplication resolution
it would nave resulied in the Company having auihorily 10 issue up 1o

20% pre-emptively.

For the 2022 AGM. which will be heid on 13 Senlembber 2622, the Board hopes
that shareholders will be able to attend in person. Artangemenis for the AGM
will be released in Augus: 2022 and wiid 1ake accoun: of the latest Governmen:
guidance and advice at the time of pubiication of the Notice.

Publications - The Annual Report and Half-Year Resulis ate made available

on the Company's wensite These repors provide sharehoiders with a ¢lear
understanding of the Group's partiolio and financial positon. In addition 10 the
Annuai and Haif-Year Reparis. reguiary updated information is available on
“he Company website, ncl.ding quartersy facisheets, xey policies, 1ne investor
relations policy and detaiis of the investment property porticiio Feedback and/
or questions the Company receives {rom ihe shareholders ne'p ine Company
evoive its reporing aiming o render the repors and updases transparent and
undersiandaple.

Shareholder meetings Sharcho’ders are anle o mee: with the [nvesimen:
Adviser and ine Company's Join: Brokers (arougnou: the year and the [nvesiment
Adviser provides infarmaiion an the Company on e Company's website,
Feedpacs from ali snarehoider meetings witn the Invesimen: Adviser and/or the
Join: Brokers. and shareho.ders views. are snared with ine Board on a reguiar
pasis. The Chairman and sther memuopers of the Board. inciuding he Senior
Ingependen: Director and Cnar of tne Audir and Managermeni Engagemen:
Commitee, are availanle o meet with gharenolders 1o undersiand their views on
governance and the Company's perforirance where they wish 1o do so.
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Section 172 (1) Statement and
Stakeholder Engagement continued

Our stakeholders Key arcas of interest How we engage

Shareholders + Current and Shareholder concerns - The Board gives due consideraticn to matters
Continued future financial raised by shareholders. [n the event shareholders wish to raise 1ssues or
shareholder performance concerns with the Board or the Investment Adviser, they are welcome
support and e Strategy and 1o write to the Company at the registered office address set out on
engagemens: are husiness model page 137. Other members of the Board are also available to sharehclders
critical to the Corporate if they have concerns that have not been addressed through the normal

existence of the chantneis,
busginess and the
dehvery of the
long-term strategy

of the business. + Ciimate Change
e Dividend

governance
¢ ESGperfarmance During the year, the Board noted that several activist shareholders had

and sustainabihty aken a short position 1in the Company's shares, [n response 10 this, the
Board sought 1o engage with shareholders directly as well as through
the Company's Brokers and Inves:ment Adviser. Following this, the Board
published a paper tc provide detailed responses to the questions which
were raised by the activist shareholders as well as specific responses (o
the allegations made by the short sellers.

Investor relations updates — The Board regularly monitors the
shareholder profile of the Company With the majonty of shareholders
being a combinanon of institutional mvestors and private client brokers,
the Board receives regular updates on investors views and attitudes
from the Company's Brokers and the Investment Adviser. The results of
these meetings are repor:ed to the Board as part of the fermal reporing
andertaken by both the [nvesument Adviser and Brokers.

included 1n the Report of the Directors on page 60 are details of
subs:antial shareholdings in the Company.

On a regular basis (sometimes weekly! and at 3oard meetings, the
hrectors receive updates from the Company's 8rokers on the share
trading activity, share price performance and any shareholders’ feedback,
as well as an update from the Company's investor Relations adviser,
Buchanan, and the Investment Adviser on any publications or comments
by the press. To gain a deeper understanding of the views of its
shareholders and potenual investors, the investment Adviser maintains
regular contac: with them and also undertakes investor roadshows.

Any relevant feedback is *aken into account when Directors discuss any
possible fundraising or the future dividend policy.
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Section 172 (1) Statement and
Stakeholder Engagement continued

Our stakeholders
Investment
Adviser

Holding the
Company's shares
offers investors
an mvestment
vehicie through
which they can
obtain exposure
10 the Company’'s
portfolio of
propertes. The
nyestment
Adviser's
perfoermance

15 critical for

the Company

to successfully
deliver {ts
Investment
strategy and
meet 1ts objective
10 provide
shareholders
with an attractive
levei of income,
together with

the potental for
capital growth.

Other service
providers

In orderio
funcuon as a RZT
with a premium
listing on the
“andon Stack
Exchange, the
Company rehes on
a diverse range of
reputable advisers
for suppor:

In meenng

all relevan:
obliganons.

Key areas of interest

How we engage

e (urrent and
future financal
performance

e Shared
commercial
objectives with
the Company

Operational
excellence

« Long-term
developmen: of
1its buginess and
resources

e ESG performance
and sustainability

& Current and
fusure financial
performance

« Shared
commercial
obiecuves with
“he Company

Operauonal
excellence

s Long-term
developmens:
of the service
providers’
businesses

¢ Susiammabihty

The management of the Company’s portfolio 1s delegated w the
Investment Adviser, which manages the assets in accordance with

the Company's cbjectives and policies. At each Board meeung,
representatives from the Investment Adviser are in aitendance to present
reports to the Directors covering the Company's current and future
activines, partfolic of assets and us investment performance over the
preceding period.

Maintaining a close and constructive working relationship with the
Investment Adwviser is crucial as the Board and the Investment Adviser
both aim 10 continue to achieve consistent long-term returns in line
with the Company's investment objective. Important components of the
culture of both the Company and the investment Adviser are:

operating in a fully supportive, co-operative and open environment
and maintaining ongoing communication with the Board between
formal meetings;

+ encouraging open discussion with the Invesiment Adviser, allowing
time and space for original and innovative thinking:

e recognising that the interests of stakeholders and the Investment
Adviser are for the most part well aligned. adopting a rone of
consirucuve challenge;

s drawing con Board mambers individual experience and knowledge to
suppor: the Investment Adviser 1n its monitoring of and engagement
with other stakeholders: and

e willingness :o make the Board members experience availlahle to
gsuppon the Invesiment Adviser in the sound long-term development
of its business and rescurces, recognisinig that the long-term health
of the :nvesiment Adviser 1s in the interests of shareholders in the
Company.

The Company's main funcuons are delegated o a numkber of service
providers, including the Administrator, the Company Secretary, the AIIM
the Registrar, the Corporate Brokers and the Depositary. each engaged
under separate contracts The Board maintains regular contac: with its
¥ey external providers and receives regular reporung frem them. both
through the Board and Commitiee meeungs. as well as outside of the
regular meeung cycle. Their advice, az well ag their needs and views.
are routnely taken into account, Through 118 Audit and Management
pngagement Committee, the 3oard formally assesses their performance.
fees and continuing appeintment at leas annually 10 ensure that the
key service providers conunue 10 funchon az an acceptable level and
are appropriately remunerased o dehver the expected level of sernice.
The Audir and Management tngagement Committee also reviews and
evaluates the conirol envirenment in place ar each key service provider.




Section 172 (1) Statement and
Stakeholder Engagement continued

Tut stakenciders

Rey areas of imerest

Care providers

Current

and funure
performance
Welfare of
tenanis

Lease obligations
Void
management

Huow e engage

At the outset, 1t i1s importan: 10 note that the Company does not have
any legal or operaticnal responsibility for the delivery of care 1n the
properties within the portfolio. However, the Board and the investment
Actiser have taken the view Lhat they wish 1o have a detailed
understanding of the delivery of care and the interaction with the major
care providers who deliver this care. Accordingly, the Investment Adviser
maintains an active dialogue with many of the care providers to build
constructive and informed relationships.

At the same time, as part of transaction due diligence at the time of
acquisition of properties, the Investment Adviser undertakes due
diligence with respect to the operational and financial performance of
all care providers who are proposed 0 deliver care into the partcular
properties. This includes the financial standing of the care provider, its
CQAC rating and the nature of the SLA agreemen® covering voids between
the care provider and the Approved Provider.

The ‘nvesimen: Adviser is noted as having demonstrated considerable
axpertise and understanding of the care taking place within us
properties.

Tenants

Greater
independence
Maintamning high
level of care
improved
personal
cutCcomes

 The Cor;‘i-;»)any’s properties aréwéziapted for the use of individuals with

long-term care needs within a community setting with the specific
aim of achieving better personal outcomes and independence for the
indunduaals.

The sector in which the Company operales is regarded as having
achieved significant success in delivering these positiive cutcomes
compared to long-term clder style remote 1nstitutional care.

On a regular basis. members of the 'nvestment Adviser vistt properties
accompanied by Approved Provider and care provider partners to see
first hand the nature of the housing and care provision tha! is being
dehvered. Whilst this process has slowed as a result of the pandemic,
the Investment Adviser has continued o engage with its tenants. This
is supported by the regular Approved Provider seminars at which the
wellbeing of tenants 1s discussed 1n detail.

In March 2022, the Board undertook a site visit to a number of the
Company's properies. The Board found this visit beneficial as it enabled
11 1o engage with the Company's tenants and 0 see first hand the impac:
the Company has had on their welllieing,

in addiuen, the Company undertakes residen: case studies through
careful and considered interaction via the care provider to agsess the
paosrave umpact our properties and associated specialised care have had
on the indwiduai and :heir wellbeing
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Section 172 (1) Statement and
Stakeholder Engagement continued

wfkeholdem Xey areas of interest How Wwe enigage:
Approved e Current The Company's Approved Provider partners are an important part of the
Providers and future mvestment model as the responsibility for collection of housing benefit
performance and subsequent payment of rent, the maintenance of the properties
+ Sustainability under the full repairing and insuring leases and, mostmportantly, the

safegquarding of the undetlying tenants through the above means, lies

+ Compliance with the Approved Providers.

and property

managerent The Investment Adwizer works closely with the Company's Approved
o  Welfare of Provider partners to improve s:andards and governance and 10 introduce
tenants practices and procedures that make the Company's investment processes

e Lease obligations €Ver more robust.

The Investment Adviser has a regular open dialogue with the Approved
Provider pariners, haising monthly on comphance, health and safety,
maintenance and future-proofing schemas, as well as hosting quarnerly
seminars to discuss curren: themes/ trends affecting the sector, 1o
troubleshoot and this serves as an opportunity to build relationships and
share best practice.

The Invesimen: Adviser has conunied its regular and extensive dialogue
with Approved Providers which since the start of the pandemic includes
detailed repors on pandemic responsiveness. These reports have shown
a high degree of resilience 1o the pandemic with few sencus cases of
COVD-18 reported due to the quality of the buildings people hve in, the
attention and dedication of the one-to-one care they receive and ithe age
profile of the residents.

The Invesiment Adviser supported the eswablishmen: of The Social
Housing Family CIC, a not-for-profit community interest company
operated independentily of the Company whose stated aim is to enable
Approved Providers holding the Company's leagses 10 increasge skills and
expenence and to ptovide funding to promote enhanced performance.
Memkership 1s open (o any Approved Provider that holds Civiias leases
and the effect of membership is to transfer ownership of the Approved
Provider to the soctal housmng fanuly. Auckland Homes Solutions was the
first Approved Provider to join and has now recruited a very expetrienced
and senior executive team and board of management Quahtas
communty benefit society has alsoe joined the CIC




Section 172 (1) Statement and
Stakeholder Engagement continued

Crur stakeholders
Regulator of
Social Housing
(RSH)

Key areas of interest

Financial and
operational
viability

GOVRTMance

Compliance with
health and safety,
and regulatery
standards

Safery and
wellbemng of
undertlving
tenants

Other regulatory
authorities

The Company can
only operaie with
the approval of
its regulators who
have a legitimate
interast in haw
the Company
operazes in the
market and rea‘s
its shareholders.

E;cal authorities

Compliance
with statutory
and regulatory
reduirements
Governance
based on best
practice guldance

3etier reporing
o shareholders
and other
stakeholders

Provision of
safe and secure
properties of a
high quahty
Sustanability

for long-term
placements

How we engage

The Company is 50: 1tself regqulated by the RSH, but 1t is important to
mamniain open and reqular dialogue o ensure that the Company and the
RSH are working together to improve the sector.

The Investment Adviser has a regular and ongoing dialogue with the RSH
and with the Approved Provider partners regulated by the RSH.

The Company also publishes responses to the regulatery judgements of
the RSE regarding the Approved Providers working with the Company as
part of the RSH's general review of Approved Providers engaged in the
provision of property services for vuinerable peorple as announced

in May 2018. This demonstrates the Company's desire to maintan a
dialogue with the RSH and s desire to see that the positions improve
where needed.

The Company regularly considers how it mneats various regulatory and
statutory obligations and follows voluntary and bes: practice guidance,
and how any governance decisions it makes can have an impact on

its shareholders and wider stakeholders, both in the shorier and o the
longer-term.

The Board receives quarierly regulatory compliiance monitonng updates
from the Investmen: Adviser.

The Beard receives guarterly cormpliance updates from the AIFM regarding
the Company’'s comphance with 1ts invesiment policy and the Investmen:
Adwviser's cornphance with the Invesiment Management Agreement.

The Board also has acress o the advice of the Comparny Secretary who
provides updates and advice on regulatory, staturery and governance
matters for consideration by the Board at us quanerly meetings and as
and when required.

tigampoertant for the Com%any o paid and maiman relaticnships with
local authorities as they have an important role in 1dentifying areas of
high demand, agreeing ren:s and referrals to the Company's schemes.

The Company will engage with the local authority commissioner either
directly, or through speciahst consulants, Approved Provider and care
provider partners as parn of the Company's due dihgence 1o ensure that
each property being acquired has been commssioned by the relevan:
local authonty and that rent levels have been discussed and agreed.
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Section 172 (1) Statement and
Stakeholder Engagement continued

Qur stakeholders

Lenders
Availability of
funding and
liquidity are
crucial to the
Company's ability
1o take advantage
of investment
opportunities as
they arise.

Communities

The Company's
assetsrely on a
STONG, positive
connection

with the local
communiies in
which its business
gperates.

Kevy arcas of interest

_Charity partners

Current and
future financial
perfarmance of
the business

Openness and
Transparency

Proactive
approach
COMmMuUNICation

Operational
excellence

Acceptance

of care in the
community
Availability of
lacal facihiies for
tenants

Delivering
needed support
1 vulnerable
adults

mproved
well-being of
vulnerable adul's
ESG performance
and sustammability

How we enqage

The Company has arranged debt faciliies from a wide range of lenders
and engages with these on a regular basis through regular meeungs and
presentations to ensure they are informed on all relevant areas of the
husiness. The continual dialogue helps to support the credit relationships.

The Company has reaffirmed its Investment Grade High Credit Quality
Rating from Fitch Ratings Lumited of ‘A" (senior secured) and a Leng-Term
IDR {lzsuer Default Rating} of A- with a Stable Qutlook.

This will enable the Comparny to pursue its strategy in relation to debt
fundimng, in addition to continuing ta work with the Company's existing
lenders, with whom the Company has built strong relationships.

A key component of the Company's por:folio is that the properties within
it are set within community environments so that individuals are able as
part of their care plan to in‘eract with the local community rather than
being isolated.

This 15 achieved in consuliation with local authorities 1n determining
that the initial setiings are appropriately diversified within the respective
community and are not clustered in a way that would lead to isolation.

This assists the individuals and also ensures appropriate integration
within the community. On a day-ro-day basis, care providers and
Approved Providers operate pelicies to ensure positive relattonships
with neighbours and surrounding dwellings. The activities within the
Company's properiies create employment within the local commurnity for
both housing and care workers.

The Company supports a number of organisations whoss objectives
are to provide improved outcornes for vulnerable adults affected by
homelessness and cther care needs.

The Company commuts targeted financial suppor: to fund specific
programmes which help those affecied by homelessness by teaching
them skills and offering support ‘o prevent them from being n that
position again.

The Company ensures regalar calls and meeungs with our charity
partners to update on progress and projects being undertaken, as well as
atending evenrts in suppoert of their work.

n 202C. the Company amended {15 inves:men: objecuve and investment
policy to enabie 1t to enter into long-term leases with the N=5 and with
registered chanties operating within areas of investment interes: to the
Company The amendments will allow the Company access 10 a wider
range of pipeline opponunries and will assist in providing the currently
anmet demand n these areas.



Section 172 (1) Statement and
Stakeholder Engagement continued

Principal Decisions

Jnneipal decisions have been defined as those that have
a matenal impac: to the Group and 128 key stakeholders.

‘nraking these decisions. the Jirecors considered shoir
duties under secion 172 of the Act Pnincipal decisions
made dunng the year were as follows:

New Regulatory Clause Initiative

‘n 2022, “he 3oard considered and agreed a new
approach 1o the Company's lease modal with the goeal

of supporang additonal requlatory compliance and
addressing percepiions of risk. The new regulazory
clause will enable Approved ?roviders 10 achleve greater
ahignmen: between income recelpis and lease habiines,
set achievable caprial solvency requirements agains:
lease obhganions and demons:rate a further degree of
risk shanng. Thig will assist the Company's counterparieas
ndemonsirare comphance with the Feqgulator of Socal
=ousing's Governance and Tnancial Viabihry Standard
(refer 1o page "/

The new regulatory clause would operate on a property
by prepary basis and provide for a temporary pass
‘hrogh of lease rent in certam hmited circumstances
when an Approved “rovider is no: i receip: of full
payment and would ensure tha: the Company does
not become responsible for obhgations that are nghtly
awed by others guch as voud cover by care providars,
The new regulatory clause will provide the Company
with counterparies which are better able to achieve
requlatory compliance, enhanced informanon. step
nghts and unchanged lease and propery values.

Publication of Market Update

‘nresponse o the unfounded commern:s by an acivis”
shorz-selier who took ap a posmon in the Company's
shares, the 3oard took the decision to pnibish a Marke:
Update paper on 1 Qcieber 20727 10 provide a detailed
response and also address prinaipal areas of discussion
chat had been brough: outin conversanons with
shareholders

The Company and CiM have conanuad 10 make
themselves avallabie o speak and mee: with both news
and exisanyg shareholders following the relzase of the
deralled market update.

Joth the 3oard and reprezsentanves of the nveasimen:
Adwizer conanue o be avallable to engage with
shareholders

Buyback Programme

Juning the yeat the SBoard moniiored the dechne in *he
Company’s share pnce which, in s view, was associated
with acuviy from an acinns: gshort seller and suhsegaent
press coverage, the content of which the Joard continues
:0 belleve 1o be baseless, incorrect and/or misleading.

n response to the decline in the share prnice, the

3oard agreed the implemenranon of a share buyback
prograrmnme Jander ceriam parameters, which 1s being
operated by the Caompany's jon* brokers. The impact of
share buykacks contuniie 1o enhance (V25 NAV per share
by 026 a7 §* March 2022

Jurther informaton on the Company's buyback
programme can be found on page 9.

Agreement with E.ON to reduce
carbon footprint

.0 June 2021 the Company enterad into a nanonal
framewaork agreemen: with energy provider ©.ON 0
anderake environmen:al enhancemen:s shat would help
o reduce the carbon footprint of the Company's porfoho.
The agreemen: was focused on thase properties with
Tower -°C ranngs and formed par: of the Company's
olxjective to reach carbon newtralizy. The agreement bal:
on successfil pilor projects aiready undertaken by the
Company and =.0ON [t benefiis the Companys Approved
Provider and other non-for-prof parners Ly reducing
mainenance ¢os: and energy bills withous any costs
beng meuarred By them and enalkzhing them to contnibute
‘0 a rediced carbon foomprnint

The projec: draws on the RCOS funding scheme, and
che matnzenance costs benefited from *he Jomesuc
Renewable —ea! neennive.
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Strategic Overview

Purpose of the Company

The Company was esTablished in 2076 with *he purpaose
of delivering long-term responsible, stable returns to
investors and achieving posisive measurable social
impsact and 585G benefiis on a large scale. = should
achileve this as a result of iIntroducing long-"erm ety
capial in:o the social housing sector with a parucular
focus on care-bhased community housing. 3y doing so,
“his would form a bridge between equity mvestors and
the social housing sector and bring together aspec:s of
healthcare with social housing.

The Company has since developed the largest porsfolio
of care-based community housging in the LX thar provides
tong-term homes for more than 4500 mdividuals across
half the local authonnes in zngland and Wales.

Ag aresalt of this success, the Company has recently
axrended 115 mandate 10 be able to enzer ino
rransactions directly wich the NHS and with leadmng
chariaes with an interes: 1n the provision of specialhs:
housing that has a sirong care or suppor: element 1
consgigten: with public pohey and whose costg are me by
the public purse for which it offers valie for money.

Investment Objective

The Company's Investimean: okjecuve 15 1o provids
shar=holders with an atracuve level of income, together
with the porennal for capral growsh from nvesang in a
porfolio of Socal ~omes, which benefizs from nflanon
adjusted long-erm leages or occupancy agreemern s with
Approved Providers and to delhiver, on a fully inves:ed
and geared hasis, a ;argeted dividend yield of 5% per
annum . which the Company expec:s o mncrease broadly
In ling with inflation

Investment Policy

The Companys mvesimen: policy 1s 10 INves: In a
diversified porffoho of Social “omes throughous

“he Lnired <ingdom. The Campany intends o mee:

“he Company's invesimen: olyeciuve by acaquwinng,
syoically indirectly via Specal uarpose Vehicles,
por:folios of Sucial “—omes and antenng o long-term
inflanion adiusied leases or occupancy agreamean's

for zerms pnmanly ranging from 6 yvears 1o A0 years
with Approved Jroviders where all managemean:

and mainenance obliganons will be serviced by the
spproved Providers The Company will no underake
any developrmen: acuvisy of assume any developmen- or
congricion rnisk. —owever, the Company may engage 1n
TENOVAIING Or CUIomIsing exiging homes, as necessary

The Company may make prudent use of leverage "o
finance the acg.usrion of Socal “omes and o preserve
capiral on a real basis,

The Company s focused on delivenng capizal growih
and expects 1o hold 1is Porsfolic over the long term and
sherefore 1718 unlhikely thas the Company will dispose
of any par of the Porfolio. nthe unlikely even:thaza
part of the Porfolio 1¢ chspesed of, the Jireciors intend
10 remvest proceeds from such digposals in agges in
accordance with the Companys invesimen: pelicy.

Investment Restrictions

The Company inves:s and rnanages *he Jortfolio with the
abjecive of delivenng a high qualizy, diversified Porfoho
hiranigh the following iInvesimen: restrichions:

e he Company only imives:s in Social ~omes located in
“he United Xingdom;

e he Company only invests in Social —omes where the
COUNTRIPATTy 10 e 1ease or oCcupancy agreemens s
an Approved “rovider;

e 1N lease or ocoupancy agreemen: shall be for an
anexpired penod of less than "0 years, unless the
shorer leases or ocCupancy agreements represant
par- of an acquision of a porifolio which the
nvestmen: Adviser irends o reorgase such thar
che average term of lease or occupancy agreemen: is
increased Tu 1h years or above:

e “he aggregars maximuam exposire wo any single
Approved Jravider 18 25% of the Gross Agszer Value,
once he capital of the Company is fully invesed:

e nonvesmen: Ly the Company in any single
gaongraphical area, 1n relanon ta which the houses
and/or apartmen: blocks owned by the Company are
locared on a conniguoidts or largely contiguous basis,
exceeds 20% of the Gross Asser Value of the Company:

e -he Company only acarires completed Social “ames
and will na: forward finance any developmen: of new
Soctal —omes;

e he Company does no:mves:in other aliernanive
inves'men: funds ar closed-end invesimen:
companies; and

e “he Company s not engaged in shor: selling

The invessmen: hmits detalled above apply at the tme of
“he acauaisiaon of “he relevantinves-men: in the 2orfolio
once fully inves-ed. The Company would no: be reqguired
o dispose of any inves men: or 1o rebalance the lorifolio
ag a resulr of @ change i the respecnive valuanons of ig
38875

Gearing Limit

The Jireciors 2eek o Ufe (J2anng to enharnce egar’y
retarns. The level of borrowing 1s se: on a prudent basiz
for the asser Cclagzs and seeks ‘0 achieve a tow coz of
funds, whils® mantainmg “he flexatilizy in -he anderlyimg
secunty requremeants and “he structare of boh “he
Jorfoho and the Company

1 The diidend yweld 15 based on the onginal [P priee of 100 pence per Qtdinare share Thes target dividonds are latges only and do not teprosant o prolit forscast
There ran be no assuance thail the large1s can ot wilt be met and shoudd not be faken as an ndicatun of the Company s expected of actual iynge tesuits
Accordingly poteatalinvestors should not plece any elance on these wargets indeaiding whether ol not W Inves! ip the Company on assume thal the Company
will make anv disinbutians 41 all and should deade tor thamselyes wheithar or not the fargat dwvicdend yields ate Teasaonable ur achievable



Strategic Overview continued

The Company may. following a decizion of the 3oard.
raise debt from banks and/or “he capizal markess and the
aggregare borrowings of the Company 12 alwayg sabject
o an abgsolute maximum of 40% of Gross Asse: Value
caleulated at the ume of drawdown. Curren: gearnng is
$4.15%,

Debr s secured at asset level whether over a parncalar
property or a holding entity for a pamicalar senes of
proper:les. without recourse o the Company and also
potennally ar Company level with or without a charge
over the 2or:folio ibut not agans: parmiciilar assers),
depending on the opamal stractare for the Company and
having conswderation ‘o key merics meluding lender
dversiy, cost of debr, deb type and matansy profiles.
Orherwise there will be no cross-financing between
mvestmen's in the Portiolio and the Company will not
GPerate as a common treasury funcion betweean the
Company and 178 INVesmen:s.

Use of Derivatives

The Company may choose o unlise denvasives for
efficient porffolic managemen:. ‘n paracaiar, the
Jrectors may engage in full or parnal interest raze
hedging or otherwise seek 10 muiigase the risk of inTeres:
rate lnereases on borrowings incarred in accordance
with The geanng limitg as part of the management of “he
Porfoho.

Cash Management

Untl the Company 1= fully invested, and pending
re-nvestmen: or distnbunon of cash recetpts, the
Company inves:# in cagh, cash equivalents, near cash
Imsirimene and monay marke: INsraments.

Key Performance Indicators (“KPIs”)

Measuie

i Exptanalnpn

REIT Status

The Jrecrors conduct the affairs of the Company so as 1o
enable 11 1o remain quahfied as a =0T for the purposes
of 2art 2 of the Corporatnon Tax Act 20.0 (and the
regailations made thereunder)

Culture

The Mreciors agree that establishing and mamaming

a healhy corporaze culiure among the 3ecard and in 1:s
inrerachion with the invesimen: Adviser, sharseholders
and other stakeholders will suppor: the delivery of 11s
puarpose. valuaes and siraeqgy. The 3ocard seeks 10 promoe
a culure of openness, debae and inegrnty through
ongoing dialogue and engagamen: with 1is service
providers, prnincipally the nvesimen: Adviser.

As detalled in the Corporate Governance S:atement,

‘he Company has a number of pohicies and procedures

n place 10 assist with mam:aming a cul-ure of good
governance, including those relating to diversity and
Tnrecrors” conflicts of interest. The 3oard assesses and
monirors comphance with these policies as well as the
general caltare of the 3oard “hrough 3vard meeings and,
In particalar, durmg the annual evaluation process which
12 underraken by each Jirector {(for more information, see
the performance evaluanon section on page 700,

The 3oard's culiure 12€lf 12 one of openness,
collaboranon and consruciive debate 0 ensure the
effecuve corvnbuton of all directors. paracalarly in
respect of the 3oard's decision making. Considerazion
of our S-akeholders g embedded 1in ~he 3oard's decision
making process, Mlease gee our secton (772 Statemeant on
rage 24,

Result .

nerease n (PR3
NAV per share

ISIVldend?per
share

Number of Local
Authaoriies.
Approved
rroviders and
care providers

LOan o
Gross Asses
{everage)

Targe: 1o achieve capral appreciation whils:
rmamntaining a low risk strategy irom enhancing
he queality of cash flows trom invesiments, by
physical improvemen: of properaes end by
creannd a signiftcany diversified. high quahty

IFRS NAV increase of 12.3p per share 12.60%
from 20 (2027 10.3p per share "0.56% from 120},

E)_orztoito. ) _

ror the vear ended 37 Marck 27022, the Company
rargeted a dividend of 5.55p per share.

Targe: risk meigatoen through a diversified
por:folic tonce fully invesied} witk no more
‘han 25% exposure to any one Local Authony or
single Approved Provider and ne maore than 20%
exposare 10 any single geagraprical area, ance
‘e capital of the Company 1s fully invesied.

Targe'ed tolal debt drawn no more than 40% of
gross assets.

Towal dividend of 5.55p per share declared fL:)r ke
year to_3‘ March 2022 (?_pZ‘.: 540D

T Asary M;ch 2022:

178 Loca. Aunority pariners (20211564 Local
Authority pariners)

18 Approved Providers
130 Care Providers (2021 118 Care Providers

(20721115 Approved Providers)

The Company's largest single exposure 15 10
Aackiand :lome Solutons CIC and carrently
stands a: 16% (2027: 24%). I he largest geographical
concentraion is in ke South West being

18% (2077 16%).
everage &s a. 31 March 2022 of 3413% of gross
asses (2021 34 48%).
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Strategic Overview continued

EPRA

The Company 1s a member of “he curopean 2ublic Real Sstate Association ("52RA7. 22RA has developed and defined
the following performance measdares to give wransparency, comparabilizy and relevance of financial reporung

across entmes which may use differen: accounning siandards. The Company s pleased ro discloge the following
measures which are calculated in accordance with =284 guidance. These are all Alrernauve Performance measures of
“he Company.

Definition

Purpose

Performance

Past performance

EPRA Earnings

Zarnings from operational
acuvines.

A key measure of a
company's underiyving
operaung resulis and an

EPRA Net Reinstatement
Value (“NRV™)

EPRA NAV metnic which
assumes that enzities never
sell assets and aims o
represent the value required
0 rebuild the entity,

EPRA Net Tangible Assets EPRA Net Disposal

{(“NTA")

ZPRA NAV memnc which
assumes that eniies buy
and sell assets, thereby
crystallising certain levels of
anavoldable deferred ax

Value (“NDV™)

=2RA NAV metrne

which represents the
sharehelders’ value under
a disposal scenario,
where deferred :ax,
financial instruments and
ceraln other adjus:men:s
are calculated 1o the full
extent of their llabihty, ner
of any resulung tax.

The ZPRA NAV set of meirics make adjustments 10 the NAV per the [FRS financal
smatements 10 provide siakeholders with the most relevan: mformation on the fair
value of the assewe and habilities of a real estate investmen: company, under differen:

mndication of the exientto scenanoes.
which current cividend
payments are suppored
by earnings.
EPRA Earnings EPRA NRV EPRA NTA EPRA NDV
r L £ £
2022, 2522 2022 2022
29,810,000 673,416,000 673,416,000 678,191,000
2021 202t 2G21 2021
30,630,000 674,042,000 674,042,000 671,476,000
ZGeG 2020 020G AR
28,814,000 671,042,000 671,042,000 667,560,000
EPRA Earnings per share EPRA NRV per share EPRA NTA per share EPRA NDV per share
(Basic and di wed; sonce idiiuied: pence (di.ced) penes {di .ed) pence
2002 2027 2058 2022
(482 | 109.96
Znal AN o2l 2021
4.93 108.38 10838 107.97
020 2020 2520 2070
4.63 10795 107.93 107.39

1 not arefable indreasor of fmare paerformarice. Jor desailed workings reconctding the abowve

megagures "o the (RS resulis please see Appendix ~ -o these financial statements on pages 129 <o 157,



Strategic Overview continued

g EPRA Net Initial Yield EPRA Topped;up Net EPRA Costs Ratio EPRA Vacancy Rate
-5 {(“NIY™) Initial Yield (“NIY™) Admunisirative and Egtimated Market Rental
% Annualised rental mcome 'Ihls(;”f_‘reés\;(e }t}c?morates operatng costs inchuchng Vatue { F.'RV ) of vacam:
R pased on the cash rents an adpismens: 1o the and excluding cos:s of space divided by ERV of
e . EPRA Ni¥Yn respect af direct vacancy!) divided  the whole portfolio.

passing at the balance the expiration of rent-free by gross rental income

shee: date less non- periods (or other unexpired ) '

recoverable properiy lease Incenuves such as

Operanng expenses, discounted rent periods and

drnded by the market stepped rents),

value of the property with

{esumared) purchagers’

costs.
@
§ A comparable measure for portfoho valuatons A key measure to enable A ‘pure (%) measare of
W These measures should make it easier for investors meaningful meaguremen: INVESTMEn: Propery
n.= o judge themselves, how the valuation of portfolio of the changes in a space tha: 1s vacan:,

X compares with porifolio V., comparry's operating cosws.  based on ERV.
8 EPRA NIY EPRATopped-up NIY EPRA Costs Ratio’ EPRA Vacancy Rate
B« % ¥ %
E 2022 2032 2022 2022
{ 0
a 204 2021 2021 2041

5.24 524 20.33 0
2020 2024 ANy 2024
5.26 526 2148 0

“agr performance 1 not a rehable indicator of future performance. - or detatled workings reconcihng “he above
measures o the 35 resulis, please see Appendix ' o these financial starements on pages 2910 '50.

1 The ranos inclusiye of vacancy costs are the same as the rallo excelysive of vacaney costs (or 2042 20210 ol 2040
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Principal Risks and Risk Management

The 3oard conmders that the risks desatled helaw are the principal nsks facng the Group currencly, along wath the nsks
detailled in nowe $°.3 10 the financial s1atements. These are the risks that could affect the abihioy of the Company 10 deliver
118 sirateqy. The 3card confirms that the primempal rigks of the Company, incluading those which woald threaten its fature
performance. solvency ar liquidioy. have baen robusily assessed throughous the vear ended 37 March 2042, :aking o
accoun: the emerging nsks such as the evolving Ukraine-Russia conflic: nsk. clirnare change nsk, ¢yber secunty nisk and
recrarmnent of staff 3t counterparnas nsk, and thar processes are in place W continue Jhis assessmen:,

The Audiz and Vanagemen: bngagemen: Commitige has divided the Company's risks 1mmo the following nsgk sypa
CEeganes:

e Strategy and Competinivenass,

e Operational, mcluding Cyker Crime;

e Investmen: Managemens? and

s  Accouaning, “egal and Regulatory.

Lach nsk contamed in each category & reviewed for s impac: and probability by the Audir and Vanagemen:
-ngagement Comminiee at least twice dunng the year

The Audir and Managemen® -ngagemen: Commitee Takes responsibilizy for overseeing the effeciiveness of nisk
managemen: and incernal control sysiems on behalf of the Board and adwises the 3oard on the principal nisks facing
‘he husiness.

Curther details of risk managemenst processes “hat are m place can be found in the Corporate Governance Satemens:
on pages 70 and /.. The principal and emerging risks and unceraimnues relaiing 10 “he Grouap are regularly reviewred
by *he 3oard along with the mnternal contrels and nsk managemean: processes that are used 0 muigare these

risks, The 3oard hasaidennfied four new principal nsks dunneg the year (as ser outin the higt of princisal nisks and
ancerzammnes), with the ngk asgociazed with share price disrupuon due o an acavist shareholder baing dennfied as
having the mghest impact and kehhood. The nisk assooiated with the faillure “o monror and ensure that coniingens
acnvines are bemyg comple=d by Approved ronders was removed as a pnncipal nisk by the 3oard dunng the year.
Turther detalls on this and the other prnineipal nsks and the managemen: of those risks are descnbed below,

Impact

Very
unlikely

Unlikely Possible Likely

Probability



Principal Risks and Risk Management continued

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

1 Swategy and compenuveness sk tmpact S _ _ Howmamged/miugaee .
The Company's share price 1s The Company 18 1drgaioe The Beard is committed to maintaming Impact:
disrupted due 1o an activist oy a snor: ge_or or ac'ivis!  open channels of communication with High
sharehotder. sharcao dor eading o sharenolders and engaging in ways

afa.in e Company’s shaiehiolders find most meaningful, in

This risk was nowly idenlified

. gnare price and a order 1o gain understanding of sharehoider Prohability:
during the year. y

widening of tne discoun: views. Further information on the Board's Likely
L0 NAV engagement with shareholders can be

o o found on pages 25 to 33.
Signtlican: namners ol

snares may need 10 pa The Board seeks 1o provide full disclosure
repurendsed cading o on the counterparties and the siructure of
alaldin the si7e ot o ransactions so that ail stakenolders are
company and licuuidiny kept reliably informed on the Company's
i pacalions business dealings.

The Board regularly reviews the
Company's buyback policy 10 ensure this
is in alignmen: with the interesis of 1ne
Company and snareholders. The Board

is also mindful of the possibility (o issue
shares and regulariy reviews its policy in
this area to ensure that It is consistent with
the Company's strategy. It receives regular
updates from the Company’s brogers to
heip intorm its decisions in this regard.

2 Strategy and compeliiveniess nsk linpact

. . lndnﬁgﬂ"mqa[tjg L o _
The Company and its operations AY CNAnge in e The Company focuses on niche real estate Impact:
are subject to laws and regu.aions  aws. regua.alions and/ seciors where it believes the regu.atory Very high
enacted by national and iocal OF JOVCTITCNL 130,18y framework and underlying demand
governmeanis and governmen: affceiung tie Company dynamics 1o be robust.
policy. and Is operaions may Probability:

The Investment AdVJser. has sireng indusiry Unlikely
contacts and has good <nowledge on
policy opinion and direction.

NaVC d maeria advaerse
cifect on e am ity ol tne
Comgdry "o suocessfe y
DS 13 TSI e, The Board obiains regular updates

; from oprofessional advisers 1o monitor
developmenits in regulazion and icgisiation.

This risk remained at the same
.evel as the year ended 31 March
2021

oocy and meacs
inves.man. oolocuve
and on e va Lo of ne
Conrany dnd e guares

S snateqy and compeunyeness nsk How managed/miigaled

7777777 o Wllrnpd(‘l _ _ = _ o o . . _ .
As a resalt of competition from Tao rae ol cagka. The Company nas strong inks with vendors  Impact:
o:ner ourchasers of socia: acousing  dep.oymant woud droo, and a robust pipenne of future acguisitions.  High
properiies. tne Company's ability docreasing rorarng 1o

o . Th ; agJlariy revie e pipeli
to deploy capiia. effeciively within  saarcho dars. The Board reg.lariy reviews e pipeiine

a reasonable itmeframe may be of potentia! acquisizions and moni:ors the Probability:

restricted or ne ne: inkia: yields at marke: landscape. Uniikely

which the Company can acquire The Board is aware of the current

properies may deaciine such that conpertitive social housing marge: and

largel relurns canno: oe met. recognises the impac: (i7is may have on - -
is Fis< emained Al e same “he Company's ability (0 deploy capital 3 %
I L 1 Lines H i =
‘avel as the vear ended 31 Marah electively - A
202L z

i _ — e = = . ~ - . e _ >
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Principal Risks and Risk Management continued

4 TUVOSHTEnt drbigement nsk Impact

Tenant defaulting under the terms
ol a lease.

Loss ol renta. Ineomre In
D10 7017 eI

Tnis risk remained at the same
level as the year ended 31 March
2021,

5 luvestment managemernt e I
The value of the investmens made Tac va .aionof o
by the Company may change from  Con odany's assce!s wowid
ime (o time according 1o avaney  f(a . decreasing e
of facrors, inciuding movements MAY and yieds ot the
in interest rates, inflation and Comoany
general marke: pricing of similar o
invesimen:s.

Inipact

This was identified as a heightened
risk during ‘he yvear.

& Inzesunent imaiaqoment nsk
Due diigence may no: revea. all
facis and circurrstiances inat may
be relevan! in connection with an
invesimen! and may not preven: va .o redasing renta
an acquisition being materiaily income and eretore
overva.ued or renal sreams beind - ms
alns<

The Company woud
overoay for asses
imoanng 8 w@relio Jder

This ris< rermained a: the same
leve. as the year ended 31 March
2021

? ernve,t,lmcmrmdnuqzmr'nl t]nf B B
Loss of key siaff a7 the Invesimen:
Adviser.

Impact

edgaive inves:
senamen. .eading Lo a
rodution In $nars price.
Radwcnon i aol Ly 0
so.rce otff mar<e: and
avo.urao.c dea.s

This risk remained at the same
.evel as tac year ended 31 March
2021

rmpact :
Docreasa in ce va. e of
e COmpany’'s asse s dan
a NCga ive urpaa |
o oany

B Siralvgy and compehhyeness

Tne Company fai.s o respond 0
issues rerated o climate change.
elther direciy as enhancemen:s
o properies or indirecty via its
c.imaze change reporiing.

This was a new.y identified risg
d..ring 1e year.

o change specia.isis a: 1ne Invesimen:

The portiohie is nighly diversified to reduce
the wnpac: of default. Extensive diligence is
underiaken on ail agsers, which is reviewed
and chailenged by :he Board.

Impact:
Medium

Probability:

The + - i 2 IS 1
The Invesimen: Adviser works proactively Likely

with Approved Providers to address any
potential concerns.

Thie Beard is provided with regular updates
on the tenants with any concerns raised for
discussion.

The Board has noted that the Company’s
nigtoric level of defaults has been
immatenal

How managedimutigated

The Company inves:s in proects with
srable predetermined. l.ong-term easesin
place with CPI or CPI plus 1% indexation
and its siraiegy is not focused on sale of
properties.

""" ~ Impact
High

Probability:

: ] \ Possible
Tnhe Board receives reguiar updates on

factors that might ircpact invesiment
valuations.

Ho‘.:e&na god,:’ﬂrmy(:d . o
Tne Company under:akes detailed due
diiigence on the properies, their condition,
tne proposed renlal 'cvels - benshmarking
against comparabie scnemes using noth
exiernal consultan:s where required and
s own proprietary database - and on he
Approved Prowviders and care providers
invo.ved in each property to ensure that the
purchase price is robust

Impaét: o
High

Probability:
Unlikely

"
1

e Board considers the due diligence
underiaxen when approving acquisitions

aled

Huw managed.

Tne Board considers the rige of the
Investmen! Adviser ‘0sing key staif and :he
s.uccession plans the Investment Adviser
nas in pLace.

Impact:
High

Probability:

The Board has noied (he ongoing Uniikely

expansion of (he Investmen: Adviser's
SLPOOIT leam.

l[uﬂmﬁnﬂgﬁrd;mmnal(-d o B o
Regular review and consideration oy
4 the Board inciuding the Inpu of ciimate

Probability:

Adwviser, Unlikeiy

Advice received from exiermna. professiona.
advisers.



Principal Risks and Risk Management continued

9 Operstional ncluding cyber crne Tmpact

Serious accident or poor
management amongst Approved
Providers due (0 stalf snorages.
oss of competence and

vaccination uptase,

e Company

This was iden:ified as a heightened
risk during the year. _

mpact
A reducaonin e
Companys share orice
and a widenmng of ne
discount (o NAV,

10_sualegy and competitiveness o
The Company is no! premoted n
a way whicn generales invesior
demand. especially with regard to

ESG focus.

This was identified as a heightcnead
risk during the year.

Emerging risks

mergmg risks are considered durng the reguiar

risk review, and wouald be spemfically discussed and
evaluated as thev arise dunng The year .npu from the
Jvesiment Adviser on emerdging risks 1s considerad by
“he fadit and Managemen: “hgagemen! Commiiies

Key emerging risks idenified and considered dunng the
yvear ncluda:

e Lkrame-2ussia Confher - the impact of Lkraime-
Russia confhict Although the Company hag no direct
exXPuSITe ‘0 JUSS1a oOr eagiern ~uropean errores, the
Spard contimaes o closely monor this.

e ong-Term Chmaie Change - the impac: of chimata
change, over the longer-term on the business. The
Company 18 commied o undersianding -35G nisk,
incliading ~he parncalar impac: of climate change
on the Business Chmate change poses an mdirec:
risk o the Company's operationg, the environmen:
and gociety, and the doard 1z awara That appropnate
acton 1g required o reduce 115 impact.

e Uyber Secury - cheampact of a cyler secarty breach
wirhin the Company or 1s service providers Junng “he
vear, "he 3oard was made aware of 2 rmnor dara Breach
wizhin the Jepostory The breach has had nompacs
on the Company's operasions and no personal data was
compromised. The 3oard 15 saushied that the Depastory
hasg taken approprnate immediate remedial acaon and
has adequae safeqguards m place.

Reodiatona Jdamags tor

liow manaded miigated

Reporting irom Approved Providers and Iapaét:
monroring of Approved Providers by the High
[nvesument Adviser. Praobability:
Unlikely
The Board monitors the marketing and Impact:
distribution activity undertaken by the Medium
Investment Adviser and the Corporate Probability:
Brokers at each meeting as well as Unlikely

receiving regular reports from is PR adviser
Buchanan.

The Board utilises discount conirol
mechanisms 1o sLppoft promoiiona:
activities.

The Board engages The Good Economy and
Social Profit Calculator and repor's findings
to shareholders.

The Board considers ESG reporiing in the
Annuai Report and Accounts carefully.
Nease see the Company's —5G Report on pages 45 10 495

for further details,

The Lsang Yules require premiam-hsted commercial
companias "o disciose in therr annual repor? whether
‘hey have reporred on how climate change affects
cheir business in a manner consigten: with the
racommendanions of the Task Jorce on Chimate-related
Jnancial nsclogares (TCDY and to provide an
explanaunon and other informanon if they are unable

o dose. inaddmon, the UL Governmen:t intgnds o
mrodace mandazory chmate-related disclosures to
supplemen: the recritemens ander the Lasing fates. The
3oard has chosen not “o adop: “he requirements early
and expects these o be appheable to the Company in the
finanmal year 2024,
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Going Concern and Viability Statement

Going Concern

The Board regularly reviews *he position of the Company
and 11z ability to conninueg as a going CONCern ar 1.8
meeungs. The financial staremerns set aut the curran?
financial postion of the Company.

The Company acquires high-qualiy propery with a
paracular focus on property providing care for the long
‘erm. The properies acquired are on long-erm full
repalring and insuring leases in a secror of the market
with very ligh levels of need. The cos: base of the
Company 1 proporonasely low compared 10 revenue
and here 15 a mgh level of cerainty over cost o be
meurred. On this basis, the Company 15 expected 10 he
wnakle well bevond the five-vear erm considered mn the
Company’s esting below.

Az at 31 March 2027, -he Company held cash balances of
E545.5 million (net of operating and finanaing amodn:s
duel. The 3oard has evaluazed “he financal posiaon

of the Company and has maintained s premium

Inves men: grade ranng from Deh 2anngs Ll - a well
astablished ranng agency with a sirong famihariy 1o the
alzernanve healthcare real estate space. which gwves the
Company confidence in the abiity to raize future deb:
and/or equity captial in order o fund “he Companys
invesimen:s for the long term and to facilizate "he
paymen: of dividends -o shareholdars, 3ased on “hese,
“he 3nard beheves *hat tThe Company 1811 a posiron *o
manage 1ts financial risks.

Various forms of sensimvity analy=is have been
nerfarmed, in parsicular the financial performance of
tenants and a redactiionn rent As ar 30 Varch 2022, the
ren: would have to drop by approximasely 29% before 1g
luan covenans s breached. AT the date of approval of this
repors, the Company has substanual headroom wihin

17s financial loan covenants The Company also henefirs
from a secure ncome siream from leases with long
average unexpired rerm leazes.

“everage s pradercly mamiamed at a level of less han
40% of GAV,

The Company's aricles of agssaciaron molids a
requiremen: for the 3oard w propose an ordinary
resoluzion atthe annual general meeung following the
fifh anriversary from the immal pubklic offenng of the
Company for the Company o coniinde i i carren® form
{"he Continuanon Resgoluniont. Thig s the first conunuanon
vore since The Comparyy was set up.

if -he Conunuanon fesolaton 1§ passed. the Company will
continue 118 business ag presentdy consutued and propose
the same resolwilon at every fifth annual general meetng
“hereafter If the Conunuation Resohition 1s no: passed, the
Direcors will be reguired, within six months afer the date
of this annual general meeting, o formulate proposals

for consideration by the shareholders for the veluniary
fierndaion, aniisaton. TeOrganisatlon, Or reConsirucion
of the Company Afier making appropriate enquines of the
Company s brokers and nvestmen” Adviser, putsuant 1o
“heir recen: discussions with a number of the Company's
shareholders, the Directors are of the view tha: The
Connnuanon fesoiuton will be passed at the forthcoming
annual general meenng, This teflecs the strength and
natire of the Company’s por:foho, and specificaily the
provision of long-term accommaedasion for more “han
4,000 vulnerable indmiduals. Accordingly. the Direciors
expect thatif the Contnuanon Resolanon 12 not passad,
an event which the Directors consider o be taghly remore,
formulanng and implemennng any such proposals would
requre the Company o continue operanons for a penod
of at leas: 2 months from the date of approval of the
Company's financal stazements.

The 3oard s therefore, of the opimion thas “he gomy
concern basis adopied in the preparanon of the
consohdated inanoal statements 1s appropnae

Viability Statement
The hrectors presen: the Company's viability statemen:
which summarses the resuls of their assassmen: of
the Company's current pogiiion, iT3 principal nisks and
prospec:s over a pertod o0 3 Varch

The agzumpuons anderpinming the forecast cashflows and
covenant compliance forecas s were sensiiisaed w sxplore
“he resilience of the Company o the poential impac: of *he
Company's princpal nsks and unceraimnes,

The prospecis were asse
“he following reasons:

ssed over a five-year peanod for

i) -he Company'slong-ierm foracas: covers a five-year
veriad;

i) -he length of service level agreemen:s bewesn
Approved Croviders and care providers 18 ypcally fives
vears, and

iii) “he Company's leases are wypically 25 vears on fully
repatring and mmsunng laases. enabhing reasonabla
cerainty of income aver the nexs five years



Going Concern and Viability Statement continuea

The Company's five-year forecast \ncomaratas
assumpuons related o the Company's invesiment strategy
and principal nsks from which performance resulis, cash
flows and key performance indicators are forecast. The
principal nisks are set out on pages 38 w 42, Of these nsks,
‘hose which are expeciad ‘0 have a higher impac: on the
Companys longe -t m prospects are Those related 7o
furare governmen: housing pohcies. The Company has
considered s strategy over a ionger serm and, in ligh:

of the inherent demand for the Company's properies

and ~he vulnerable natare of the ultdimate tenant, the nsk
of change in future housing policy 1s considerad o be
hmied. The principal risks are rmingated by the Company's
risk managemen: and internal con:rol processes, which
function on an ongomng basis

The Roard, via delegauon 10 the Audit and Managemen:
wngagemen: Commities, montors the effeciiveness

of the Company's risk managemen: and in:ernal

cotrol processes on an ongoing kasis. The monronng
acnvines are descnbed in the Report of the Audi: and
Managemen: Shgagemen: Commuiiea on pages 6270 65
and mnclude direc: review and challenge of the Company's
documenzed nisks, nsk ranngs and controis, and review
of performance and comphance repors prepared by
‘he Company's adwisers and the independent exzarnal
audrtors.

The 3oard of irecrors hag carmed our a robust
asseszment of the principal and emerging nsks facing
“he Company. ncladimg those that would <hreazen s
basiness model, fusire performance. solvency and
hagudery. Where appropnate. the Company s forecas:s are
subject 10 sensivisy analysis. which involves applying
severe condmions and flexing a number of agsampuons
simulianeously.

The sensiuvities performed were designed o provide
the Jwectors with an undersianding of “he Campany's
performarnce in the even: of sever= but plausible
scenarios, sskhing fall account of minigating acnons
chas could be zaken o avaid or reduce the impac! or
cccurrence of the underlying nsks outlined below:

e 0% of tenants defauling under a lease The oucome
of this scenano reduces profis on average over the
five year forecas: by '5% per annuam and redices cash
by £20 mithon. mowever, the 3oard 15 s1ll comforiable
“ha dowidends could e pawd as there is sull suthaen:
level of cagh in the business. and

e derenoration in economic outtook, change m
governmen: housing poley which couald tnpac “he
fundamensals of the social housing secor, inclading
4 negative impact on valuanons and a 5% redaciion
e anriaal renss The oweomes of the severe downside
scenany was that the Company's covenant heardroom
on exisang debt (¢ the level ar which the invesiman?t
vropery valiles would have 1o fall before a financial
breach ocours: reduces by “3% pnor to any mrigaiung
acnons such as asse? sales, which mdweases thar
covenantg on exising facthimes would nos be breached.

he Board has noted that the Company is due ‘0 hold

175 first conliuanon vote a: the AGY in Seliember 22,
This would be an ordinary resolution reqiinng approval
from 50% of the shareholders votung. “arther desalls as
<0 hovs the Company has considerad the impact of Jhe
conunuanen votre can be found in the Going Concern
secTion on the previous page.

The remainng principal risks and uncertamnies, whils:
having an impact on the Company's business, are

not constdered by the Directors o have a reasonable
Ikelihood of impaciang the Company's viability over the
five-year penod. “herefore the scenanos cuthned above
are the only ones that have been specaifically tested.
Bazed on the resuls of their assessmens, the Dreciors
have a reasonable expectanon thai the Company will e
ahle 1o continue in operation and meet = lalihnes as
‘hey fall due over the five-year penod of their assessmen:

Approval of Strategic Report
The Group STateglc Repor: was approved by the 3uard
and signed on 128 behalf by:

Michael Wrobel

Chalrman

29 June 2022
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Energy Performance/SAP Ratings

Carbon Reduction — EPC/SAP Ratings

Civitas Portfolio (doemestic and non-domestic) Energy Performance
Certificates (EPC) - March 2022,

Alongside increasing supply of social housing for vulnerable adults, Civitas

continues to improve the overall energy performance, with a strong focus s

on properties with EPC ratings D and E, through active asset management, s
inchuding property improvement works, renovations and scheduled M
post-completion works. N

g
3
2
2

Comparable EPC ~ Percentage distribution at 31 March 2022

TVIDOS “TVINIWNNOYIANE

a2

A

B 1386
C 384
D 352
£ 125

T ee
G 0.1

As shown in the table below, the energy performance of Civitas portfolio compares favourably against the
performance across all housing tenures as reported in the 2020/21 English Housing Survey (EHS). Civitas SSH
properties have a larger proportion of detached and semi-detached properties compared to social rented and
private rented dwellings.

by tenure (%) (domestic/homes only)

- . o Energy Performance CertificationBand =~~~

Mean
SAP

- — . . A® ¢ D E _F G Rating
Owner occupled 31 392 464 86 22 05 655
_ 24 394 443 96 %4 09 647

Prvaterented 96 34 0
Socialrented 29 626 309 26 08 02 698 i
Alltenures 29 432 434 78 22 05 _ 661 Li
Civitas domestic . m5 380 373 131 00 01 666 ::

b Source Endhsh Housing Survey 2020 Enclgy eticieney rating bands by 1enure (Annex Table 28) & Mean 5AP ranng by tenure (Annex Table 2 7}

b
w1



The Portfolio’s Carbon Footprint

as at 31 March 2022

Tonnes (TCO,) per Civitas Tenancy

March 2022

2.65

snergy Performance Certificates {(EPCs) are deailed repor:s
mnto the energy efficiency of a propery or buillding. =
recuires rained assessors to examine the kevy tems m the
propeny siuch as any heating and coching systems, the
presence and levels of the insulauon, the type of glazing
and mazenal of the window frames, as well as the hot
water and Hghting systems. 52Cs are divided imto two
fur-her subcaregones. Domestic and Non-Domastic
Jomaeasnc FPCs 1llusrate the efficiency ratng of
self-contamed houses and apartmenzs. Non-Domesnc,
provide raungs for bailldings with more exiensive

March 2021

2.73

Soutce Ciatas retamead EPC data

communal areas that are usually served by more complax
heating and cooling systems.

The energy assessmen: far non-domesic buldings takes
much longer than a domesice bailding o nspect. evaluate
and produce. The inspecaon and data mpusing 1s maors
detatled than a domesuc property and will include precise
ligghning sype. bullding onentanaon, solar gain, window
frames ete. Consequently. the resulung recommendasions
are more derailed than with a domesue =.°C,

Civitas EPC Distribution (Domestic/Non-Domestic) - March 2022

# Non-domestic/Higher Acuity [l Domestic/Homes

0.0
Aloz2

B 13

12.2

E 131
0.0
Fl oo
0.0
Glo1
Domestic/Homes

Thesa refer -o dwelhngs. wheher a house or aparmen:
where one heameg system serves g single household or
Civizas “hese properies have speoahs: adapiations and
care provigion na are =0l regarded as domesnie homes.

Jameste praperies ypically ase less energy and have
lovrer carbon footpnnes Than non-domestic/higher
ACUITY Properties

: 4 42.6
38.0

373

Sauree Cretfas retained LPC data

Non-domestic/higher acuity

Thesze are larger properies which generally have
addinonal speaahsy/commmanal facihnes with higher
aneargy use Thizincludes indusmal kirchens, back house
facihnes plug extengive rehabiliianon services




E.ON Project Results (Phase 1) and Next Steps

ollewing the successful envitonmen-al improvemen:
pilor studies, Civitas worked with 50N to idenafy

55 properiles across the por:folio that could benefit

from energy improvemen: measuras incliding Solar 2V
(Solar Photwvolaws) panels A framework agreement was
signed with S ONIn June 202 -0 deliver enhancemenis
a- no cost o underlying Approved rovider parmners and
vhage  commenced in Auguast 2021 wath detalled retrofi-
surveys largeung inrtal measares incladimg

e Cavity Wall .nsalanon

s Lof nsulanon

e ~xiernal Wall .nsulanion

e AIr SOUrce —eat Jump

e Solar 'V and batery storage

The mmanve offered 15 a grea: opportansy for our
residents 1o really benefit from longer term savings on
energy oills - a7 no addimonal cos: 1o therm Civitasas
achively working towards a ne: zerg target, and this s
anotherimpor:an: miles:cne o lowering “he por:foin
carbon foopnnt but to also 2nsre tesidents are geiang
the most our of these fres works.

s was recogmged ar the onsei thar detailed consideration
of each mdrvidual dwelling 15 “he key 1o making large,
cost-effective carbon dioxide ermissions savings. “'or
exampla sutable sites for solar panels are usaaily on srong
roof structures where the panels can be installed facimg
soirch o south-east and with a good means of access.

The rerrofis surveys and detalled assesgments undertaken
by = ON have helped o refine the Phase " implementanion
rogramme and idenitfy the bes method for reducing
‘he toral carbon diowide ermiszions {and fuel cogts!
assoctaed with indeiidual properies over ~he mediam

or long term. Dagnoeses has been broadened o inchide
congideranon of:

The detailed retrofit surveys exercise

14 properties
Confirmed adequate
CWI Insulations (post
retrofit surveys)

101 properties

Completed Surveys

e future improverneii. opporaniies, which should nos
be blocked by more immediate projects

e Opporiunlies for megrating energy measuares with
other anlding work as required

This has enabled R.ON 10 provide improvemen:
recommendations shar are ahgned with the long--erm
needs of the xnlding and of 11s occupants.

Despre access Consramts o protect vaineratle residents
at the properies dunng the COV' -9 resincaons, S.0N
surveyors completed 107 rerrofit surveys as at 8 Varch
2077, The number of surveyed properies was ingcreas=d
prnimanly o replace properies tha: were errher deemed
anviable for “he proposed energy measures or where
‘he measures were already in place bu: had no: been
caprdred on the nnergy “erformance Certficates

The compleied surveys identfied imied opporiunities
o cost-effectively inderake installanon of mxernal Wall
-nsulaton and Arr Source “eat pumps dunng Phase .
The ingrallanon of solar 2V and hatery storage has been
completed a7 4 properies with furher installanions
ingtructed ar 29 properies but awaiting installation of
1sator swiarches The anergy Regulator (OFGEN) sapilae
“hatigolator svritches can only be ingtalled by the bl
payer's energy suppher

Crvizas action 1s helping o reduce household energy bills
o s valnerable residents and eage financal pressares
paracularly in the hght of even steeper increases projecred
W comeanto force 1in the Auumn when the energy pnee
cap 18 se7 1o nse further This 18 essennal 7o help people
wTh rSing energy costs and o miigaie aganst nsng
prices thas contld leave many valneral)e people in fael
povery

43 properties
Solar PV and Battery
Storage (completed/

underway)

20 properties
Confirmed adequate
Loft Insulation (post

retrofit surveys)

“T'he dehvery of *he imnal phase of the programme hag streng:hened the ¢ollaboranon between = QM and Civitas The
learmngs have brail the sohd foundanon and read map 0 move forward wath furure deploymen: of energy saving

meaasures 1 achiave Civizas net-zeto targes”

Mark Antcliff

Jusiness Jevelopment Yanager - ~.ON ngallanon Services

Environmental improvement
works underway

ONM

Ll
]
o
5
g
>
Z
2]
it

TYIDOS "TVLNIWNONIANT

VIS SVLEALL




CIVEEAS SOUTAL HOUSING 'L
KEFORT AND ACCOUR'TS 2042

Py
x

Case Study

‘Detached Housé = . -
. 5% enyuite bedrooms
Solar PV installation

1% x 3Z0W all black panels .‘ 9)g 330W all black }ianels . 10 x 320W all black panels
Solis 3.6 inverier Giv Znergy 3.6W Hybnd inverter Solis 2.5 inverter

Giv = XWh batzer*,f_

Clean Energy Strategy to achieve minimum EPC “A-C”
by 2030 ~ 5 years ahead of Government deadline.

2022 2024 2026 2028 2030
(Phase 4} {Phase 6) (Phase 8) (Phase 10)

Phase 2 Programme Improvement Measures:

= eng April 2027 Tavey Wall nalas
e C c{J’mmenc,ed April 202 e  Cavery Wwall nsulanion 2,000 'l"co2
s 120 measures AcToss + oft nsulanon Target Carbon

0 properies e Sxiernal Wall naulanion Emissions reduction
e Targe: o reduce carbon e Alr SoUrce =ear ump

Z;];j;)ons as bl properies e Solar 2V and 3atvery Starage
Government Grant Funding Sources:
e Social Zousing Jecarkonisanon and
e -nergy Company Obliganon (2COV 4

e (rher Grants Annicipated

Towards Net Zero



Social Impact

Social Impact — Publication of The Good Economy Report — Published

June 2022

The Good Economy (TGE) — June 2022

TGE. independent social impact advisory firm, assessed Civitas' performance against its stated
impact objective and the target outcomes to which the Company aims to contribute.

TGE considers that
Civitas has made a
positive contribution
to meeting its impact
objectives in the past

12 months.

¢

Social Need

Provide housing
that meets an
identified soctial
need

40% of residents
living in Crvitas
propertics receive
over 50 hours of
care por week

82% of residents
aged hetweon
20 and 4%

“The Fund is moving
in a positive direction
in its contribution to
increasing the supply
of social housing.”

Impact Objective
Supply Quality
Increase the Improve the

supply of
social housing
across the UK
particularly
for vulnerable
pecple

41% of properties
new to socal
housing at the pont
of acquisiticn

69% of properties
in the 40% most
deprived local
authorities

quality of social
housing

Civitas have worked
with APs. signing

off on adapuens to
ensure properties
continue to meet the
changing needs of
residents

87% of vespondents
reported that they
were satisfied with
the quality of their
homes

“Civitas’ portfolic provides homes
for people with an identified
need for housing and support.”

THE
GOOD
ECONOMY

“The retrofit effort should
contribute to improving
the energy efficiency of

Civitas’ properties.”

Outcomes

0Qo

Wellbeing
Improve the
wellbeing of
residents

Value

Offer value for
mongey for the
public purse

53% of respondents
reported an
improvement in
their independence
betwoen

their previous
accommodation and
theiwr current heme

£3.51 is created
n social value
for every £1

of annualised
investment
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Book Launch for “A Place For Me”

A Place for Me' challenges preconceptions and illusirares
how the provision of a decent home, with ailored care
and suppor:, promozes the independence of somea of the
mos: vulnerable people 1in our sociey. Throiigh the lens
and words of “he storyiellars, 17 helps 1o highhght 1ssues

so many could easily take for granted and hopefully
sumulate freshdeas thar coninbute to salutions

The bock taunched at the Wellcome Trust on Tuesday.
‘7 December 2021 offered the opporuniy to meer and
histen o some of the famiies and indiwviduals at the
hear: of the stones The even: didn't disappoin: - from
the &7 year uld cover woman having her first keys 1o

her own home o David and Lauren — childhood friends

now engaged t¢ be marned The common thread s
“he ansung heroes - the carers and their famihes whoe
believed in them and became their advocates pressing
on agams: all odds.

“1 love my job,’ says June, the manager of
Cornwall Court. 'Twould work seven days
a week, because this isn't just a job, vou're
making such a difference to people.’ She is
a great believer in the ethos of supporting
people to live independently in the
community. I've been in the world of care
for 37 years and have seen a lot of clder
people put in institutions. Anyone who
was “mad” was locked up...and left under
the radar. We've made such a difference
to Ruth,’ June continues. ‘She was buzzing
the day she got into the bath on her own.
If things like that had happened when she
was in her late teens, she could have been
living on her own now. She might have
been married.”

June, 2uth's manager

“David and Lauren chose
their engagement ring
from F. Hinds, a jeweller

in Redditch. We threw

a surprise engagement
party for them at Lyn's
house at Christmas. David
went down on one knee in
front of friends and family
and proposed to Lauren
officially. It was lovely. If
everything goes fine, they'll
get married in a few years.”

‘ynne




An extract from “A Place for Me”:

Hope (a pseudonym), 33 shorily after 20am on a snowy morning in the
winzer of 2012, mwo pohcemen and two dociors knocked on the door of Fope's
home i Consart, County Jutham. Hope, theh 24, was wmsiracied *o get mn the
car. " didn't even have aime o get ready” she says. now Yope was sectionad

She was driven for an hoar 20 4 psychiatric hospiral where she was detained
i1 a locked ward. This was 1o be Zope's home for five years, Hope grew ap n
Stanley, near Gateshead, in County Durham. “he second of four girls.

—er father worked in a fish and chip shop and her mother was a carer for
Sopes grandmaother When she was seven. teachers hagan to suspec: she aul Brdge launched ‘A Hace for Ve’
had mild learmimg digatnhines and she was moved o a special schoal 4 he Wellrome “oundation

776 she found a class for younyg people with learming disabibnes at a
mainsiream college in Conse:t. 3u: the size of the college was oo much for
her, and she dropped out afier a year

N 2009, aged 27, =ope lefr home and moved into suppored accommodation
in Staniey. She was evicied afier two months A resident hit her and she gave
him a shove 'He went flying. ~e must have not been good on his feer” She
jamed two days in her second home . got sexually abuased by one of the lads
nving there’ she says.

The shird home was happier and dope sevled down 23Ut afier a year or so,
=ope broke down dunng a session with her counsellor ‘< ranspired she was
temng groomead by a member of staff who had sexuaally assaulrad her -wice.
" thoughs he was a friend,” she says.

By now she vras m a fragile condmon. T was a mess. Lashing our, Kickineg oas,
iast really huring people because gveryone hurs me. was congrantly geting
arrested and gomng o cour?

She med 20 take her life. Afrer bemnag admizred o the psychiame hospral o
2072, she was diagnosed with paranowd schizophrema. emononally uns able
parsonalty disorder and post raumanc siress digsorder. = ope was not a
doctle patient ~ was angry with the world, ” was apser. . had no-one to 7urm

“Stories matter. Many stories

0. she saw her mother once a month, bur, she sayy, - didns gee my dad or matter. Stories have been
siaters for nearly five vears - would st look ar four walls, and think. whatam  used to disp055355 and to
Chghang for? There was nothing., just That feehng of bemg sad. valneratle malign, but stories can also
and lonealy” :
ane e be used to empower and to
11 2076, the hospizal psychiamgs planned o rransfer <ope to a high secure humanize. Stories can break
anitn Wales. 3ur one consuliant took her aside. She said. " f you take your the dignity of a people, but
medicanon. do your counselling sessions. you could be our of here. [f you stories can also repair that
carry on. vour'll be sent away” She changed my hife) broken dignity "
1 2007, only a year later, aged 29, Yope was able 1o move o Clark Zouse (Chimamanda Adichie "The danger of
She lives i a one-bedroom flar on the ground floor, surrounded by her a single srory, 720 Global 2609} ’

] > srory, TR0 2al 2009

arivrork and monvanonal quotes: Believe in yourself You can do it iy socal
worker said, "1 find a good, safe place forvou” and honestly,  love 1z hera!
she says.

She hkes drawing, makmge -hings, haking, =ape hag a carer 24 hours a day,
‘Semenmes she'll wake youin the nighs says ¥Michelle her suppor: worker,
Becadse she's having flashbacks and needs reassurance and wre get up and
have a cup of tea  don’s wan- people to go hraugh what went through. sad
with no hope) she gays T thoughs thers was nothaneg o3 thare for me, annl
Ccame here Now, wan® other people To knows “here 18 a place ou- “heres for
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Social Impact

Charitable Partnerships

The Company has supporied and worked with the following charistes since [ PO.

Crisis
Cnsis 18 a national charity for the homeless that works 1o provide vital suppor: so that people
can rebwld therr lives and ate supported out of homelessness for good. Civitas has sponsored
Crisis over the last five years and the two organisations regularly collaborate on the emerging
knowledge required to undertake advanced homelessness schemes. These are vital 10 enable
people who have been at nsk of or expernienced homelessness to rebuild their ives but require
considerable care and suppornt in addition to a safe home in the community.

The Choir with No Name
The Choir with No Mame s an orgarusatton tha: runs choirs for people who have experienced
homelessness and other forms of marginalisation

« 31g Iincrease 1n average weekly attendance since rerirn 1o indoor meeings post COV -9

» New Carchff Chotr launched in November 2021

« Sready progress with esiaklhishment of new community cheirs in Wasford and Coventry.

The House of The House of St. Barnabas
St Barnabas The House of 8t. Barnabas is a social enterprise member's club that helps London's homeless
i people back into work, through 1's Employment Academy.

Zmployment Preparatnon Programime:

« 17 participans successfully graduated from =22 '8 and EPP 19

« Q0% of graduates were successfully matched with a mentor

= ampioyment and Progression

» 33% of working graduartes are earning London Living Wage

« 2%3% of working graduates are in good work and a good home

« 70% of mentor relanonships with graduates last for at least 6 monzhs

= HOSB have supponed a toal of 93 people over the year.

WISH

Wis=1s a membership-hased netwark for women working across every diseiphine of L < housing,
‘ > with a focus on champloning posiive outcomes for womern working in the secror CIvViTas suppon

cortnlnrres o the champiomng of posiive outcomes for women working in the sector.

\\/‘\ ’ S
! J‘ ’i
Y

Trk NETWORK 700 WOMEN
WORK NE h SOC AL HOUS NG,

- Little Sprouts Health and Wellbeing Charity
thtle s _uetle Sprouts Health and Wellbeing Chanty are dedicated 0 improving the heal:h and
sprouts wellbeing of our community through cooking workshops, recipe bags, community food shops,
“check and chaer” programmes and surplus food collection and digiribution. Civitas suppor:s
lizzle sprouts with the opetrauonal costs of the chanty. particularly dunng COV.D-"9. The funds
were used o open a further community shop which uses food as an engagemen: tool 10 help
address physical. social, mental and financial issues,

The Care Workers’ Charity

The Care Workers Chanry (OWC exasts "o help care and suppor workers “hrough ensis using
financial suppor: and suppor centres Crvitas sappor fands raiming of ap "o 20 mensal healh
first anders’ 10 provids one to sach CWCE member company, providing “hem with “he Taming and
0cls o provide betraer mental health supbors to the care workers.

Z the

2 core

2 WOUheTs
= ClLary
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Governance

Frameworks

In addition to the ESG indices, Civitas paiticiﬁatesﬂi the folld{rwing_frai;lgwofks

which don't issue a grading.

IMPACT
MANAGEMENT
PROJECT

Impact Management
Project

The mpact Managemen: Projec

18 A

+ Global forum for banlding
CONSeNEUE on how o measire,
manage and repor: impact

= Yracunoner Community of

over 3000 orgamsanons and

INVELEToN

Jrovideg a set of norms

and a shared and hohsnac

anderstandmg of impact

What? Who? How much?
Contmbunion and sk

Sector Specific

it

L

Jwe core dimeansums of rmpacs:

Operating Principles for

* Impact Management

The Operating
Principles for Impact
Management

The Operating rnopies are g
frarnawvsork for inves o for the
design aned e atueon

of “her TITIR2AC7 T AT e rmen ™

= Glatzal foram for binlding
CONESNEUS N howr o measire,
MaTage atad repor nmpdas

= rovides g o= of norms
snel acshared and hohee
ind=reandineg oy v

e care dimenannes of impy s

) Wb o el

Loanrribver aned Sk

SUSTAINABLE
DEVELOPMENT

GOALS

United Nations
Sustainable
Development Goals

T A UM countnies adopted
the 2030 Agenda for Sugtamable
Development and s 07
Sustamahble Davelopment Goals
{8000
* Ihe 50Gs call for worldwde
aCtan among Jovernments,
Inwsiness and ol society o end
poversy
« Create a life of digmry and
opporumty for all, within the
boundaries of the planes
Mo official process for
upporing the SDGs
COompanias are ancourddged o
selec: whuch goals are aligned
with “helr buginess aovitles
and repor on hows they are
working to achieve them.

=g an early adoprer of the sustamabiiny eporimg s-andard for Soclal Sousmy the Standard} The standard,

0

developed “hrough a collaboration berweern hausineg associanions. banks. lenders and mvestors, has over 200

siggned Uy earty adopters and endorsers.
Ower 790 signed up adoprers and 20 endorsers

.
A

suongg =30 parformancs
Will help rhe sector e

e

“hemes and 18 cotena for 534G reporimag by hodsireg assaciauins
Craaltanve and guantimatve and arsdenafred as core and enhaneed recuirements ©o demonsirase

social and governance (586G performancs

(LR dael, Globial Repoming n

Caprral ¥Marke™ Agsocianon) and

bBlish a credible meanmgfal and conmstent approach 10 reparing ug environmensal,

Ahgned o mmrernanonal framework s and =tandards moladimeg she Lnized Maznons Sustamable Jevelopmen: Goals
wanwve G 3ARS Sastamabnliy Accouniing Standard
LLoan Marke! Assoclanon Cnnciples

Aoard) [OVA Lnaemanienal
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United Nations Sustainable Development
Goals (“UN SDGs”) Alignment

Impact Objectives UN SDGs

Acquire High Erovzdmg ijngh quahty'. energy efficient homes
incorperating adaptations for people with

CGuality-Homes lifeiong care needs

Target properties which address the needs
and improve heaith and welibeing of
vulnerable individuals requiring a high level
of care

Local job crealion during construction

refurbishments and care providers on
responsible employment terms. including
living wage

Offer iocal apprenticeships and contribute to
local community events

Eﬁ Satisfy Social Need Employment via Approved Providers/

Providing Value for Money for public care 1 :m,
R . and housing budgets by enabling vulnerable .
Provide Value for Money individuals to move out to institutional and Mi

residential settings

Buy and convert exisling and newly
Increase supply completed properties from private to social
housing sector in perpetuity

Ensure Approved Providers and Care
Providers have the capabilily and capacity
to deliver high-gquality service and outcomes

D@[I Build Quality Partrerships for residents over the long-term
Grean lease terms to be agreed with the @ 9

counterparties
Adopt sustainability poilcy at governance .eve.

Governance

Counterparty Governance

CIM. the Company's Investment Adviser. has engaged actively with its Approved Provider partners throughout the last
year providing shared advice and learning through:

P— g 0 0
Weekly meetings with Monthly compliance Monthly and quarterly Regular seminars
meetings 1o review

key operational staff monitoring
strategic priorities

and kev performance
indicators

~,

i
This counterparty engagement has ensured that CIM are able to proactively work with its Approved Providers witn

any matters arising to support a continued high level of operational performance. This support bulids on our
long-term relationship with the senior management and helping te build resilience within the organisations.

v

M

Monthly Seminars

2 has conminusd tocandderake monchly governancs TN his
anrd health and safery monconrng across the por-foluw recpalar
ire O3 3

arterly Approved Provider seminars on

1 'The next semnar i3 expecied - be held

LAuprovad Croviders hiave demonstrr=d resihience
and rontinued high levels of compliances with health

osaferr standards




Governance

Indices

CIM's imbleméntatfén of the Board's commitment to contfiﬁaouswimpﬂroxirement in its

approach to ESG integration remains core to the investment strategy. Over the last
year, we have engaged with ESG Rating Agencies such as GRESB (formerly Global

Real Estate Sustainability Benchmark), MSCI (Morgan Stanley Capital International),

Sustainalytics, and EPRA sBPR.

P 4

-

¢‘Q
G RES B

What is it?

GRESB ¢ “he leading
sustamnabihny benchmark
for the global real estare
sector Asgessments take
place annually and are
lded by factors that
mvestors and ~he mdugry
congider to e marenal

13suas 1in the sus-anabhy

performance of real
asger mvestments The
benchmark assessmeans
covers more than 850
Propersy compani=s,
1= fund and
developers. are covered
within GRo53 Pablhc
Tsclogure

How is CSH
rated?

@ (Sa e

o mrnTTemET fron.

RO D

M5Ot

What is it?

MSCI] ESG Ratings
provide msigh-meo =535
rsks and opporaniies

oording o
sy
SHIMILOAIT S5 sk atd

O il

AT = sINECH

el AT T AT

5 relane T

“huose e

nelagr peers

How is CSH
rated?

= 8- WSO =SG ranng of
BB

-« OO has made relevans
pohcies availalile to
RU L and other ranng
agernmes through
hioastineg on The W
website

= Thiz zhoald be reflecad
m furare ranmng
ags

BETHETI

L SUSTAINALYTICS

What is it?

Sustainalytics measure
how well companies
proacuvely manage the
anvirenmental, socal
and governance l1ssues
“har are mosT matenal
w6 their business. 71s
based on a gractred.
abeciive and rransparen:
methodology. The =5G
ratings provide an

GEZeRSINernT O C(}TTW.I}EHIHGS‘

abhry o mitigate
risks and cap-alise on
GppOTInITes.

How is CSH
rated?

N

4TIy v
16.6 (Low Risk) . ¢

Soraanalyees

EPRA

EVROPEAN PUALIC
AEAL ESTATE k5300 a1eN

What is it?
EPRA sBPR Guidelines

provile a consisTens
wiy of meagunng
sastanabniiny

verformanoce Mhe - 2ar

s 1 AT Tglan

] thie

arardards and consgensy

af gustaindn iy reporing
for e rea) esmgne
SOMMPATIES UToA © Folse
corecogTion by oy erty
@ thia have

Al adopTed hie
“amdehner aned

vt hoere sabmi 2 for

Stal

gridelines -,

I T AR S

The sy e bearp s iss
are rsardlecd crrbier oot d

AMbrel e 3T0r e el

How is CSH
rated?

= CSe zabmission o 2772A
for assessmern under
“he quidelines remains
ander consideration.
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Board of Directors

The Directors of the Company who were in office during the period and up to the
date of signing the financial statements were:

Michael Wrobel, Chairman

Michae! has over 40 years” expericnce in the inves:imen:
indusiry as a por:folio manager and ranning insti.ional
businesses and refal. pwsinesses az Fidedy and Gartmore Hoe

sOTVes as a Tusiee direcior of the BAT UK Pension Fund, the Male 60%
Dewisene Bank JK pension scnemes and as 4 rasiee of tne
Cooper Gay (ITo.dings) limied Retiremen: Benefits Scihenie. Female 40%

Michae nas oreviously served as @ Non-Lxecuiive Diracior ol
sevildl BIVeSTMon: r.sis and a n.moer of mauisiry asseciations.
Micnae has an M.A.in Economics from Camboridge Universily

Michac! was appoinied 10 the Board on 24 Oalooer 2615 and has
sarved as Chairman since ng apnoinimein:.

Caroline Gulliver, Director

Caro.une is a charercd accodn:ant wii 1 over 25 years' cxpericnce at bns: & Yo.ng LLE lasery as an
CxeCuTive direstor pefore caving in 2012, During matime 820 speciadsed i 1o asser managomeéin:
sactor and dove oped exiensive cxperience of INvesimMONT irugs $Ne way a n"ember ol variods ecanica
corrmitees of ne Asgociation of Invesarent Companies S1C1s a'80 a non-cxecsnve dirscior and aLdin
comniisee onall tor P Margan G ooa: Ernerging Mar<e:= [necome 7rust oo Internaiiona Bloicoano.ogy
Tristoicand aprdn ULropean Logisiics Income oo

Caro.ane was appointed (o e Board on 24 Ociaber 2019 and nas scrved as Aodi and Managomen:
Engagemen: Conmities Chairman since aer anooiniomen:,
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Peter Baxter, Director

Pater nas over 30 years’ expenence in e invesimen: managemeni indusiry. He s a direcior of Snowboa !
Irroac: Managemen: Lid. a socia. impact invesimaon: organisaton, and a rasiee of Trasttor London. a
caaritao & foandation e is a'zo a non-exaeaive direcior of B.ackRocs Greater Toropean Investmen:
Trast o Previously, ae served ag Cnief Execwiive of O.d Mutia Asse: Managers (UK) Iod. and has
worged for Scnroders and Hi Sam el iy a varnc:y ot invosimean: ro o3 He noids an MBA from London
B.siness Schoo and is an asseciate of 1ae Soctey of Invesaren: Protessionals

Porer was appoinied o e Board on 24 Ocioper 2015 and 18 (ne Semor Independaen: Director

Alastair Moss, Director

ALdS1AI01E a Droocry deve Onmant Wy Wi avaer 20 yearg oxperience and @ Co-Tload of Bea Lsae
a4t Momeary Crvgia., He was a non-cxecorve dircoor of WNoing He, Conesis 7res Hoisa 5o a lonmer
Chairnran of ne Invesaren: Comniten o ity of Londan Coraoranon. i7s Proper:y Invesinten: Board
and 128 Planning and Transporiaton Comntiiec. He is a Trogiee of Marsaa s Charty He nas also pecn
a woard memoer ol 3oho Housing Association and was a men ncr ol e Area Board ol CityWes: Homos
He was a Counclior a: Wesimuns:er C1iy Councl for 12 years, ine.nding ais tenar2 as Coaatrman of (0

P annng & Criy Deve opmen: Commiiiee.

Alasialr was apooined o oqe Board on 24 Qoronor 2015,

Alison Hadden, Director

A ison ntas over 30 yedrs’ experienca in e aousing ind.siry and vas hod a namocr of Execolive
DOSIONS &4 oVeTA TAtor noLsng associadons. ine cding CEG ar Paradigm [Tousing Il these ro cs.sno
aas worked withrany of e sigcenoiders in e industny inctading (ne Rega'aor of Socia. Housing.
S s currenty 4 non-cxecuive direcior and Vies Chair of Yoresaire Housing. a 20 000-nome nossing
adon operaung in e Yordsiure arca. Vica Caair and a nienocr of 1ie Covernance Commiutiec of
2axs and Pains [o.sing and Chalr of Hleviord Regeneranon a tor-profit Housing Associatdon ouerating
mn e Caorwe . araa
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Report of the Directors

The Directors present their Report and the audited consolidated financial statements

for the year ended 31 March 2022.

Principal Activities

The Company s a closed-ended investmen: company
and s a Re.Twhich was incorporared i Sngland and
Wales on 29 Seprember 206 'The Company s the holding
company of a number of subsihanes and 11s Orchinary
shares were admitied 0 rading on the Matn Varket

of the London Stock “xchange on 18 November 2016,

The Company Invesis 1n proper:es or proper:y-holding
SPVs, erther direc:ty ar via a wholly-owned subsgidiary,

n accordance with the Company's investmen: objective
and pohcy.

Business Review

Areview of The business and futire developments g
contamned in the Chairman's $:atemen: and nvesimen:
Adwvisers Report ''he principal risks and unceramnties are
detatled on pages 38 70 14 See note $5.0 for a summary of
-he post halance shee? events.

Results and Dividends
The resul:s for The year are shown on page 3.

The following dividends were paid on the Ordinary
shares dunng he year

Fourth Ouartél;ly 1.$5b per share

__d_i\_ridend i B paid on 1 Juane 2077
First Quarterly ‘:.ﬁ?fip per chare
divigiﬂq _ padon s September 20z

'Second Quarterly 1 A8Y50 per share
dividend paid on '3 Jecember 202
Third Quar-t-e_rliv - ‘,58':';3;) pear share
dividend pmdﬂ L Mareh 2022

Sinee the year end, the Company has declared the
follownng dividend:

B T 3BYSp pef share
~_pawd on 28 June 26272

Fourth Ouarterly_
dividend

No final dividend 1s being recommended on “he Ordinary
shares

Directors

The members of the 3o0ard are listed on page 57/

All Drecrors served thraughouat “he penod under review
The doard consigg salely of non-exacunves Jiracors,

gach of whom 1 mdependean: of -he nvesimen: Adviser
The Company has no execunve directors or employees,
-naceordance with 3oard poley, all Jirec ors will reire
and. temg eligihle will stand for re-elecnnn a: the AGY

Cerformance evaluanon of “he 3oard, s Commitess and
mdvidual Directors s carned ourin accordance with she
procedire $2: ouT on page /0

No Director 1s under a coniract of service with the
Company and no Jtrector or 4y persons connected
with them had a mazenal in:eres: in the ransacuonsg
and arrangemen:s of the Company. Detalls of Direcrors
TEMINEeration are set out in the Direciors’ Remuaneranon
Report on pages /310 76.

The beneficial inzeres:s of the Direciors in the securiues
of the Company are set out1n tThe Directors Remuaneration
Repori on page 76 !

Through ther Leters of Appoimiment “he Company

has provided indemnuzies <o the Directors, 10 the exien:

permizzed by law and the Company's Aricles. 1n respec:

of habihmes which may anse 1in conneciion with claims

relating to their performance or the performance of the

Company whils: they are Direciors. There are no other

cahfying thurd parry indemmines in force, ;

The general powers of *he Jirecrors are contained
within the relevan: UK legislanion and the Company's
Aracles of Assoclanion. The Directors are encitled o
exercise all powers of the Company, subjec: to any
hmitaunonsimpossad by the Aricles of Assomanon or
appheakle legislanon. As 587 our on page 59, the Ariicles
of Association may only be amendead by way of a special
resolunien of shareholdears

Capital Structure

Issue of shares

A7 the AGM held on 22 Seprember 20720, the Jrectors wers
adthonsed 0 13sUe eQUITY SECUIITIES UD 10 an aggragaste
nominal amoun: of £1.244.922 (being approxima=ly 20% of
‘hiessued Ordinary share capralt,

The Company was alse authonsed to disapply
pre-empian nighss n respect of equiry secunies and
0 155ue equlty secaries for cash up 1o an aggregate
nominal amount equal ro F622.46! (bemng approximatealy
04 of thessued Ordinary share caprall,

2urning the yeaar, 565.00C Ordinary shares were sgued
from Treasury under these aurhorisies. These shares weare
1zgded at a pnice of not lass Than the ne: asse” value per
share a: ‘he ame of 1s3ue plus an amouns o cover the

cost. Pollowing these rransactions, the Company held no
sharesg in ;Teagury.

The squiry issuance wag made with a wiew “o balancing
“he premiurm ro NAV and sausfying marke: demand for
addinonal shares 1 The Company.

Az the AGY held on 22 seprember 2027 the Company
soughr approval for a rezolunion to disapply pra-emplion
rights on an addomwonal "0 of the Company's sged
Ordinary share capiial This resolunon falad as votes
repraesenting 27 U of “he tozal voles cast were receved
agams: 1:

“ollovnng *he AGY. “he Company, via s corporate
brokers engaged with g larges shareholders who had
voted againg: this resoluien.



Report of the Directors continued

The 3oard understands tha: these shareholders followecd
PRC's ar*hewr own internal recommendanon 1o vote
agalns® this resolution as when combined wuth the
srandard 0% pre-empion disappheanon resolasion it
would have rezulied in the Company having authority o
issiie up 1o 20% of 1ts own shares pre-amptively.

At the AGM 1n 2022 the 3oard proposes to seek
shareholder approval for a standard 0% pre-emption
disapphcanon resolunon,

The authorry 1o isgie shares will expire at the conclusion
of the forthcommg AGM. Proposals for the renewal of

‘he irectors’ authorny toissue shares will be ser outin
che Notice of AGM for 2022, which will be circulated o
shareholders in due course.

Purchase of own shares

Arthe AGM held on 22 September 202!, tThe direciors
were granted the authorizy o huy back up to 95.306.2560
Ordmary shares. being 14.99% of the Ordinary shares in
isae at The nme of the pasgsing of the resolutien

Duning the year, as the Company's share price fell

below Ne: Asset Value per share, the 3oard instigated

a share buyback programme, under which a oal of
10,025,006 shares have been purchased o reasury as az
3" March 2024

The authorizy to buy back up 10 95,306,960 shares vnll
expira ar the conclusion of the forrhcomung AGM, when
a resolution for g renewal will be propozed. rurther
information will be conzamed in the Nouce of AGV,
which will be circulated o shareholders in due course.

Current share capital

Ag as 3 March 2022, there were 8224181380 Ordnary
shares 1n sue, of which 70025000 shares were held 1n
sreasury The toral vorng nigghts of the Company as at
57 March 2022 was 62,436,380,

Shareholder Rights

Ordinary shares

Lach Ordinary shareholder 1s eniiled to one vole on a
show of hands and. an a poll. -0 one vote for every Ordinary
share held The ngh: to atend and vore at general meelngs
of the Company may be res:ncied where a shareholder has
failed o provide informastion purgian: o a nonce served
under section /935 of the Companies Act 2006. The Ordinary
sharee carry the nghs to recawve drndends declared by

che Company. rovided “he Company has saushed all of vs
habihmes. durng a winding-up of the Company, the holders
of Ordinary shares are enided 1o all of The surphis assets of
the Company.

Transfers of shares

There is no reswriction on the ransfer of the Company's
shares other than rransfers o more than four jom:
ransferees and ransfers of shares which are nos fally
vald up or where the trangferor or any oher person
whom the Company reasonably beheves o be mieresied
it the transferor's shares has been duly served with a
NONCE PUrsuant 1o secuon 78% of the Companies At 2006,

There are no special rights with regard o control
arached to securines: no agreemen:s between holders
of secunrties regarding their sransfer known 10 the
Coempany; and no agreements which the Company

15 party o tha: migh: affec: ug control following a
successful takeover Ind

Articles of Association

The Company's Arricles of Association may only be
amended by a special resolunon at a general meenng of
rhe shareholders.

As at the date of signing g Repor, the wotal voing
righ:s of the Company was 60,756,380
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Management Arrangements

Investment Adviser

The 3oard has appointed the nvestmen: Adviser, Civitas
wvestimeant Managemern: amited, to provide myvestmen:
advice and To asset manage ‘he propeny portfolio

and he associated day-ro-day acuvittes. inclading
management of tenanted properies and marke ng
acuvies. GOV s a specialist investor 1n soclal housing
propery. with a forug on specialist social hoasing and
has exiensive expertence i social housing and real
251078 nVesiment.

The duties of C2 ¥ include <he sourcimg of iInvesimen:
opporainiiies that mee: “he mvesimen: crnena of the
Company, con:rolhing the acqumsiuon of approved
propertas, assel managemen: of all propearies within
rhe porfohio, ongomg montionng of the praperies and
tenamts. mairamng comyphancs with all relevan: rales
and regulatons, and providing markeang and mvestor
relanons services o the Company.

Deralls of the fees payable o the nvesiment Adviser are
desenbed i noe 8.0 of the financial stazements. The
basis for the calculanon of the investmen: Adwvisers fees
1s based upon “he CRE NAV.

HN]

The agreemen: wrrth C Mg terminable on not less than -
monthe notice ty erther parsy. gach nollee not 1o expire
earlier than 30 vay 2091

The performance of the nvesimen: Adviser has

reen reviewed on an ongoing baxig ~hroughout the
peniod by the 3oard at e quarierly mee ngs. A formal
annaal evalaaton s also camed out by the Audit and
anagemen: sngagement Comimlsee.

2207 SEHNOODDY GNV Loy
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Report of the Directors continued

The 3oard considers a number of faciors including
mvesimen: performance, the gquality and quantry of
nvesimen: opportanities presented, the skills and
expeaenence of key s:aff and the capability and resources
of the ITnvesimen: Adwiser to deliver sansfaciory
performance for the Company. The Board 15 sausfied with
the performance of the ‘'nvesiment Adviser and considers
s conunued appoimntment o be in the bes: interests of
the Company and 125 shareholders,

AlIFM

G186 Capral Lrmited (GO or the "AFM7) has been
appoinred as the Company's ALFM with effect from

24 Muagast 207/ The ATM currently recerwves a monthly
fee of 27 basis points of the 1otal Company NAY for
178 services and the agreemen: 1s terminable on three
months noyce by echer party.

Depositary

‘ndos Timanaal Limited was appointed ag the Company’s
Deposiary with effect from ! June 2078, The Jdepositary
provides cash monisorng, safekesping and asset
verificanon and oversight funcions as prescrilied by the
Alermanve nvesiment “und Managers Jirective, The
Deposiary recevas an annuaal fee of £59 000, nier of VAT,
plas 0.000% of the firgt £350 mulion of any new equity
capiral raised per annum and 0.003% of farher egqay
rased per annum, subject o a maxunam fee of £150,000
per annum. The agreement 1s terminable an s1x months
notce by erther party

v

Administrator

The Company has appormnred ank Alrernanve “und
Admimstrators Jamited (ank™ as the Administrator

of the Company and s subaidianes, wih effec: from

28 Jebraary 2078, fo undertake “he accouniancy and other
admimisiraive dunes of the Company Link 1s a speciahis:
admimustraor for mves:ment funds, providing suppor:
fanctions and expernise talored for *his indusiry.

The Administrator recewves a figed base fee for the
provision of 17g gervices to the Company as well ag an
enttzlermnent wo additional vanable fees for dunies relating
o corporate acuvines. The agreament 13 lerminable on a:
leas: six monthg nouce by erther pary.

The duues of the Admintgtrateor include “he maintenance
of all Company and subsidiary hooks and records,
excluding those mamntamed by “he nvesimen: Adviser,
muonionng comphance with apphcable relevan: rales
and regulanions and other admuusranve dunes as
requred

Company Secretary

sk Company Vaters Limted was appoimnted as the
Company & ary <o the Company with effec: from

28 Warch 2078, The Secretary recewves a fixed fre for the
provision of s sernces to “he Comparny. The agresmen:
was far an inicidl penad of one year and shereafer
adromancally renaws for successive panods of 22 moriths,
anlass terminated by erther party on at least six mon-he’
THTIE.

Review of Service Providers

The performarnce of the service providers is reviewed

on an ongoing basis throughou: the penod by the

Auachr and Managemen: ingagemen: Commitiee and
formally once a year The Commizzee considers a number
of fac:ors including performance of dunes, the skills

and expenence of key staff, and the capabilty and
resources of the service provider o deliver sansfactory
performance for the Company. The 3oard is satisfied with
‘he performance of the service providers appointed by
the Company and considers their continued appointmen:
w0 ke n the bestinterestz of the Company and 1:s
shareholders.

Substantial Shareholdings

Ar 3" Varch 2022, the Company had been informed of
“he following discliosahle interes:s in the share capral of
~he Company:

Number ol Petocitage of

Ordwary  Total Vonng
o . . shates ,7‘_““[“5
_nvesec Weali & investmen: imred 62235675 KN
Skandinaviska Snskilda 3ariken A3 564850351 g a2
standard _ife Aberdeen plc 303,492,544 498
Vassachuyszets Tinancial 30,300,744 49y
Services Company
3lackack nc 272994786 348

Continuation Vote

1 accordance with its Arcles, the 3oard will propose an
ordimary regolution tha: the Company shouald conninue in
s curren: form 1o shareholders at the AGY 0 be held on
5 September 2022, and at the AGMV held every five years
“hereafier f the resolation 18 nos passed, the Dhrectors are
required To formulate proposals o be pus 1o shareholders
within s1x morths of such resoluton being defeazed for
“he volun:ary lipaidaion. aniisaion. reorganisaion or

reconstacion of she Company.

Listing Rule 9.8.4

The hisung rale 9.8.4 oaihnes a senes of raquiremenss for
hsred companies ;o disclose cerain 1mems, The Direcors
confirm that there are no disclosures required n relason
oo asTng ule 9844




Report of the Directors continued

Financial Instruments

The Company utilises financial 1nstnImerts e
operanons. The financial instruments of the Company a:
3. March 2042 compnsed rade receivables and payables,
other debrors. cash and cash equivalents, non-currens:
borrowings, curren. Lorrowings and denvanves.

Other than 1:8 fixed interes: rate deb: facihines, 17 1s the
Jrectors opinuon that the carmying value of all financial
nstruments on the Consohidated Statement of Sinancial
Posmion s equal to therr farr valiue

“or a more detatled analysis of the Company's financial
rnsk managemens: please refer ‘0 note 2.0 of the financal
SIRTEMEer:s.

Greenhouse Gas Emissions

The 3oard has considered <he requiremen:s o disclose
rhe annual guaniy of emissions in tonneg of carbon
dioxide equivalen: for activines for which he Company
15 responsible. The doard beiieves tha: the Caompany

has, from a formal reporang perspective, no reporable
emissions as this reporung falls under the lesseey’
responsibility as par: of the sarms of their fully repamnng
and msunng leaseas; emussions produced from erther

the reqisterad office of the Company or from the offices
of other service providers are deemed o fall under the
responstbiliy of other parnes; and the Company has not
leased or owned any vehicles which fall inside the scope
of the G=G Zrotocol Corporate Standard. n relation o
the Streamhined tnergy and Carbon Reporing (S=CR.
implemented by The Companies {rec:ors 2eport and
Limired Lialalhey Parmerships (snergy and Carbon Repor?)
Regulanons 2078, for the year ended §7 March 2022 the
Group 1¢ considered “o be a low energy user

Regardless of the obligations of other parues, the
Company takes the wsue of enironmen-al enhancemen:
and ermgsions senously as par: of 11s overall 283G strategy
and 1z evaluaning “he porfolio, workmg with housing
managers, ;o consider where 17 can brmg abou: further
enhancaments and improvamen:s

Turther dealls can be found in the Snvironmental, Social
and Governance repor: on pages 1s to 55,

Charitable Donations

‘naddiiion o g direc mvestments, the Company plays
a broader part wizhin “he commauniiies in which 1z
works, Whils® recogrnising the praciical hmitatons that
all financial investors face, Covizas suppors voluntary
organisations that are active within the hroader housing
and homelessness environmen: Cvizas also intends. as
par: of 178 broader financial and operanonal reporang. -o
provide a commensary on the posinive social change
and impact thar altg from thea invesunents thas have
been made

The following charsable donationg were agreed durnng
the year:

Charuy Donation

£15.000
£5.000
£6,000
26,000

Chorr Wl?h_-.‘JO \lnr%m
Little Sproats
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Independent Auditors

n the cage aof cach Drector in office a0 the date the
Repor: of the Dwreciorg is approved:

e 5o far as the Jirector 1s aware, there 1g no relevarn:
gudit mformation of which the Group and Companys
audror s unaware; and

e hey have taken all the sieps tha: ‘hey cughs o have
raken as a Drectorin order o make themselves aware
of any refevarn: audir informanon and 1o estabhish that
the Group and Company's audiiors are aware of that
mformaion.

“ricewaterhouseCoopears .7 hag expressed s
wWillngness 1o conimue 1o act as audror of the Company
and a resoluuoen for 1g re-appoiniment will be proposed
a1 the 2022 Annual General Veelng

Corporate Governance

The Corporaze Governance s:aemen:, the Iepor: of the
Audrr and Managemen: Engagement Comrmirzes and the
DMreciors Remuaneranion epor: form pars of the Reporn of
“he Jirectors.

Approval
The Repor of the Mreciors has been approved by the
Joard

3v order of the 3nard

Link Company Matters Limited

Company Secreary

29 Fune 2022
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Report of the Audit and Management

Engagement Committee

Introduction

The Audir and Managemen® Rngagement Commitee {he
‘Commutee”) oversees the financial reporing process for
the Company, with consideration of the internal conrols
and nsk managemen: of the Company, and oversight of
the Company's comphance with accounting standards
and regulatory requirements. - also overgees the
performance of the Investmen: Adwser and the Company’s
adminisiranve and company secrearial suppor.

Composition and role of the Audit and

Management Engagement Committee

The Commitiee s chaired by Caroline Gulhver and
compnses all the Directors, The Commiee operates within
wnren terms of reference which are available on the
Company's websie as determuned by ~he Board.

The prinaipal funcuons of the Cornmisee are 10!

s oversee the financal reporing process for the
Company and monizor the integniy of the financial
starements of the Company and ~he Group, including
thetr compliancs with accounung sandards and
regulatory requiremen's;

» 10 adwvige the 3oard. where requested. on whether
che Annual £eport and financial statemenss, taken as
a whole are fair,. balanced and understandable and
provide the mformasion necessary for shareholders
+0 assess the Company's position and performance,
busimess model and sirateqgy,

e T1eview and montor the mtamal hinancial control and
nsk managemen* systems of the Company;

e monror and review annially whether an imternal
aud; funcionas requiredd;

» review the nvesimen: Advisers whistdeblowing
arrangements.

s approve the appoIniment re-aRoINIMean: or
removal of the exiernal auditor, and approve ther
remuneranon and terms of engagemens;

+ manage the relanionship berween the Company
and ‘he exzernal audizor, including reviewing theair

the audlr process:

e develop and implemen: a pohaoy on the engagemens
of the external audizor 10 supply non-audlr services:
and

e review and monlor the performance of. and
con-ractaal arrangemensts with, the nvesirnen:
Adviger the A7 and other service providers,

sig wthin the Commisee’s terms of reference for s
members o seek ndependen: professional advis
Company g expense, as raqalired in the furherance of v's
dules,

Meetings

The Committee meetg twice a year. on both oceasions,

part of the meeting 15 held with the external audizor

without the nvesimen: Adwviser present. The Commites

me: twice in the financial year and the meeiings were
stended by each mamber as se out on page 69,

Performance Evaluation

The process for the evaluation of the performance of the
Committee is disclosed on page 70.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Company has an ongoing process foridennafying.
avaluanng and managing ‘he prnincipal and emerging nisks
faced by the Group “urther dezails can be found on pages
Y0 anad 7

The princpal nsks and unceramues idennfied from the nsk
regisier and a description of the Group's nisk managemean:
procedures can be found on pages 58 10 42

Activities during the year

The Committes considered the annual repor. intenm
repors, any other formal financial performance
announcements and any other maters as specified
under the Commitee’s terms of reference and reporzed o
the Board on how 11 discharged 11s responsibihities.

The Commities discussed and considered “he external
audit performance, objectivity and independence, the
external auditor re-appoinmen:. accouning pohcias and
Alzernanve Performance Measutes, sigruficant accounund
iudgemernrs and estimates, the need for an trernal audr:
fancuon and The ngk register

The Commisiee concluded ~hat aninternal audne
fancion would provide mirumal addisional comfort at
conslderable exira cost 10 the Company. The exisiung
system of momronng and reporang by shird paries
rernains appropriate and adequaate

Junng che year, the Commries afso conducied a
comprehensive review of the key agreements with

175 sarvice providers. and a detated review of the
performance. composiion, personnel, processes and
imrernal consrol systems of the A7 a review of all of
she Group's other corporate adwisers and key service
providers. The discussion included an assessmen? of
performance and surabiliny of the services provided
i the conrext of the fegs paid o each provider. and a
review of “he terminanon pernod of each agresment.

The Commiiee consuderad tha terms of the nvesiment
Vanagemsant Agresment, 1o ensure 1 continiges "o reflect
~he commercial arrangemen:s agreed berween the
Company and the nvesimen: Advizer and was satisfied
“hiar -hig was the case.



Report of the Audit and Management
Engagement Committee continued

Letter from the Financial Reporting Council

Junng the yvear. the Company recetved a lester from

she Vinanecal Reporting Counctl {7207 requesung
infarmauon following a hmited scope review of

‘he Company's 2027 Annual Report and Accounss in
accordance with Par 2 of “he MRC Corporate Repof ing
Review Operanng Procedures The letier pnmarily
focused on the accountnng reatmen: of lease incentives,
related pary disclosures and (738 8 ‘Operating Segmern:s.

The Company provided the information and explananons
0 the FRC as reguesied o 118 gausfacnon. The MC
subsequently advised that 175 review had been brough:
0 a sansfactory conclusion

The Group has made addinional enhancemenss <o the
disclosures in thus annual repor: on the matters raised by
the 72C. The Company had also pubhshed a

Market Update on 7 Qc¢rober 2020 addressing these, and
other, pom:s

The TRC's review was based on the 207 Antvaal Reporn
and does not benefll: from detailled knowledge of

our business. or an dnderstanding of the underlying
ransacnons entered o s correspondence provides
no asgarance that the report and accounsts are correc:
In all matenal respec:s; the "RCs role 18 not w0 venfy the
informanon provided but to consider comphance with
reporing requremaenis.

The I'RC accep:s no habihiy for rehance on 13 leters by
the Compartry or any *hird pary, including bu® nos Irmitedd
o mvegiors and shareholders.

Significant Issues Considered by the

Committee

The Commtitiee considerad the key accountng esurnaes
and udgemen:s underlying the preparasion of the
financial statemenss focusing specifically on:

Significant Financial Reporting Issue — Valuation of
Investment Property

The valuatnon of the propery poriicho is cracial 1o The
statement of financial posmon and repored results

Afrer discussion with the nvestmen: Adviser, the
Commitiee has deermined that “he key nigks of
misstaremens: of the Company financial siatemenss relae
s the valuaion of invesimen: property.

The valaanons of the invesiment properies at the aend of
‘he finanomal penod were independently parformed by
Jones Lang Lalalle {" ), whom the Commitiee considers
“0 have sufflcien: experige. experience and local and
nattonal knowledge of social housing and suppoered
housing o anderake the valuanons

J.. also conducts minial valuations of properties on
avginsiion. The Jrectors have ensared that )., has
apprapniate procedures in place 10 ensure ‘here are no
independence conflicts with the services provided o
he Company

The nvesiment Adwviser confirmed 1o the Commiiee thar
che method of valuation has been apphed consisiently
during the year. I* further confirmed Thar, dunng the
courge of the penod. ].., wag regularly challenged by
the nvesimen: Adviger on the assumpions dged in the
valuanon of the Cumpany's Investmen: properies 1o
ens.re robus: and appropnate methods were beihg
apphed. The nvesimant Adviser discusses thase areas of
challenge with the Commitee.

The Auditor met separately with |0 and reported back
t0 the Commitzee on 1is challenge of *he valuatons

and assumprions The Auditor was satigfied that the
valuatons had been prepared uging apuropnate
me:heds and assumptions, and had been prepared n
accordance with R.CS Valuanon - Profesgional S:andards

Az explamed in note ‘5.0 o the financial statements,

~he approach adopied by the Company 18 1o recogruse
mvestment propertss at fair value, with the fair value of
‘he prapery being based onvaluanons performed by ).
The revaluanon of the mvesimen: properiaes gave Nise 2o
a revaluation gawmn of £22.5 mithon n the period.

Contintation Resolution

The Company's aricles of associanion incliude a
requiremen: for the 3oard 1o propose an ordinary
resclution ar the annual general meeung followimg the
fif-th anmiversary from the inmal pubhc offenng of the
Company for the Company *o conirniie in 138 curren: form
(the Conninuanoen Resolunond This s the first connnuation
vole since 120,

The Commiree has considered the effect the
Conunuanon esolunon waoulld have and has agreed

thar 1115 a sigrufican: accouning 1gsue for the Company.
grven s mpact on “he preparanion of the conzohdated
financial statements on a going concern basis f the
Connmmuanon esolanon 1s passed, the Company will
comnmue 115 business as presently consanted and
propose the same resoluton at every fifth annual general
meennd thereafrer. "f the Conanuatnon Resolution 1s not
passed, The Jireciors will be required. wizhin six months
afrer the dae of this annual general meanng o formulaze
proposals for consideranon by the shareholders for the
volun:ary liqandaton, uniiisation, reorganisanion, or
recongtracaon of the Company.

Afrer making appropnate enguines of the Company's
brokers and .nvesiment Adviger, pursaans o their
recert discussions with a number of the Company's
shareholders. the Commiee 15 of the view “ha:

the Continuanon Resolauon will be passed a1 the
furthcommyg annual general meenng.

The Comminee g, therafore, of the opimion that the
going concern 2asts adopred in -he preparation of “he
consohdated fiinanaial stazements 1§ appropnae.

Surcherinformanoen can be found in note 22 of the
Consolidated Tinancial Statemen:s,
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Report of the Audit and Management

Engagement Committee continued

Maintenance of REIT status.

There are a mumber of condinons thar a company {or
principal company of a group RETY needs 1o sasisfy in
order o become a R5.T and remain within the regime.
The L REIT regume affords the Groun a beneficial tax
reatment for income and capital gans, provided certain
crireria are meti. There 1 a nisk that these RZIT condizions
may not be me: and additichal tax becomes payable by
‘he Company. The Board regularly reviews the RF.T tests
“har are performed by the Adminisirator

The 3ocard s sanshed that the Company has mamtained
113 RETT statas throughous the vear.

Misstatements

The ‘nvestmen: Adwiser confirmed 0 the Commizree that it
was no: aware of any material or immatenal misstatemens
made inennonally 1o achieve a parncalar preseniation.

Conclusion in respect of the Annual

Report and Financial Statements

=aving reviewed ‘he presentations and repor:s from the
nvestment Adviser, the Commitee 1s sansfied thazthe
financial statemean:s appropriately address the crincal
radgements and key egtimases, both in respeo: of the
amoinis reporied and the disclosures.

The Commitiee 12 alao sanished that the significan:
assumpuons used for deterrmining the value of assets
and labilines have been appropriaely scrnanised and
challenged and are sufhicientdy robust Accordmgly the
Commitiee has concluded tha” the Annual Report and
finandaial statemenss, taken as 4 whole are fair, balanced
and understandable and has recommended “hewr
approval 1o the 3oard on thar basis.

Auditor Appointment and Tenure

As aresul: of the Us implemenzatiion of the =L
mandatory audy’ irm rotation req.iremen’s, the
Company is requred 1o ensare that the external audnors
cConract 1s pat ot 10 tender at least every [0 years,

w1:h the proviso that no single firm may serve as the
Company’s external audizor for a penod exceeding

2 years M wras firgs appointed as the Company's
andror with effec: from Varch 2007 15 wmeended that the
external aadr will be put oul o ender no later “han for
the financial year commenacing - Aprl 28756, which s

-0 years afier the Company'simunal hsnng.

Saira Choudhry 1s the audic parmner aliocated 1o the
Company by 2w The audis of the financial s1azements

for -he year ended & “Yarch 2022 are her firs: as senior
sTatdtory audninoer of the Company

Assessment of the Effectiveness
of the External Audit Process and
Auditor Independetice

As par: of 115 annual review of the effeciiveness of

“he exiernal audy process, the Commiree obtained
assurance on the quahy of the external audu from us
own evaluation, the audi; feedback documentation and
from correspondence and digcussions with the audiz
parmner. .nvestmen: Adviser and the Administrator. The
Auditor demonstrated a good understanding of the
Group. and had identified and focused on the areas

of greates: financial reporiung nsk. s reporting o the
CommuiTres was clear, open and thorough, The Commitiee
has assessed the professional scepicism and challenge
of managemen: judgemen: by the Auditor and 1s saushed
“hat the Adior has demonzirated “hese The Commities
considered the advice included 1n “he JRC Praciuce Ad
on Audit Qualty when making thig judgemens,

The "RC's Audit Quahty nspecions eport on the auds

carned ot by PricewarerhouselCoopers L2 was also

considered by the Commizee. On the basis of these .
factors and assessments. the Commies has concluded

“har ~he extermal audt process has been effecave, '

The Commitiee assessed the external auditors
independence, quahficanons. relevan: experience and
affectiveness of audi procediuras. 'n advance of each
audin the Commtizee ob-aing confirmanon from “he
external aurdizor tha remains independent and that “he
level of non-audit fees are no: an independence threar



Report of the Audit and Management
Engagement Committee continued

Non-audit Services

The Commtiree has purt o place a policy for the
provision of non-audis services 10 the Company Ly the
auduor The general imantiion of the Commites s to
avold the provision of non-audit servires by the audizor,
other than the review of the half-yearly repor:, as These
have the potenual 0 compromise the independence of
-he audior The Commities acknowleddges thatwn cariam
situanons it may he appropriate for the exiernal auditor
o0 provide such services 1o the Company for a vanety of
reasons includmng cos: effeciiveness, depth of knowledge
and “he ongowng relanonship between ~he 3oard and
-he external audizor. All non-audi: fees are approved by
the Commizee in advance. Where non-audit fee levels
are considered significan:. the Committea considers the
appropniateness of 'he independence safeguards pusin
place by the auditor,

The t¢tal fees paid 1o PnicewarerhouseCoopers .7
dunng -he penod, ne: of VAT, rotalled £402.0080

(2027 367000 of which F44,000 2027 £R7.000) was
concerming non-audit services for the review of the half
vearly report and F62,000 (Frul) for non-audit services
concerning a plannead 3ond ssue which was posiponed.
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The audior was selecied for “he non-audl services
relating to -he postponad 3ond ‘sgue following careful
consideranon by the Commizee. The Commitee balieved
thas the abihty for the audiror 2o audic the Company's
financial gratements Independently would not ke
impacted by This work. 018 srandard pracuce for a
Company's external audior o undersake ‘his task.

Hoe 900 the congohdated financial ssatemeants
details all services provided and o7al fees pad o
“ncewaterhouseCoopers L2 for the financial year
ended 37 Warch 2022 The Commitiee considers
“ricewaternoaseCoopers L2 to be inmdependen: of The
Company.

Re-appointment of the Auditor

Taking intwo account the performance and effecuveness of
che Audizor and the confirmeation of their independence,
the Commires has recommended o the Board that a
resolution to re-appoinT ’ricewarerhouseCoopers .27 as
*he Company's audizor be put 2o the shareholders at the
forthcoming AGYV

Caroline Gulliver

Charman. Audit and “anagemen: Angagemen:
Commitee

29 ame 2077

DIV SYLIALD

PEOE SLNOODY NV L 0dd8




66

Report of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee

Introduction

The Mominanon and Remuneranen Commities presants the
rRepor: for the year ended 37 March 2022,

Composition and role of the Nomination

and Remuneration Committee

The Nominaton and Remuneranorn Commities comprises
Patar 3axter, as Chatrman, and the entire 3vard, all of
whaom are Non-sxecutive Directors. Terms of Reference
have been established by the 3uard and are availalile an
the Company's website.

The Nominaion and Remuneraiion Comritiee’s principal
dutes are as follows:

Nomination

e 0 review the struchdre, s1ze and composition of the
Board, ncluding s skills, knowledge, expenence and
diversity, mcluding gender and ethnicity:

s 10 consider the succession planming of irectors,
raking 1nwo account the challenges and opportuniues
facing the Company and the skills and experuse
needed on the 3aard i the fiture:

¢ 10 ke responsible fordennafying and nominaiing
candidates o fill Board vacanoies ag and when
“hey anse;

* o review anmially the time requured from
Non-zxeeauve Jirectors;

e o review the resulis of the 3card performance
evaluanon as 1o relates 10 3oard composion and
suCeession platting:

e o review annually poential conflicss of interes:s of
direciors as discloged o the Company and develop
approprnate processes for managing such conflics: and

« o receive and consider updates from the nvesimen:
Adwvisor on 178 Own SCCession p]anmng SCinieEs

Remuneration

e o deermine and agree with the Board, a formal
and “ransparent procedure for deveioping policy
on the remuneranon of the Company's Chair, Audi:
and Managemen: ~ngagemen: Comimitee chair
and Mon-zxecative Jirectors:

e S0 takemio accounst all factors when considenng
‘he Remuneranion olicy which 17 deems neceszary,
inclading relevan: legal and regulazory requiremenss,
‘he provisions and recommendarnions of the &2.¢ Code
of Comorate Governance and associazed guidance.

e 0 review the ongoing appropriazenass and relevance
of the Remuneranon 2ohcy;

¢ o oblain rehable up-to-date informanon abous
remuneration i aher companies of comparahle
scale and complexity and marke: pracice generally,

e 0 beresponsible for establishing ~he selection
crerna cing. appomnnang and seming “he terms
of reference for any remunerasion congalan:s who
adwvige "he Commitee; and

e "o ensure that contractuaal ferms on rerminasion, and
any payments made, are fair :0 the individaal, and the
Company, tha: farlure s not rewarded and tha: the
duty to miugate loss s fully recognised,

Activities during the year

The Commites mee:s a7 leas: once per year. Junng ‘he
vear, the Committee has:

e considered the 3oard's remuneration in view of the
responsibihnies and ume commitments for overseelng
the affairs of the Company. in hight of the Arucles of
Asgsociation as well as the level of dividend paid to
shareholders during the year;

s reviewed the Director’s skill mamx,

e considered the 3oard’s carren: succession plan. and
agreed that 1t would be pruden: for the Board o
phase the rectuiimen: of addimonal hreclors going
forward ‘o allow progressive rotation of directors and
factrase effective succession planning:

e appowned a 3ub-Committee 1o ke responsible for
conducnng the recrulimens process 1o wdennify a new
candidaie for appointmen: o he Roard;

e engaged a recriiimernt agency o assist with the
gsearch for a candidaze:

e reviewed the resulis of the 3oard's 2022 performance
evaluanon process, the detalls of which can be found
on page 70, and

e sausfied 1zself thas each Non-=xecunve Jrecior
serving at the end of the year remains independent
and conminues o have aufiicient iime o discharge
cherr respanstbilizies "o the Company.

The Company 1s supporave of the new “isung 2ules
being ssued by the Ninancial CondueT Authony

on diversizy and inclision on company boards The
Commiee s considenng a range of candidates from
diverse backgrounds. The Company's diversity policy can
he found on page 69

The Mirecrors fees were considered by the Commiiee
m Tebraary 2022, Ylease see the Directors Remuneration
enOT an pages 75 10 76 for dewails on ditector
TeTNINErancn.

Peter Baxter

Charrman. Momination and Remuneratiion Commitiee

28 June .



Corporate Governance Statement

Background

The "CA Listing Rules and Disclosure Guidance and
Irangparency Riles require listed companies ‘o disclose
how they have applied the prnnciples and compiied

with the prowisions of the corporare governance code
roowluch he issuer 1z subjec: The provisions of the LK
Corporaze Governance Code (UK Code”), asi1ssued by the
SRCn July 2078, are applicakle 10 the year under review
and can be viewed ar www . frcorguk.

The Board has considered the principles and
recommendatons of the AIC Code of Corporate
Governance (AC Code’) asissued by the A'Cin “ebraary
20°9. The AIC Code addresses all the principles set out1in
“he UK Code as well as serning ot addmonal principles
and recommendanons on ssues thas are of specific
relevance o the Company as an Invesiment company.
The 'RC hag confirmed :ha: A'C member companies
who report agains: the AlC Code will be mesnng thaw
obligationg in relation 2o the UK Code and the assocated
drzclosure requiremencs of the "CA. The AC Code can ke
viewad ar www.healc.co.uk.

The 3oard considers that reporung againg: the principles
and recommendanons of the A.C Code provides
shareholders wath full detalls abous the Company's
corporate govermnance compliance.

Statement of Compliance

sxeepr as sat ot below, the Company has comphed
with the provisions of the A.C Code ~hroughous the yvear
ended 37 Varch 2022,

Provision 23: Qirectors are no’ appomed for a speaified
rerm, as all irectors are non-exective and the 3oard
elteves that a Drector s performance and their
coninued corntnbusion to the runming of the Company
15 of greater importance and relevance o Shareholders
than the length of ame for which they have served as a
Owrector of the Company. Rach Jirecior 18 subject w0 the
election and re-electnion provigions se: out in the Arcles
which prowide that a Drector appoinzed danng the year
18 required o retire and seek election by Shargholders
at the next Annuail General ¥eenng following thair
appoinimen:. Thereafier the Direcors intend o offer
themselves for re-election annually and will aim o not be
on The 3oard for more “han nine vears

The LK Code includes provisions relanng 1o

e che role of the chief execunve, and

e eYecive direcrorg retnuneration.

The 3Ivard considers that ihese Provisions are not relevan:

1o the posiiion of the Company, bemng an externally
managad iInves mernt company .n paricalar all of the
Company's day-o-day management and adminisiranve
funchons are outsourced to rhird partes. As a resuls,

*he Company has no execiliive Jireciors, employees

or intemal operations. The Company has therefore no:
repored further in respect of these provisions,

The Board

L'nder the leadershup of the Chairman, the 3oard

ig responsible for the effective stewardship of the
Company's affairs, including corporate sirategy,
Curporate governance, nsk assessment and overall
mvestmen: policy. The Qirectors have overall
responsimhy for “he revievr of mvesimens: acuviy and
performance, and the supervision of the ‘nvesimen:
Adwviser which is responsible for the dav-to-day asse:
managemen: of the Company's porifolic.

‘The 3oard consists of five non-execunive Mrecrors, 2
seeks 0 ensure thar it has an appropriae balance of
skills and expenence, and considers “hat collecnively i
has subsianual recent and relevan: expertence of puklic
company management, the LK real estate sector social
housing and inves'men: companies. All the Directors are
mdependean: of the nvesimen: Adwiser and the A .

The 3card has adopied a schedule of marers reserved
for decision by the Board. including inter alia,
dererrmuning the Company's inves:men: objecuve and
pohicy. and gearning and dividend pohcies. This scheduule
of martters regerved for the 3oard is available on *he
Company's websie

The Direcrors ensure that ngks are effeciively managed
“hrough robust policies and procedures, suppored by
“he nght values and culvare. The 3oard's pnimary focas
15 the gustainable long-term success of the Group o
delver value for shareholders, raking inzo accoun: other
stakeholders.

The 3onard 1s respunsikle for investmen: decisions, other
‘han to ~he exten: delegated o the A7 and/or the
nvesiment Adviger, and the appolrnimen:, supervision
and monronng of tha Company’s service providers,
mnchidmeg amongsT? others, the A9 and the investmen:
Adviser. The 3oard 1s responsible for the mrtenm and
annual financal statements of the Company and. in
conancnon wirth the ATFV, aleo approves the panodic
calculanion of The Net Asser Valus
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Corporate Governance Statement continued

The Chairman, Vichael Wrobel was independent of

he nvestmen: Advizer a%the e of his appom:ment
and s deemed by his fellow Directors 1o connnue w be
Independen: in character and judgemen: and free of
any conflicting relationships. —e leads the Beard and

15 responsilie for 1ms overall effecuveness in direcing
the Company. ‘n haison with “he Company Secretary. ha
ansures that the hreciors recelve acourate, imely and
clear informaton. Mr Wrobel considers himself 10 have
sufficient time 10 commus o the Group's affairs. Ee has ne
sigrificant commiiments other than those disclosed in
hig biagraphy on page 57. The rale and responsibilities of
*he Chairman are clearly defined and se: ouiin wnang. a
copy of which 1s available on the Company's websize.

Pater 3axter ts the Semor ndependsn: Direciar of

the Company. Fe provides a sounding beard for

‘he Chatrman and serves az an wrermediary for the
other Directors and shareholders also provides a
channel for any shareholder concerns regarding the
Chairman and takes the lead in the annual evaluauon
of the Chairman by the other Directors. The role and
responsibihues of the Semor independent Jirecior are
clearly defined and se ounin wriiing, a copy of which 1z
avallable on the Company s wehsie

The 3nard has no ser policy for thelengh of tenure of
Drrectors although 1t keeps i mind the recommendanons
of the A'C Code dunng succession planmng 21s the
3oard's pelicy for all Jirectors wo stand for re-elechion
annually. Recommendanions for eleciion/re-elecion of
Directorsz are made on an o ndwnidaal bass following
TIgorous review, Jireciors are appointed under Tetzers of
appomiment, coples of which are avallable for inspecnon
ar *he requsrered office of “he Company and a- the AGV,

Board Operation and Culture

The 3oard mee:s formally at least quarterly. but also
meet on an ad hoo basie for the purpose of considering
potenual ransacions and assoclated due diligence.
The doard will mee: o consider and, 1if appropnate,
approve the acquisiaon of properies recommended

by the mvesimen: Advizer. The nvesimen: Adviser
prepares an nves mens: 2roposal Paper (02270 respecs
of the proposed acquisiiions which includes detalls

of he rransacion and due dihgence rapors Lpon
revievs of the 22 the 3oard contemplates the siriciure
of “he rangacuon, any rigks aached o the propossd
‘ransacnon and how these would be mingated/managed,
and “he tmpac: of “he ransaciaon on the value of the
Group's property paortfolio, followitg advice from

“he valaers.

“or the purpose of momrornng ~he porfolio. the 3oard
recelves penodic repore from the A7/ and the
nvesimen: Adviser, detailing the performance of the
Company The 3oard delegates ceram respansiinlines
and funciions 1o the Audiz and Yanagemen: “ngagemern’
Commuee which has wrnizen serms of reference.

To asgist the Board 1in the day-ro-day operations of the
Company, arrangements have been putin place 1o
delegare authority for performing cenain operatons 0
“he AV the ‘nvesiment Adviser and other third-party
sarvice providers, such as the Admims:razor and the
Company Secretary

The Chalrman demonstrates objective judgement,
promo:es a culure of openness and debate, and
facilizates effecnive contribuions by all hrectors. The
directors are required o act with integrity. lead by
axample and promote thus culture writhin the Company.

The 3oard seeks to ensure the alignment of the
Company's purpose, values and strategy with the culture
of openness, debate and integrry through ongomg
dialogue, and engagement with the Invesimen: Adviser
and the Company’'s other service providers. The 3oard
and the ‘nvestmen: Adviser opera’e 1 a supporive,
co-operative and open environment

The 3oard schedules yearly meenngs with the boeard of
the .nvestman: Adwiger, one of the pumposes of which 1=
o receve an insighs mto the culare of the nvesiment
Adviser.

The culire of the 3oard 15 considerad as part of

‘he annual performance evaluanon process which

15 underiaken by each Jirector. The culture of the
Company's service providers 1g also consderad by the
Audi and Yanagemen: tngagement Comimitea durnng
the annaal review of rtheir performance and while
considernng Their coninundg appoinmsan:

The Company mainzams Dwrectors and Officers halnliy
ingurance on behalf of the Mirecrors at the expense of the
Company. The 3vard has agreed arrangemen:s whereby
Jrectors mav take independent professional adwice

in the furherance of ther dunes, The Company has
alzsoindemnified the Mireciors in accordance with the
provisions of the Arnicles of Associanon.

Independence of Directors

The independence of all Direczors 13 reviewed as par: of
“he annual assessmen: of the Joard

The 3oard hag determined “ha- each Jrecior remaing
independent in characier and judgemen: and 13 free of
any relanonships or circumsiances tha threazen their
independence of The Company or 128 nvestmean: Hdviser
‘n paricalar none of the Jireciorg have ever been
axacunives of the Company or the Invesimen: Adwviser
have had a mazenal direct orindirec relaiionstup

with the Company or i:s stakeholders, have recewved
chizproporionate fees have close family relanionships
wih grakeholders or represen: significant shareholders

)




Corporate Governance Statement continued

Board Meetings

Aformal agenda s approved by the Chatrman and
circalated by the Company Secretary 1 advance of
each meeating 10 the non-execive Jirectars and other
arendees. A typical agenda includes: an analysis of
porifoho perfunnance and exposare: an update on

“he investmen: pipehne: the Company's financial
performance: dpdates on invesior relanons,; statutory and
regulatory compliance; and any corporate governance
maers. Relevant papers on the items included on the
agenda are circylated in gouod ume 0 the members of
the 3oard. in advance of the meeiing.

The ‘nvestment Adviser attends the Board meetings
sogether with representatives from the AI"M and
Company Secrelary. Represenatives of the Company's
other adwvisers are also invired o atend 3oard meerings
from :ime Lo Jlme.

The number of 3oard. Audir and Managemen:
Engagemen: Commiee and Nomunanon and
Jemuneratiion Commitee meeings held during the year
ended 37 March 2022 along with the attendance of the
Jirectors 18 set 0ut below:

Agditand
Managetnent
Engagement

Momuanah and

Quatter|y Board Remuneration

_ B _Meetings Committes Commuree
Number Number Numbwer
entitled  NMumber entitled Numbetr &nutied o Number
_ o rodltend  attended 1o attend  attended  altend auended
Michiao.
Wrope. 4 4 3 3 1 1
Masalr
Moas 4 4 2 3 1 1
Ason
Hadden 4 4 3 3 1 i
Caro'ine
Gu.var 4 4 3 3 ] 1
Poter
Bax:er 4 4 3 3 1 1

The 3card 13 scheduled s meer on a quarierly basis.

v addiaon o these meeings the 3pard algo me: on

3 oceasions o approve the MNAY and dividend declararnions
and on a further 8 occastons on an ad hoo basis

Committee

The Company operaes through the 3oard and s two
Foard commitiees, namely the Audiz and Managemer:
Sngagement Committes and the Nomination and
Remimarauon Commitiee the "Commitrees™) The 3oard
evaluares “he memberstup of the Cormnmitiees on an
annual basis.

Audit and Management Engagement
Committee

The Audir and Management mngagement Commiee
compnses of all Direcrors. Carchne Gulhver, the Charr
of the Audit and Mangyemen: Engagement Commiee
ig a Chariered Accountan: and 1s constdered ‘o have
recent and relevan: financial expenence. The Audi
and Managemen: tngagement Commitiee ag a whole
has compezence relevan: 1o the real esiate investmen:
company sector

The Chairman 1s a member of the Audr and Vanagement
rngagemen: Commuitee but does net chair it. =18
membership of the Aadit and Vanagemen: tngagemen:
Committee 1z considered approprate given the small

size of *the 3card and the Charrman's knowledge of

‘he financal services iNdusiry, A copy of the terms of
reference of the Audrt and Managemen: —ngagement
Commiztee 1s available from the Secretary and on the
Company's website.

The Commitiee meets as leas: Twice a year and reviews
the scope and results of the external audit, 178 cos:
effectiveness and the independence and objectiviy

of the external audirors, Including the provision of
non-audlt services.

The Commiiee also reviews ‘he terms of the A7V
agreement and the nvesimen: Adviser Agreemen:, and
examinas the effectiveness of -he Companys internal
control systems and the performance of the AT-'M,
nvestmert Adviser, Admimsirator, Jepositary. Company
Secretary and Reqistrar, and other service providers.

The Repor: of the Audir and Managemeant ~ngagemens
Commitiee 18 set out on pages b2 1o 65

Nomination and Remuneration
Committee

The Nomimnanon and Remuneralion Comrmiiee 18
compnesed of all Jirectors and the Chairman 1s the Senuor
ndependen: Direcior, Yeter Baxter. The Nominaton

and Remuneranon Commities meess as required for the
purpose of considening recniimens to and removals from
the Board; levels of remuneraion pawd to the Direciors.
and review of the Directors’ emuneraion epor: and
Remuneranon Pohoy A copy of the terms of reference

of the Remuneraton and Nommanoen Comrmuiiee is
available on the Company's welxere and 15 available by
requeg: from the Company Secretary

Diversity

The 3card recogmses the benefus of diversey and has
adopred a diversity polhicy All 4Joard appoinimenss will be
made on ment and agans: an olyecuave critena and have
regrard 1o diversicy m relauon to faciors such as gender
ethnicity, skills, background and expenence The Board
does not congider 17 1o e m the interes:s of the Company
and 1-s shareholders (o se: prescriptive diversity crsena
or rargets, bur will contmnuae o monvor diversity and take
2uCh 3788 A8 v CONSIAETS appropriaie 1o mamtain s
Losiion as a mertrocranc and diverse busmess, See also
che Strasedic ReporT on page S5,
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Corporate Governance Statement continued

Induction of New Directors

A procedure for the inducuon of new Direciors has been
eswabiished. ncluding the provision of an induction pack
conamnng relevant informaton abo: the Company,

128 processes and procedures and meetings with the
Chairman and relevant perscns at the invesmmen: Adwviser.

Performance Evaluation

“or the yvear under review, the 3card underiook

an mternal performance evalaanon by way of
questionnaires designead o assess the strengths and
mdependence of the 3oard and the Chairman, indvtdaal
Directors and “he performance of the 3oards Commizeeas.
The areas considered are:

s he frequency and effectuveness of 3oard and
Commitee mee’ings,

e he sire, composinion and relevan: expensnce of the
3oard:

e ‘heindependence and performance of the Direcrors
and ~he Board; and

e che ramng requiramenss of each Mrecor

The evaluanon process iz conducied by the Chairman.
“erar 3axter, as tha Senior ‘ndependent Nrecior.

leads the appraisal of the Chairman. The 3oard 1
cognigan: of the advantages of an exrernal performance
evaluanon and vall keep this opnon under reqgular
review nthe prior vear, the 3oard underiook an
exzamally facihrated performance evaluanan. The
Joard noted the recommendations from the exiernal
performance evalaaiion. one of which was to hold

an addimonal Audir and Vanagemen: angagemen:
Commi:tee 11 the year with ‘he purpose of focusing on
managemen: engagemen: mauears. An addinional Audis
and Vanagemen: ingagemen: Commiies was held in
June 2022 and a further addinonal meesing will he held
on an annual basis gomng forward.

The Company seeks to ensure *hat the 3oard has a
bhalance of skills and experience *ha are complementary
and enable the 3oard 1o operae efficienly.

All of the Jireciors have assessed their other ongoing
commuments and are sansfied “ha* they can commi: “hs
me necessary to execdte their duties o the Company,

o sigrficantigsues were idenified duning the
evaluation process. The Mormimation and 2emanaraiion
Commiee conswders “hat all of the curren: Jirecors
make an effecive connbanon and have the requisite
skills and expenence —o contnue "o provides absle
leadership and direcnion for the Compansy. 2 was
agreed that all hireciors should be recommencied for
elecrion/re-election at the forhcomimg AGHY.

The Board concluded tha: 2ach irector brnings
considerable experuse and expernence o the 3oard and
*he Board operates with good independen: thoughr and
challenge.

All 3oard members have assessed thelr ongoing
commiitmensis and are sazished tha: they can comm: the
TIMe negessary 1o exacite heir dunes 1o the Caompany

Conflicts of Interest

All Directors have a gratatory responsibilizy o avoid
simaatons where a conflhict of interest exists, or may exis:,
between the Company and an eniry that the Director 1s
erther chirectly or indirectly involved with. The Board has
procedures n place 10 denufy potential conflicts and
resolve any that should arige. 'n the case of a conflict

of Interes: the nature and exten’ of the conflict are
assessed against the exising internal control strucuire,
and the regults of thig assessment and aciions taken

o resolve the confher are documented i the minutes
of the relevant 3oard meenng. No conflicts of interes:
arose dunng the penod.

Health and Safety

“ealth and safery s of pnime imporiance —o the

Company and 15 consideraed equally with all other
JUSINESS MANAYEMENT ACVEIes 10 ansure proediion of
stakeholders, be "hey tenants, adwvisers. suppliers, visizors
or others The 3oard regulariy discusses health and safety
wsuaes with the nvestmen: Adviser.

The Company s commirad 2o fostering the highes-
standards in health and safety as 17 belleves that all
unsafe acts and unsafe condiions are preventable All
our stakeholders have a responsibihizy o suppor “he aun
of ensunng a secure and safe environmens, and all our
srakeholders are rasked with responsibiizy for achievineg
“his commiimens

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Jireciors are resgonsible for the sygrems of internal
consrol relaing o the Company and s subsichanes,
and the rehability of the financial reporang process and
for revievwnng their effeciivenass. ensurineg ~ha: the nsk
managemern: and conrol processes are embedded i
day--o-day operations.

A ongoingg formal process. im accordance with the 20
Gundance on Qisk Managemen:. nrernal Control and
2elaed Minancial and 3usiness Reporang, has been
ezablished foridennfying, evaluaing and managing
“he pnnaipal and o her nisks mos hkely o impac:

“he Group. This process, which 1s regularly revieved,
~ogether with key procedurss established with a view o
yroviding effective financial control has been in place
hrougheu the year ended 37 Varch 2022 and up o the
date of this Repor:



Corporate Governance Statement continued

The fudi and Yanagement Lngagemen: Commites has
n place a formal procedure for performing an ongomg
robust assessmens: of the Group's rnsk managemens and
nrernal control systems. A ngk mamx has been eg:ablished
agams: which “he nsks identified and the conirols m place
o muigate those nsks can be monnored. The nisks are
assessed on the basis of the tkehlhood aof them happening,
the impact on “he business if they were o occur and *he
effeciiveness of the conols in place 1o miagate them. 'n
armving at 158 fudgemen: of what ngks the Company faces,
the 3oard has considered ~he Company’s operations in the
Tight of the follownng faciors

e henanire and exten: of risks which 12 regards as
accep:able for the Company 10 bear within 1ts overall
Lasiness objecuve,

e hethrea: of such nsks becoming reahty:

e ‘he Companys abihty o reduce the incidence and
imnpacs of nisk on s performance; and

¢ ‘hecos: o the Company and benefits related 0 the
Company and rhird parneg operating the relevan:
controls.

The nsk mamx s reviewed rwice a year by the
Commiziee and at other imes as necessary The principal
nsks facing the Company are se? out on pages 38 10 42 of
shus Annual Repors, sagether with the processes apphed
10 mitigare thouse rnisks.

On an anraal basis, the Committee reviews the conirol
reporis of Us key service providers and the Auditor notes
any deficrenctes in internal conirols and nrocesses tha
have beendennfied dunng the course of the audl.

The Audiz and Vanagemen: ~ngagemen: Comrmiies 1s
mindfial of these key risks as well as constdenng evolving
and emerging risks such as the impac: of the Ukrame-
Zasaa conflicy, long-rerm chimate change and cyber
secrny which have “he poennal to affect the Group.

The Commries ensares “hat the Board takes appropnare
advice and debazes the ssues facing the Group

A7 each 3oard meeung, the 3oard receives repors from
the nvegimern: Advieer, the Admemstra~orn the ATV and
“he 3roker in respec: of comphiance acavities, Company
financal performance and financal posimon.

The controls. which are regularly reviewed. aim ;o
ensure tha: the aszgets of the Company are safeguarded,
proper aceolntimngg records are maintained. and he
financial mformaton used within ~he business and for
publicanon g rehable. The nisk manageman. procass
and Company sysiems of ttmemal controls are deswned
o mandge rather than €himinate the nsk of failliare o
achieve the Company's objecnves and can anly provide
reasonahle b not absolute, agsurance agains: matenal

mIssTaterment or loss,

The Dreciors have carmed ot a renew of the effeciveness
of the Company's nsk managemen: and internal control
systemns as *hey have operated over the period and up o
*he dase of approval of the Annual Report Junng the coursa
of the review, the 3oard has notidenttfied nor been advised
of any falings or weaknesses which 17 has determuned 1o be
significan:.

The Jirectors have considered the appropnateness of
establishing an incernal audr funcnon and, having regard
-0 the stnucture and nature of the Company's acuvines,
has cancluded *hat the funcion s unnecessary. The Audnr
and Vanagemen: “ngagemen: Commtee will review

on an annaal kagis the need for this funciicn and make
appropnate recormnmenclanons to the 3oard.

Financial Reporting

The 3oard operates “he following key conirols in relasion
-0 financial reporiang:

e he 3oard and Commiiee members review quararly
managemen: repor:s and supporing documents thas
are provided Ly ~he ‘nvesmen: Adviser.

e he 3oard has procedures in place for the approval
of expenses and payments 1o third paruss; and

e che Comrmtee members and 3oard review all
financial mformanon and announcaments pnor
to prablicanon.

Corporate Responsibility

The Company regards corporate responsibihey as

mzegral o how it conducts 118 business. (Tis commted o
being a good comporate crtizen and behaving responsibly
with a demonstrated ransparency of approach.

To achieve this goal, the Company applies the following
prncples 1o 1ts operations:

Business conduct

The Company's investmean: decisions are made on the
Lasis of generaning shareholder value and ensuring

‘he long-rerm success of the business. The selechion of
supphers will be made independentlty by the Company's
Jirectors uapon advice from the nvesimen: Advizer

and in the besiinterests of the Company. The 3oard

will ensure that appropnate controls are 1n place To
guarantee mdependence from the supply cham.

All customers and supphers will he sreated fairrly and
responsibly.

The Company will not provids finanaal suppor o
pohnical paraes or pohticians.
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Corporate Governance Statement continued

The Company is resoluely opposed ¢ brnibery and
corrupion The Company will nat use any llegal or
improper means 0 further its business mreres:s, nor will
1 accep: any forms of iInducements intanded to nfluence
s inves'men: decisions.

Governance

The Company will protect the interests of its shareholders
and other stakeholders through comphance with relevan:
legal and regulatory environments, and through effectiive
managemern: of business nsk and opporadniy.

The 3oard will ensure that 1's members are truly
independen. are competen: and have the resources and
suppor: requited o perform their duties opamally, and
“ha: the 3vard’s decisions are made 1n the bestinterests
of the Company and s sharehaolders. The performance
of the Board will be regularly reviewed, and ireciors will
retire as and when deemed appropriate by the 3oard in
accordance with bes: pracrice

Socially responsible investment

The 30ard auns "o be a soaally responsible investor
and believes that it 15 1mporan: o inves: in specalis?
social housing properies In a responsible mannear in
respect of environmental, ethical and social 1ssues The
nvesTmen: Adviser's evaluation procedure and analysis
of “he properies within the por-folio includes research
and appraisal of such masters, and rakes 1IN 0 accoun:
environmen:al and socal policies and other business
155Ues

curther detatls on the sociahmpac: of the Company's
mvesiments are inclided in the Social ‘mpac: repor:
from ~he The Good Zconomy. a summary of which ¢an he
found on page 49

The Company recognises that environmens:al protecion,
resource efficlency and zusiainable developmen: are
necessary ‘o ensuare “hat environmen:al damage 1s
Iimred and furthermore thas where relevan:, posimve
acnions should be taken o 1improve “he exisung
environmen: far fature generations

Transparency

The Company aims 0 be ransparen:. and "o engdre
shatim commuanicates with 172 shareholders and
orher stakeholders in a manner that enhances thewr
Jnderstanding of 12 business.

The Company mamn:iains accoaning docamen:aion
‘har clearly identifies “he rue nature of all business
Tansacnons, asses and habtliies in hne wih the
relevanT regulatory, accounting, and legal requiremens
Horecord or entry s knowingly false. distoried
neoamples or suppressed.

Al reporing 1s matenally accurate and complete and

in comphance i all mazenal respects with siated
accounung policies and procedures. The Company does
not knowingly misstate or misreprasent management
mformanoen for any reason, and the Company expects the
same to apply 1o 178 suppliers.

The Company may be required o make statemen:s

or provide repors to regulatory bodies, goverrunen:
agencies or other government depariments, ag well as 10
rhe media. The Comparny ensures that such giatemen’s or
reporns are correct, umely, and net migleading, and ‘ha:
-hey are delvered through rhe appropnaie channels.

The Company provides through 1ts websiie. its

Anmaal Report and other stazements with appropriate
informasion o enable shareholders and stakeholders so
assess the performance of s business. 7 complies with
“he apphicable laws and regulations concerning “he
disclosure of informanon relating o the Company.

Communities

The Company alms o ensure thas 1is properies which
are associared with the provision of heal:h services
provide sigruficant value-adding faciliies in the
commiuntiles where 11 1inves:s,

Relations with Stakeholders

Detanls regarding the Company's engagemen: with 17s
srakeholders are get oul within the Strateqic Repor: on
pages 25 10 35

Approval

The Corporaze Governancs Siatemen: has been approved
by the 3oard.

3y order of -he 3oard
Link Company Matters Limited
Company Jscretary

N
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Director’s Remuneration Report

Directors' Remuneration Policy are suffictent 1o attract and rezain sin-ably quahfied and
i experienced individuals.

Introduction

The Remuneration 2oty of the Company 1s se by The fees paid will be reviewed on an anrual basis and

-he 3oard. A resolution w0 approve the Remuneranon may also be reviewed when new non-executive Nrecrors

Pohicy was passed at the AGY of the Company held are recraited *o the 3oard. The irectors of the Company

on 5 September 2079 The policy provisions ses o4t are entitled 1o such rates of annual fees as the 3oard

below will apply untl -he Remuneration 2ohcy is pus 2o atits discrenon shall from nime to ame determine The

shareholders for approval a: the forshcoming AGM of the  Chawrman of the Board and the Audit and Managemen:

Company on % Seprember 2022, There are no changes “nagagemen: Commiitee Chairman are entizied o receive

proposed 1o the Remuneration Policy. The Remunszration fees at a nigher level than those of the other Jwrectors,

Palicy 1g Innding and sets she paramesers wizhin which reflecung their addituonal duties and responsibilities. a

Diractors’ remuneranon may ba set. Annsal fees are pro-rated where a change takes place g
during the financial year. g

Policy n addmon to the annual fee, under the Company's E

The Remuinieranon 2olicy of the Company 1s 10 pay s Arcles of Assaciaton, if any Jirector s requested to ;

non-execuuve Jirectors fees that are appropnate for perform any special dunes or services outside their g

“he 1ole and the amount of tme spen i discharging ordinary dutes as a Jirecior, *hey may be paid sach E

therr duaes. thas are broadly in hne wrh those of reasonable addimonal remuneranon as the 3oard may >

comparable real estate inves:men: companies and tha: from time 10 ime determine. E

[

Directors’ Remuneration Components

Compotient Director Rate al 1 April 2022 Furpuse of Remunét dhon

Anmnuaal fee Chairman F53.000  Commitment as Chairman of a pubhc
comparny:
Annuaal fee Non-execaiive Irectors £34,000  Commimen: as non-execative Jireciors of

a public company

Addimonal fee  Chair of the Audiz and Vanagemen? F5.00C  “or addiuonal responsibilities and ime
sngagemen: Commities commitmen?t’

Cor exira or special services performead in
‘heir role as a Mrector’ )

LXpenses All Direciors n/a  Remmbursemen: of expenses incurred in the

performance of diries as a hrecior-

Additonal fee  All irectors Mgcrenonary

1 The Company s pehey s lor the Chantman of the Beard 1o be paid @ mghat tee than the orher Directors 1o 1eflacy the more onetous 1ole
2 The Company s Articles of Association nut the agaregate feas payvable to the Board of Directors 1o £250 OO0 per annum

3 The Campany s pohcy s for the Chair of the Audit and Management Engagement Commines 1o be patd a kigher {ee than the other Dilectons o rellect the more
wnerous tole

4 This s a provision of the Company 5 Athicles Addmonal fees wordd only be paid i exceplional circumsiances inrelaton to the perlonmanae ol extid vl specal
seryices

5 Drectorns are enndaed w clnm expenses it respect of dunes undenaken in connecnon with their tole 4s a Direcion
The Company has no employees Accordingly thete dre no difterences i policy on the remuneranaon of Iectons and me iemuneranan of employecs

Na Darector 18 entifled to recelve any temunetation which s performance related As a 12sult thete sre no petformanae conditions m relahon W any clements of the
Directors izmuneratlon i exIstence 10 set oulin this Remunetaiion Paoliey

Oireciors and Oicers habihisy ingurance cover 1 Ag all Nrectors are non-execysve and here are no

marirzamed by the Company on behalf of the Jirecrors, amplayees. the Company does nor operate any share
vption or other long-rerm Incenuve schemes and “he

Jwectors are enttled 10 be pard all expenses properly Directors fees are no: sublect 1o any performance cnteria.

mearted o arending 3oard or shareholder meenngs or "o pension of other retremens benehs schemes are

L;:hervnse 1 or with a view 1o the performance of ther operated by the Company for any of 1ts Jirectors.
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Director’s Remuneration Report continued

Service Contracts

Mo Owrector has a service conrac: with “he Company The
Mrectors are appointed ander letiers of appoimiment.
Thear appoimtiment and any subsequent terminanon or
resirement 1s gukzect 1o the Articles of Assomation, The
Directors’ letters of appomtment provide thai, upon the
rerunaion of a Director's appointmens, thar Jirector
ms: resign n wriung and all records ramain the
property of the Company. The Direcior's appoimniment
can bererminazed m accordance with the Armcles of
Asgsociation and withou: compensatuon. Thers 18 no
nonce penod specified 1n the Aracles of Associanon for
“he rernoval of Jirectors and all Direciors are subject 10
annual re-eleciion by sharsholders

Approach to Recruitment Remuneration

The remuneration package for any new Charman or
non-executive Direcror will e the same as the prevailing
rates determined on “he bases get ot alove. The 3oard
will not pay any mtroduciory fee or inceniive to any
person o encourage them o become a Jirector, bt
may pay the fees of search and recrarmens specialists

n connecion with the appoinimen: of any new
nOn-executve Nreciorn

Views of Shareholders

Any views expressed by shareholders on the feeg being
pard 10 Wireciors vonlld be -aken into consideration by
“he 3oard when reviewing tavels of remuneraton.

Remuneration Report

The 3oard presents g Nraciors’ Remunersaion 2epor

I respect of the year ended 3 Varch 2022 The 3pard
has prepared thus report in accordance writh the Large
and Medium-Sired Companies and Groups (Accounts
and Repors! iAmendmen?) fegulanons 2073 An ordinary
resolunion for the approval of the Jirecrors Zemuaneration
Repor: will be pat "o shareholders at the forrhcorming
AGY of the Company

The law requires the Company s aadror o audis ceriam
required disclosures, Whera disclosures have heen
audized, they are Indicated as such The audiors opimion
s ncladed in ~he audrors repor on pages 836 o 37

Annual Statement from the Chairman

“am pleased o presen: the Directors’ Remuneraion
Report for the year ended 40 March 2022

During the year under review, the 3oard has established a
separate Nommnasion and Remuneraiion Commiliee with
responsibilizy for seming the Company's 2emuneraion
Jolicy and Direciors fees.

The repor: from Mominaton and Remuanaranon
Commrtee can be found on page b.

The Direciors are remunerated for *heir services at such
rate as the Jirectors shall from aime 0 ime delermine.
The Joard has set three levels of fees one for the
Chairman, one for other Jirectors. and an addinonal

fee thaiis paid 1o “he Jirector who chairs “he Audn

and Managemen: ingagemen: Comrmires. fees ars
reviewed annually in accordance with the Remineration
2ohiey. The fee for any new recior appoimn:ed wili e
derermuned on the =ame basis

Chrectors fees for the year ended & Varch 2022 were

at alevel of FE2L000 per annuam for the Chairman

and £332280 per annum for other non-executive
irectors. The Chairman of the Audr and Vanagemen:
sngagemen: Commiiee received an addimonal fee of
£5.000 par anmum, Duning the yvear, the Nominanon and
Remunaranon Commiiee agre=d o uphf: the Charrman's
fee by 7.9% 0 FR3.000 and ~he Directors base fee by 247
w0 F34.000 0 betar reflect the responsibilines and ime
commitments for overseaindg “he affairs of The Company
and "o align with those of the Company's peer graup.

There were no other payments for extra or special
services In che vear ended 37 March 2022

A7 the AGY held on 8 Seprembier 2079, shareholders
approved -he amendmen: "o the Company's Aracles of
Aasocianon which increased the maximuam aggregate

non

annual remuaneratton payable to Directors from FACG.CE0

10 £250.000.

The Hreciors Remuneration olicy wasg approved
at-he AG held on b Septembier 2079 There wall be
no significant change in the way the emuneraion
2ohcy wall beamplemeanted in the course of the nexs
finarnicial year

A1l nexs e presented
OMPANnY & LGN

The hreciors Jemiuneranion 2ohoy »
“o shareholders for approval a7 the C
Saprember 207



-Director’s Remuneration Report continued

Directors’ Fees for the Period (audited)

The Jrectors who served dunng the vear received the follownng emolumen:s

[ — e _JearendedMMarch2622 0 Test ended 31 March ana

Taxable Taxabite-

Dwects . . ___ __ _ _¥ees _ benelts _ Tota __  fecs  benefis Total
Vichael Wraobel (Chairman) £52,000 - EB2,000 f£50.000 - FRC.OC0
Alastair Moss £33,280 -~ E33280 F32000 - F32,000
Alison Sadden £33,280 -  £33280 £35200 - E32.00C
Caroline Gulhiver £38,280 - £38,280 F£36.00C - E36,000
“eter 3axter ) £33,280 - £3328B0 E32.00C - F32.006
Toal . 190420 - E190120 182000 - £82.000
The amounts paidd o ~he Jirectors were for services as Company Performance

non-execanve ireciors. Taxable kenefiis included in the
above table are inrespec of the amounts reimbursed o
Trecrors as travel and other expenses properly mcurred
by -hem in the performance of their dunes There are no
vanable elements in the remuneraton pavable o the
Nrectors

The following graph compares the performance for the
penod from 20 on 18 November 2076 1o 3 Varch 2022,
“he total shareholder reurn of the Company's Ordinary
shares relauve "o the TTSz All-Share index and “TS:
Real -state ndex Although the Company has no formal
benchmark, these indices have been selecied as the
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Lnder the Company's Aritcles of Associasion, the rotal TT8= All-Share represents all companies of a simlar
aggregae remuneraion and benefrs in knd of he capital s1ize, and the consunients of the T5z $5¢ Real
drectors of the Company 18 subject 10 a maxinuam of sgtate ndex are L<-based real agtate compames and are
FA50.000 i any inancial year Any change o this would ‘herefore congidered o represent The mos: appropriate
reqire shareholder approval. comparaive.

Loss of Office {audited)

I'"me irecrors do not have service conracts with the
Company bur are engaged under lecerg of appoinimen:
andar which there i no entvlemen: o compengsanon for
loss of office Directors are subject ro annual re-election
by shareholdars.

Total Shareholder Return (rebased)

Civitas - - . .. »... -~ FTSE 350 Real Estate Index

170

18 Nov 31 Mar 31 Mar 31 Mar 31 Mar 31 Mar 31 Mar
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022



Director’s Remuneration Report continued

Relative Importance of Spend on Pay
The able balow seis o, in respect of the year ended
50 W arch 2024

a) the ramunearanon paid ro the Jirecrors, and

b) :he distnbunons made to shareholders by way of
dirvidend,

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
S, o gooD__ ED00
Nreciofy remuneraion 190 B2

Jividends pard to Ordinary
sharehoelders

Directors’ Interests (audited)

There1s no requiremen: ander the Company's Aracles
of Agsacation or the terms of thelr appomntnen: for
Hrectors o hold shares in the Company.

As ar $ Varch 20722, the irectors ancliuding their
connected persons) had beneficial interesis n the
following number of shareg in the Company

31 March 2622 31 Martch 2021

Ordinary Orcinary

- _ shares __ shames

Michael Wrobel 120,598 ‘00hY8
Alasawrr Y oss 11,766 Bk
Ahison —adden - -
Carohne Gulliver 58,832 58,854
seter Jaxter 82,085 = 47064

There have been no changes 1o Jireciors share interes:s
Lerweean 37 Varch 2022 and “he date of “his Repor

lone of the Mireciors or any persons connected
wiith chem had a mazenalinreres: in “he Company’s
TTANSACT IS, arrangemc‘nts or A(JYE‘EHIEHTS d‘.erg
“he year.

34,093 245

Voting at AGM

The Drectors’ Remuneration 2olicy was approved at

‘he AGV held on 3 September 2009 and the Directors’
Remuneraton Report for the year ended 37 March 202
was approved at the AGM held on 24 September AC2. The
votes cast by proxy on these regolutions were;

Yotes for Votes aganst
% ol voles % of votes Voies ‘rotal
Resolution L. . uast . east wtlh_rzr-l_d ___ vaotescast
To approve
“he Mrecors
Remianeraion
REPOTT 999 0.09 4524 277654857
To approve
“he Direcors’
REMUINeration
Jalicy 95.99 300

= 5201957728

1 Vates for include chisorenonary proxy votes granted to the Chamoan by
sharcholders

Consideration of Shareholder Views

The Company 1z commitied 10 ongoing shareholder
dalogue and 1akes an active Inieras? N VOUNg oulcomes.
Where there are subsianial votes agains: resolalions

In relaton to drectors remuneranorn, the Company will
seek the reasons for any such vore and will deatl any
resaliing actions 1 the NIrectors’ ReMmuneraion Jepor:

Approval

The Nrecrors Aemunarallon ~epors was approvad by the
Joard and sim2d on us kehalf by

Michael Wrobel
Chairman

~
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

in respect of the financial statements

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial
statements in accordance with applicable law and regulation.

Company law remuiras the Jirectors o prepare financial
staterments for each financial year. Under thar law the
Jirectors have prepared the Group financial stazemen:s
In accordances with L-adopied miermanonal accounting
standards and the Company financial statemen:s in
accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepied
Accouantung “racuce (Lnired <ingdom Accodaning
Standards, compnzing JR8 707 "Reduced Digclosure
“ramework”, and appiicable law)

Lnder Company law, hreciors must no” approve the
financial staremenss unless they are sasisfliad thas
they give a triie and fair view of the s1aze of affars of
“he Group and Company and of the profr or loss of
“he Group for thar penod. 'n prepaning the financial
statements, the Jirectors are required o

s select surable accounang polhicies and then apply
“hem consigiently:

e state whether appheable L¥X-adopted inzernanional
acooning standards have beaen followed for the
Group financal statemeants and Unred <imgdom
Accounang Standards, compnsing U285 70" have been
followed for the Company inencial statemernss, subjec:
coany mazenal departures discloged and explained in
“he financial statements:

¢ make judgemens and accouning esamates that are
reasenable and priadens; and

e prepare the financial satemenss on the going concern
bLasis unless o 13 mappropnate o prezuame “hat the
Group and Company will conindae i buasimness,

The Mrec-ors are responsible for safeguarding the
assars of the Group and Company and hence for raking
reazonable greps for the prevention and descnion of
fraud and other uregulanies.

The Directors are also regponsible for keeping adeguare
accouniang records that are sufficient 1o show and
explaim the Group s and Company's Transations and
disclose with reasonable accuracy ar any ime the
financial pogrion of the Group and Company and
entable them <o ensure that the financial stacements and
“he Direc-ors’ Remuneration epor: comply with the
Companies Act 206

The reciorg are responsible for the mainienance and
integnty of the Company's inancial stazements published
on the ulnimare paren: Company s website, _egislaaon

i the Lnited iingdorn governing the preparation and
digsermination of fiinanaal sta~emencs may differ from
leqislanon in ather ransdicnions

Directors’ Confirmations

The Nrec:ars consder that the Annaal Repor and
accounts, taken as a whole, s faur, balanced and
undersiandable and provides the informauon necessary
for sharehoelders o assess the Group's and Company's
posinon and performance, businegs model and srateqy.

tach of the Directors, whose names and fanctions are
listed in the doard of Dreciors confirm that, 70 the bes: of
‘heir knowledge

s ~he Group finanmal ssatements. which have heen
preparad In accordance with U{-adoprad niernational
accounnng standards, give a trae and fair view of the
assets, abihines, inangal position and profis of the
Groury

e« che Company finanaial staremern:s, which have
been prepared in accordance vwath Unuted Gngdom
Accounting Standards, comprnsing -RS QL give a Tnae
and far view of the asse:s hlabihines and financial
posiuon of the Campany, and

¢ he Group Strategie Report malades a fair review of the
developmen: and performance of the business and ~he
position of the Group and Company, sogather with a
descrnipuon of “he pringipal nsks and uncerrainnes thar
1z faces.

Approval
This Smatemen: of Mirectors’ 2esponsihiimes was
approved by ‘he 3oard and signed on s behalf by:

Michael Wrohel

Chairman

A9 June 2022
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Alternative Investment

Fund Managers Directive

As the Company and the Allernative nvesimen: -uned
Manager (the "A V) are each domuciled in the Unced
Lmgdom. the 7CA —andbook rules require that, among
other things, the AV makes avallable the following
nformanon o shareholders of the Company andear the
ATVD {as implemented in the UL and =0 nonfy them of
any masenal change o mformanion previously provided

These disclosures can alsa be found on the Company's
website civizassoclalhousing.com

Investment Policy, Leverage and
Liquidity (AIFMD 23(1)(a)(b)(h))

The iInvesiment srrategy and objectives of the Company.
“he ryhes of assets 1Tmay inves: in and “he investment
-echnigques 1t may employ, assocared nisks and any
mvesiment restrictlons are taid ourin the inves men:
objecaves and pohey and other gecnons of the

Annual Repor:.

“ornformanon abolt the arrcumstances in which

“he Company may dse leverage, the ypes of sources
permitted and the associazed risks and any resricnons
on the use of leverage and any collazeral and asse:
re-uge arrangements, shareholders are direcied 16 the
disclosuras conzamned in the mvestmen: objeciives and
pohicy secion of these financial statements ag well as
specific AW related disclosures further below.

Lnderthe "CAs agang fules o which “he Company s
subject 1t needs the prior approval of 17¢ shareholders o
make a marernal chandge 1o s invesimen: policy,

Since the Company 15 ¢losed-ended withou: redemption
righss. haadicy nsk managemen: s himized o the
hauidiny required 0 mee? he Company’s oblhigasions in
ralation o 178 finanding arrangements The A7V dalizes
vanous risk assessmen: merhods o measare the nsk of
vorfolho Uliguadey 2o mes: the Company's ockhgauons.
This measuremen- enatles the provision of managemen:
informanon o *he A7/ and the 3oard of the Company -0
enakle these nsks "0 be monrored and managead.

Legal Relationship with Investors (AIFMD
23 chH

The Company 1s a pabhc hmied company hsied on the
“ondon Stock sxchange. The Company 13 Incorporaied
ander she lavrs of =ngland and Wales The cons: 10nal
documen: of “he Company s 172 aricles of aszocianor
vrhich mavy only be amended byy way of a special
rezolunon of s shareholders Upon the nurchasge

of ghares, an invesor becomes g shareholder of the
Comparry. & shareholders alalvy -0 ~he Company vl
e lmized o “he amoun ancalled on ~her shares

As the Company is incorporated Under the laws

of =ngland and Wales, 1 may not be possible for a
shareholder locazed outside that jansdicnon o effec:
service of process within the local junsdicuon in which
-hat shareholder regides upon the Company. All or

a subsrannal porion of the assets of the Company
may be located outside a local junsdicuon in which
a shareholder resides and. ag a resuals, 1 may nos be
possible to zatisfy a udgemen: against the Company
i such loeal jurisdicnion or o enforce a judgemen:
ob:amed m the local junsdicaon’'s ¢ourts agains:

‘he Company.

AIFM and its Delegates (AIFMD 23({1}{d),
(e) and (f))

The A "V GG Capniial amized) 1s a prnivate imited
company with 1ts reqigtered office at § More London
Qwerside, ondon 35 2A0. GG Caprial Limred 1=
authonsed and regulated by the “inancial Conduct
Authority (08N 648953) - has been appointed by the
Company o manage the Company under an AW
Agreement with effect from 24 Augus: 2077,

The A, s responsible for portfolilo management
and nsk managemen: and monitonng of thea azsers of
che Company and has discrenonary authonty over the
acguisinon and dispesmon of the Company's assers,
with power o give guaran:ees and underake other
ransacions on Behalf of the Company subject o the
provisions of the A agreement. The A SWVas also
responsible for en=zunng comphance with the ALV,

The A."Mzdunes under “he A 7Y Agreemen: are owed
0 the Company as a whole rather than directly o the
shareholders, whether indindually orin groaps The
3oard of the Company s regponsible under the ATTM
Agreemen: for representing the Company 1n 178 dealings
with the &7V

n order to comply w1°h ve reguidatory obhganons ~he
AL holds professional indemmnity msurance.

Depositary and its Delegates (AIFMD 23(1)
{(d) and (f})

ndos "mmancial amrred he lepositary’! has been
appomnted as the Jepusiary of the Comparny under

4 Jepositary Agreemen: in accordance with A7
requitrements. The 2eposizary 18 a company inceon:orated
i o=ngland deqgistered number 052595973 whose
reqisterad office 1¢ ar 94 “enchurch Sreel ondoen =
3. s avhonsed o 3¢ as a Jepostary by the “CA (73
&02528Y The Deposiary s rezponsibile for safekeeping

of “he Company s inves ments. mmcluding holdiig i
custody those mves ments which are required o be

held in cusody and venfying ownearship and keeping
records of the Company's ocher inves-men-s, and for cash
MOnTaTieg




Alternative Investment

Fund Managers Directive continuea

The Deposirary’s duties under the Jeposttary Agreamen:
are owed 1o the Company as a whole and nor directly o
shareholders, whether individually or in groups

The imvesiments of the Company are not of a kind
reguired to be held in cusiody by the Deposiary.

Independent Auditor (AIFMD 23(1)}(d))

The independent auditor of the Company for the year
ended 3! March 2022 was ’ncewaterhouseCoopers LL2
The audrors daues, winch are ser out on pages 86 and
a7 are owed 0 the Company as a whole They have a
statatory responsiialicy to repors tou the members of the
Company as a whola in relatlon 1o the 'rich and fairness
of the Company's state of affairs and profu or loss.

Valuation (AIFMD 23(1)(g))

The asze’s of the Company are valued in accordance
with the provisions set oul in “he Valuauon ?olicy. The
-nvestmen: Commiee which has been set up by the
AcZVoan respect of the Company and 11's assets adds

a further level of oversigh: 1o the valuanion process as
set oyt on n the Corporate Governance secion of the
Annaal Report.

Fees and Expenses (AIFMD 23(1)(1})

The Company incurs coss i the form of deposiary faes,
custodian fees, bank fees and charges, markeung fees.
audiors fees, lawvyers fees, fand adminizranon fees,
company secre:arial fees and ozher fees.

Fair Treatment of Investors and
Preferential Treatment (AIFMD 23(1)(j))

Mo preferental nghtw have been granted -0 any
ex1sing shareholder,

The Company and the A=V are commitied o ensuning
“ha: ali shareholders are treazed fairly and 1n accordance
wirh Lo enmpany law They have not and will no encer
o any arrangement with one shareholder which

conld result in any overall matenal disadvantage o the
other shareholders,

Issue and Redemption of Shareholder
Interests in the Company {((AIFMD 23(13{(})

The Company s closed-ended and does nor provide for
redempion or repurchase of the interests of ordinary
shareholders at their reqaes:,

Reporting and Performance (AIFMD 23(1)
{k}, 23(1}(m} and 23(1)(n))

The mgrone performance of the Company, 7o the exien:t
avallable has heen disclosed to shareholders in the
Comupany's anmaal and —alf Yearly Reporis. which will e
sent 1o shareholders and are available from
hpforrassocathoasimg . com/.

The lates: NAV of the Company g pubhished 1n the
lazest Annual or =alf Yearly Repur: or quartetly
NAV announcemen:.

Prime Broker (AIFMD 23(1)(0))}

The Company does not have a pnme broker.

Method of Making Ongoing/Periodic
Disclosures (AIFMD 23(1)}(p},23(4),23({5))

.nformasion abous the Company's nsk profile and nsk
managernen:, to:al leverage and any matwenal change o
“he arrangements for managmg the Company's hguidity,
the proporaon of assars (f any) subject w speial
arrangemerns ansing from hoandiry the maximuam
permitied leverage or the gran: of nights of re-uze of
collateral or quarantees in relalon o leverage will be
provided in the Company's Annual Repors or on the
Company's websiie hup/fewvitassociathousing.com/

Risk Profile and Risk Management
{AIFMD 23{(4){c))

The appointmen: of the A, -V as *he A ¥ of the
Company under the A7) means tha™ vas respongsible
for gk managemen: and the ongoimg process of
dentifying. evaluanng, monponneg and managing

“he rnisks facing the Company in accordance with the
requirements of the & 71 'The 3oard keeps *he A 4's
performance of these responsibihines ander review as
par of 13 overall regponabihyy for the Company's nisk
managemen: and inernal controls
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The principal nsks of the Company are st out n the 1isk
managemern: secion in the Annual Repor:. The A 7V's
risk managemeri: SysTem tncorpurates raqular review
of these risks and “he establishmen: of appropnase risk
himats and internal control processes 10 mitigate the
risks. Tha sensutuvey of the Company o relevan: nisks 18
further detailed 1in the nsk managemen: seciion m the
Annual Repors.

Restrictions on the Use of Leverage and
Maximum Leverage (AIFMD 23(5))

Az specthed in the Invesimen: objectives and policy in
‘he Annuaal Repor. The Company has tThe ability 1o putup
‘0 a maximum teverage of 40 of the Company's Gross
Asser Value and the AN overseas the use of leverage 1o
engure *hast the uge of Rorrowing s consisient with hus
requiremen: everage 18 calcalaed using gross assets.
wiith various adjussmenss, dividead by nes assers.

Under Arv ) the Company 1s required o caleitlate
levarage under The two merthodologies specified by
the Directive, the "Gross Vethod and the Commumens:
Yethod! the difference being -has the Commitmen:
Method allows ceriain expozures to be offser ornertad.
Jisclosures are made on the websie of “he Company.
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the members
of Civitas Social Housing PLC

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion
HARSINId opLineen:

e  Crvitas Social Fousing 2.0's Group finangial
staremenss and Company financal siatemen:s ithe
“fimancral gratements’) gve a true and farr view of
+he state of the Group's and of the Company's affairs
as at 3. March 2022 and of the Group's profit and the
Group's cash flows far the year then ended:

e he Group financial stazemensts have been
properly prepared i accordance with UK-adopted
mrernational accounting standards;

e he Company financial statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepred Accounting Practice (Unized
Kmgdom Accounting Srandards, compnising RS 107
“Reduced Dsclosure framework”, and apphcable lawy,
and

e ‘he financial statements have xeen prepared in
accordance with the reqintements of the Companies
Act 2006,

We have audited the financaial statemenss, mcluded within
“he Annaal 2eport and Accounts The ‘Annual Repors,
which comprige: the Consohdazed and Company
Statements of Jimancial Qosimon as at 3 March 20274

“he Consolidared Sratement of Comprehensive ncome,
“he Consolidared Statement of Cash lows, and the
Conschidated and Company S:atements of Changes

N Suary for the year then ended; and “he notes 1o the
financial szatements, which inchude a desenpion of the
sicnificant accouning poligias

¥

Our opinion 18 consigtent with our reporing o the
Aadrr and Aanagement sngagemen: Commiies

Basis for opinion

WWe conducied our audit in accordance with .nernaional
Standards en Aadeing (L I5As (LG and applicable
lawy, OQuar responsibilinies under SAs (L <) are further
described in the Audrors responsibihnes for the audi of
“he financial s~atements gecnon of aur repor. We helisve
chas the audr evidence we have obramed s sufficien: and
appropnate o provide a lzasis for ouar opimon

Independence

We remained independent of the Group in accordance
with the ethical requirermnenss that are relevant o our
audi: of the finaneaal gTatemente m the UL which includes
‘he RC's —thical Srandard, as applicable o hsted pubhe
mrerest eniiiles, and we have fulfilied our ather echical
rezpongbibines in accordance with these requremenss

To ~he best of our knowledge and behef we declare

‘ha non-aud gervices prohibred by the 720z =thieal
S-andard weare no provided

her than those dig edn Nlote 9.0, vwe have provid=d
na non-aJddlr ssra “hie Company or ms conrolled
ander-akings in che parod ander aadis

Our audit approach

Overview

Audit scope

e  We tallored the scope of our audins o ensure that we
performed enough work "o be able 1o give an opimion
ori the financial staremenss as a whole, t:aking m:o
accoun: the structure of the Group and the Company.
‘he accouning processes and controls, and <he
ndusiry in which they operate The Group consists of a
singrle reporable segmen:

Key audit matters
e Valuanon of iInvestmen: property (Group).

e Ability o connnue as a gomng concern (Connunuanon
Resolunen! (Group and paren: Company’.

Materiality
e COverall Group marenalry: £/CA milhon
2020 04 mithors based on 1% of total assets
e  Overall Company maternahty. F8.2 muillion
12020 F74 mullion! based on % of total assets
e Cerformances matenabsy: /28 mitlion
(2020 F28 miltion) (Group) and F&.2 million
(2G2% 5.6 midhion! {Company?

The scope of our audit

Az par of desigming our audis, we determinad matenalbty
and assessed the nisks of marenal missiatemen® i the
financial szatemenss.

Key audit matters

ey audit maers are “hose matrers that in the audrors
profezmional nidgemens, were of mos: significance

in the audi- of the financial statementsg of the currens
period andinclude the mos: sigmficant assessed nsks
of mazenal misstaremen: (whether or not due o fraud)
identified by the auditors, including those which had
“he greates: effec: on the overall aude stirategy “he
allocanon of resources i the audit and direciing “he
efforss of the engagemen- ;zam These mazers. and any
COMITEN S wWe Make on the resulis of our procedures
‘hereon, were addressed 1in ~he contex” of our audre

of the financial sazements ag a whole, and in forming
our opinien thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opiman on these ma~ers

Thig1s nora complete hsr of all nsksadentfied by our
audi

Ay to contnug as a gong concern {Conundaanon
Fesolunon! 1s a new key audis maer “his year COYV -3
which vag a key aadi: mater las® year 18 no longer
mcluded becaage of *he imred impact 1t has had on
“he Grouap and Tompany's Duginess and operations
Otherwige “he key auadr masers below are consistens
with tass




Independent Auditors’ Report to the members
of Civitas Social Housing PLC continued

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Valuation of investment property (Group;

felor o the Repor of e Audil and Managenen:
Lngagement Corrmitiee, Nowe 51, Stgni!w‘ran' esimate

va, sation ol myesimen: aroogry and Noe 15C, Invesuran:
DIODCITY

Invesiment properics are ne.d al a fair value of L9452 micion
as a: 31 Marcn 28427 in tre Consouda.nd Siatemrent ol
Financia. Posigon. Thre valuation ol e Croup's invesimen:
nronorty s ine voy canpancn of The net assel valoe and
wnderoing tre Growp' s resu.t tor the year The resu. of 1ne
revallLadon ous vear was a gain of #1123 milion, waic is
acco..rned lor witnn ‘Change in fair va. .o of mvesimon:
arooeries’ i e Congalidaed Sacmen: of Compreensve
[ncome Tae Growp's invesimen: groperty porifolio consis s
ol spcoalistsocia. nousing properdies ocatcd in England
and Wa.es wnicn are et .o Regisiered Providers of socia

A0LEING 20 ONG-IOIRT LEAses

Invesimen: oroperty va..alons were carned out Dy & urd
oary va..er Jones Lang LaSa e 'L or the 'Wa uer) Tne
Va.car was ciigaged by the Direciors and verformed aer
WOr< 1N accordanace wiin o i of Cnarered
Surreyors CRICS) RICS Va'uation  Professiona Standards
and e regalrements of Internationa. Accoaniing s.andard
A0 Tnvesmren: Properiy’

In deiormining (e va.de ol a properiy, e Vaoser nas

aken o acco.dn orooery-specific informanon me.uding
e egse erm and rental income payale ey anpred
4851 0ions 10 arnve a: the diseo .n rEwne wineh 1§ anotaer
<0y m_ou: 100 VALLATIoON T1is 1as releronce (o nelinta
seed and CPLgrowsa rate wihicn are inl wenced oy oroval.ing
war<e; condrions and SOmpD4aran.€ ransaciions

eovawaian of e Grouos Invesinen propery nonin o
wag idanified ag a <oy a.di maner given e va Lalion
is inncren vy suo,cotive due fo, an‘onq other taciors, (e
Individ ., naware of cacn progery, hs ocadion and he
cxpceed Ioore renza sireams {or 11as Darlt. d4r property
T significanos ol e esidmaes and  Ldgomenis nvo vad,
coap.od win) s facr 1at on vy a sma.. perceniage difterence
n individal progery va. wainons, waen aggregated. cou d
resas A maserial missia.omen:. warranied spoecific a.din
tocog in s arca

Civen ;g inheren: swectiviy mvo'ved 1n e va, aaion

of e propery porfo’ic and erctore e necd tor deeo
mar<e: <now edge wacn deermining ing mos: appropriaie
acgumoions and e teonmecaitiues of valuation meodo ogy
we engaged our inerna. va waon expers (uatificd
cnaricred SLIVeyors) 1o assis: 8 in ouraudiz of this arca

Assessing the valuers' expertise and objectivity

We read e Va der's report and confirmed 1mat e aporoacn
Laed was consisient with ine RICS guideines. We asgessad
e Vaer's gua ications and experise and rcad tncir lerms
ot engagemen: wiin tne Group deerlmimning (1ad ero were
NO MALSISs (nal allected e indepondence and obraaivily
or inoosed scope amitations Lpon nem. We a so considered
fe0s and 0iar ConTactua’ arrangenanis that nught exist
noswecn e Groun and e Vaoaer We fouand no evidenge
$.0ge8 Al the onasvity of e Val,or was eomaronmised.

Assumptions and estimates used by the Valuer
In our sy, whilcs invo vod e use of gurmema, rea.
A0 Ve calion cxpers wo congidered e assumrollons
1ized oy e Yaiaer witin ¢ va. .daiorn. m\.mdmg
_md::rs-'anding IOW LIeSe A “pians ware dove opod.
2a 80 perrormed pencamarking waoere npservan:
narke! ovidence was avat.an.c We chasenged the Vaoer
cgardimg e intpac of D1e regild 0Ty crviraImran: on
uwasior seininen: and dassol va:.es, Woe gtiended meetings
WY I anagoman: and the Vao.ern atwnion oo va'.aton
mendo.ogy and e <oy assunintions were discuLssog
We ona engad el aopreacn (0 e valiaiuons. and e
rationa.c pehind (ne more “l’jllifl:)&]nl va..Al10n ass.mpnons
adovied Waere ass.mpions were ouside (e exoccled
rangs, we L nderioog turiaer invesagattons, hcd farimer
disessions with e Va ser and ooiainad avidence o
k J00r oxo.anations recelvad We a'so oha oigad e
OFS A8 10 010 8XIigN: TIeV Nave @gon into accouan e
iipac: of cimate ¢nange and reaed ESG considersiong
wiiin e Val.aiuons Toae rs-:s,pons:“: provided oy e
Val.er and suoporing cvidence enaoeed L8 o considoer
e oropery specilic taciors that may nave had an impac!
Ot va L0, InelLding reeen! COmp@arania ransdcions
whaore donrnnnae We cona'tded thar tne assarniions
Lsed oy e Valler were CONSISicn: wita our expeacanons
and comparao. e pencamrarking and marke: ransacion
inforntation tor zaes asse! lyoe

Pata used by the Valuer and legal title

We va idacd e data ssod oy e Valoar and tound aat
was congisien: witn e informanon we asdited This data
included mpuis s ag curren onren: mndexation {CPLor
CPT+17) and COOTT. WIS WE ave agreed on a samp o
0ASLY "0 OXe 58 d(}r‘,‘&,ﬂ enis as par ol oorasdn
Wi We vo Dgd. OWNerse ol prooer.
dependen deed conhnmaions 0 a sam e 0asis,

We coneiuded thal g assiarnoiohs Lscdan e va Lauons
ay e VAL ars wore 8 Rysjelels WO N, Lgac ol e adidence
osamed and e :hf:c o8, 1es wilin ae Annue Reporn are
safficien: and aporopriae We nave No s8.08 0 repor I
resnaet of s war
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the members
of Civitas Social Housing PLC continued

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Ability to continue as a going concern (Continuation
Resolution) (Group and Company)

Reter (o e Going Concarn and Vianuly Slawement,

ne Repor: of ne udi' and Managemaon: Engagement
Commiitce, Note Colng concern n he Group Finanaial
Sraemen:s and P»ote 20. Bagis of preparanon in e Company
Financia. Slaicmen:s.

e Company’s arnc 08 of asgociaion inec.ude a reggeirsmoen:
for tne Board o propose an ordinary resciution a the annza.
genera, mecund folowing tie (5 anniversary trom she
initia. puoilc olfering of e Company tor tne Company 1o
conianue i carren: form e Conimnwaion Reso.uion).

If :ae Contnvation Reso Lion 18 nassed. e Company wi.
conin.a g ousiness 48 Drogenly consiinhaiad and Dropose
TNC SAMS TS0 Lo al every filin ann.al genera: moeing
trerealter If the Contlnuation Resgo Lion 1§ not passad, the
Dircotors wi, ac required witnm six rontis after the dase
o 218 annua.s genera. nreeling, o torm., 8t oTopnsa s

tor consideraion oy 71C shareno ders [or The vo Lntdry
Agaidation. wnlllsation. reorganlsaion or recensiiudtion of
e Conrpany

& Condnuanon Reso Llionis d.e o 0.ACCal e nex
Ann.al Genera. Meoiing on 15 Seoiemoar 2022, whlch is
WiTHIN e going concom assessnien: portod A suUh. T
Dm—]c:ors Aave consilered and azsessed e keinood

ae Continwaiion Reso.con passing and :he nolensia
impaac: on e anliy ol e Contoany o coniin.o as a gonm
concern, The Directors are of 1ne Jicw 1hat e Contlnuation
Resolition Wil ne nassed at the formzomr ing ann..a
genera weeungq. Adduionay tie Dircoiors cxpect Dyadtf

o Contneation Reso.., 1on 15 not passed. an oveni W

¢ Direcrors consider 1o e mgney remote form, anng

and impemening any $.01 0ropnsa.s wo.o d reguire e
Company (o coniin.ge opcrauons for a period ol at .cas:

12 monins from e dae of aporoval of (ne Company's
hnancia. sTazcments

Theanliny 1o COonCinue as @ goIing coucern was idontiiied
a&s a Loy a.di maler given 1aa. i s e first Contin Lation
Reso.anon simae tnoe formasion of tre Comrpany and aere
“sdgemen: o ved In managoments assessmeniin 1e
Adxeinood of 1o Continsanon Reso_Lnon 2assing

We eva' Laied 1he Direciors asscssmen: of gomg concerm
inc.ding e impac: of (ae Contindation Eeso..tion on this
asgessmen:. We considered ine Dircciors’ assessmon: of
e lizeanood of the ConminLation Reso.ion passing As
par! of our ana.ysis we a.so considered the limpac! it 1n¢
Conmmaation Reso.ution did not pass on e goimg concerm
agsassmen:. As par: of tis eva uation, we perlormaed the
following procedures:

e We considered The compostion of the shareholder
reqiser,

e We held discugsions with managemet:. the
Company's main broker, and members of the board o
Jndersiand therr commurnications with shareholders
1n the Company;

e We challengead managemen:'s agsezsmern of the
shareholder hase and share price performance;

e We read the arucles of associazion o understand he
process and aming of evens in the situation where
*he Contnuaasion esolunon were not 7o pass, This
mcluded challenging management's azssssmen: that
“he Company would remain a going concern evern
in the even: where the Coniinuaion asolutlon were
1107 “0 pass. laking o accoudrns the hkely 1mescale
necessary for proposals to be formulated and
implemented.

In addinon o e orocedaras above, we assessod e
disciosures oresonied 1 the Ann.a’ Repor. in re.aion 1o
Jgomg conecrm and e Connnaadtion Reso. L aon and consider
ese .o oe adodaate o erp.ain e resh (g of the Duretiors

assessimant

F.rner awdi procedares and o.r tindings in re
goling conorm arc se: V10 "Cona weions
Going Concern” sociion ne ow

Q.lin




Independent Auditors’ Report to the members
of Civitas Social Housing PLC continued

How we tailored the audit scope

wWe salorad the scope of our awde to ensure that we performed encugh work to be able o gve an apinien on the
financial statements as a whole, taking im:o accouans: the siructure of the Group and the Company, the accouning
processas and conwals and the indastyy o which they operatae

The Group's properies are spread across (58 smantory entiiies with the Group finanaial statements being a
consolidation of these ennnes All work was carned out by the Groap aade team with addizional procedures
performad on the conzolidation o ensure sufficient coverage and appropnate audir evidence for our opimion on the
Group hinancial stazemensts as a whole

Materiality

The scope of our audrr was influanced by our application of masertality. We ser ceramn guanizantve thrasholds for
marenalizy. These ‘ogether with qualizaiive consideraniions. helped us to determine the scope of our audir and the
natare aming and exien: of our audis procedures on the mdiviedaal financial stazement Iine 1tems and disclosures and
in evaluatng the effect of migstatemenss, both indindually and in aggregase on the financial statemeants as a whole,

Based on our professronal judgemen:, we determined matenality for the financial statements as a whole as foliows:

Financial statements — Group Financial statements — Company
Qverall F104 ni1on 2021 £10 4 miaLion® 82 milion 2C21 774 millom
materiality
How we 1% of Toia, agsess 1% of iota. assets
determined it
Rationale for e ey measars ol e Growps perforncance 18 01e The Company's main acuvity 18 sre noding of
benchmark VaLL 20N Ol Myesiment properllaes and e pa.ance nmvesivenisin suosetianes On ais pasts we s,
applied sa00ras awno o Civen s we e an overa, an overa,. Comoany ma:cna ty ove cased on

Groap maleria iy eve oased on 0.a. assas, \0Ta AS8e's

naddmon to overall Group matenalry. a specihic matenalhy was also apuhed o incomes =tatemen: line

1rems thatimpac: Adjusied rofiz Sefore Tax (A2317 which g hased on proft before tax. adiasted o exclude

farr value gains/dilossas) onnvesrment property and denvaives. We set a specific averall mazenaliry level

of #7 5 muilion 2027 F1.5 million), equanng t0 5% of AP31. 'n amving a: thus judgemen: we considered the facs

“hat 423118 a secondary financial indicator of the Group which 18 discloged ag =PRA —armngs in the Anroaat 2epors
{refer «o “he Group Strategic Repor where the term s defined in fulh.

We use performance masenality 1o reduce 10 an appropnately low level the probabihry that the aggregate of

uncorrecied and undetected misstatements exceeds overall matenality Speahbcally, we use performance matenahy

tn determining The scope of our audir and the nature and extent of our tesing of account balances, classes of

ransactions and disclosures, for example in determining sample sizes. Our performances materiality was /5%

(26250 75%) of overall matenahy, amounting 0 £7.8 million (202, £7 8 milhon! for the Group financial stazerments and
&2 mulhon Q027 £49.6 millwon! for the Company iinancial siaremenss.

n determinming the performance mazenalizy, we considered a number of facrors — the history of misstatemenss, risk
assesgment and aggregaton nsk and -he effecniveness of controls — and concluded -ha® an amouan: at the apper end
of our normal range was approprate

We agre=d with the Audir and Managemen: sngagemen: Commuites that we winlld repor: to them missiatements
\

identified durnmg our aurs above £919,000 Group aadhity (0210 F518,000 and £417 200 (Company audin) (2020 FA72.0000 as
wreil as misstazemen:s below those amounts that in our view, warranted repornng for qualranve reasons

n addinon, we agreed with -he Audr and Managemen: “ingagemen: Commitee we would repor: o Them
rmisgtarernants identhied dunng our Group audrr above E/S 000 (2020 E72 000 for misstatements ralated to finanaal

starement hine rems impacung A23T within the financtal statements. as well as rmisstarements helow tha’ amount thas,

11 OMT Views, warranted reporing for qualitanve reasons

g
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the members |

of Civitas Social Housing PLC continued

Conclusions relating to going concern

Our evaluanon of the Jirecrors agsessmean: of the Group's
and ‘he Company's alalizy o conanue o adopt the gomyg
concern basis of accounung included:

e  Corrokorated key assumpnons (eg haquidey forecas:s
and financing arrangemen:s! o anderlying
documenzation and ensured his was consisten: with
ouar audit work in these areas;

¢  Considered managements forecasiing accaracy by
comparing how the forecasts made in the prior year
compare 70 the actual resulis of the curren: year,

e  Lnderswood and asgessed the appropnateness of the
kay assumpiions dzed both in the base case and
“he severe Lu plausible downside scenano, includmg
assessing whether we considered he downside
SENSITIVIIIES 10 De appropriately severs

s Tesied the integnty of the underlying formulas and
calealazions swithin the going concern aricd cash flow
models;

o  Considered the appropnazeness of the mimgaung
actions avallable to management i the even: of the
downside scenano mateniahsing. Specifically, we
focised on whether These achons are wihan the Group ¢
contrel and are achisvable;

o Reviewed the deb: covenan: calcalanons agreeing
he s

o the audited resuls. Addimonally, we have
reviewsd managemen's $Tress tests on the Covenan:s,

e Reviewed the disclosures provided relanng o the gomg
concern asis of preparanon and found thart these
provided an explanalan of the Drectors assessmen:
“har wag consisten: with the evidence we obramed: and

s We have performed proceduares uver the Contiinuanon
Resohrion as detaled in the {ey Audr Yater

3aged on the work we have performed. we have no-
idenufied any ma-enal unceramies refaning o events
or condinons than mdradaally or collecnively. may cass
significant doubt on “he Group's and the Company's
ability o conunue ag a gowng concern for a penod of a-
leas: wrelve months from when the financial s'azemen:s
are auhonsad for 1sgae

1 audining the financial statements, we have concluded
chatthe hirecsors use of the gowng concern basis of
accounng in The preparanon of the irancal statements
1 appropnate,

Sovrever, because no” all future events or condimons can
be predicred. “hos conclusion 1s no™ A guarantes as 2o “he
Group's and the Company & alaliny "o coninue as a gong
CONCErT,

‘nrelation to the Jrecrors reporing on how they have

apphed the UK Corporate Governance Code, we have ;
noching matenal w0 add or draw aenuvon 10 1n relalion to
the recrars’ starement in the financial starements about
whether the Direciors considered 17 appropnate “o adop?

“he going concern basig of accounung.

Our responsibiliites and the regponsibilines of the |
Oirectors with respect 1o going concern are described in
‘he relevan: sechions of This repor:.

Reporting on other information

The otherinformanon comprises all of the informaton
0 the Annaal 2eport other than the finanoal statements
and our Auditors’ repor: thereon. The Jirectors are
responsible for the other informanon Our oprmen on the )
financial statements does not cover “he o her informanon

and, accordingly. we do no? express an audr opinlon or,

excep: 0 the extent otherwise axpherly slated in this

repor:. any form of agsurance thereon.

‘noconnecion with gur audic of the financial stazemenss.
our responsibility s 1o read the other informanon and.,
1 domng 2o, consider whether the otherimformation s
materially mmconsistent with the financlal ¢ a-ements

or our knowleddage obramed 0 the audl;, or otherwize
appears 1o be matenally mis el (f we idennfy

an apparent matenal mconsistancy or matenal
missiatement. we are required o perform procedires
-0 conclude whe her there 15 a maternial missrasement

of the inancial statemen:s or a masenal missiazemean’
of the otherinformasion f based on the work we

have performed, we conclude Tha: there 18 a material
misstatemen: of this arher informanon, we are reguired
o repor that fact We have noting 1o repor: based on
‘hese responsibili

With respec 10 the Group Strateqic Repor and epon of
“he Mreciors, we also considered whether the disclosures
requaired by the UL Companiles Ao 2006 have leen
included.

3ased on our work underaken in the course of ~he audis,
“he Companies A 3006 requaires s also 1o repor cerain
opinions and maters as descnbed below,




Independent Auditors’ Report to the members
of Civitas Social Housing PLC continued

Group Strategic Report and Report of the Directors

noour epinon, based on the work underaken in the course
of the audr, the nformanon grven in the Group Srategic
Repor: and Repor: of the Jireciars for the year ended

33 arch 2022 15 conzistent with the financal stazemenss
and has been prepared n accordonce wrh applhicabie legal
requirements.

11 hghit of the ¥yrnowledge and undersianding of the
Group and Company and thewr environmen: okbtained 1n
the course of the audr, we did notwdentfy any masenal
misstatements in the Group Strawegle Report and eport of
“he Jrectors.

Directors’ Remuneration

noostr opimmon, the par: of the Jirectors Zemuneration
Seport 1o be audited has been properly prepared in
accordance with “he Comparues Act 2006.

Corperate governance statement

The 1snng Rules require Us o review the Nrecrors
STRTEMEeN E IN Teiation o guing coneen, onger-Tenm
wiabilizy and tha: par: of the corporate governance
staternen: relaiing o the Company's complhiance with

the provisions of the L { Corporate Governance Code
gpecified for our review, Qur addrional responsibiliies
with respect w0 the corporate governance STaiemen: as
other informaton are descnbed 10 the Reporing on other
nformanaon secnon of this repor:

3ased on the work underaken as part of our audiz, we
have conchided thas =ach of the follovnng elements of the
corporare governance statemant 1s matenally consistent
with the financial sratements and our knowledge obramed
dunng the audis, and we have nothing matenal -o add or
draw asanion o n relation o

e ‘fhe hrectors confirmaticen tha: they have carrned ous
a robust aggessmens: of the emerging and principal
nsks;

e ‘The disclosures in the Annual Repor: that descnbe
those prineipal nsks, wha* procedures are in place 1o
identify emerging nsks and an explanaton of how
chese are beng marnaged or minigaed:

e The Nhreciors’ staemen: in the financial sTatemeanss
about whether they considered 17 appropriate o
adop: “he going concern basis of accounsing in
preparing them, and ‘hewr idenaheanon of any
mazerial ancerraimies 1o he Group = and Company s
alnlity to conunae 1o do so over a penod of as leass
welve months from the date of anproval of the
financtal statements,

o The Nrectors explananion as o Ther assessment of
‘he Group's and Company's prospec:s. the penod This
: ssmett covers and why the penod g appropriate,

and

o The Jirectors siatemen: as ‘0 whether they have a
reasonable expeacianon that the Company will be abile
O Contide U aperanon and mee: s habihines as Th’c““y’
fall due over the penod of 1's assessmen: inclading
any relared disclogares drawing A*enion 1o any
necessary (qualficailons or assampions.

Our review of the Jiraciory statemens regarding *he
ionger--erm vialaliy of the Group was subszannally

lesg N scope than an audiz and only consizred of
makmg inguiries and considenng the Direciors process
supporing ther statemens; checking thar the statemen:
1510 ahgnment with the relevan: provisions of the LY
Corporate Governance Code: and considenng whether
she statemens: 15 consigiens vath the financial sratemensts
and oar knowledge and understanding of the Group and
Company and therr envitonment obraned in the course
of the auadi.

.t addimon, based on the work underzaken as par of
aar audrs, we have concluded thar each of the following
elaments of tThe comoras governancs siaement is
matenally consisent with the financal statements and
our knowledge obramed dunng “he aud:

e The Jirecrors staremen: that they consider the
Annuaal 2epore, taken as a whole, 1= fawr halanced
and anderstandable, and provides ~he informaton
nzcessary for the members to assess the Group's and
Company's position, performance, business ynodel
and gratedy

e The zecnion of the Annual Repor that describes the
review of effecaveness of nsk managemean: andd
mnrernal control sysemes: and

e The secion of the Annual Repor: descnbing the
work of the Aadht and Management =ngagemean:
Commiesa

We have nohing 1o repor: in respec: of our responsisiry
o reportwhen the Jirectors statement relaning o the
Company's comphance with the Code does no: properly
diisclose a departare from a relevan: provision of the
Code specified under the asang Rules for review by the
Aaditors,
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the members
of Civitas Social Housing PLC continued

Responsibilities for the financial
statements and the audit

Responsibilities of the Directors for the

financial statements

Az explained more fully i the Statement of Directors’
Responsibihues, the Directors are responsible for the
praparainon of the finanoal statements in accordance
with the applicable framework and for being saushed
chas they give a rue and fair view. The Directors are also
regponsible for suchinternal control as they delsrmine
is necessary 0 enable the praparation of frmancial
statements ‘ha: are free from matenal missiaremens,
wheher due o fraud or error.

‘n prepanng the financial statements, the Jrectors are
responsible for agsessing the Group's and the Company's
ability 1o continue as a going concern, disclosing,

ag applicable, matters related o gomg concern and
stneg the going concern basis of accounung unlaess

“he Directors erther intend 2o hgquidate the Group or the
Campany or 1o cease operatlons, or have no realisie
al:ernatlve bt to ({O 50

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements
Oar objectves are 10 obiam reasonable assurance abous
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
marenal misgiatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and toissue an audiors repaor: that imcludes our opinon
Reasonable assurance 18 a hgh level of assurance, bur s
not a gilarantge that an audiz condueied 0 accordance
itk TSAs (U will always detect a matenal missiatemen:
when 17 exisis, Missiaterments can anse from fraud or
error and are considered matenahf incdividaally or i the
aggregare, they could reazonally be expeced o influence
“he economice decismons of asers taken on the bagiz of
“hese financial statemenss.

rregulanues. mclhiding fraud, are imstances of non-
compliance with laws and regulations. We design
procedires i line with our responsitniiies, ouhined
above. o dersct material missiammean’s in respact of
irreghilarrcies, inchuding fraud. The ex-ens o which our
procedures are capable of detectng regularies,
mcluding fraud. s detalled helow,

3ased on our andergranding of “he Group and indusiry,
vre identified that the pnnopal nsks of non-compliance
with laws and regulations related 0 compliance with

“he Real “atate mvestment Tt 22710 atatus Par Y of
“he Corporanon Tax Act 2070 and the UK reguiasory
prnincizles. such as those governed by the “imanaal
Condac: Authonty, and we considered -he extent 1o
which non-comphance migh have a matenal effec: nn
“he finanaal starements We also consicdersd those lavrs
and requlasions “hat have a direc impac on ~he financial

falal

atements such as the Companies Ac 2006

We avaluated management’s incentives and
opporranines for fraudulent rmampulanon of the finanoal
srazements (including the nisk of overnde of consrols).

and determimed tha* the prinapal nsks were related

T0 pOsting mappropnate journal entnes 1o ncreasa
revenue or reduce expenditure, and managemen: bias

N accouning esumaes, In parucuiar the valuanon of
nvesimen: propertes, Audiz procedures performed hy the
engagemen: eam included

e iscussions with management inclading
consideranon of known or suspected instances of
nari-compliance wirh laws and requlasnions and fraud,
and review of ‘he repor:s made by managemens

e LUnderzmandmg of managements internal controls
designed o prevent and detect irregularities;

e Asfessment of matersaf any. reporéed o the Aud
and Vianagemen: “ngagemen: Commtee,

e Feviewing relevan: meeting mimies, inclading
“hose of the 3oard of Directors and the Audiz and
Management -ngagamen: Commitias;

e Review of tax comphance wirrh “he mvolvemen: of our
ax specialigts in the audis

e Jesigning audit proceddres to mcorporase
anprediciakilizy over the nature, uming and exten: of
our cestiing of expenses;

e Crocedures relating 10 the valuanon of iInvesimen:
properies described in the related key audir mater
above, and

o dennifying and tesung journal entnes n paracdlar
any journal entmes posied with amisaal aceouns
combnnanons and words.

There are inheren: hrmizanons 1n ~he aadis proceduares
rdescribed above We are less hkely o become aware of
instaness of non-complunees with iaws and regulasons
shat are no closely related 0 events and sransaciions
reflecred in the financial siatenmernts Also the nizk of not
deectng a matenal missiatemen: due o fraud 1s higher
chan the risk of not deecung one resiling from errar,
as fraud may involve dehlzerate conceatmen: by for
example, forgery ormenioenal misrepresaniaions, or
“hrough collusion

Oar aadit testing mighs incliude “esiing complets
populatong of ceriain ransacnons and balances,
possibly using data audiing technicnies =owever 1
wypiweally involves selecuing a hmited number of tems for
cesing. rather than tesiing complete populations We will
ofren seek 10 targe: paracular rems for tesing based on
“helr size or nisk characensies, .n other cases, we will
gse audlr sampling co enable us 1o draw a conclasion
abour the pepulanon from which the sample s selec-ad

A Birher dezenplion of our responsibihines for the
audit of the finanaal starements g located on the 730
websie am wwrafroorgiak/aadeorgresponsibilinies. Ths
descripion forms par of our audrors repors




Independent Auditors’ Report to the members
of Civitas Social Housing PLC continued

Use of this report

This report including the opimions, has been prepared
for and only for the Company's members as a body
accordance with Chaprer 3 of 2ar: i6 of the Companies
Act 2006 and for no other purposs, We do not, in gqiving
these opininns, accep: or assuie responsibihsy tor any
other purpoge o1 i any other person to whom “his repor:
15 shown or into whose handg 1t may come save wheare
expresshy agreed by our prior consent in wriing.

Other required reporting

Companies Act 2006 exception reperting
Lnder the Companmes Act 2006 we are requured 10 repor:
o yoeufan our opmon

e we have no: nobiamned all the informanion ancd
explananions we recare for our audiz or

o adeqguate accouning records have nos been kep: by
“he Company, or returns adequaase for our audrs have
no: been received from branches nor visced by as; or

o cermm disclosares of hrec;ors’ remunerziicn
specihed by law are no: made; or

¢ he Company financial s1atemenss and the par: of
The Jireciors’ Remuneranan iepor o be audited are
not it agreemen: with the accouniing records and
renirns.

We have no excepnons o tepoart ansing from this
responstbility

Appointment

Jollovwning the recommendanon of he Aade and
Vanagemen: sngagement Commities we were
appointed by the members on 37 Varch 20°7 10 audy” the
financial srarements for the penod ended 27 November
2076 and subsequen: financial penods, The penod of
sotal urinterrapred engagement 18 6 years, covenndg the
penads ended "7 Navember 2075 1o & March 2072

Other matter

n due course, as required by the “mancial Conducs
Authonty 2sclosure Guidance and Transparency ile

A4 04AR, these hinancial statements will form par of the
SEED prepared anhual tinancial repor: filed on the
Nanonal S:orage Mecharsm of the Mnancal Conduct
Authortty in accordance wrth the =85 Regulatory
Technical S:andard (350 TS This Auditors’ report
vrovidas na agsurance over whether the annaal finanaal
repors will be prepared using the single electronie formas
specified 1n the FESESRTS

Ml

Saira Choudhry {(Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of ricewaterhous=Coopers W52
Chariered Accouniants and swatdiory Audrors

~ondon

29 Jane 2002
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Consolidated Statement of

Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 March 2022

Revenue
Renal income

Lews dit

0OETY CXDENSes

Net rental income

Tnreciors remunaraion

Inves: ment advisory fecs

General and adminisirauve oxpenscs

TJa:l expenses

Coange in fawr va .o of vesuran: prooernics

Operating profit
Financo mncome
Finance exponse

Cnangc in tair va..e of interes: rate denvatives

Profit before tax

Taxannmn

Profit being total comprehensive income {or the year

Earni;gé per sl';are -~ b_asic an?:l-d_ilute)d -

For the

yeurt ended
J1 March 2021
£'000

49,070
(175
47.845

(198)

H 17
(3.183)

" (9.498)

35075

Tor the
year ended
31March 2022
_Note . Fom
5.0 51,636
52 @7®)
50,658
60 {208)
80 (6,132)
96 (3.909)
(10,247)
150 12269
52,680
120 7
G (10,608}
no 267
44,754
12.0 -

) 44754 3HO7
e 723

A amouns rapored in e Consondaed Staencns of Comprehensive Theon e anove arise from conun.,ing operations,

T2 noieg on pages 9% 10 117 are an ncegra. vart of inese ¢onse.idated financia. stateman’s
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 March 2022

As§ets
Non-current assets
Invesimen: propery
Ouaer receivables

Intercsi rate derivatives

Current assets

Trade and other receivab es

Cash and cash equiva.cnis

Total assets-

Liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other nayanies

Ban¥k and [oan porrowings

Non-current liabilities
Ban< and .0an Dorowings

Tnteras: rawe denvatives

Total net assets

Equity

Soare caoi.a.

Share OIomliL rascrve
Cagria. redaciion reserve

Raotamed earnings

Total equity

Net assets per share — basic and diluted

Taese consoadaed financia. siaiemoenis on pages 89 to 117 were
PLC and asiorised {oriss.c and signed on s pena | oy

Michael Wrobel

Caairman and Independan: Ton-Txeo .

29 1.ne 2022

Com oany o 10402528

Ve Dhreoor

e nowes on 2ages 93 o 7 arc an mnwgra par of acse conso dated nanoia.] SaRmens

31 March 2022
I L

_ _ Nate
150 945237
170 23,519
a0 2131
970,887
170 12,865
1a.0 53,337
66,202
190 (9.492)
00 -
(9,492)
00 (352,050)
210 -
(352,050)
678547
3.0 6,225
30 292626
A 322,365
_ 250 54,351
675,547

250 110.30p

3T Malch 2021
[

893.684
21305

915589

12821
107.087
{19918

1,037.089 1035507

19.345)
(59.937)
(69.282)

1232.18%)
(344)

$297.727)

(361.542)  (352.009)

573438

108300
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the vear ended 31 March 2022

Share Capital

Share premoum reduction Retained Total

o o S now  Caen “Fewn  "Ees UENE T
Balance at 1 Aprﬂ 2020 5.225 292405 330,928 41008 570.564
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year - 20075 RLEM
Shares reiss aed from treasury 58 214 &
Dividends paid ~ B - o o 114 - S EA1E (33415
Balanceat3 March2021 535 292483 33L1C 43670 573498
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year - - - 44,754 44,754
Shares reisswed from iteasury - 163 484 - 047
Saafos houghl Dacy I reasary - - (9,259) - (9,259)
Dividends pakd Mo - - - (34,093) (34,093

7 e225 292626 322365 54331 675547

iiaila.lzceiai .”31 i&irch_ 2022 )
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BT AND ACCOUNTS 2022

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 March 2022

Cash flows from operating activities

Protit for the year vefore taxation
Change in fair value of invesimen: properiies

~ Change in fair va..o of nieres: raie derivailves
Rent and incenuve sralgnt line ad;usurents

~ Bad dep: (crediti/expense

Finance income

Finance expensse

Increase in 'easc incenive rocevablo

Increase 1n rade and ooer recevanies

(Decreaseiincrease in rade and o.her payables

Cash generated from operations
Inieres. recaived

Net cash flow geherated from df;eratiné activities

Investing activities

Purcnase ol inves:nren: proger.ies

Acquistion costs

Pircnase ol snosidiary - ino.uding property

Sa.c orocecds on sa.e of suosidiary - exco.ding oropery
Twsanon of rosricied casn e A tor invesiing aciivines
Net cash flow used in investing activities B . _
Financing activities

Cos: of shares 00,907 N0 reasury

Procecds front shares reissued from treasary

Drndends pald o equivy sharcno.ders

Ban< oorrowings advanced

Ban« norrowing issue cosis pald

In:erest and sec.urity fees naid on nans norrowings and denvaives

ﬁe::asﬂ ﬂ;v (used_in).;gexgra{éd E:m financ;ing activities
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents

Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents at the start of the year
Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

The notes on pages 33 0 117 are an integral part of theage consolidated financial siatements

Tor the

year ended

31 March 2022

Note . E000

44,754

(12,269)
(2.675)

397

50 a7
@

10.608
2,011

(236)
(1062)

T 37482
7

37.489

(27.695)
(1,640}

(13,559)
2,695

529

(9.259)
919
(33.928)

200 -

(1,805)

(8.590)

_(62.663)

(54.844)
18.0 103,819

[BC 48,975

@670

For the

vear endoed
31 Match 2021
Eann

58

289
20
2737
e
{3.130)
1755
26099
R

25119

(19452)
(938)

14237
15.168)

(33.319
84,55
(2,811)
5381
42439



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2022

Civias Socian [If)m.lng PIC e "Company’) was incorooraiad i England and Wales under ine Companics Ac 2606 48 a pLoic
company Jdmied oy shares on 22 Sepremoer 2615 wiin company n.mber 10402528 Lnder 1ne name Civitay REIT PLC, whica was
s.bsequenty changed 0 ine exisimg name on 3 Ociooear 2018,

The address of the registered otlice 15 Bea ufort House, 5t Now Noria Road, Exeter Devon TXA4 AP The Company is reglsiered as an
invesiment company .nrlar section 833 of (e Comparues Act 2005 in Eng.and and Wa.es and 1s domicted in :he Tnited Kingdom,

Tne Company did not oegin rading Jnil 18 Novemper 2016 waen the shares weare admited (o ‘rading on e London Stocg
Fxchange (L3070

The Comrgpany's Ordinary shares are admited 1o e Officia. List of tne Finangial Conduc: Adnorny {('FCAY and raded on
the LSE

Tne pnnaipa. acivity ol the Comrpany and e suosidianes (the "Croup™} s 10 nrovide saarenaiders wish an diuractive ove! of
Income. logeiier wiin ine porentia. for capita. grow:h from invesing in a porfolio of social nomes.

T Prsan i prapaeaing

Cn 31 Decemper 2020 F.J-adO’T.ETd niematona Financia. Reporiing S:andards TFRS was nrought into UK .aw and nccame
JK-adopied Intematona Accownning S:andards. wiil futlre ¢hanges o IFRS peing suojec: ‘o endorsemen: oy e UK
Cndarsemen: Board. Tne consolidaied tinancia. stacmernt:s nave ‘ransidioned o JE-adop:cd Inicrnaitona. Acco.niing
sStandards for e year ended 31 March 2622 This mange CONSNLIeS a cnande in accounting framewors. However Diere is no
impac: on recogniion. nreas remant or disclosure In ne year reporied as a resw | of 7@ ¢hange in framewors

The linanciai stalemoenis are prepared in accordance wiin UK-adopted Tnternattonal Accouniing Siandards and e applican o
cgal requireirents of 1ne Companies Act 2006,
The Crouap's consolidatad financia. staeimonis nave oeen preparcd on a hismorical cost pasis, as madilied for tho Group's
invesiment progerties and derivauve financial insiromen's at fair vai.e through profi or 'oss.
The Growp nas chosen 0 adop: EPRA pes! pracuca gaide'ines tor calcyiaiing <ey a'ternative perflormance meas.res. 71050 ars
discoosed on nage 36 wiih supporting ca.cd.alions in Agspandix 1 on pages 179 10 13

Tne financial 11110rma 1N 18 DIEsCTe d in F‘cm.nd“ ering waicn s a 50 e luneuona' currency of e Company. and a ! va..os
g ronnded o e nedres! ogsand po.wands (UGC0s), excepn: wacre olhorwise indicated.

[N
Tre (‘m il uomil 8 trom 4 secure INCome sirearm Irom .ong .€ases with (he Approved Providers and orescn: a wo . -diversiticd
risg. Tae Growo's cash ba.ances as a2 31 Maren 2037 were 53337 000 of wiich F4 362,000 was a2 d as resicieiod casa, Detals ot

g can ac foand in noic 18 6.

"_“:1@ Company and 115 Invesimen! Adviser. Civitas Invesmran: Managemen: Limited ("CIM™) continue 0 work C.ose.y whn

e Coampany's na or coanletparies 1o monior the pogition oh e gro.nd and shou.d it pe neaded. 1o olfer assisiance and
gJ’ian"f‘ waere possio.C The Beard of Direciors pe.jovos inas (e Company operates a ron.s: and defensive busimess modoe.
and 1na: socia. hiousing and spacialis: heallhcare are proving o oe same ol 110 more résiien: secols wiihin the mare:. given
nal ey are pased on non-discrecttonary vun.ic secior expenditire and mat demand exceeds sLpny.

In Novemoer 2021 e fadlily witn HSTRC Ban« pua was exiended o Novemner 2023 In May 2027 1ne [aciay wiia Loyds Bang p.o
was exiended o Tuy 2044

Casn fow torecass oased on scvere bl D'auwsio.e downside scenarnos 1ave ogen run, in oardoes ar (a2 linancla. perfornance
of renants and a redaciion in rent. As at 31 March 2027, tne rent wou d nave 10 drop 9y dpproXimacely 29% befors its oan
covenan: s areacnad. AT the daie of approva of Kus report. e Company nas suostantal neadroom wisun 73 fmancla. .oqan
covenans. The Company aso penelis front a socure income sircar (rom 0ases with Ong average anexpircd lenm oases. As
a rosw.l e Direeiors ocove tat ine Croud is wel paaced 10 mandg:s 08 iirmn"lng and omnar o.siness ris<s and as the Gro oo
WL TQITAIN VIAA.C CONnuIng 1o ogerac and ot 1y laoties as ey ta. d.

Tace Company's arac.es of assoriaion ing ade a requiremant for 1he Board (0 0ropose an otdinary rose LUon &l Lae annLa.
gonera meeund osowing e filth anniversary [rom the iniia’ o.aoac offering of tne Company for iae Company (o conin.e in
i current forne {1 Contnuation Reso,aion). "mis s e hrgt conanaarion vole since e Conpany was se! oo

i e Conimuaion Resolution 15 passed. the Company wi - Coniin.e is ouyiness as oresendy cons iieied and proposs e
same reso wiion al every fifin annaa’ general wecang Lercalier If e Contincaton Roso.uiion 1s no: passed, tno Direoeiors wi
ne requlrad, witllhin s1x monthg atier the date of 1hig anh.a. dencerasmocing. 1o oIt ae proposa s lor consideration oy 1he
saarcianders for mo vo.aniary Aq.idation. Jnitisalon reQrgydanisaion, or recons . aon ol e Cotrpany

(k)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Continued

Afrer rraking approstiaze sndguiries of inc Company's nrocers and Invesimaon: Adviser, garsuant o Jieir recent discassions
Wit a fatoer of Jre Corrndny's shareno.ders, (aa Direciors are of Lie view had che Conanuailon Resa.dion wil. be vassed
at e forncoming annua. genera. meeandg. Taus ref.ocy the sirength and natwre of e Company's dorifo.io. and specifically
“he provision of .ong-term acconumodation for more inan 4,000 v nerab,e individ.a’s, According’y. tne Direciors expect
as il the Continuasion Resoluiion Is not vassed. an even: which tne Direciors consider 0 oe nigay remo:e, lormulating and
np.ementing any s.ich oroposals woi.d require the Company 10 contin.e operations tor a period ot at east 12 monias from
ihe date of approva. ot (e Company's financial stalentens

e Board is, theretore, of the opinion hat e going concern basis adopted in e oreparaiion of the conso.ddaicd financia.
emen's is approotiae

£y Mew saredardesamendmaety aod muerpretainas

Tae folowing now standards are now affective and aave been adopied tor e year ondead 31 Maroa 2022

e Interest Rate Benchmark Reform ~ Phase 2: Amendments to IFRS 9 ‘Financial instruments’, IAS 39 ‘Financial
Instruments; Recognition and Measurement’, IFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosures’, IFRS 4 ‘Insurance Contracts’
and IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ (cftaciive for periods peginnming on or ater L Janaary 20210 Thgse amondmen:s address 1ss.es 1nas

miga* affec financia. reporing whien an xiging inleres: rate pencgamars 1s replaced with an a.ernalive peneamar<

ieres: rate. Tae Gro.n's oorrowings wia Layds Bank poo and TISBC Bany PLC and Natonai Wesiminsier Bang P.o have

ransinoned from e London Inernand Giler Rate (LIBORY bencamart 1o 11e Sierang OGvernigh: Index Avarage (SONTA)

pencamar<. The ransition h1as no: .ed (0 a maena. cnange in overa., DOrrowing coss

My
I 5.

. . HEN . S T A O L S IR IR T I B R S P TR R S ) A
e focowing are new sandards. inlerpretd ions and amendmean s, w e are not ye! elfecive and wve not osen eary
adeoed in tas linancia’ intormation. mat wi'. or may nave an effec: on ine Growp's fuiare [inancia. slalemenis:

¢ Amendments to IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements (etfecive lor periods neginning on or abier ! January 2022)
carihes thar dapiiies are c.assified as ciier curren: or non-carrent. depending on e ngns Shal oxdst al e end of the
reooriing oeriod and no: expociazions ol or act.d. events alier e reporing date The amendments a.so give cdritication
o ae definion of seemen: of a daclisy The amendmens are no: expsceied o qave @ signidican: imopact on ne
preparaton of ne inanaa statemenis.

e Amendments to IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations’ (clfzciive [or periods oegimmning on or afar1January 2672y gives
coardicanon on tae racognivion of conungen: labiides al acg.asinon and coanfics 1aal conangen: asses sno.L.d no! ne
recognised a: e acgaisiion date The arendments are no: expected o nave a significantimpact on tne oraparaion of
e financia. sia.emen’s.

+ Amendmentis to 1AS 37 ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’ {effeciive for senods negmmng on
oralierljanuary 20220 gwves clariflicanon on cosis 'o me.nde in estimating e cost of fuling a contrac: for (e purpose
ol a83088INY WIETICT .1a0 CONL Al 18 oneroas T amendments are no: expocied 1o nave a significant impac: on ae

oreparation of 1ne fihaucia. statements

¢ Amendments to IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ (citecuve (or perods ocginning on or abicr T Jan.ary 2G22)  glves
canfication on e fees anen iy inc.udes wnon a sirgg whotner neerms of a new or prodiiied tinanaa, 1aof 10y are
s.ogiania. y ditferen: from e erms of e ongina. gaoi by The amandirenis are not axponied 10 Qave a significan:
IM.0act an e prepatation of 1ne hinancia. staemen:s.

+ Amendments to 1AS | '‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ :oftecuve for poriods noginning on or atizrllan.aary
13} are Intended o Ne.p enilies in deciding waleh accoan:ing poaies "o disc.ose Inoeir financia sialemonts Tag
AmendInaens are not expecied 10 nave a significan: imopac on ne oreparation of (a0 financia saemaonts

¢ Amendments to IAS 8 ‘Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors’ (effccive tor oeriads
osginming on or afier ]an.ary 20230 inrod.ce o detiniiion of an accouning esidmaic and inc Ldo omneramendmenss
10 elp eniaes distingulsn Jhanges Inacto.ning asumaes fron cnangoes in aceaoniing poacies The amendimanty are

nol expeciod 10 nave a significan: uroac: on Tie oreparation of nc financia. slalcmen:s

R T L ORI L

IFRS 8 Cperaiing Segmunis reg.ires oocrating segmen s (o oc idenafizd on sae pasis ot inferna hnancia. reporis 400 .0
comoonenis Ot e Gro Lo t0at are reg L.ar y reviewed oy tac Cact Ogeranng Decimion Mador wnen in e Crowe’
de.cgaed "o ae Invesuren: Adviser wiy aas formed an Lxac . ve Teart morder (o @ 00ais e scgnen:
a9%£58 gir ocriormanace

s

and o

Tacomierna. hnancia repors reccived oy e inves rent Advisor e Teamr coltain nancia., mfsrreation ata Grown
Cwe. as a waos and ere dre no reconat ing nems oalwean Lo reyL IR roramned in aoso reporis and o amauntE regored
in as consoadaed finandia siawmon:s



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Continued

T1e Directors consider the Group's propery poridfodo represenis a coneren: and diversified oordolio with simi ar economic
Characierigiics and as a resd., e wao.c portfolio of oroperlics represents a sing.e opcraundg segment, In the view ol 11c
Direciers incre 18 according 'y one reporan.e segimont Lider the provisions of IFRS 8

AL of tne Croup's properies dare pased in ine UK Geograpruca! information is orovided o ensure complianae with the
diversification reqareniaenis of the Conrpanv, 0.her (nan “fus no geograohica Juoaping tscontamed in any of the interna!
firancia. repors provided 1o the Invesimeni Adviser's Execuiive Team and, therefore no geographica. segnienia: ana'ysis is
required oy IFRS 8.

The Direclors noie e regarerrents in IFRS 8 Paragrann 34 pertaining o entinies Lnder common coniro, and confirm :hat
oo Auck.and Home Solutjons and Quaias Housing {as lesyecs of the Company's invesimen: rea’ esiate) are under commeon
conira. of The Social Housing Fanti y CIC (TSHE) The gercentage and sum oz of the Company's ann.ai ren? ro,, portaining
[0 Lacse couniarparies as il they were constdered o be a ‘singlo customer’ can bo fouand in note 28.0 and on page 16 of 1ae
Annaa’ Ropor.

I A R N B L I PRI EN

Fa Bivioroe
Inneapndicaion of e Groups acoouniing poicies. waen are descriped in note 40 e ireciors are regaired o mage
Cudgemernss. esumaes cmd A55LMOIONS ano.! 0 carrying amounts of asse's and riaoiides nal are no! readi.y apparen:

Irom other sources. 7he ‘;dgnn‘cn'q estmaes and assoclated ASSUINIDIONS tha: aave a sxgrn[}.an‘ rise of \_éiuhlﬂg a ma'eria!

B3l i b e e g

ad ssimen: "o ne carrying amounis of assers and Jabliiios wihin tac tnancia. year are oulmed ogiow:
Tttt 3, [ [DUTEE TR W Sty i T

The Group uses ‘10 va.aation carricd 04t oy 118 lnde"wnd nlva.uer as e tar vaiue of iis oroperny porito.io Tae va..ailonis
nased .pon assumotons inc.ading future rental income and e approonae disco.n: rate. T ValLers 4 50 1maxke relerenace 1o
narke: m’ldencc—z ol rransaciion prices for surrar properics. Furiner informacion is provided innoe 15 C.

The Cro.o's properaes 1ave acen indepondent'y valued oy Jones Lang Lasalce Limued CILL or tae "Va wer’) i accordanaes
wiin e corrent Roya, Inguscion of Charered Surveyors” Va. aaon  Goooa. Siandards, incorporaung (he IVS and tne RICS
Vaeation Cona Sandards 2017 UK nationa. suooemen! (17e RICS "Red Boo<y JLL g one of The most recognisad orofessiona.
firms witnin socia. housing va waion and vag sullicion: curren: .oca and nadona. <now cdge of 0o social Joasing gencra.y
and specia’isi Sopporiod Hossing ("SSH) and 1as a0 exlos and wnderstanding o wndoriace (he va, .alons compe.onty.

Wit respect 1o e Growp's congolidated tinanaia siaemens, inves:men. oroperies are va..ed at agir lair val.e at earn
ba.anae saee date inaccardancs with [FPb 13 Fair va we meas.arorans snond og oresaened and classiied Lsing < tair va o
Adgrarenay thalreb o e sighificance of the inpus wsed e medsaromen:s, according 0 e o owing 'ove.s:

Levell Inacf. e, \;uo iom‘m‘f’ar de nl A, auses anfi Jaavites in acive { ;m Ay (] d} mar<

Level 2 Tn,nu 5 oier Tan qLoted pnees inc. Lded witain Leve. 1 1AL ars GoSorvan e for (18 4ssar or aa ')]‘IIV einer dlro" 'y
{t1a:is. as ‘ﬂ’l"ex) or indirec: "("m iz, dC‘[‘l\.’f—” fmI m\ cs)

Level 3 Invas for (e assel or 1anlily atare not Odwd on obhsarvane I’T‘cll’s’ cda.a Lnoosarvas'e inpaest Va Le g e
Direciors oest csimate, pased on advice fron re'ovan. <now.edgeao.e exopors, wse ol recogmesed va..diion
wegannues and a deermination of whlen assampiions saowd ne apglied in va ving suoht assals and wiin
faric. ar foc s onne spealfic anriouies of (18 Invesimen's .1omse . ves.

ro ol eac of e Crowp's myvesimen:s, e pardc. ar roguiremenis of due dugence and financia.
or wiin e recen amrergenee of S anL of tae Croup's INvegimeit 0ronoriies

Clven 1o 0espoLe Bl
cONnrin.don onained [mm e vendord inge
are incooded mlever 3

The Growp acg.dres suosidiaries TOWNINYCEIrEn: DIoperics Al e wme of acg.isition. e Groun considars whother casn
ACLASLI0N FOOrEse N s e acgudsiion ol @ DUsSINeEss Or s acdaseion of an assel Managawen: considars e 8 Inganes of (e
assels and acirsnies of e agguired entity In deormining wie ner Uhe g ISLINN represarnts e acgaisi-ion of a ousmess.

Tae Croap dcco.nis for an acquasidon as a oJsiness comr nination wacre an inwegraed s ol activities is acguirad in addition
L0 e propery. Where sach dagaasidions arc not adged 10 oo ng acguasiion of a 0.siness ey ars not rediod as ousness
conoinguons Painon 100 Cosl 0 at]Luite 1A cOraarale SNy s o ocawd ootwern e idenalian.e assote and daoi vies of e
oniyy nagsed Loon elrre alve lar vaLes ac e acgaisiion date According.y. no goodw or addiziona’ deterred 1ax ansas.

LNOODDY NV 140
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Continued

A. comoraie acquisitions made dunng he year 1ave ocen ireaied &5 assel PLICiases rarier [han oJsingss comroing itons
pecanse no integrated set of acivitics was acguared

During the year tne Group eniered 100 a jransacion o acquire tne freenod properties operaied oy CPI Care Limred. Joon
e acguisimion of the company: (ne properties wers rrangterred Into oner group companiaes and (he company acquired.
a.ong wiin s associated operations. was so.d o Fnvivo Coruand..m Bideo Lirnited Furder detais are shown In note 15648 10 the
financid. giatemaoen:s,

ne detintuon of 4 pasiness wnder IFRS 3. and (e ransacuon way therefore recorded as a

Tne acquired companiss me
puginess combinaiion.

Broadse mne Group acqglired Tae company wiin Tne intent 1o se i e pusiness, managemen: appied (ne short-cut method
Lnder [FR3 5 Subsidiaries geguired witn a view o resade Jnder sus menod. the subsidiary 1s recorded at fair valie less cos's
10 8¢, and there is no regqauenten. w lair va .e the sunsidiary’s individaa. assets and iaoi'ines.

that are $.bool Lo CoMmmercia. property leases witn Approved Providers. The

Cro.o nas determined, pased on an evasauoen of the orms and condivons of e drtangemon:s. paricu.ary (nc durauon

ol 1@ ‘qase lerms and mnman .easc gaymen:s, tnat L reiang a.. ne signitican: ris<s and rewards ol ownersno of ;aesc

properies and so accaunts [or the cases as operating .cases. .

St

T . R DI I N SO U VY SO

: Gl EDE B
Civitas Socia. Flowsing PLC is a Rea. Bstate [nvesinien: Trus: (ROTTL The UK RO regime appdes whaen entilies nreet ceriain
condl.ions witn (e effoer that the income orofiis and capial gains of (he Qua ifying properiy ronta: business are oxempt rom
ax Within these conditions a: ‘eas: 907 ol 1he Croun's progery Income mus. oo disuibuced as dividends o Sharcho.ders
and 110 Group Must eNgLre 11al e Hropory renta. 0.Lsiness regresen s more an 75¥ of tola. profis and assews Tuig
managemens’s Ldgemen: as e Croun wi., conunae (o 4.adfy as a REIT for the foresecabe Luiure,

B IR F T e B T
Tae principa) acto.ning pehces aop.ied in iae preparaion of Le consoddaed financia. siatoiments are el oLl oe.0w. The '
DO.ILIES 1aVEe Deen Consisient.y anpdced o a . perods preseniod, SN €85 oLIGrwise stated,

T T TP B
- [EAREANTY

ar end dawe

= financia. mtormaion of e Grouo as al e y

Tace conso idaed findncia. saemen:s COIMPris

Fapsidianes arc a _enungs over wiken e Gro.o Nas coniro’. Tac oL Conao.s an enntly waen e Groun s oxposed o
O 1as g% 10 VATame IoLLIMs ol 1S invo vemen. witn (e enitiiy and nas Sie apiliy o affoct iose retumns (ro.ga s
oower o direc 1nc aclivities of Tae entiiy AL iniIa-gro.n rangacillons. pa anced mnmoome and expenses arc e ammnaicd on
conso.ddaion. Tae inancia. mformaucn of (ae subsidianes 1s el sded in De consohidated financia. statenenss rom tne dase
LTI CONTT. COMITenees L nid tna daw 1al coniro. ceases

[f an cq.tty imaerasiin a s.osidiary 1s ranslerrcd po a conro ing ULeres: Coniin.egs 1o o ac.d alier e trangier -nen e

Clanga in ownarsio iniercs: 1s accoanicd toras a 10 Y ransaciion

ACCOLNING poacies of tne soogidiaries are consisien: witn e poaciss adopied oy Tnc Company

- IR DT AT o

o cdarn renia’s and/or for caova anorecianon, isanita.y meas.rcd at cos, oeing
conat s directy atriowan.c o e acgaisition of g invcsiren:
Qe wa.anee sneeldate Caing and ossoes

or osg for the penodan walecn sy ansan

Invesimen: oropery. wiicn 18 Dropery
e farrva e of tne consideranion given i Lding .
oropeny Aller inila recognifion. IMVEsuron: pronery & s:ated at '8 ldir va. . e 4.
arising from cnangaes inine fair va Lo of invesiraen: progery are imna. .dod i orofic
e Consoddated 3tacmen: of Conorenansive [NTon's

a. tuT.r2 Coonomic oenotis are associaad exocndiiare
DONSEs Are not casiia wsed

Suoseq.on expendiiare s capradsed onLy When 1S 5rooao o
Ongoing regairs and mrainronance are exoensed as incurred Cveraeads and operating €x

Annv/esiunant proper.y 15 derecogmised Loon disposa or waen e iy Men: arape s pormanen. 7 wiadrawn tron Lse
and no fuiure coonorus genclis are exoecied from “ag disposa Ay gain or 485 4risig on derecognuian of e proper’y
(za.cs aed as ne dlforence oeiween e net disposa. proceods and no carryng anrouwn: of e assel s inearredn profi or
AI88 (e period mownuan e progerty s derccognisaa

Significan: aceo.ning  wdgemenis, cswra
Innowe 361

2 andg ass . malions made for




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Continued

EA

Leases are cassified as finance .easecs whencver Lnc iones of s iease ranstor sL.osanial’v a.. the risgs and rewards of
ownershio o Ine assec Al oihor eases are clagsificd as operating .cases.

The Company 1as determined thai i retains alt e significant nsks and rewards ol ownership of (0e prooernieg and aaoo.mis
for ¢ coniracts as operaldng easrs as discusecd 1 noe 3.5,

Properties .cased out ander aperating eascs are inciuded winvestmen nroperty i the Congolidaled Statemen: of Findancia.
Position Rental income from operating .cases is recogniscd on d straign: .mne pasts over e e of (e ro.evan: leascs.

Lease inceontive cosis are recogrused as an assgr and amorsised over the life of ine iease

G b Frinesiot assoln

B S L T

The Crolo ¢ asstfies s financiar asse's in the o lowing meds.arcinen: ca cgones:

s hosc o ge measared sabseqaent y al fair va ue {eliner throsgh olhict compronensive income or tarenga profic or ossk and
e [nouge o pe measared ar amorised cosl

Theo classificanon deoends on e entiy 8 pusiness srade for ranaging e finandia, assels and e coniraciua, erms of e
casn fows For asseie measured al falr va.de gamns and (0ssas wi. cilacer be recorded in orofi. or (0ss or 01108 comprenansive
income.

Trade and oiner rocelvan es are amouns due in the ordinary course of ousiness. [f codeciion is expecied in One vear or .oss,
“aey are cassitied as current asseis If non Doy are presenied as ol cJrrent Asses.

Trade receivan ©8 are recoygnised inilda. vl fair va.ue and suosogaen. y are measered at amortised cost wsing e ellective
interes: meinod, less impairment grovigion The Crowg noods 1A2 rade receivad es wiin e 00 eclive 1o co Lol The conracLa’

casn f.ows

The Groaps nanoial assels are s.oect (0 e cxpecied credil .oss mode!

For rrade recewvables, the Grogp app og e sirpaficd approaca permiiied ay [FRS 9. wineh roguiras expecied ifoame osses
L3 00 recognised from inita’ recogniion of The recoivan

017 monss ocfors 31 March
1 chis period. The alstornca.

The cxpecicd Loss rates are oasad on the paymen: protues of lcase incolre over a ooriod of .
2022 or VAprL 2071 respectively. and Lae corresponding nisioncal credl osses exneriencod w
Jossrawes are ad_usied to reliec: carren: and forward- ooking information on macrocconomic lacors attecing e 'iani 1y

of (ne wonanty w0 selle InC recelvan e Sucn lorward-iooging Intornaion wou d inc.oder cnanges m economic, reg.alaory.
=onno.ogica and environmcen:g' tacors (s.on ag indusiry oLLoo< GDE employnten: and 0o lacsh exierna mar<e: indicators
and @an4dan: basa

the assessmen: and e speciflic work that s wnderway arownd cooeclion of agoed arrears, a orovision ol
239000 (2021 £2535.4C0) nas beenrefeced inthe ann .a rosd.s

Trade recolvanies are wiliion ofl Whan tnere s no rLasonas.e expociaion o recovery.

Ly ot ingosvenay or
scd as .nooecune

[ndirators that taere is no reasonabe expociaion of recovery e Lde, amaong 91ners, (a0 arana
significan: linancla. diffics os of Loe depor Impaired depts are derecognized wichn ey arc a

Casn and casn equiva.onis incuds casn i rand. cash 1e.d oy awyers dind dqardiny fands wiih a e ol 1o more (nan aree
MOlas |l arg readiy converinic 20 a «ndown an:.n: ot ¢as and wineh are 5000000 an insignifican: T1s< o enanges in va. . e

Resiricied casn represenis amo.n:s hed for spealdic commriiments. tenan: deposics and reention moncy eld oy awyers 1n
reaion 0 deterrod paymens suoicet "o achleveraen: of ceriain condiions. oiaor reiencions and casa sayregased o tund
<p e ganslac ory standards tor tne Croup and 10e lonanss.

regair mainenanage and Improvemon: wor<s 1 Drng the orasories

UNESELOH TV IS SV.L)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Continued

[P SRR L S H 3 .
Derivaiive tinancia’ ingir.ments. winch comprise tmierest rate swaps lor hedding purposes, are ina.y recognised at fair va.ae
at acquisizion and are subsequenty measared at lair valae, oeing e esimaled amoun: thal the Group woud receive or pay
10 sei! orransfor the agreement a: ne period ond date. taking Into actoun: Current interest rate oxpecialions and e cLIrent
credit rating of the .ender and 1is counierpartics. The iNSTUNen: may oe an asse! or a lapility The gain or 'oss at eacn fair

va .e remeaswrement date is recognised in the Group's Consoidaed Statement of Comprehensive Income.

L

The GrolLp uges valLalon oeaniquLes tas are aporopriate in the circumsiances and tor which suificient data s avalan.c
10 measure falr val.e, maximsing ;e use of relevant onservan.e inpas and minimising the use of unopservaop.e inpats
significan: (o e fair valle moasuremean: as a wao.c.

(her tnan doerivanve financia: insirumen:s waich are no. designated as nedging insiruments. the Groun docs not have any
asses neld for rading nor does i voluniari y classily any financial assets as ocing at fair va ie (iroLgn protis or oss.

BTN SRURL R
The Crown recogniscs a tinanoia! liapilily waoen it first oecomes a parly 1o e contraci.al righ:s and coagalons in the

conirac:

Al financia, [dapilies are runal v recognised a. tair va.ce. minus (n e case ol a iinancia. Jabiliy thatis not at fair va.ue .
throw.gh profit or .oss) Tansaciion <os s Jhat are direcl.y atrig.aan.e (018s.0ng Ve financia lability Financial lJabiiics are

sunsequan.y measured ar aroriiged cogt an ess “he Group opiad 10 Ineasure a laodiny &t talr vaiue trowgh orofit or loss.

Alinancia aanLny s derecognised waen the opagadion wnder he labiiy s discnargoed. cancelied or expires.
¥ &

T Lot

Trade and otner dayaolcs are classified as curren: liaol.iles if paymen: is due wiimn one year or ess If not iney arc presenied
as non-cutren: laoi.ites. Trade and other payao.ss arc recognised initaly atacirn lair va 2 and sunscqacnily measared a:
amorased cost Lhii setted. Tae fair vallc of a non-nteres: searing Jaoi iy is s disconnied repaymont amaound If e duce
dae of e aabliiy i

g Aferiniia.
od Any

S.atamen: of

Lriosacle ransaciion cos!
» offeciive inleres: m
od TaroLg e Grog

A pan< and 2rmer oorrowings are inbia.y racognised a: tair va..e
eTognilon. a pank and omner porrowings are measarad atanort
ATNDLIEDE  TANSACTON COSS 1E€.aling 10 N8 1S540 01 210 DANL DOIrowings are amon

Comoprchenstve Tncome aover Do ife of e dear meramer, on a siragn- ine sasis

Doerivaive hinanaia insrumenss may e a linancia. asse: or a financia’ jaoiiny Pease reler 10 11e accouning o010y it note 1.4
for detar's

Troen g 0

RS
Prowisions are recognised when Sic Group nds a present 0o.1ganon { ogal O Consir.oive) ag a resu.t of a past event it 1s
Dropan.e at e Gro.s wil se requared o seile mal oolgaton and a relao.e estimaie can o2 wade of ing amoun of e

on.igaion

1c amoLn. recogmsed ag a provision is e bes: esumate of (ne consideralon regared o8 TG oresont onldganon al i

Da’ance snee’ <dng in accoun: s and .ncar. surrmianding e oo gation

F T e i
3. Us b

Taxalon on e profil or oss [or 12 period not exam o Lndar JK REIT rega.anons is compnsad of correns and deterred tax Tax
is recogmsed 10 fae Conso idaed Staemen: of Camprononsive Inedmre age He RCar N eh ot 1 N e recognised
as a dirce: noVenen: in eg.L iyt wmien case iTis recogmised as a direcs movoment in equry Carrenlaxas expesied ax
payao.e on any non-REIT -axaov.e income tor :ha period. Lsing 1ax rates enaciod Or SL081a1N07C. Y enaciad dl 10e 04 ance sage!
dae.and any ad Letment 1o ax payao.e in resaect of previo.s penods

@ CUTrenT ax coaargo i
cnars

coated on profiig ariaing o e penod and inaccordance wiel Sgis.aUon WoucT 1as nean

ed or s.osaniia. s cnacied at e ga ance sheet dae

Doferred ax s provided on ter porary ditlerences getwesn e carryng arvonn:s of assels and qaaiides lor financia
reporing owrooses and e amro.wnis ssed for taxason purooses Te amoun: ol delerred tax taatis providoed 1 oased on

e expesied manncet of realsation or se Do e carrying amoon: of asses and haninies. Lsing tax raes cnaced or
suwnsanivey cnaced al 1e na ance sacel dae




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Continued

Coamsetat T Tt
The Grou0s 0ojecTIves wneT Managing canta. are .o safeguard e Croud's annty o contin.e as a going concern in ordor 1o
orovide retimns for shareho.ders and ‘o mainiain an opimal capital siroctiure o reduce the cost of capiia..

Capita’ agsels comprise e to owing

31March 2022 31 March ;(121
£00G oo

675,547 573498

Ban< and .0an norrowings 352,050 352120

Total - ' _ ' - N 1027597 1025618

Procecds fron: the isswe ot Qrdinary s:

Unin the Grodp s flly invesied and pending re-investmen: or disirioauon of casn receips, the Growo wil mves: in casn. cash
oL liva.enls. near casa insir.men:s and ronesy mare: insireomeanis.

The Direelorns may wse gearng (o enhance cqully returns Tae ove, of oorrowing wi. oe on a priodent basis for ae assel class
and will sCeg 10 acnleve a .ow ¢ost of funds warst mam:aining (e texwiiy in e snder.ying seourity reguiremen:s and 1ne
sirLotare of the Growo,

The Crou may. fo_owing a decision of .ne Board. raise ded: from banxs and/or 11e capiia: mar<e's and e aggrega'e
porrowings of the Croup wil a.ways De 5.0 00t 10 an anselsie maxm.am, ca coL.aied at ine ame of drawdown. ol pe.ow 40% of
“he Grosgg Assce Va we on a laly invested Dasis

G R S s S A R AT AUAAE Y g

Dirvidends are mnciaded in e flinancid. gatamrenis in he yedr in wnicn ey are pawd

P .
Renta income from invesiment oroperty is recogmised on a siraign:-.ine nasis over 1ne lerm ol ongoing ‘cases and is snown
groeg of any JKincome lax Lease incenaves are spread cvenly over the lcasc sorm

[nsorance reciarges and othor simiar receipis arce recoguised ander [FRS 15 Reven e from ¢on.racs wiih cusionars, and dre
ine.ded N net renta. and progery ncome gross of tne re.ated costs as oo Direciors consider e Groso ac's as prinmoa’ in
LS respec.

S RN I A N A i

Finance income is recognised as mnteres. and is accrued on cash and casn equiva.en: pa.ances ae.d ny e Groap.

Pid PRt i
Finance cosis consis of interes: and o:1er cosis nas
intcres: and oand cnarges are recognised on an ace

n.eres rae

ne Oroap Incars in conneciion with oallg and other oorrowings. Ban<
La.8 nasis. Borrowing wransaction cosis arc amortised Lsing 1nc offeciive

H [

Al expenges. incouding invesiman: advisory tees are recognised n e Conso idaed S a emen: ol Compreicnswe [ncomae on
an accraa.s basis.

R
LR B

Tae 0wy OLISSLING OF reacyLiring Sgally NSITLIEens (0700 nan in a o.4siness comoinaion are aceounicd for as a dedhcion
fron: crpainy

LY AlNDLEaN ¢ ransactions costs. of purcaasing Die Comaany'’s owl $0ares 10 oe a0 o 1Inoreasary iy
dedocted fram agaiy and e eoss are saow i e Cansolidaed Slaemen: of Cranges i Fa ol v Consideration recawed,
ne: of iransaciion costs. for tae roga o of tiese saares s a 0 ine ded 1in egaity Whang: e Comoany no.ds $9dres in reas.ary.

10 cals L Atons tor net assel vaiue and earnings oer share ars adiusied 0 axo Lde ese shares.

The coss, e Lding dioe

b
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Continued

: BRI FE PRV
For the For the
year ended year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
R - . . Lo E006  souu
Renial incone from imvestmen: property 51,038 48.201
Ren® siraight line adusirents 529 372
Lease incentive amorisaion (926) (439)
Rechargeanie cogis received 995 886

Rena. income S 51,636 49,620
Less direct property

TXPONSCS ) (978) (1175
50.658 47,813

Net rental income

Rochargeaoie coss received roprasent inswrance and service charge cosis paid oy the Groap and recharged 1o e
Apoproved Providers and are accounted for under IFR3 15 Roven.. from conirazs wiin cusiomers

Direc: property expenses represeni insurance and service cnarge coss of F995.000 (2621, F885.000) and vad den eredit of
F17.000 (2021 £289 000 expense).

AS por the case adreemrenis with e Croup and Aoproved Providers. (he Approved Providers dre responsio.e {or the
sottcment of a.. preson: and [LILIC taics dxes and oler irpositions pavaols inrespec: of e proporny Az a rosu. L no furiner
direct propery expensces wora Incurred.

For the For the

year ended year ended

31March 2022 31 March 2021

- —_— £000 o E‘[, ,Q
Dircoiorg te 190 187
Lmp ayers Natona Ins.rance ConTiguions 16 15

Total 06 198

o Direwors are remr anerated [ar dheir sorvices i accordanao wit 1 e Remaneration Poacy witich s
whle Dirgaoors remaneralion may oc scn Thz Remuanerauon Po oy is aporoved oy snareno.ders

8 parameicrs wiiiin

Dise osures required oy ne Companics AT 2605 on Direciors renz.ncradion. incl.ding sa.arles, snare ootions. pension
conringions and pension entidiemean: and fose specihed by tac Listing Ra.es of e Finanaia, Condue Auorty are incuded
oTl pages 73 .0 75 in e Remraneration Repor and form pars of These Financla. Siatentans

For the Fot the

vear ended year ended
31March 2022 51 Meauch 2021
£'U00 E'tHI0

Ad/isory teses - - _ 6.132 o117
Total o 6.132 5107

Civizas Inves:ren: Managomen: Limited SCIM™ s the agoomied [nvesa CAdvizer of tnc Company Under 1o curren:
Invesimen: Managemoen: agreenant e Advizory Fee sna. & “ofcaca Qoarann s
case cased Lopon 1o Mel Asser VA e most recenty announced o C10 marde. al e e 2van e fas ad weed foriss.aes or
couwrcnases of saares tin e period ogvwreon ne dale of 500 annownaeman and Lne dais of e re.evan: ca.c..alon) on e
fo. owing nas:s

[ ]

oy

VA Lo Lo oand ng Lding £258 mwon an anoans ag.aa. o ¥ of s .o oar of tae Mot As

a) on - aaparrof et




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Continued

P

b} on ha: oart of e Ne! Assel Va ue over F256 miaon and wp o and inciuding FS00 miron, anamodn: adaa. 1o 5.9% of s,
par. of a0 Net Asset Value,;

¢} onnat par of e Nel Asset Valwe over FR00 mion and Lo o and mcluding 71 o1 ion, an amounr eq.aa 0 8.8% of s.¢h
odr of tne MNet Asset Valie:

d) onnhat oar: of e Nel Asset Valac over 1 ol lion. an amoun: egaa. o 07% of s.oh part of 1ne Net Assel Va e

The appoiniman: of he [nvestmen: Adviser sha't contin.e in force Ln ess and wnti erminated by cither pary giving 1o ne
ahar ot “ess than 12 moning wrillen nolice, suCH Noice not to expire carder tnan 30 May 2024,

#n ese g o iy vl o e e e
) T | - “For the For me
a1 x‘l(:irr{‘ﬁni%de 31 Yﬂe:rrcif‘wnz‘::;j:l
£060 £ pun
Legal and pro{ressimrna‘ {ges . S i 1,452 7 \C/H
Adminigiration lees 1037 385
Congu.dnoy ices 136 15
Audii foes 340 351
Aporiave cosis 156 174
Vaalon lees 100 35
Deposiary foes 71 71
Orantg and donanons 26 19
[ns.rance 84 55
Marketing 243 179
Regu.diory leos 25 19
Sandry cxpenses 92 55
Total - - o o 3909 3183

Aoorive costs represent oda:s and prolessiona fees incarred in relaion Lo tie acgaistion of investmen: orooernies and
oroposed share issaes al wore considered oo suoscquen..y aoored.

R B R T R T P S - LA I S S R R LN

Vine Groug's avdrorg and eir assodiale

For the For the

year ended veal encded
o - S , M e
Fees payabie to the group’s auditors and their associates for auditing ﬁn_éfcfa! statements: T
ALditof e Crowos financal s.aemean's 296 AT
Audit ol saosidiary companies: - 3z
Total fees bayahie for audit services o T ) 296 304
Fees payable to the group's auditors and their associates for other services:
ALdl re.aed services  review of e qa byear financia siatemen s 44 37
Onar services” - 62 -
Total fees payai)le to -the group;s auditors_;lgtlﬂgssociates o T 465_ - Z51

1 Inetudes £18,0003 20241 £50 000y costin rekibon (o The prnoer yeat audit
2 Most subsidiary compantes e @Xempt ftom qudn as delatled on page 126
3 This amount s mehacled within prepaynirents and wvther recervables at 31 Maich 2022
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Continued

[neres: and dividends received on iguidity funds

Bank interas: received

Total

PO Fiaoagnae

Bank chargss

Interes: paid and payvap e on bangk porrowings and

Amorisation of .oan arrangemen: tecs
Loan sacurlly fees

Other ineres;
Total

EE AR VAN AN

denvatives

Fot the FOF the:

year ended year ended
31 March 2022 31 March o2l
£ £000

4 n

Forthe Forthe

year ended year ended

Sl March 2022 31 March 2021
£'000

e — — . -
8,907 aAlG
1.653 1293
42
- 5

10.608

As a JKREIT. he Growp is exem ot from corporation ax on e profits and gams fron® its prooerty INVesimen: DJsIness,
provided it wee's ceriam conditions as set odlin e JKREIT rega anons For me curren: year ended 31 Marcn 2022, 10 Groun
did no: have any non-g.anfying protes and according.y

I iy ass.med ha

Corgoration ax ¢arga e year
Total

The ax cnarge for iag year i3 .ess nan tae siandard rate of

Group

Frof. oefore taxauon

UK corporation ax rae

Taeoralica. wax a” JK corooration tax ra
Tifecs of:

Lxomo BLIT incontc

Amanns noldedLoin e [or 1ax D.rmoses
Jnuatiaged residaa ourrent year tax oss
Total

Colange in vda .o of exemn® InVesimen” oroocries

ry ronial ousiness

TOINGTation dax Uy g

TICTS Is ne ax cnarde in che year [ inere were any non-guadtying
D UOrooration tax.

o Grooowl coninesg o aca JK RRI7 tor D ie foresesan.e fuare s.oh nar deferred lax 1as nol oeen
recogniscd on tenparary differances reiaing 1o e orope

For the Fot e

year ended vear ended
3 March 2022 31 Mareh 2021
E'0DO £ 000

s TTK of 199 7o difforonees are oxp.aained no.ow

For the For the
year ended year ended
3l March 2022 21 March 2021
£'000 (ALY



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Continued

A deferred ax asse: of 11268000 L2021 F1.508.000 has not neen recogrised i respec: of the onuwid ised residaa’ carrent year
0s868 as it is not anticipared al sUtticion: residaa profits will be generated in the fuiure

The srandard ratc of corporation lax is currenily 192 In the Spring Budge: 2621 the UK Governmen: annodnecd a: from
LADIL 2023 tha corporalion lax rae wiLinaorease 1o 25% {ratner than remaining at 19%. as oreviows.y cnacied). This new aw was
suostantively enacied on 24 May 2021

REIT exemp income mc. ades property renal income al s exemps fom JK Corporation Tax in actordances with Part 12 of
arnora.ion Tax Act 2010,

vxoa

!

30 TR Lervtings e,

Carnings per share (EPS™ amonnls are ca.cuwated oy dividing oroll: for thc year anriouian’e o ordinary cguiy aoders of ine
Company by the weighied average numper of Ordinary shares in 1ss.e dunng ine vear

The caiculation of npasic and diuced 2arnings per $1are is pased on e todowing

Fot the For the

year ended yrar ended
31 Match 2022 31 March 2021
- - — I _ _ _ . Eung oo
Calculation of Earnings per share
Me: orofit avripuian.c 1o Ordinary saarcho.ders (£000) 44,754 36,075
Wewgnied average ne.maer of Qrdinary snares (cxc.ading snares ne.d in easary) 618,797,942 5716518359
Earnings per share - basic and diluted 7.23p 5.80p
[ S 1
h o T o - - T 77}‘01 1;’” ) 'r‘“l ‘.‘l:
vearended year etided
21 March 2022 31 March 2021
_ o . _ R = L . [ E"Oﬂ . foou
Dividend of 13300 for ine 3 mon:1s 1o 31 Mara 2021
13250 3 mon:1s 1o 31 Marcn 2620) 8,403 8237
Dividend of 138750 for t1ae 3 monins (o 343 lune 2021
13500 3 mon:ns 10 30 June 2020 8,637 8.292
Dindend of 1.3875p for the 3 months 10 30 Scpiemoer 2021
13500 3 rron:hs to 30 Scotemper 2020) 8,555 8.5892
Dividend of 138750 for t1c 3 months ;o 31 Docemoar 2031
{13500 3 months (0 31 Decomper 20210 8498 #3592
Tatal 34,093 33413

31 Marcn 2022 0. ing FBATADCO. The dividend paymroen: was made on 28 T.ne 2023 (0 shareno.ders on ine reglsier as 4t 20 May
2022 Tae hinancia, siatements do not refec: mis dividend The dividend was paid as a REI7 property income disiriouion (PID7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Continued

TE rie ey

’ o o T ’ T - fO[[he_ - For the

yeat ended year ended

Al Maich 2022 31 Macch 2021
__ . — - [ o ___Eooo o £000
Balance at megmnmg ')r year 815,589 878.713
Properiy acquisiions 37,198 18179
cguisinon coss 2,086 1056
Lease incenves and rens g:ralgns 1,614 11150
Cnange in lai 12,269 3.51
Va:ue adviscd ny “1e Dronany vai.ers 368,756 915.589

1.058 leage Incentive asse:s and roent grralgni ine ass (23 519) (21.905)

Total _ _ _ 945.237 893384

Acg.ishions mne.ude capia. expendiiure 10 envance eiao e space ol FE.818.000 (2021 £4.077.000)

During (ne year the Group acquited a propaerty no.ading company fron: Her.eva Proper:ies Lirtied whicn ne'd assels oialling
FEAILGGN Taese are Inc uded within Pronery Acquisiiions in tne nae anaove

Herleva Properies lamited 15 a suosidiary of Speciaiis: flea theare Coeraiions Limled (STOM. Andrew Dawoer and Ton Pndmrore
(ooth direciors of e Investent Advigert arc eachy 14 99% gnareqo.dors i SHO. They are nod direoiors of SITC, and rave no
operdaiond. roe in ha nusiness, SHO does no mee: (ne detinmiion of a re.acd pary wnder TAS 24,

In accordance wii TTAS A Invesimen: Propery”. e invesimean: gropeny as oeen independeniy val.ed al talr valiue by ILL
an accredied externa valier wiinrecogrised and re.ovan: prolessiona. quadifications and recen: cxXpericnce o i ocation
and cda:egory of (e inves 0N arc the Lmate resgonsigllty of Do Dire

TN Dropeaerty OCIg va wOdl NOowoyor e va L,

[EERE
L I. VA Acd Civiiag Sooa. lMowsing PLC oropery oorilo io on tne 2asis of eac individ.a. propary and e Tacorcica a o of
e propeaeios withos, e penefll of any corporate wranpor a1 F958 733000 as at 31 Mare 2022 2021 £3153 589,500,

JLL has provided va.waion scraces (o e Conpany wii regards 10110 proverties d.inng 1ac year JLL nas orovided additional
VA LATION §STVICOE B0 U0 ACgLIS1UTIoN of Invex men: oroncry Lo e Company duiily ac ooriod. Tae Direciors have ens.ired
tatJLL nas aporooariatc aroced.res in 0 A0 wensore ners are no independence conflios wiia tag services orovided o e
Company N re ation o e yoar ended 31 Maren 2022, 01e proporion of te towa foos payanc by ine Company (o [LLs ol fec
mnoome was ¢ss tnan 5% and s ncrctore minmma. Additona. y TLL nas a roration po.icy in D.ace wier2oy e signdaiories on

11 va'LAllons roale atior seven yoars,

Wrn the exeeoton of the acguisidon detatled innoie 156, a.. cordorate acgsitons darnng tne year and Tac comparaive year
qave peen Tadied as assoT DUrC1ases rater Dan ousness Comoinatons neca.,se fo owing review of 1ne [FRS 3 conceniration
o8 ey are considered to e anguizinions of proporias rainer an gusinesses o 32

e o owing aoic orovides e fair va.oc measaIemen: MCrarcay or invesimean: oropery

Guoted plices Signilicant Srgnilicant

1 arhye obsetvable  unobservable
Miarkels (Level inpurs (Level  qupnts (level
Tetal n 2 30
[ PR __ f000 £ 1o b Eogu
Investment properues measured at fair value'
SiMare 2027 945,237 - -

Bl Marca 2021 8037 581 -

THEND tave oeen ng uansters oelwesn Love Land Love Jdiring any of Die voars, nor ave Taers occi any ransiers octween
Lezo Zand Lave Sdonmng any of inn years

TUe 73, .aons nave oocn prepared m accordanace Wit oy RICS Va.Laton - Frotessiona. Standards (ncorooraiing

Tniernaliona. Va Lanon Sandards: oy JLL one of 112 eading srofegsiona. firms engagaed in 110 80¢ia, Ao.sng seaor

Az noed proviows v a. ot 11c Gra L o8 INVESIMenis are reporaed as Love. 30 acootdancs wi A IFRS1Z wacreing. s are no.
sased on oogersan.e arce: dd g and e va ae 1s 0ased Loon advice rom re gvanl <now cdgsdan o oxXoes,



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Continued

It Cus instance. e delcrnunaton of the tair va..e of Invesinent proverty red.Irss an exan:ianon ot g specitic nariis of
each propery 1al are in urn considerad ocriinen: o e va aaiion.

“rese e ado
1) inersgulated socia. housing sector and demand or e faciilies oflered by caca 3SH oroperty owned by (e Group:

ii) e naricu.ar sirdetire of tno Gro. o's ransacuons where vendors, a1 Tl OWI CXPanse, Mee: (he Malornty of 1he
refurbishment costg of cacn proper:y and cortaln D.urchase cosis:

iif) dezailed linancia. anaiysis with discoLn: raies SLUPOOTINgG 11 Carrying va. .o of 2acn prodeny:
iv) a t. _repairing and insuring lease wiith annJa, Indexazion nased on CPI or CPIr1%.

Tne lo.owing descriptions and delinitions relaung to valiation tleconigues and ey .nopservao.o InpLis made in delermining
fair va..es are as fo .ows:

R A e S L L A TR TR R4

Fair va..e s delined as t1e price 1na wou.d be rocaived (o so an asse: or paid 1o ranster aJdapilly in an orderly transaciion
Geiween mar<e pariacipans at the maaswremcen: date (io. an exi: price)

The va Lanon menedo’ogy wsed oy ing vallers folows 1he mcome anornadl This aporoaca considers e roitia neome
Currenty payao.e ine next apaft due on mal incointe on review: thg ikelinood ol a continuazion of 1ng: ronza. meome - with
growl in accordance wity 11e eases - overl g remaming lerms: and Den a Long-1erm: reversion wnicn considers the Lixely
aokity of e properies 1o conunuac W generale renl rough suonotied nowsing oocepaiion. as dising rom a reversion o
VACANT POSSCSSINN Va. e,

Risg<s arc nvooved 1n boin dssessing e va we of e rena. income over twe remaining ermrs of e cases and ina.so
orediciing atincone wi comningge ocvond the end of e exisiing cases. Thisis a na.anced | .dgmen: whic can properiy
oe reflecied in e exit yled app ted 1o lae Hnal years incore and in the overa’. rotulh jo @ purenaser

Abproprale @axallon ca.calanons are adepied for every oronery odscd on s va.de and on he assumoion of .ae saie ol
e propery asseis direcy as opnosed o shares ol 4 stosidiary company 10 ding e propeny and 1ave considered the
mechividaa® cnaraciensacs of the oronerties

TNere arc two main Jnopservag.e pLs tnal deiermine 1c falr valne ot e Group s IMvesimen: proneriy

1) Thoraic of 2% perannam as oeen ased for CPLover the term of e s.njec! oroverias ¢ases in ne wirn 11e Ban< of
Eng.and’s ong-ierm intiation targeis for CPL I snosid be noLed an a. .gases genelis from eitncr CPTor CPI L indexation

iy Tncdiscoan: raie apped o iharenia’ | ows,

Key tactors in determining ne discount rates aop.t=d inci.de the reguaicd social nousing secior and demand for each $5H
nropery owned ny Me Grown, costs of acdgagition and returoisnmant of cacn propery, e gniicipated fatare ander.ying casa
f-ows for cacn nropcrty. ooncamar<ing of cacn under.ying ren: for cach property (Dassing reni, intpact of o imate conange, and
e lacs nal al of the properties witain the Gro.p's portoio vave the oonelr of L. repairng and nsoring .cases enored inwo
oy an Approved Provider

A% AT e DAANCES SN0 dA.e e Bas0 ey e witain e Growp's nordo o rangsd itom an etfcenve 15 years 1o 38 years wnn a
weignied average unexpired lease tenm of 221 vears (20721: 22.5) The graater The .ongil of D10 ease. nen. d . oThar nairias neing
0gLE L e greater The va oo of e srooeny

et . e

s a’ Slacove e Crowp's propeny HNVesUroni va Lallon is Open o in1eren:
15 148 9een oreparcd:

AS sel 0L wLIn significan. accouniing esima
Lheariamies in e inpeis aandatermine far vas e As a resall Sie fooowing sonsiaviiy ana.y

0% SVLIAL
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Continued

ISP P N A FEPS LENE L PRFURL S SN

The average discount rate wsod by the valuer in the Gro.n's property Pordolio Va.uadon is 5 5% (021 6.0%).

Tho range ot discoun: tacs used oy Lne va.ser inthe Group's property Poriolo Va aation is trom 46% 1o 11.5% {2021 47% o
16.7%) Tn assessing i1e range of discounis. the va ugor considers the Jkely ne: initia, yie'd which woauld e sought oy the
investnien: marke: and puilds in addiziona: disconnts worefiec: added rigk inio the discoan: rate of the term and. 1in some
cases. the discoun: rate for ‘he reversion. Far cxamo.e where .arger ren'a. growth g ai,owed during the lcasc. an addiliona
discount is but 1IN0 the reversion peca.se of tne greawcrris< of a fa.. in ne rent a the ond of ne lease,

Simi-arly addiziona! discounts are considercd whera properues are in ihe process of acing re-purposed and premiums arc
considercd where residential care asscts are funded dy pack-wo-nack jcases wiih care oroviders

The :ab.c pelow li.usiraies e coange 1o the vaose of Invesimen: propertes U 1ne discown: rate and CFI used tor the perifo.io

va..anon ca.cualions are changed:

.5% N 3% m

discount rate  discount rate 0 25% I CPI 0 25% <Pl
. I . [ o . _1.'_‘!)[]!) EJ_E)H_ 000 L £ 00
Increasef(decrease) in the IFRS [air value of investment properties at:
31 Marcn 2022 35,620 {33,142) 28.509 (27,426)
3t March 2021 54,131 131.775) 77.211 2H175)
' w Sy L
For the For the
year ended o evded
31 March 2022 3T March 2021
L o o o . N < T £ O0g
Acqiasicion of scosidiary companies anc. cding Inigreompany oan) 13.559
Acgualsiilon coss 765
Transler Lo invesimaen: proner.y (11.629)
Sa.e orococds (2.655)
Total -

On 23 Ao 2021 e COrowd onersd into a Tansasion o acgare o froenod oroperies overated oy TP Care vy
Joon e acgainion of tie companies 1or F13559.000 o L$ ransacion Ccosis N0 roparies were ransterred mwo omner
gro.n companiss and 1ae comrpany acdgsdred. along wii ils associaad operaions, was 5o d 1o Envivo Corundurm Bider
Limizod for F2.095.00C

Fnvivo Corandane Bidoo Limbed s a ssosidiary ot 3nemials Hea tncare Qperations Lunied S5O Andrew Dawoer and Tomr

sae Invesimen: Adviser), are eacn 1498 sharene ders in SHC They arc not direciors of SHO. and
ne definttion of are.ated oary wnder [AS 74

Pridnore {poia direcors of
1a@ve DO operationa. ro.e. SHG does no: maea

J1March 2022 31 Maich 2121
. E000

£ 00

hmounts-éii'ing due in less than one Yeﬂ; h T - — -

Trade reccolvas.es 4,960 4859
Logs : (239) (255;
Accra.ed ncon: 4,982, 5.254
Freoayn:omns and <iner recelvan es 3162 7944
Total ' a o 12865 12,621

Prenaymons and OL1er recslvao.e amo..nis ing
nEen NCurrad in CONNesiion wilin ac L snons yo!
an e aropery gondo o

do orepard ega. and orofessiona. foeg ol 734000 2
10O COMD. HNBRTANA IR AV

>d and 1045800 ¢

Acor.edinoomo [e.aies raln ¥ o rant accr.ed for the year ool no Fio demanded.




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Continued

Amounts falling due after more than one year

Deaor ansing front siraigh ane adjosirens

Leass inceniives

Total

The aged anaysis of rade recevao.es was as 10, ows:
Debtors past due

Carrent

< 30 days

35-60 davyy

= H0 days

Debtors past due

Less proviston for innpalrnient

Total

The Dirccrors consider the tatr val.e of recevapies equals mneir carrying amount
Oiner cacgories witun rade and oher receivapies do netinc.ade impaired ass
TC provision o I pairinell moveamren: was as folows:
Balance a oeginning of yvear

[mpairmen: provision mado

A0 LN FeUOVETet

Amounis written off

Balance at end of year

v ot N { ,

Casn ne d by so.ich

Ligadyy funds

Casa nesd al oang

Jnresineied casn and casao cguiva anls

Rosinciod cash

Total

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

£000 _E'l;“l)
2053 1524
21466 20381
23519 21805

31March 2022 31 March 202

; o K000
1777
355
105
2723
T 43960
{239) (256}
4721 1513
B “}:or the T ¥or u:
year ended year ended
A1 Marchﬁg(()!'f: f'-_l Mau:l'zrznr:i
256
109 289
(126}
- (33)
239 sy
31 Mar::i-‘t .!0; )31 March éu?.l
£000 2000
376 7
10,489 16485
3810 92815

4,362 3278
53,337 187,097

Lig.adity Lands refer to money vaced in money marse. funds. Taese are ughuy iguid tunds with accessiniiy wilnin 24 10.01s

a1l sab col o nsignifican: risk of changes in va e

Casl e d oy $0.0t0rg 1w money 1ead in o
oending coma.eiion. These lunds are avalaoic immediac y on damand

o lar eXDenses exgected 1o of incarred 11T 310N 10 WIVOSTmOnT Dronaniles

=
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Continued

Restricted cash represen:s amo.wnts 1e.d tor spocific commurenis, lonan: deposizs and retention noney ne.d inrelation
to deferred paymems sanec W achieveran: of cerain conditions. other reneniions and cash scgregastied 1o fund repairn
mamienance and imoprovemen: worss (o onng ihe properies Lo o satsfaciory standards for the Growp and the tenan:s.

s Pradde g orher ooy,

- S o T o o MMarch 2022 31 Maich 2021

_ e o L I . L _ Eﬂ _ L'04H)
Deferrad income T T T T “--.860 H4h
Acadisizion coss aceraed 2.856 3706
Finance coss 1,840 15357
Dividend winno ding -ax payab.c 1,057 897
Accr.a s and omner credizors 2,202 1.979
Tenant deposis 677 565

Total 9492 9345

Acguaisition cosis accracd @ 3o inc .de monies retained at the point of acquisiion 1o oe pald ata ater dae g, ing £2.158.000

-
c
{2621 F2.506.000)

oy \ - . . -
B N LTS E TSN PR

Ban< oorrowings aro secured oy cnargss ovel individ.a. imvesimen: grooertics ae.d oy coriain asse:-1o.ding suosidiarics. The
nAN<s a.8o no.d chargss over (e snares of corlam s.osidianas and any internadiary no ding companics of mmose sapsidianes.
Any associaied fees In arranging 1€ oank porrowings ahantorased as at the year ond arg oflse: agains: an:o.nis drawn on
e facl ilies as $10WwWn N e ian'se ne Ow:

For the For the

yeat ended year ended
31 March 2022 31 Magch 2021
_ o o o a B . . 777?'000 . _i_‘.'ﬂ_l)_[?
Ban< oorrowings drawn a: s:ar: ot year T 357.050 27500
Ban< aarrowiligs drawn -
Ban< DOr-f(_)_\;\’if_L'jS 's-lrawﬁ EN T S - ) 357:050
'JhaT tnr:is:e-; nosts at san of year ) T o T _-M,QSG)
[.0sS .0an 188U COS.§ Indurrer (1,723)
Add oani r Cosis amoriased 1,653
?_J;mn‘or:is& {0878 a1 cna of year N B - o - o (5,000}
At end of year . T - - 352,050 o
T o T T - o Loan Balance:  Loan B;;-i_a_l:r:;~‘ L;)an Prncipal ) Loan Pnnupalr
ATMarch 2022 3L March 2021 31 Marnch 2022 B March 2021
. o o - o 7 CEeBd  EDOU 000 £061)
Maturity of bank borrowings
Repayan.ewiiunlyear - 59937 -
Pepavao.e oerween 1o 2 years 158,746 29 160,000
Repayao.e nawenn 210 5 years 59,365 60,000
Repaydan cafier 5y o 133,939 137.050 137,055
Total h o B 7 352050 357050 3574050

1 Loan balance net of unamornsed costs

Tae Crowois odriy oz o owing san factiny agroemens:

rnt Factioy Agrecmen: dand 2 Noventocr 2817 tor 2o o
20 ann.m

AAC-vear 3iering
is fixed 41 a tora of 29934

~r

THe QOITOWINGS INC wde amo .nis soC ured on myesiren: orooery 1o ne va..e of F173.777 005




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Continued

A Siering Bovo.ving Facity Agreemen: for Fa0000.000 wiin Lioyds Bank n.o Tne tacily nas oven extended to 15 Ly 2074,
nreres: is charged a: SONIA + 1a7% mrargun.

Tae borrowings include amoun™s secared on invesuren: proper:y (o the value of £153.343.000 (2521: £149.728.000)

& Rovoeving Crodis Tactity Agrecuein for up .o DIGG.0GuLGE with HISBC Ban< PLC inieres?is caargoed at SONIA + 2.02% margm
Yy maiariiy nas pecn extended o Novemoer 2023,

“he borrowings inciude amoun:s secdred on invesimaon! Droperty o ine valde of £222.745000 (2021 £219.606,000).

A B-year .can laciiny win Nationa, Wesimins:er Bang F‘.(‘ dazad 15 Augas: 2019 for up o FGC.OCC.000 Tnterest is charged
al SOKTA +200% margin and has been {ixed by way of a 3-year swap. Te swao lives interes: on £20.000.000 at 27105%
and £40.000.000 a: 2.5475% The ipan can pe exiended for an addiniona. 2 vears and (here is e opuon of a funiher
£40,500 500 accordion

o

The borrowIndgs inc.ude arouns securad on nvesumen: oroveny o the va ue of F135330.000 (021 F131.283.0001

A 7-year 0an factity with M&C Inves men: Managemen: Limlied. da:ed 22 Januwary 2021 for up 20 £84.350.000. Interes: is fixed at
4 oa. o1 3137% per annh.m.

Tae porrowings el de amounis seclred SN INVESTMEN. propery 1o Jae va..e of £230487.0C0 (2021: F225.221.0C0)

AR Maron 2022, 1he GIown 18 N COmpaancs Wi 4. cavenanis

TR COVENAaNIE N p.ace cnder e Uve agrosimeniE are S.mmansed in the tdo e 0o owe

T T T T T T T disoncal and progeedinerestcover_loan to Valuerane
Seotisa Wlduws [m"1 ui 1C-year Id"l ity Al 2as: 225% Musg: not excaed 40%
[.oyds Ban« p.crovo ving aredi fac iy AT eas: 530% M s not exceed 34.5%
HEBC Bank PLC {achity AL gast 250% wWas not exceed 55%
MNationa Wosiminsier Ban< Poo 3-yadr taci ey A s A80Y Must not cxoesd 503
ME&G Investiren: Managemen: Limied 7 J-yearfacl by Al - cas 250% Mot nol excecd 5

o Grone's norrowings wiin Loyds Banx poe, HSBC Ban« FLE and Kaona, Weogarinser Ban«< Pio qave mransiigned from 1ae
T,\)nd.m Inierban< Offer Rate (LIBOR! poneamar< o 5ierang Cvernigh: Index Average (SONTA) bencantars during he year.
There wdas nedligio'e costinvolved in e porrowing facilisy iransiion and e respacive hedgo insiramant amaendmenss.

I I T L AL S AR b AT
Tne Cm J0ads entered No ineres: rae swap agreen ants witn NatWes: Marvers inorder 1o minga:c e risk of changes in
mnaerest raes on its inoan Wwin I\a.lonai Wesiminzior Bank P ¢ under which £RO.000.000 15 cwrron.y drawn

The swaps nave a nouona. vai.e of £60.000.000 and tix interest a: 2.60% {(inc sding the 7Y margin raze on ne panh< oan} and
aave a maurhy daic of 15 Alg.w.s: 20724

For the For lhe

year ended year cnded

T Mach 2022 31 Magch 2021

_ . _ _ o ) o B ) ~_ £owo £ 000

i t;'dr ’3[ Dar (544) {178)

Change mtair va'ne d.nng the year 2675 B5

Assetl(hablhi‘y) at e end oi [ year 2 131 1344)
The tao'e De.ow $hows e talr va L2 easaraironl merarcay forinteres: dernvaves

Sigruhzant Swygrficant

Cuote prices 1IN Observable  unobsetvable

active Matkets npuls (Level 2) lapuls (Level 5

evelBRBOND  g0ug el

31 Maren 2022 ' ' ' - 2131 -
31 Marcn 844

oh
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Continued

There have neen no rransfers between Leve. 1 and Leve. 2 dunng the year nor nave tacre been any Jansiers noiween Leve, 2
and Leve 2 during the year.

3

Snare caplta reprasens ‘he nomina. va .e ol congideration received oy the Contpany for tne issue ot Grdinary snares.

2 RAhaie capial

Forthe For the year

year ended ended
31March 2022 31 March 2021
£'D0C [Halors)

Share capital
Al beginning and end of year 6,225 6225

Number of shares issued and fully paid Ordinary shares of £0.01 each
A beginning and end of year 622,461,380 £22.451.280

During e year e Contpany reissasd o O0C (ZO01 250000 Ordinary shares nc d i reasury at 31 Marea 2071 {or Fa47.000

(A021: 72720000
Later in :ac year tne Company garchased 10025000 Ordinary shares (o be neid in reas.ry at a cost ol 79.259.000. Furiher
n.rcnascs were made afior the year ond as detay

>d in noe 2

AL31 March 2022
N reas.ary undd. citner reisseed or cance ed

12 Company 10.ds 10025000 (2521 5A5000) Ordinary saares i reasary. 76 snares Wi Continde 1o oe ned

Tne numbper of Ordinary saares wsed 1o ¢a. <. ait 1ac Not asse: va Le Dor share 18 812435380 {26731 521.890.380; whic exandes
“he ghares e d i ireas.ry.

g B R L
The $Nare Orentiim reéserve represents e amodr

assoaoaed igs.e

sapscripad tor Ordinary snare capita. in exeess of namimna. va .o oss

T EL0R

Hifertlel kS

tot the For e

year ended yvear ended
3tMarch 2022 31 March 2021
F'oun £080

AT peginmng ot vear ) R - 7 o 7 2?1463 282405
Premium arising on saarcs reissued {rom reasuary 163 58

At end of year ' 292,626 297453

-

. Z50.000) Ordinary shares ac.d n rcas.ary for £
3 1478 DISMIL [8591VE

o
o
=
-

During tnac year the Company reissued 555.0CC (202 GCT (202) [272.000) a

gain ol F183.008 (72021 F38.000) aronse whicn (s recognised in o

Thc caplia. reduction reserve is a disTingan g regerve [ wlen e vaL L ol ne cance.ed snare oremiam nas ogen
ransterred. Puars.ant o Arac.e 3 of Tne Comroanies (Redi.cuon of 3nare Capna ) Order 2608, e na ance 1e.d in e cania
edocion reserve is .0 ne Teated for tie poroposes of Par: 23 of 1ae Companies Act 2605 as a reasised profit and aecrefore
avaian o for dismonaon in accordanas wie seeiion BEG of : Comodnes A Toe Comoany aas wead iy reserve tor e

of DLJING 0aC< SAAras 10 0¢ 2e d 1IN reas.Lry

Fori the For the

vear ended yeat ended

31 March 2022 3t Muarch 2021

o . s o E!(!I]U 061

AL peginning ot year 331140 5828

484 214
(9.259) -

Snarcs reissacd from crea

Saares D0LgNT DAass N reas.

At end of year ' 2223656 331014




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

.
Continued
Dunng ne year ine Company reissted 505006 (2021: 250.000) Ordinary snares newd inireasury for 7a47.000 (2021: £272.000), The
cos. of parcnasing haese shares into ireasury of £484 C0C (G021 £214.000) has peen credited 1o t1e capiia. reduciion reserve wih
Jre gain crediled (o the Share promiom roserve.
Latcr in ihe year the Company parchased 10025000 Ordinary saaras 1o oe ne d 1N reasury at a cos: of £9.259.000, Farther
nuarchases wore nade dlier e year end as detaiod in note 23.8,
AL 31 March 2027 the Company onds 18.C25.000 (2021 5385.000) Ordimary shares i reasdry
RO i
s reserve represents ne profits and osses of the Group.
For the For the
year ended year ended
UMarch 2022 31 March 2021
- o o . _ = e . o o . . I E'DGO_ _ Eﬂﬂﬂ
Al oeginming of year 43,670 41 0C
Profi tor tne year 44,754 35075
Dividends patd in tae year {as ner now 1. o (34.093) (33.413)
At end of year 54,331 43670

RN IR UL A S

Basic WAV per gaare 11 ca culated oy dividing nel asse’s in ine Consoiddaied Staemoen: of Finanoa Position atiriouiane o
ordinary oq.iy a0 ders of Tne parent oy he nunocr of Ordinary snares oacsranding a0 tae end of e yoar

Neo asse: va,.es nave 0ecn ca.o. atod as folows

L ,, _ EIMTR0e2] 31 march a2t
Nel asses (£'000)
Numroer of Ordinary gnhares inissie ar end of year
MN.amper of Ordmar‘j shares ne.dn N reas.ry

Nurhber of Ordmary shares excludmg treasury shares held by the Compa.n)dr
NAV — hasm and d:.luted

=
2
=
o=
=
E
3
x
2
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2
A
x
g
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Continued

A beginning of year
Cash flows from financing activities
Loan arrangement ¢os s paid

Non cash movements
Loan arrangemen: fces payaoie

Amonisauon of loan arrangemeant cosis

Change in fair va ue of interes! rate derivatives

Atend of year

AL neginning ot vear
Cash flows from financing activities

Loan draw down
Loan arrangemen: cos's paid

Non cash movements

Loan arrangermoen: fees payab .o
Amorigsaiion of oan arrangeinen: cos’s
Change in lair va..c of interes: raw denvalyes

At end of year

< ratirtes T

3t

T F(;[ the

Interest rate Bank yeat ended

derivatives borrowings 31 March 2022

o £000 E00Y_ £'000

544 332,120 352,664

- {1,805) (1.805)

- 82 82

- 1653 1,653

(2,675) - (2,675}
o (@131} 352050 349919
- S For th=

Intetest rate Bank veal endeq

denvatves bonowings 31 Marah 2021

. o f oo . foon 000
473 259170 759.648

84,550 54.550

.81 2.811)

- 82
1293
- - 55 -
544 352120

L€ASE DAYITON'S wnder NON-cance..ap.c onceraing .cases receivan.e oy e Group arc as lo ows:

AMoLn's recelvao.e

=1 year

1-Z years
A-3years
= 3 yedars

At end of yéar i

Leases are directs-
2710ws

renew

carren: eases arc [i. reparing and ins.ring .cases. 11
T OIORENics DaCL 10 e onginal condriony

n 7a

Tagreamoents wil 1 Aoproved Froviders for a tany oaiween 15-30 years win indexec
e wenanig are tncrefore opaged o repain mainiain and

31March 2022

53,821
53.879
161,940
928,210

1197.850 1

The GroLp is Dary o a n.mosr of opneraling .cases on s invesimen: oroveries wit Angroved Providers, Toe Ll re minim.am

31 March 2021
£ 010

an<ed anh.a ron



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Continued

The folowing :ab.e gives details of perceniage of ann.a rental income per Approved Provider

Fl1March 2022 31 Maich 2021
% %

ALAcEand IIo;re Sc?'.uncm; ;1(1 Qaali:asillc:;._smg S B a 239_
Faicon Houasing Association CIC 197
Bespoke Supporave Tenanaics 13.2
Inclusion Housing CIC 87
Wesimoreland Supporied FHousing Limited 51
Encircle Housing Limited 6.0
Trinity Housing Association Limiicd 5%
Pivosal HHousing Association 29
tlarbour Light Assisied Living CIC 37
Carysalis Supporied Association Limited 34
New Walk Properiy Managemen: CIC 28
My Space [Mousing So.utions 12
TKL Supporied Hloasing Limited 11
Hil'dale Ho.sing Assoclation Limiied c.3
Windrush Aliance JK CIC

L1y Rose Suppored Houasing

Bl.e Square Residentiat Lid (0B
Toal TS T TTooTm oo e oo

Asckiand Home So.itions and GQuatitas Housing are potn ntempers of The Socia. Housing Famrny CIC and subect o common
conirol Thelr annga: ren: ligares dave erefore been aggregated in e lable aoove. The perecniage rewating (o Adck.and Home
So.sitons and Qualiias Housing was 10.28% and 813% (Z021: 23.88% and 0.02%) respecrive.y The annua rent a: 31 Marea 2022 lor
Avceand Home 5o utions and Guailtas Housing was £8.679.00C and £4.334.000 2021 £12.028.000 and £8,0CG; respeciivaly.

e Grodp Is ais0 party (0 a nampcer of operaling feases on ik ‘ong Jeascho.d properries. Tnz gro.nd ren: paymen:
comrmilments wnder these gperaing .eases ars negiigio.e so the fatare minur ..m .case payments Lnder 1nese leases nava not
necn disc.osed in these financial stalemrents.

THD O anred ity parte.

Asg a: 31 Marcn 2022, rerc is no u timaie conrolling party.

BN Heladed panty i iunageen

, Bfiroeiers

The Dircotors are remunerated for thejr services at such rate as the Draciors gnal. from tume 10 lime delerming Thne aggreygaic
reaancration and benefits in kind of e Directors of the Company (in eacn case. solely in inelr capacily as such!in respec: of
[1e year ended 31 Maren 2022 payab.e out of The asse:s of the Company 18 no: exoccied o exceed £250.000.

Fees of E190.00C (2621: £182.000) were incurred and paid to :ne Diracrors.
Ag a3 March 2022 and 20210 e Dhirectors nad the folowing numoer ol shares:

31 March 2022 3 March 2021

Qtdinary ordinary
shares shares
Director - S N I S
Micaac: Wrobe! Cnharrman 120,598 100.598
Aastalr Moss Dircoior 11,766 117556
Atison Hadden Direcior -
Carohing Gudiver Aodic and Managerrem Engagoemen: Con misee Chalr 58,832 58,832

Peler Baxior Direc.or 82,065 47 085

Bl

FILDNTSHOH TY IO SYIIALD

IO SLNNOLIY ANV L

113



P K
INTS 2024

VITAS SOCLAL

114

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Continued

The Invesimen: Adviser 1as reviewod its remruneration poicics and procad ares 1o ensure incentives arc altgned wiin ine
reqgudremren:s of AIFMD. I inciudes measares (0 avold confl of interes: sach as oroviding staff wiin a fixed monihly
salary and deternining discreiionary paymenis by tne perlormance of thc Invesimen: Adviser as a who.e and not.inked
1o any one ATF N paricalar "ae Invesimen: Adviser and 1ts siaff recelve no remuneration through protit share, carried
Interes: co-invesimen: or other schemes rolated (o e Company's performance

3G 02 Traasactions with the favestmerne Aduviser
On 1 Novemoer 2016, Civitas Investmen: Managemen: Linciied {"CIM") wag apgoinied as he Invesurent Adviscr of tne Company.

Fecs of £5132.000 (2021: £6.117.000) were incurred and vaid (o CIM. In addition £nil (2821 Fni) dispuargerents were paid in e yearn

The nvesinens Adviser nas agreed to cormtninate T106,CC0 (2021 Fnil owards legal and orofessiona’ fees incurred m the year
TAig amroun: nas peen offse: agains: ega. and professiona’ foes in nete 90 Tais amounst s outsianding at 'ne end of ine year

As a1 31 Maren 20722, a ngt amoun: of F1S1.000 (2021 T13.000 was due from CIM, wnicn nas simee ocen received.

As a3 Mara- 2022, CIM az o 50000 {2021 B.000) Ordinary shares In e Company

LI S e T .

Tne Gro.p's principal financia asses and 1ao i.ies are those that ansc directy trom 1s nperatons: rade and oier
recervaoies, rads and other pavab'es and cagn and cash egaiva.cnis The Group's Olher principa. hinancia. jabliics are pan<
ne main p.roose of winei s (o finance the acquistion and devclopment of e Cro.p's INvesimen: pronerty

DOrrowings
oor:itolo, and iniorest rate derivauves as detailed in notes 20.0 and 2105,

Al financia, iaoiines arg measared ab amronised cost, except ineres: rate denvatives. wnlch are measared a: tair value. AL
timaneial insrramenss wore designaied in acit cLiren. categornes LooOn INMal recognituon,

Sel 0Jl DE.OW IS & COm 0anson oy c.ass of the carrying amo.n:s e Grouog inancial instr.ments Al are

carried in e linanoa $ratemenis:

Roaok value Fair value Book value Fair value

31 March 2022 31 March 2022 51 March 2021 41 March 2021
E£'000 £000 £1'0M4] [ 1))

Financial assets o - T - T o
Inieres: rae derivanuves 2,131 2131
“tade and other recoivan os 34,580 34,580 33.572 33572
Casn and casn CquIva.enis _ 53337 53337 107.877 107.097
Financial liabilities
Tradc and omer payao.es 8.632 8,632 8.699 8599
Ban< oorrowings 352,050 349,406 I5AZC 354142
I_nj?rcst rae dﬂ_lvativcs o . - = 5‘44 544

1 Excludes prapaymonts
2 Excludes detertad inconie

Tz Gro.o aas five cang .oans: a 1G-year fixed rate oan of 1323505000 orovided oy Scotisn Widows Lirited. a B-year revo ving
credic fa v /Anan.c rae .0an of 180000000 orovided oy Lioyds Ban< ple a 3-ycar rovo.ving oredit tach Ly vanao.e ras oan
of FI3C.060.005 provided ay HABC Ban< PLC: a 5-year revo.ving cradi faciiiy varian.e rate oan o1 #50.000 000 provided oy
Natona. Wesimingaer Ban< P o and o 7-yaar ixed rate oan ol T8155G.00C v MAC Investmen: Managonen: Liteied “ne fanr
va .o of 1ne tixed rate oan iz derormined oy comparing e discounced fuoure casn Lows,




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Continued

(SRS T S TUN BN NI TR FE PRI

Tne Groap is exposod o marce: nsk, interas: rate riss. credic risk and ligaidity risk in e current and fature years Tae Board ol
Direciors oversees ithe rranagen one of thase 1ises. Tne Board of Direciors revicws and agrees pocies for managing eacn of
(nase rigks fnal are summarised be'ow

B4R Mbarlees el
The Grouwp’s acivities will expase 1 primartl y (o the marxe: riggs assoctated witn cnanges in property valies and changes in
interes: ra.cs

Flu veiating A3 gy e niliaeig e 0 1t

Invesimen: in property 1s s.h.oCt 0 varying degrees of risx. Some lactors (na: afiec: die value of ine invesiment in property

incoude:

¢ changcs in ac gencrd: economic cimate:

e Ccompcition [or avalan.e propceries;

®  20SOWOSCENCe, and

e Jovernmern: rog. azions mealiuding p.anning. environmenta. and tax aws.

Variauons in (ne anove faciors can affect (he val.ation of asseis ne.d vy he Group and as ares..: can inf dence e linanaia,

oerformance of the Groug.

S R A L A AU CT R A P Ste VNP IR LS SRS SR P S
The Gro.ap no.ds positions in owo AAA rated guidity fands that inves: in a diversified range of governmen: and
non-governmen: wanay war<et seariides. which are sunea 1o varying degrees of risz Some faciors tha: affect ine va..e o

e dgquidity funds aincoade:
e he performance of 1ae wndernying government and Non-govemmen: Imoney mar<e” sec riles: and
& inieres: rales

Varianons in ine above factors can aftect iae valbauon of asscis ne.d ov The Group and as a rosu. can intisence 1ae tinancia.
performance of e Growp.

1% MFETA TR S LN

In:eres: rale risk 1s (N2 ris< (nag he tar va Lo or Lisure casi Lows of a financial msiramen: wil. f wotuae pecaase ol changesin
mdar<et inicragi raes.

The Group's interes: rate ris< princivary arises from .ong-erm porrowings. To manage hus. 21e Group nas entered into a fixed
raje Dang loan and ares warian'c rate oans .oans. The Croup nas entered Inio an inlerest tate swad on tne 3-year loan facl ity
wil Nationa, Wesiminsicr Bank P.oin order To rritigaze the nisk of rising intores! raios,

Ar B March 2022, 55% (2021 55%) of tne Croup's norrowings are sui ect 1o a fixed rate of interes:

The cxposare of tne Group w vanable racs of interes: is considered cpon drawing of any new (oan laci jides, 1o ensare 1nat e
GIg.0'8 fXDOSAIC 10 INEres] T 1L0lLadllons IS WIIin acoopian o @vels.

Tae Invasimen: Adviser reoniiors (e Grolo’s CXpos.re 10 any changss in inleresi rdaie on an ongoing basis, wirn e Board
Jodated oh a guanery nasis of the cameni expos.re of the Group's can facilitdes

Agar 31 March 2022, if interes: rates nad oeen 100 nasis Dains aigner/.ower wiih a.. ouicr variao.es ne.d congian: iae impact
on orofiss after axation for e year woad o8 as oc.ow The Invesimen: Adviser anticipales nege ovelg are redsonan y
nossin.e pased on e opservation of curran marke: condidons thas nceres: raics wou.d nos Luciaae more taan 14
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Continued

- -~ -/ s s s s s s e e T " iMarchaozz 31 Mach o
— —_— - - _. _ o - o o - I . Eooo
(Decrease)/increase in profits due to interest rates -

[0 basis poins aigher {1,066) (579}
10C oasis poins .ower 1572 1580

B o - o - o N - - - N ) - ) T o o B EEEICHZTZé 731 March 2‘07:1
- e — . o [ o — = . —_— e o L 2
Banx porrowings fixed rawe 2.94 7294
Bank barrowmgs - variabie rae 2.23 175
Casn and casn egavagnis 0.08

e Groap’s Dorrowings wit Lioyds Bank oo, HSBC Bang PLC and Nanona. Wesiminster Ban< Pic wi . oc transiidoning from
e London Internanc Ofter Rate (LIBOR) nencararg to Ster ing Overnighi Index Average (SONIA) pencnmar<in due course
Taere s oxpeciaed 10 0e hegligin.e cog involved tn the oorrowing faci iy iransition and e regpective nedge insiramen:
amondments.

I

[ Y -
redn: risk is e nsg nata counterpary will nol meet (s oohagations ander a fipancia INSIr.LIrent Or CUsIomaer Conirac,
Credr 1 a terparly t 0n.aga der a financia Insiramwen: o SO AT CONrac
‘eading o a linancial Oss. The Gronp is expoged 10 aredit ne«s froir ooln s 'easing activines and financmg aciivities,
inc...ding deopnsiis with panes and nancia. nsi.ions

Debiors and acor.od ineomre regresen: ren: d.e or acor.ed, These amounts dae ars divarsilied nelvween a namosr of
different Anproved Providers of differing hinancia. sireng: . see nowe 280 for deiais ot the difteren: cownterparies. None ol
d Providers nave usied deo: and as sucn do no: nave a credu ra.ing. nowsver, e dversifiod natare of this asse:
sanbors ne oredi guaaty

o

"he Gro.p 1as 00 icies in D.Ace [0 8ns.Te 1Nalrenia conracs are entrad Inw ony witi .ossees wily an apbropnae credi
4and operaziona nistory, and (miis exposare (o any ohe tenan The credy ris< s considered o oc further reduced as e
soarce of the rencs recelved oy e Groop s soamatey provided by the Governmeni, oy way 91 aousing venelll and care
orovision. via a diverse range of Loca AL orities,

Fordeials of nrovisions lor impairnten: plcase reter o no.e 17.0

. - . S i~ .
e . . -, a4 . TR

dons 7o Board of Direcrors oeldeves
e COLNeIpariies are pan<s

One of \ne principa. crodis riscs of 1he Growp wil arise witn fhc pan<s and financia. ine
nan andd Current acco.. Da.ances 1s amited oeca s
considered 1o oc of good cradit gudly In e case o casa deposiis ne d wiin lawyers. e credin risk is dmied occause 0o

il

castis ne d by e awyers wiinin CIen: deoouts 4 pan<s with nign credic guaay

Tne credy ratings for oan<s waere na.ances are ne.d o e Croup are as o ows:

Loyds Ban<o £ /F]
HEBC Ban< .o AA-Flr
RB3 Internanucna. Linved ASFI

Platona. "W

mnsier Ban< ol AT

Faungs advised oy Fiicn



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Continued

Lequidity risi

ne Group manages is iquidiry and tunding risks by considering cash fow [orecasis and ensuring sufficien: cash va.ances
are neld wrthin rthe Group o meo? fulure needs. Prudent dguidiy risk managemeant implies irainzaining sufficient cash and
Irarkeiao.e securities, The avaliability of financing 1wrough anpropriate and adequaie credit lines. and the ability of cusiomers
0 setile opliganons witnin normai terms of credis The Croug ensures. (nrongn forecasing of capita, requirements, that
adequate casn is available

The folowing ahic detai.s ne Group’s mauaty profie m respec: of its financial insirument labilites oased on consracraa’
wndiscounied payments:

on demand <] year 1-5 years = S yrcars Total

£ Dun £000 £'000 £ou0 £00U0
31Marck 2022 - T - T
Trade and o:her payab.as 8.632 - - - 8,632
Banx oorrowings - 9,336 245,974 144,602 399,912
ST T 8RBz 9336 245974 144602 408,544
31 March 2021
Trade and olher payah.cs 8.699 - 8.699
Banx porrowings 57909 181048 144502 393.535849
e 8593 67909 181048 4602 402258

The profile above showsg the mat.rdty profiie at 31 Maren 2022 and inc aded wiiin Me contracied paymenis is F42.852.000
(2021 £35,509.000) of loan interest pavao.e Lo 0 the point of maiuriy

£ el coemmtiaent

A3 Maran 2022, e Company nacd tunds commitied (otaling £92.000¢ (2C2L1 £n1) concerning caplia’ expendiiire for a nroperty
in Surrey.

PROaTT e My

Saltiinni s

iy
1

)
On 13 May 2022 the Company comp.eied an acqguaisition a: Nori End, Wisoacn for £608.C00C.

SRR ETIR IS
On 11 May 2022, tne Company anno.nced a dividend ol 13875 pence oer snare in respeat of 1ne penod 1 Jan.ary 2022 o

31 Maren 2022 1ota'ling £8 474,600 The dividend paymen: was made on 28 June 2022 o snarehoiders on the regisier as at 20 May
2022 The financia. slatemrenis do not refiec: (s dividend. The dividend was paid as a REI™ propery income distnbuiion PID")

Boratnaeral oo
From | Aprii 2022, (e remaneration of tie Directors. Audil and Managemen: Engagemrean: Commitee Chalrman and Chairman's
ann.a. lec wi.l meorcase The Cnhalrmans annea. fee increased oy 1.9% 10 £53.000; 1he Direc.or's annaal fee increased ny 2.2% 10

,.\

£31.500: however tne additiona: tec for the Audit and Managamen: [ngagemen: Con'mizee Chair remains at £5000

Fregare g

On 18 May 2022, an ex:ension was gramad for the faciiy with Luoyds Bang p.c. whicn now oxpires in 1.1y 2024

fresaa o ey
since 31 Maran 2022, ine Company 1as made purenases of 1700000 Ordinary s0ares Into Jreaswry a: an average price ol 87.80
ver Ordipary share. T1e tola’ £0s8t o ine Company e, .ding commission and stamp daiy is 1492006 and fooowing 1ncso

ransacuong. a: 23 Junae 2022 e Company aed 11725000 Ordinary shares in reas.ry
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CIVITAS SOCIAL HOUSING PLG

REPORT AND ALCE

-
—
&

Company Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 March 2022

31 March 2022 31 March 2021-
_ Noe €006 Fouo
Assets - 0 - = = 0 = 0 T
Fixed assets
Investmen: in sdabsidiaries 70 7&81 720918
Current assets
Trade and other receivan.es 90 4,310 3.644
Cash and cash eqguivaicnts 106 23,438 15.447
- - o o B o - - T T 27,74.8- BRELEE
Totalasses T T T T T T T T T T Tengm jwowm
Liabilities
Creditors - amounts falling due within one year
Trade and oiner payan.es 1o (274.020) (171,655}
o S o - - o T T -0 T T T @E&E) UTsss)
Total liabilities B {274,020) (171.555)
Totalmetassets T T T T T T T 7T T uon seass
Equity
Snare capial 120 6.225 8.275
Snarc premium eserve 292,626 292.482
Capial red.ucion reserve 322,365 33140
Acouim. aled 0sses 13.5 (74,204) {61.473)
Tewlequty T T T T T T o o T T T g seass

Tae Comrpany nas laten advaniage of 1ne provisions of Companics Act 2606 s4C8 and does not disc.ose the Company's
mdivid.ia. profit and loss account Profi for ine year was £21,362.000 (2021 752780000

The Company financial statements on padges 78 to 777 were approved by “he 3oard of Jirectors of Civias Social
Zomasing 2LC and authornsed forissue and signed on 128 behalf by:

Michael Wrobel

Chairman and Independen: Non-Exeauive Direcior
29 fune 2022

Company Noo 10402528

The notes on 2ageg 170 10127 are an niegra. par; of tacse financia fracniens



Company Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 March 2022

Shate Capital

share preniuvm teduction  Accumulated Total
- - i 00 " Enon “Fon0 o0 “Fona
Balanceat1Aprili2z020 52 792408 330926 (808400 548716
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year - 537780 32,780
Issue of Ordinary shares
Snares relssued from reasury - 57 214 - 27N
Dividends paid
Tota.ntenm dividends lor e year ended - (32113 (33.413)
31 March 2021 (5.375p) ) "
Balance at31 March2021 3225 292452 531140 (614783 568334
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year - - - 21,362 21,362
Issue of Ordinary shares
Shares reissted fron' ireasury - 164 484 - 648
Shares po.gni Nacy N0 reasury - - (9,259) - (9.259)
Dividends paid
Tola. inienm dividends for the year ended - - - (34.093) (34,093}

31 Marcn 2022 (5.5125p)

Balance at 31 March 2022

6225 _ 292606 322365  (74204) 54701

I I0OY SYIIATD

Tag noles on pages 126 10127 arc an mtegra par: of Mese hinancial gaiemenis
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements
As at 31 March 2022

PG Corpasate safopmation
Civitas Socia’ ITousing PLC ("he Company”) was incorporated In Eng.and and Wa.es under the Companies Act 2006 as a pJb.ic
comrpany imited by snarss on 29 Septemoer 2018 with comrpany namper 10402528 under the name Civitas REIT PLC, which was

subsequen:ly cnanged o the exisiing name on 3 Qciober 2016

The address of e regisicred office is Beautor: House. 51 New North Road, Fxeler, Devon EX4 4LF The Company is regisiered
as an invesimen: company ander section 833 of :ne Compantes Act 2006 in Eng.and and Wa'es and is domici ed in ine
United Kingdom.

The Company did not peqin rading untl 18 Novemoer 2016 when Ine sharcs wera adnutted 10 rading on the London Siock
Fxchange ("LSEM.

The Campany’s Grdinacy snares nave peen admicted ¢ the Official List of the Financia: Condua! Authornity (FCAY). and are
raded on thie L3E

The principal acuvity of The Company 18 10 act as 11e L.im
snarenoidors with an atraciive _eve, of income. :ogeothier witl
SOClA NOMES.

parch: ¢ompany of its sabsidiaries (ine "Group’} and 10 pravide
1 e potanna. for caniia, growh from invesiing in 2 porifo.io of

£ Bases of o :
Tne financlal statemen s have necn prepared on a alsiorica. cost basis and in accordance wit Financa! Reporung Standard

181 Reduced Disc osure Framewors (FRE 1017 and the Companies AT, 5 as app.icab.e o companies using FRS 1CL

In preparing tnese financia siaigmren:s. tne Comroany applies me recognition nigasuremen: and disc.osure requirerren:s of
miernationa: Financia' Reporing Standards ("Adopied IFR327, o4t max<as amerdments whete necessary in order (o comoly
witn the Companies Ac 2006 and nas set out Delow wnore advaniage of e FRS 101 disc.osure exempiions has oocen taken,

In prepanng (aose linandia. statemaents 1ac Company Aas

a<en advaniage ol al. disclosare cxempuons conlerred vy FRS 101

Tmerefore. ese financia. siaieimenis do not ine ado:

s cerain comparaive informancn as oerwise red Lired oy IFRS:

e ceraln disc os.res regarding the Company's capila. managemenc

e coraln isCos.,res in relanon w0 IFRS 15 Revene Contraais witn CLsipmors:

s  asaemen: of casy tows:

s cneetfec of future accoaning standards no: yer adoopted,

e e disclosure of (e reptingraion of <oy managenien: personne.; and

e  discos.are of te a'ed pary Transactions win ater wao, v owned mompears of Civitag Socia. Hossing PLC.

n addinon. and in accordanace wizn FRSCL furiner discosure eXCempiions nave oven adonied peeause eguiva.on: dise.osores

are incouded in e Company's conso.idated finanaa. statemenis Tagse Hnanaa siatements do notinc..de corain
disc.osores inrespec: oh

® snare oascd vaymen:s:
e financia insiw.men s and

e lairva. .e neasuraman piaer nan corain discoosuras reqairoed as a res., Dol recording finanaia. insramen.s a: fair va we

Comnany nag a<en advanage of e oxenrnion in socion 408 of the Companies Ao 2003 not 1o Dresen:t 118 owrl incom:o
awmen. or staienment of Comprenensive ncome

B Andrzods snoacdhinent, and o intes pintitiong
Aller a review ol new accouwniing s.andards wnicn are now cifeciive. none arc re.cvan: 1o og adopied in
Company’s acco.nss tor e ysar ended 31 Maroen 26077

S¢ oreparaiion of the




Notes to the Company Financial Statements

Continued

PR S IS ENERYRT AT oY ot

Thea financia. sia:cents nave neen prepared on 4 going conaern vasis.
As discussed 1n e Groap inancial statemenis above, the under.ying assets of e Comnany penctit fromm a secure income siraant.

The Company tinancia: $:alCmenis show an accuni'aled (08, nowever (s 18 due 1o a dine-iag on orofits [rom simhsidiary
companies pejng mover .phe sirleture in s four of dividends.

The Company has a net curren: \aoiy nosition ol £246,272,600 (2021 £152.364.000) Tnis balance arises due 10 ne Inlercompany
pa.ances ota.ing £271,532,000 (ZG21: £1894865.000) with the Company's suhsidlary companies Tae amownnts principa..y relate ©
pank .cans drawn in 'ne Company's subsidiary companies in order to tinance the purcnase of new acquisittons in accordance
witrl the Grouo's ousiness mode,. The directors of the subsidiary companies nave provided a ‘eter of comfor: that they will not
seex repaymen: of these pa.ances witain 12 monihs from the date of approva’ of rhe Company's financia. s:aicmenis

The Company's ariicies of associaion Inciude a regulrement for (e Board (o propose an ordinary resoluiion ai the ann.aa.
genera. meeiang tolowing the fifth anniversary from the initia. punlic oflering of e Company for the Company 1o coninue in
by current torm: (the Continiaion Resaoulion). This ig the lirs: continuation voie since the Comrpany was sel Lo

If :ne Conzinua'ion Reso.ation is passed, (ne Company wi. coniinue i1s business as nresency constiiuiied and propose ne
same reso.ulion as every fifth annua. genera. meeling (ercalzer If 1aa Continuation Resolution is not passed. 1ne Dircciors
will pe raquired. within six montas afier the daie of this annaal genera: meeting. to form.laie proposals for consideration
ny the gharenc ders for the voiuntary (ig.aidation. anilisation. resrganisation, or reconstraciion of 1ne Company. Afler
naking appropriate endquiries of the Company’s prokars and Investirent Adviser purguan o helr recent discussions wiin a
number of tne Company's snarena ders. (nc Direciors are of the view "na: the Continuation Reso. .lion wil. pe passed at the
torineoming annua. genera! mecting. Tnis roflects the sirengia and natuire of e Conipany's pordalio. and specifically the
orovision of 'ong-term accommodanon for mmore 1an 4000 vilneranle individua.s. Agcordingly. 1ne Rircciors expect (hat

it the Consinuaiion Resoluiion 1s no: passed. an event wnicn the Direciors consider 10 e nigy remote, formalaing and
implemen:ing any sucnh proposa.s woliid reqaire the Company o continude aperazions for a penod of av east 12 monins from
the dare ol approva. ol ine Company's financia. sialemen:s.

The Board is, theretore, of (he opinion al the going concern pasis adoped in the preparazion of (ne conso.adated linancia!
glalemenisis aporopria.c.

T N R L P ey S e SR AT bs BR-PIF SURLI IR o L LR LI TR INVERSTE S & SR S
Tne xey sodrce of estimaton uneerainty re.aes 1o tac Company’s investmen: in Growo companies. and s siated in e
Company's separaie linancia, stalemen:s al cos: oss impalrmen: ‘osses, il any. Impairmen: osscs are determined win
referonce to tne mvesirent's falr val.e ‘ess cslimated cosis of disposa.. Fair va'ue is denved from ine supsidiaries. and elr
s.uppsidiaries’. nat assets at ne na.ance sheet date Invesimen: prooperios hcid oy 1ne subsidiary companes are s.poored
oy indevenden: va.uation. Judgemen.s and assumiions associaied with the propery va.des of tho invesimeanis ne.d oy 1ae
s.osidiary companies are detaned in ine Croap ihanaia) siatemenis

g nobivies

30 Ar i
The financiai staterrents of 1ne Company 0. ow the accodnting po.icles aid ou in the Group’s consoadaied financia;
zmatemrenis @ ong win e folowing accounimg potcics waich have peen consisienty apohied:

Povgesumnnyi oy subhaarianiens

Theinvesimons in suosidiary conpanies are inc.aded in the Company's Siatemens of Financia. Position al ¢os? less provision
for impairmen: moairnrent 2osses are desarmined with reference 1o tne ivesimeon:'s lar va.ue (0ss esiimaied sel.ing cos:s Fair
va zo e derived from e suosidiaries’. and their suosidiaries. nat assers ai 'e palance sneer date On disposa.. e difietence

peiwaeen the ne: disposa. procceds and s carrying amroun:ig ine uded 1in the income slatenrent,

The Invesimont in a sensidiary company rmray inc..de poi e pareaase of snares and an interconpany [oan wnich s
seoseg.enly caplialised in relarn tor shares in (he <oosidiary company. The interconioany 'oan caplia.ased s discoosed in

o

noe 70 as a ransfor netween tne saares and Loan culiumnsg

T S TS E RN TN E A
Loans made (o s.osidiary con sanies wch anse as nar: of tae iransaciions for Jne acquisiiion of iInvesirenis and are
sapseqeen: y capiiaasaed ny the iss .o ol shares are recognised as invesiman: 1in suosidiaries a: cost AL e DOINT e 0an is

capiadsed. 1his ransacion is recognised as a ransfer wiiun ne tan.ein noe 7.0

Srmeoun T dtee i o i Iy SO et D

Balances ansing wit supsidiary conpanics of a tenporary nature arc invia.’y recognised at lair va ue and suogseq.on.y
meas.red ar amorised cost,
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements

Continued

4.0 Dividands
Dividends are iInciuded in ine financial statements in Tae year in wnich they are naid Deaills of dividends pad and proposed
are included innoie 14 ¢ of the Croup's conso.idated financia! statemenis,

5.0 Dmpioyes intormation
Detaiss of Directors’ remuneration are inciuded in noie 5.0 ot tae consc.idaed financial statemen's, The Company nad no
cmployees during ne year (2021 ni’)

G0 Auditters
Audit fees in relation o tne Company's Hinancla. siatemen:s (o1al £296.000 (2021, F272,000). For {furiher dewails. p.ease refer o
no:e 9.6 of the Groupn financia. sta.ements.

P dnvesnmems i
T I o T T T T T T T T T T e
Shares in Loans o year ended
subsidiaries subsidiaties 31 March 2022
o [ £0on £000 000
Ba.ance a: the beginning of the yoar 703,435 17,483 720,918
Increase N investmen's 4,712 31,013 72,725
Loans ransforred 23,287 (23.287) -
Impairment B - o (359) - (35&

768075 25209 793284

At the end SE tt:l_e yea-r_'.

For L year

Shates in ended

subsidisries 31 March 2021

_ - . . _ . . o . o febe goon _£000
Ba ance a” ne neginning ol ~ae year 578.247 28673 FLB320
Increase in invesimenss 928 11,383 15.311
loans transferree 25.573 (25.573) -
pairmen: ) B o o _osE - L3
At the end of the year 703,425 17483 726918

Fol.owing a review comparing ¢os: ol invostmen:s (o tne snderlying ne: assets of suosidiary con panies, an umnpairmen:
provision nas oecn made of ©339,000 {2021 £1313.000).

20 Sunnials
The Company nas provided a guaranteg onder $479C of “ne Companies Act 2006 1 respect of 1ne linancia. vear ended

31 Marcn 2027 lor a nurr ner of vs sunsidiary companies (asandiaed In 1 tane on 1ne tolowing pages). The guaraniee is
over all ouwglanding ianiilies o which ‘e supsidiary companies are s1o ect ad 31 Margh 2022 Wil ey are sansfied in fu.

ry it 3ies

The Grown congisis of a paren: company, Civiias Socia. [iowsing PLC. incorparated in England and Wa.es (company nuampor

134G2528) and a n.mber of s.osidlaries 1e.d direct y by Civitas Sacia. Housing PLC. wnion operate and are incorporaed n
Eng and and Wa es or Jersev.

o

1€ Group owns 1IC0% equity shares of a.” suosidianes 1sied pe.ow and has e power (0 appoin: and remove e ma’orty of
e poard of dircciors of 1nose suosidianes. Tae re_evan: aciivizies of the oc.ow sipsididrics are detcrmined oy tne Board of
Directors nasad on the purpose of eacn comnany

Therefore, (e Direciors conc. oded taa.s 1ac Group a8 contra’ over 4. s onlies and all Iaese cnites 1ave been
consolidaed wiam e consodaed financia siacnen's.

L
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements

Continued

A s of a lreaied wunderiakings incouded within these congolidated financia) sratemen:s are noted peiow. Tndirect y held

suosidiary companies are marked by an indentation 1 11e laae 0c.ow:

Mame

Civiias Social I—Eusinig FilTEM]C@EO]Ti‘SHﬂ}’ 1 Linied®
Civitas Socias Housing lersey 1 Lumied
Civitas SPV1 Limited”
Civiias SFV2 Lintied”
Civizas SPV1 Limled*
Civiras SPV1S Limited”
Civitas SFV25 Limited®
Civiias SPVZ7 Limiied*
Civitas SPV33 Limited"
Civiias SPV35 Lintited”
Crvitas SPV38 Limited*
Civitas SPV39 Lirited®
Civitas SPV4C Limited®
Civitas SPV41 Limited*
Crvitas SPVS0 Timicd*®
Civitas Socia. Housing Finance Company 2 Limizcd?
Civitas Socla Housing Jersey 2 Limied
Civiias SPV3 Limired®
Civiras SPV4 Limied*
Civitas SPVS Limited”
Civizas SPVE Limi:ed*
Civiias SPV9 Limied®
Civitas SPVLD Linvited®
Civizas SPVIZ Limited®
Civitas 3PV17 Limied®
Civrias SPV18 Limited*
Civiias SPV19 Limitod*
Civiias SPVZC Limited”
Civitas SPVZZ Limited®
Civitas SPV24 Limited*
Cjvitas SPV20 Limited®
Civitas SPV29 Limred®
Crvitas SPV3C Limited®
Civitas 3PV31 Limited*
Civitas SPV32 Limiiad*
Civiias SPV34 Limired®
Civitas SPV34 Limited*
Civitas SPVAZ Limited*®
Civitas 3PWV4T Limiwed®
Civitas SPV45 Luried*
Civiias SPV45 Limied?
Civizas 3PV47 Limizod”
Civitas SPVA8 Limiwed*
Crvizas SPVS] Limned”
Civizas SPV3Z Limjred*
Cvrias 3FVab Limued?

Requstered number

109977G7
121129
10518729
101423
10546748
C9777380
791473
12883112
10546407
16588530
1CT38318
10547333
10738515
10738542
16775419
10997598
124876
10155529
10433744
10479104
13674493
15536388
10835213
13545753
10473030
10515551
14548932
13388735
10743958
10731512
10864335
10911555
10955025
10974889
11637173
10738381
13388792
107585506
10534877
10871854
10871910
1C873270
10873295
13826593
12827004
10937805

Principal acrivity

Finance company

Holding company

Property investment
Bropery invaesinient
Property investment
Property invesunen:
Property mvesimen:
Property invesimen:
Propery invesimen:
Proocriy inves men.
Propeny invesunent
Property investmen:
Property invesimen?
Praopery invasimeni
Fropery invesimen:
Fmance company

[Ho.ding company

Propery investmen:
Propery invesiment
Proper.y invesin:en:
Propery investmen:
Property imvesiment
Pronery invesiven:
Property investmen:
Properny invesumnem
Properiy invesimen:
Property invesiment
Properly investmen:
Property invesimer:
Propery invos:men!
Properiy investmment
Provermy invesimens:
Procery invesument
Property investment
Propary investmen:
Propery invesiment
Froperty (nvesimein:
Property invesuren:
Properiy Invesmen:
Property investmeit.
Prooperty invesimen:
Propery invesimont
Propery mnvesimen:
Property invesimen.
Property invesumon:
Propery Invesirren:

Country of incorporation
England & Wa.cs
Jergey

England & Walos
tngland & Wales
Fngland & Wales
Eng.and & Wales
Engiand & Waies
Fngiand & Wa.es
Eng.and & Waies
England & Wales
Engiand & Wa.es
Engand & Wales
England & Wales
Cngiand & Wa.es
England & Wa.es
England & Wales
Jerscy

Lng.and & Wa es
England & Walcs
England & Wa.es
Fng.and & Wales
Engand & Wales
Cogiand & Wales
England & Wales
Eng'and & Wales
Logland & Wa.es
Fng.and & Wa'es
Lng and & Wales
England & Wa.cs
Engwand & Wa eg
Lng.and & Wales
Frgland & Wa.cs
Engand & Wales
Lng.and & Wales
Eng.and & Wa.cs
Engand & Wa.es
Fng.and & Waleg
England & Wa.cs
Tng.and & Wa es
Eng.and & Wales
Fngland & Wa.es
Engiand & Wa.es
Lnyg and & Waics
Fng.and & Wa es
Engiand & Wa.es

England & Wales

E :
4
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Continued

N@m(iﬁiiﬁ T T T Reqi;;e;;\;;nbex _l’nncnpail’:ftrlvuv . - Country of HLCOID-OIHILOI\ _
CIVl[EISEE’V64 ifmi:sd' T ) 10838411 Fropeny invcgimen: England & Wa.es
Civiia$ SPV70 Limized*® 10770201 Froper'y invesiment Eng.and & Wa es
Civitas SPV71 Limited® 10888639 Propery invesiment Cng.and & Wales
Civizas SPV72 Limized® 10938022 Propery invesimrent Fng.and & Wales
Civitas 3PV74 Limited* 11031855 Properny invesimcn: England & Wales
Civiias SPV7S Limited® 11001834 Propery invesimern: England & Wa_esg
Civiras SPV80 Limited* 11001998 Property invesimen: England & Wa.es

Civitas Socia’ [Housing Finance Company 3 Limited* 10997714 Finance Company Engiand & Wales
Crvitas SPVE Lumated* 10536157 Property invesimen: Eng.and & Wales
Civitas SPV28 Limied* 10895228 Propery investment Eng.and & Wales
Civi-as 5PV33 Limicd’ 11021625 Fropery invesimon: Eng and & Waics
Civiias SPV35 Limited! 11056458 Property invesimen. Eng.and & Wales
Civitas SPVS7 Limued* 11091444 Propery invesimen: Eng.and & Wales
Civiias SPVAC Limited* 111119¢8 Properly INvesiamen: Eng.and & Wa.es
Civitas SPV6I1 Limited” 10937662 Property invesimen: Engand & Wales
Civitag §PV65 Limited” 103937898 Properly Invesimen: England & Wa'os
Cvitas SPV77 Limuted® 111556491 Proporty Invesiment [ng.and & Wales
Civiias SPV78 Limited* 11170039 Fropery myvesimen: Eng and & Wales
Civizag sPV79 Limited” 11236544 Proovery invesurent Eng.and & Wales
Civizas 3PV8! Limied® 119281 Progpcriy invesinien: Fng and & Walos
Civitag 3PV8Z Limied® 113280795 Propery investmen: Eng.and & Wa es
Civizas SPV83 Limied” 11371128 Propery Imvesimen: Lingland & Wales
Civiias SPV8S Lirized® 11300749 Propery Invesimaen: Engiand & Wa.es
Civiias 5PVes Lined? 11208184 Froperty invesimern: Lngand & Wa.es
Civilag SPV97 Limisadd’ 11453890 Prooery invesuren: Fng.and & Wales
Crvizas 3PVIC3 Limited® 11500596 Propery invesimren:t Eng and & Wales
Civirag 3PVICS Limed® 1532177 Propery invasimen: Lng.and & Wales
Civitay SPVICH Limeed® 1532179 Froper.y invesiunen. Eng and & Wa.es
Civitas SPVIC7 Limized® 11532182 Propery invesimen: Eng and & Wi.es
Civitay SPV115 Limized* 11524399 Property invesimen: Lng.and & Wa.es
Ciwvitag SPVN7 Limized* 11504445 Property invesimen: Eng and & Wa.cs

Civizas Social Houwsing Finance Company 4 Lenied’ 119535580 Finance Company Eng.and & Wa.es
Civiay SPV23 Limited? 15745881 Property invesimen: Ingand & Wa.es
Civitas SPVS4 Limrzed* 11039750 Propcrty invesimen: Fng.and & Walcs
Crs17ag 3PV59 Limized® N8z Propery invesiman: Eng.and & Wa es
Civizas 3PVAY Limied’ 1142372 Propery invesimen: Lng and & Wa.cs
Civitag $PV7?3 Limred® 10939475 Prooery invesimen: Eng.and & Wa.es
Civitag SPV84 Limited” 11381455 Fropery invesimran: Eng.and & Wales
Civirag 3PVEs Linteed® 11418432 Frooery INvesirrent [ng.and & Wa.es
Civiias SPVE? Limnicd?* 10888903 Properny invesimren: Eng.and & Wa.os
Civiiag SP788 Limrited* 10939544 Fropery inves.mean: Eng and & Wa.es
Civitag 5PVIC Limed® 13939131 Propcry invesiren: Thng and & Wa.es
Civitas 8PV Lumited® 10941277 Pronery INvVesimen: Fng and & Wa.cs
Civitas SPVS2 Limied* 11449973 Proper:y Inves:men: Eng and & Wa.os
Civitag SPV93 Limied® 1543111 Prooeny INvesumen: Cng.and & Wa as
Civiias 3PV94 Limired’ 11208183 Propery INvYesimen: Cng.and & Wa.es
Crvitas 5PV96 Limred® 1275785 Propar; invesimwen® Fng and & Wa.es
Crvliag SPYVICC Limied® 11559763 Propery INvosiman: Eng.and & "Wa.es
Cre1ias 3PVICT Limadr 09978282 Propersy myvesiman: Eng.and & Wa.cs
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Name
Civitas SPVIOZ Limted'
Civiias SPVI09 Limied?
Crvitas SPVI1Z Limied”
Civitas SFVI4 Limiedt
Clvizas sPVIS Limied®
Civitas SFVI8 Limited*
Civiias SPV1Z21 Limied®
Civitas 3PV122 Limied*
Civizas SPV126 Limited!
Civitas 5PV127 Limbred*
Crviias SPV129 Limited?
Civizas SPVTAC Limited!
Civitas SPV151 Limited”
Civitas SPV132 Limied*
Civitas SPVHMSE Limited*
SPV153 Limited {previous!y Fle.doay Limited)*
Civitas 5PVi48 Lintied?
Civizas SPV149 Limited*
Civitas SPVIR0 Limited”
FPI CC 324 Lad*
Civitas Socia: Housing Financee Company 5 Limuied*
Civitas 5PV7 Limited*
Civitas SPVI3 Lirried”
Crvizas SPV37 Limited’
Civitas 5PV44 Liried’
Civitas SPVA9 Luried*t
Civicas SPV56 Limited”
Civiias 5PV5H2 Limized’
Civitag SFV33 Limied’
Civizas 5PV57 Limited*
Civitas SPVH8 Limied!
Civitas SPV98 Limred*
Civiias SPV99 Limized?
Crvitas SPVI04 Limied!
Clvitas SPVICE Tomited®
Civitas SPVI3 Limied®
Civizas SPV12Z Limited*
Crvitas SPV133 Limited®
Civitas SPV134 Linicd*
Civiias SPV1ISE Limred®
Civiias SPVI36 Limited®
Civitas SPV14% Limied!
Civitag SPV144 Limized®
Cwvtias SFVi44 Limized®
Bryn Litun (2019 Limeod®
Civizas SPVI47 Limiced*
Mynydd Mawr (Z819; Limited*
Civizas SPVIS2 Limred®

Cvitas SPVISS Limized®

_ _Reawstered numbet

11521355
11532120
1157975¢
NH79733
11522178
11411498
11099517
11482645
11459821
10941401
11554994
11705074
N&75132
11473735
11842305
5219012
11637533
1146269
11462558
11633019
13083077
10536368
09517692
10738450
10588783
11031349
11085455
10937528
189328457
10937929
10838259
11478695
11478707
11532174
1332135
11385068
08253452
1598972
11689451
N579880
11579760
1546658
1346695
11851500
1e44898
1851974
11844917
1955719
12644281

Principal activity

Propcriy invesiment

Pronecriy inves:ment
Property inves:men.
Properiy investyen:
Prooperty invesimens:
Property mvesimen:
Property investmen:
Propearty invesiment
Property invesimean:
Propery invesimeant
Propery invesimen:
Propeary invesiman:
Propery invesiment
Properiy invesimen:
Holding company

Progery invesimen.
Property invesimen:
Properly invesiment
Property investmen:
Property mvesumen:
Finance Company

Propery investmen.
Proparty invesimen:
Property invesimen:
Propery invesimen.
Propery invesiment
Propery invesimaen:
Property invesimen:
Frooeriy inves:mons
Propery invesimen:
Property investmen:
Froperty investmen:
Propery Invesimeaent
Proocrty inves mern:
Proper.y invesimen:
Property invesinen:
Property invesimern:
Proper.y invesimen?
Propery invesimen:
Propery invesimen:
Propery INvesimen:
Pronery invesimen:
Property invesimen:
Ha ding Company

Properiy mvesimen:
[oding Company

Property invesimean:
Prooerty invesimaen:
Proper.y invesirent

Counlry of iIncorporation

Fngiand & Wa_es
Eng.and & Walcs
Lngland & Wa.es
Frngland & Waies
England & Wales
Lng'and & Wales
Eng.and & Wales
Engiand & Wales
Lngand & Wa'es
Eng.and & Wa'les
Fnglang & Wales
Engilandd & Wa.cs
Eng.and & Waies
Eng.and & Waes
England & Wa.es
Fng.and & Waies
England & Waies
England & Wa:es
FEng.and & Wales
Eng.and & Wales
England & Wa'es
Eng.and & Wales
Fngland & Wa.os
Eng.and & Waes
tngand & Wales
Engrand & Wa.eos
England & Wales
Lng.and & Wa.cs
Englavd & Wa.es
England & Waies
Ingland & Wa.es
Lngand & Wa.es
Eng and & Wales
Fng.and & Wa.es
Eng.and & Wales
Fng.and & Wales
Fng.and & Waes
Lngland & Wales
fngiand & Wa.cs
Eng.and & Wa.cs
Eng'and & Wales
Engiland & Wa.es
Fng and & Wa'es
Lng'and & Wales
Eng.and & Wa.es
Fng.and & Wales
England & Wa.og
Eng.and & Wa.es
Eng.and & Wajes
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements

Continued

Reqistered number __ Principal activity __Country of incotporation

Name
) 7Civ1tés SPVIVSS I:Jil:r*lltﬂd‘i o - i 17081093 Propery mves'kmeﬂn'. a Cng.and & -‘E’;lcs
Civiras SPVI57 Limiled® 12188610 Propeny invesimens: Eng:and & Wa es
Civiras SPV138 Limited* 17282674 Property invesimenl Lngland & Wales
Civitas SPVIR0 Limited* 12272806 Proverty investrmert Eng.and & Wales
Badford SFV1 Limied* 12315518 Proper.y investment England & Wa.es
Bridge Propery Hers Limiied” 12435985 Prapery invesimen: England & Wales
Bridge Propco Limized* 12445139 Property investmen: Engiand & Wales
FPI Co 294 Lid* 11519226 Property invesiamen: Tngiand & Wa'es
Civitag SPV14 Limited” 10479041 Property invesiment Eng and & Wales
Civitas SPV HP L.d.* 172784893 Pronerty invesimen: Engiand & Wales
Civitas SPV16 Limited! 09917557 Property invesureni tngland & Wa'es
Civitas SPV21 Limited* 10631541 Properny immvesimant Eng and & Wales
Civitas SPV159 Limied* 12258313 Froperty invesiman: rrig.and & Walcs
Civitas Financing PLC? 13546154 Ho.ding Cir‘lpany Vf.ng‘and &}’\Ia.gL

* These snnues are exemp! hom the reguyrements of the Compames Aot 2006 relahng to the audyt olindnndial hnancial siaretoents by vinoe of Section 479A of that
Act These are all entites that have a year end of 51 Maich 2022

Tae regisiercd addresses for the sebsidianes are consisien: pased on ther country of incorporation and arc as fo.iows:

¢ England & Wales entities: Beaufor: House 51 Now North Road. Dxeter, Dovon EX4 4EP
o Jersey entities: 12 Cas:.e Sirect, St Ielier, Jorsey JEZ SR™

BOLEe bl DIy T ey

JiMarch 2022 31March 2021

o . _ . . - o _ _ _Eooo £ 000
Trade receivanes 1,150 727
Prepaymemns and ooer receivaoios 1902 1433

corued income N B o 1258  148%
Total ' T T T o - 430 3ad4

Prepaymen:s and oiner receivap.c amounts inciude orepaid sga’ and professiona fees of 734.0C0 (2021 £20C.00C) tnat nave
peen incurred in conneciion with acg.isiiions yer 1o be compleied and £1.045.000 (2021 £817.000) in respect ot incomp.elad
works on e propery pordolio

POarh ang et eglava

dtMarch 2022 3t March 2621

. [ oL £000 _ £000
Eiam "_1-eld oy} SO.1CHOTS . T ’ T o ' i 376 720
Taguadiy funds 10.489 10.485
Casnh ne.d az pan< ) 12258 z.381
Casn ana '“a‘;x eulva.ents ) - - T T ’ T _EZS_ T 14.586
Resricied casn ) ) 315 831
Totalcashheld atbank - a8 15447

TAaese arc ALy dgaid funds with accessiniliy witnn 24 ao.urs

Lig.adiy funds refer .o money o.aced 1n monsy mar<e: {unds
and s.0.ec o insignitican: risk of changes nva..e

Casn ne.d oy so1ciors s money ae.d n escrow for oxpenses exoccied o be incurred in re.aion (o nvesiren: oroperics
vending comp eldon These funds are avatanie immediacy on domand

HEesiricied casna represenis amo.anis ned 1or sp commimen nan: deposits and reienion woney no.d Ny awyers in
re.aton o deferred paynterus suo,ec o achueyenien: ot cerrain conditions, o:ner ratenions and cash segregared to fund repair
Irainienance and imorovemen. wor<g o pring tae properies Lup o saugfaciory standards for ne Gro.o and 11e enanis.




Notes to the Company Financial Statements
Continued

T T T T T T T sarchaezz m maren vzt

£'000 ETGD
Retenuions T es aam
ACcr.als 685 450
Dividend withnading ax pavaire 1,087 897
Deferred income 358 358
Amounits d.ae o suosidiary companies 271,632 158455
TOtAL T T T T e Zm”i 171655

P20 Share apitiad
Share capi:a. represenss the nomina: valde of consideration recsived oy the Company for tne issue of Ordinary snares,

For the For the

year ended vear ended
3 March 2022 31 March gull
— - o e o S - - - L - - - - _ _. _ Eooo £uvo
Share capital
AT peginning and end of year 6.225 5225
a3 I far sy A I p

-I'Dl the year ror the yeal
ended ended

- - — — J— - - _ _ _ R - _ A1March 202727) _S1March 2021

Ordinary shares of £0.01 each

Al beginning and end of yoar 622461380 527451380

The Company ho.ds 10.025.000 (2021 585.000) Ordinary shares in (reasary The numoer of Ordinary snares used 10 galcuae e
net agse: va.ae per share 1s 612.436.380 (2021 521.895,380).

R RPRES VAP E EFAINEART 7 L0

[

Tals resarve raoresents Tne protics and osses of ine Camrpany.

rot the Tor the

year ended yeal ended

A1March 2022 31 Match 2021

L. o - O, - e .- o .o [ L S AL
Balange a: the pegmning of (e year (61,.473) {80.84C)
Profit lor the year 21,362 52.780C
Dividends paid in the year S - ] ) 77(734.955%) o 7(33{{’)

Atend of year (74204) (51173}

B DU E L L RN R

TR ERRIN

As ai 31 March 2022, inere 18 no Joiimale conrening pany

LI S R ST T I

ora. related pariy ransaciions and rransacilons with ine vesimen: Adviser p.ecase rac<e referonce o noes 30.1 and 30 2 ol
the Crowp's consodidated financial statemonis and amoun's due (o sunsidiary companics in note 170 anave.

S £

P.zase rafer 1o note 33.0 of the Croup Consoudated financia. staiemen:s on gage 107,

£207 SLNDODDY ANV 4G4
D DNISNOHIVENOY SYLTALID
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Appendix 1 (unaudited): Notes to the
calculation of EPRA and other alternative
performance measures

Notes 1:0 8 support the ERPA meurics disclosed on pages 36 and 37 of tne Report where the definition and pwrposs of eacn
metric are ouslined.

P FPRA Tarnl s
Fortheyear For the year
ended ended
B 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Earrﬁ.ngs from operational activities

Frofit afzer ;axanon {£G00} 44, 754 25,075
Changce in fair va.ue of derivanve financia’ ing:rumen:s (£'00GCH (2.675) ah
Changles in vaiue of i invesmen: proper. lCS (:_ CC3) (12 269) {5.511)
EPRA Earnings (/000) - a9B10 30830
Weigh ed average num ber of & 5'13{95 inissue (dd 45t eﬁor Sita res ne e | in rrﬁax mf\ _—7 618 797942 021 5‘3‘1 259
FP&EJEHQ& ,J-PJ' share fFF’S) nasic & diured o o - 4, BZp 4 97;)

20 FPRA NLY Metoils

EPRA Net EPRA Net EPRA Net

Reingtaternent Tangible Disposal
value Assets valye
31 March 2022 - ' - . o
Ne agsels (£°000) 675,547 675,547 675,547
Fair value of derivative financia. ins:ramen:s (£'005) (2,131} (2,131) -
Fair va.Je of pan< porrowings (F000) - - 2,644
KAM[]OG)_ j 7 _-_ﬁ __‘7 . - ; - 7 o o ,... o ) _:613.416 ;___673.416 B 678.1;
Nomber of shares in iss.e fadjusied for snaved ne d in reasary) 612,436,380 612436,380 612,436,380
NAV per share ] 109.96p 10s.96p  110.74p
o o o o o 7 - o T T T T EPRANet  LPMANCOl  CPRANel
Retnstatement Tangible Disposal
- — J— _ o - Matue ASSCIS Value
31 March 2021 T B o o T T o N g :
Net agscis (77000) 573,498 673,198 473,498 ul
Fair va.ue of derivative linancia: insr.men:s {(£G00) 544 544 g -'
FdlrbE_Je of oan& )orrowmgs (L G 00)7‘ L B o o o - o o o (?.,%2) B g )
t\ i (r ";CC) 574.042 B74042, 6571478 it
_ ., — — i _ _ L we 2 _ e g
KNumber of snarcs it issac (ad usied for snared ne.d 10 ireasary) 521,896.380 61895380 B21.895.3580 § F
NAV persnare - o 108 38p 10838p 107.570 - é . .
B NUEA MNed RN LT
I i T B T " Forme  forthe
S M 032 31 March 2001
I-n-‘;res‘n“ ; ol\)*Pr Y (;"'C_E? o T o ’ o o 7 968, 7567 N 915.389 e}
B owance for cstinvaed pura 1:|<5L=1‘Q cosis (P00 56412 53753 é; §
\Jon"ir) ”'(‘d Dr’)[_\?r ¥ port folloT[?OO) S o B o T 1025 168 959.342 ; g
AN aa. m*d ne: rens (7 ‘qu) ) ’ o - ) 54.091 - SG.'}QC ; g
Add nonona, rend exnitaton of rent ﬁfm* Dermds or OMH fase ing L8 u'*s (f OO - 5 :
“opped-ap nei annuaised ren: (£000) - 54091 50780 Eg
EPRA NIY 5.28% 5.24% P c
LPRA Topped-.o NIY B 5.28% 5 4% SR
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Appendix 1 (unaudited): Notes to the

calculation of EPRA and other alternative

performance measures continued

97 LPRA Vaoanay Rate

Estu;.atcd Mark_sn R-emal E’aLL;é(}gﬁV) of vacan: spag:es. (£'Q00) N
Es:irr.rartEd Market Rental Va.ue (ERV) of whae por:[olipﬂﬂr{ﬁ'quh )

EPRA Va cénc:_y EE‘\_C B

5.2 EPRA Costs Ratio

Forthe

For the

Tota. adminisirauve and operating expcnsas’
Direct propery exponses

Less property expenses recovered ro.agh rents
EPRA Costs (including direct vacancy costs)
Dircct vacanaey ¢

EPRA Costs (excluding direct vac'az'i(:yrcosts)

Rentaiincome
Less rechargeab € Cosis received
Gross rental income

EPRA Cosl Ratio (including direct vacancy costs)

Tae Croan nas nolineurred any dircct vacancy Cosis,

&5

FRESA Tabte of Cagitel Saneoditire

dons inc.uding incidenia: cosis of purchase

Deve.opmens

Investment properties
Incramenta. ellan.e space
Ennancing emanlie space
Tenan: inccnives
Omaer materna. non-alocaed ypes of cxpendiiure

Capiia.isad ineres:

Total Capital Expenditure

Conversion from acer.a.s 10 casn oasls

Total Capital Expenditure on a cash basis

Tae Group 1as nol capitaased any overaead Or Goeralng exoonscs

year ended year ended
31Maich 2022 31 March 2uz1
54,091 50.280
o% o
o Fox [he_ Forlg
year ended year endged
ilMarch 2022 31 March 2021
10,247 9198
978 1175
I I ) 8851
10.230 3787
10230 5787
51.636 19,028
(995)  @88p
50,641 48134
20.20% 20 33%
20.20% 20 33%
;‘c:rlhe Fo;he
year ended year ended
31March 2022 31 Maich 2021
___Eo0 gugu
33,466 15.1C8
5,818 A.077
1,614 11217
- " 40838 31402
1,312 215
42.210 31817



Appendix 1 (unaudited): Notes to the
calculation of EPRA and other alternative
performance measures continued

Yoo Porinhor hony

IFRS NAV ad usted o reliect investnieni propetty valLed on a port{oio basis rather than indrvid.a, asse: pasis.

31March 2022 31 Marcha2l

Nel assole (EE;DC) - T T - o B o o 675,547 673498
Adjus:men:io_r change 10 propelty valualon (000 ) ) 76,784 83,270
Por:fo.lo net asscts (FO0C) 752.531 735708

| 612436380 £2:895380
122.84p  11847p

Number of Ordinary shares in issue {ad usied for shares held in ireasary)
Portiociio el Assels per share

80 bLeverayedinternal rate of requon iRR
Thig is (ne annda: growin rate, pased on grow il in nel asset va ae per snare since launch and dividends paid o
Ordinary sharcho.ders.

_ 31Maich 202z 31Match 2071

IFRS NAV per share o 1103000p 1083000
% May 2617 In.erim dividend 0.7500p 075000
31 Augus: 2017 [niterim dividend 0.7500p 37500
30 Novemoper 2017 In:cnm dividend 0.7500p Q75000
9 Marcn 2018 Inierim dividend 0.7500p 0.7500p
8J].ne 2018 nterim dividend 1.2500p 1.250C0
7 Seoemoer 2618 In:erimre dividend 12500p 1250Cp
30 Novenner 2018 Interim dividend 1.2500p 125000
1t January 2619 Tn.erim dividend 1.1100p L11GCp
28 Febr.ary 2019 Intertm dividend 0.1400p Cc.l4adco
7 1.nc 2019 nenn: dividend 1.3250p 1.325Cp
5 Sepiember 2019 [merim dividend 1.3250p 13256p
29 November 2019 Interim dividend 1.3250p 1325Gn
28 Fepruary 2020 In:enm dividend 1.3250p 1.325Cp
12 hne 202C Interim dividend 1.3250p 13250p
7 3eniemoer 2020 Inerim dividend 1.3500p 1.33C0p
4 December 2020 Inerim dividend 1.3500p 1380Co
1 Marcih 2021 Interine dividend 1.3500p L3500
1 Tl.ne 2521 Inzerim dividend 1.3500p

10 3enlemper 2621 In:erim dividend 1.3875p -
13 Docemocr 2021 Inenm dividend 1.3873p

H March 2022 Truerim dividend 1.38@

134.4875p 12597
[FRE WAV persaare aliga.nch 98.0000p 980
Levered IRR 6.63%

[
[ I RS
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Five Year Financial Results

Croup Statement of Uomprebengnae Diainneg

Revenue
Ren:ia! income
Less direc: proper:y expenses

Net rental income

For the
penod trom

Dircc:ors remuneration
Investmen: advisory fecs
General and admimstrative expenses

Tolal expenses
Changs in fair va.Je of inves:men: properies

Operating Profit
Finance ncome
Finance cxpenses - relaiing (o Dank Dorrowings
Finance expenses relading ro C snarc amortisation
Cnange in fair value of mreres: rate derivatives
Profit befare tax o

Taxa.ion

Profit being total comprehensive income

Earnings per share - basic
Earnings per share — diluted
Dividend declared

For the For the For the Forthe 18 November

year ended year ended year ended year ended 20160
31March 2022 33 March 2021 31 March 2620 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
e £000 £00 £000 £000 £000
51,636 49.020 46165 35.738 18.606

(978) 1175) (259) -

50,658 47845 45,908 35,738 18.606

(206) (198) 176) (163) {203}
(6,132) (6.117) (6.183) (6.457) (8.773)
(3,909) (3,183) {3.501) 3.022) (2.913)
(10,247) {9.438) 9.860) (9.642) (8.893)

12,269 351 9389 3.652 30,553

' 52680 43858 45435 29718 4035
7 20 15 491 113

(10,608} {7.737) (7.342) {3.975) {1.C41)

- - (0,400} (2.792)

2,675 (66} (478)

44,754 36.075 37725 19.864 36923
44754 33078 57705 19854 35925
7.23p 5.8Co 6.060 44570 10 535D

7.23p 5800 5.060 1220 5270

5.55p 540D 5200 5000 3000




Five Year Financial Results

Continued

Gy Sratverens ol Finanea i o ata,

7 o - T - 7:';]’M:§l(_hgz—022 V ;1-1"Ma|c?n_20214; Mdr::;‘n_leZU ’ 31 March 2019 31 Mr‘i‘l‘Ch ZUI,?'

£000 £ 000 £ 000 £o0n £any

Assets - T T - o
Non-current asscts

invesuren: pronerty 945237 833,684 557988 820,094 519227
Qther receivan'es 23,519 21.8C3 10.755 5,824

Ieres! rate derivatives 2131 -

T T T T T Tomew eime s _asan | wedn
Non-current assets

“rade anc omner raccivables 12,865 12.821 10,838 5723 3315
Cash and casn eqguivaen's 53,337 167.097 36374 54,347 749,808
T T T s6202 119918 69212 007G 25A923
Totalassets T 10%7.089 1035507 947955 886988 75943
Liabilities

Current liabilities -

Trade and other payanpies (9.492) {9,345) 7743 15.3724) C.178)
Ban< and .oan norrowings - {35.9%7) {59,730 -

C gnares - {298,752}
S 0492 (89782)  (67473) (15324 (308828
Non-current liabilities

Bang and lnan borrowings (352,050) ROZA83 209440 2081553 (0823
[nicres: rate derivarives —- {514 478} -
- T T Tizs2080) | ©9a7Zn . ponSer  GOSISS) (90827
Total liabiliies - | (361542) (5670090 (77391 (20480) (399750}
Total netassets T 675547 573498 670564 668508 389395
Assets
Sharc capita, 6,225 5.225 6,225 2500
Snare prentium reserve 292,626 292453 292,405 -
Capita: red..ction reserve 322,365 331140 23(.946 331.8258
Retained carnings 54,33t 43.670 41.0C8& 34270
Total equity . 675547 573498 570554 369.395
Net assets per share — basic 10.30p 1CAS00 107.870 187 CBo 105 %4p
Net assets per share - diluted 110.30p 138 30n 157870 107080 1058540
Portfolio NAV 122.84p 118470 118.350 na 070 113860
Share price 87.40p 187 80D 96400 98.00p 974G
Total shareholder return (on a NAV basis) 37.23% 2957 23h4H 17 3% 1676
Leverage 34.43% 34 48% 25,90 22.80% 12.00%

P E _
a1 -
]
5
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Shareholder Information

Share Information

The Company's Ordinary shares of 'p each are quoted

on the Official List of the “CA and raded on the premium
segmen: of the Main Marke: of the L.ondon Stock Sxchange
(L85

SEDO__I-._ aumber E}U BH 35 3

ISIN 3808Oe-3052
Ticker/TIDM (st -
_LE[ 2138@Q£3(£84JBGM_5£—‘95 )

Frequency of NAV Publication

The Company's NAV 18 released ‘o the L3t on a quarterly
basis and published on the Company's website:
www.eivitassocialhousing.com.

Sources of Further Information

Copies of the Company's Annual and =alf-Yearly Repors,
Stock Sxchange announcements and further informasion
on the Company can be oblamed from i1s websie
www.crvitassoclalhousing com

Share Register Enquiries

The reqister for the Company's Ordinary shares 1s
mainzanead by ank Group. nthe aven: of quenes
regarching your holding, please contac: ‘he Reqisirar

on 37" 664 0500 {calls are charged at the standard
geographic rate and will vary by provider: calls outside
the UX will ke charged at the applicable international
raze}. .nes are open Lerween 9.0Cam and 5.50pm,
Monday o “nday. excluding pulklic holidays iny sngland
and Wales You can also email enguines@hinkgroupcouk

Changes of name and/or address rmus: be nottfied in
wriing 1o the Regustrar. .ank Group, 26th Yloor. Cenrtral
Square, 29 Welhngton Sree:, Leads 187400

Key Dates
June _Anmnual resuls ann ounced o T
o - __2aymen: of fourth f1nq]_§§§g{)d
September Company's half-year end
B o ,A;m}m] qener";lrrrrr}ge:]ng
_ . 3’a-vr2_er_11 of frrs; I_Tl?_eilij_g}Vl(ielﬁ d o
Dgggniher m}ja']ff‘-,fearly resulis announced

- W?a;fmer{gigf second m:enmrg wvidend
February Zaymen: of third 1intenm dividend
March Croﬂrnpany's vea'r end .

Association of Investment Companies

The Company is a member of the AIC, which publishes

stazistucal informaton in respect of member companies.
The AC can be cornracied on 020 7282 5353, enguineas®

theaic.couk or visit the website: www. heaie couk.

Electronic Communications from
the Company

Snarcholders now nNave e 9uRoriunly Lo oe notfied oy
emral’ wacn tne Company's Annual Repor:. Hall-Yearly
Reoort and olner formal communications arc avallan.e on
e Company’s wensiie insiead of receiving prinied copies
oy post. Thls has environmenta. benclis in “he reduciion of
paner orutmg, cnergy and waier usage. as we as red.acing
cosig lohe Company

If vou nave no! arcady e.ecied lo rcocive g.ecironil
comn unicazions from e Company and wisa (o do 80, D.ease
con.ao e Registrar



Glossary

AJFM means the Allernanve ‘nvestmen: I'and Manager.

AIFMD means the Alzernative ‘nvestment fund Managers
Regulanons 2073 (as amended by The Alternanve
‘nvesiment 'und Managers (Amendment etc.) (U =37
Regulanons 2009 and the investmen: Mands Sourcebogk
forming part of the -“CA ~andbook.

ALMO means an arme leng:h managemen: organisasion,
a no:-for-profic company tha: provides housing services
on behaif of a Local Authory.

Alternative Performance Measures (AP 3) means a
financial measure of histonical financial performance,
financial posinion. or cash flows, other than a financial
measura defined or specifled in the apphcable financial
reporting framework.

Annualised rent roll means the :ctal rental income due
ower “he first year from the date of vataanon, mclading an
esamaced rental 2phfr based on a long-term inflation rate.

Approved Provider meaans Approved Providers, Local
Authontes, ALV 0Os, Communtty nierest Companies,
Registered Chantles and other regulated orgamsations
direcily or mmdirectly in receip: of paymen: from local or
central governmentincluding the N=5

Care Provider means a provider of care services to *he
occupanss of Speciahs: Suppored —ousing, registered
with the Care Qualty Commuission.

CIM means Crvizas .nvesmen: Managemeil: amited or
CV formerly known as Crvitas Sousing Adwisors amied
anil s change of name on 7 May A020)

Community Interest Company or CIC means a
company approved by the Office of the Regulator of

Commu nity nerest Companies as a Commanly Inveres:”
company and ragistered as such with Companies =ousge.

Company means Civitas Soaal =“ousing 2,C, a company
neorporatedan =ngland and Wales with company
number 10402523,

CMA Order means the Statniory Aude Services Order
2074, issued by the Compention and Varkess Authorly.

Current Leverage means “he percentage taken as jotal
bank borrowings drawn over toral asse s,

Dividend Yield means the razio of “he 10wl annuaal
diwidend pavyments over marke: pnce per share.

EPRA moans “he suropean “ublic geal ~state Assooiaiion.

EPRA EPS 1 the - A earmings dvided by the waighred
average number of shares i 1ssue 1n “he period.

EPRA Net Reinstatement Value (“EPRA NRV™) 15 an
APRA NAY memic which assumes that entines never sell
assels and aimns o represent the value required o rebuild
the annty.

EPRA Net Tangible Assets (“EPRA NTA") 15 an ~V2A
NAY meinc which assumes thar entizes buy and zsell
assets, thereby crystallising cer:am levels of unavoidable
deferred tax.

EPRA Net Disposal Value (“EPRA NDV™") 15 an 2?RA

NAY metnic which represents the shareholders' value
uander a disposal scenario, where deferred tax. fiinancial
mstrumenss and cerzain other adjusiments are calculated
0 the full extent of ther habiiy. ne: of any resulang tax.

EPRA Run Rate means the rano of a company's earnngs
{excludmg farr value gains/losses) over diidends paid to
shareholders.

Gross Asset Value means total assers.
Group means 'he Company and s subsidianes

Housing Asseociation or HA means an independen:
sociery, body of trastees or company established for
‘he purpose of providing low-cos: soclal housing for
people In housing need generally on a non-profi:
making basig Any mading surplas 18 rypleally used o
maintamn exisiing homes and ‘o help finance new ones,
“ousing Associations are regulated by the Regulator of
Social ousing.

IFRS Net Asset Value or IFRS NAV means the net asser
valie of the Group on tha relevan: date, prepared in
accordance with "TRS accouning princpias.

Investment Adviser means C1viTas nvesinen:
Managemen: Limited {"C:V7), a comparny incorporazed in
~ngland and Wales with company number "0278444, in 11s
capacry as invesimen: adviser 1o the Company.

IPO means niual Aublic Offanng.
IRR meang iniernal rate of retarn.

Levered IRR means the internal rate of recurn melading
“hewnpact of debr,

Local Authority or LA means the admirnisiranve bodies
for the local government in Sngland compnsing 326
avthoreies (including 32 London boroughs

Net Initial Yield means the rane of ne: rental income
and gross parchase price of a propeny.

NHS means the pubhcly funded healthcare system of
the Uniied <iingdom compnsing The National —ealth
Servicen -ngland, N=8 Scotland. N=3 Wales and Sealth
and Social Care m Northern reland. including, for the
avoldance of doubt N=5 Trass
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Glossary

Continued

NHS Trust means a legal entity, set up by order of the
Secrelary of State under section 25 of, and Schedule 4 1o,
the Natuonal Health Service Act 2006, to provide goods
and services for the purposes of the health service.

Ongoing Charges (previously Total =xpense Ratios

or TERs) means the fiigure pubhshed annually by the
Company which shows the drag on performance caused
by operational expenses. More specifically. 1718 The
annual percentage reducion 1n shareholder returns as
a result of recurnng operanenal expenses assuIming
marke:s remain statie and the portfolio 1s not rraded.
Alrhough the Ongomg Charges figure 1s based on
histonical information, 12 provides shareholders with an
indrcation of the likely level of costs that will be incarred
in managing the Company 10 the futire

Portfelio means the Group's portfolo of assets.

Portfolio Net Asset Value or Portfolio NAV means the
net asser value of the Company, with assets aggregaed
rather than valued on an agse: by asse: basis, as at the
relevant date, calculated on the basis of an independen:
Sortfolio Valuanon. See note V.0 1o Appendix © for a
reconciiation 1o I8 NAY.

Portfolio Basis means the 2orifoho NAY (as defined
abhove)

Portfolio Valuation means an independen: valuatuon of
the Porzfolio by Jones Lang _aSalle Jimited or such other
property adviser as the Direc:ors may select from ame

0 Time, based upon the 2orifolio being held, directly or
inchirec:ly, within a corporate vehicle or equivalen: enty
which 15 a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and
otherwise prepared in accordance with °CS "Red 300k
gaidelines.

REIT means a qualifying real estate investmen: Truss it
accordance with the UX 22T Regime iniroduced by the
UX Tinance Act 2006 and subsequently re-wnen in:o
Sar: 12 of the Corporanion Tax Act 2070

RICS means Royal nsiatution of Charered Surveyors.

RSH means the Regulator of Social Housing, the
exaecuive non-departmental pubhc body, sponsored
by the Minsiry of =ousing, Communities and _ocal
Governmens:. which 1s the regulator for Social Homes
providers in Sngland and Wales.

Social homes o1 social housing means social rented
homes and aother accommodation tha: are offered at
rents subsidised below market level or are consituen:s
of other appropnaie ren: regimes such as exempt ren:s
or are subject ‘o bespoke agreement with entities such as
NES Trasis and are provided by Approved Providers

Specialist Supported Housing or 88H means so¢lal
housing which incorporatas some form of care or other
ancillary service on the premises.

SPV means special purpose vehicle, a corporate vehicle
in which the Group's properies are held.

Target Return means the targe: retdrn on Investmens:,

Total Return means Ne: Toral Return, being the change
1N CTRS NAV over the relevant penod plus dividend paid.

Total Shareholder Return means a measure of the
rerurn baged upon shars price movemen: over the pernod
plus dividend paid.

Valuation means an independen: valuation of *he
‘arfolio by Jones Lang LaSalle _imited or such other
property adviser as the J1irectors may selec: from
me to nme, preparad in accordance with 2ICS "Red
Jock” guidelines and based upon a valuanon of each
underlying imvesimen: property rather than the value
ascribed to the porsffolio and on the assumpiion of

g theoreucal sale of each property ra*her han the
corporate entities in which all of the Company's
Imvesimer’ properies are held.

WAULT or “Weighted Average Unexpired Lease Term”
12 “he produce: of annuahsed ren: roll a® penod end and
he ume in years o when the leage expires for each gqiven
lease, summed across leases, and then divided by the
“otal annualised rent roll of “he portfolio The resulzis
expressed in years. WAL T 15 a key measure of the quality
of the Company's por:folio. _ong lease terme underpin
“he securty of the Company's income s ream
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